SCATTERING OF POSITRONS BY HELIUM ATOMS AND THE USE OF A GRAPHICAL DISPLAY DEVICE

by

Caroline Elizabeth Wardle

R. H. C. LIBRARY CLASS No. ACC. No. DATE ACQ

Submitted to the University of London in partial fulfilment of the requirements for the degree of Doctor of Philosophy.

October 1970

ProQuest Number: 10107280

All rights reserved

INFORMATION TO ALL USERS The quality of this reproduction is dependent upon the quality of the copy submitted.

In the unlikely event that the author did not send a complete manuscript and there are missing pages, these will be noted. Also, if material had to be removed, a note will indicate the deletion.



ProQuest 10107280

Published by ProQuest LLC(2016). Copyright of the Dissertation is held by the Author.

All rights reserved. This work is protected against unauthorized copying under Title 17, United States Code. Microform Edition © ProQuest LLC.

> ProQuest LLC 789 East Eisenhower Parkway P.O. Box 1346 Ann Arbor, MI 48106-1346

ABSTRACT

The scattering of slow positrons by Helium atoms is of particular interest now that positron beam experiments are being performed. The purpose of this thesis is to carry out an examination of past theoretical investigations of the problem as well as to explore various approximation schemes for describing the problem within the framework of the close-coupling method, where the total wave function is expanded in terms of the eigenstates of the target Hamiltonian and of the Fositronium system. The numerical techniques associated with solving the ensuing coupled integodifferential equations are described in detail. A novel use of a graphical display device as an aid to debugging the computer code is illustrated. The theoretical approximations include (1) allowing for all partial waves (2) taking into account the 2P states of both Positronium and Helium (3) the addition of correlation terms (a means of allowing for short-range effects.)

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

I wish to extend my thanks to my supervisor, Professor Kenneth Smith, for suggesting the topic of my thesis and for his encouragement throughout the work.

I am indebted to the Science Research Council and the National Science Foundation for financial support, to University College, London and the University of Nebraska Computing Centre, Lincoln, Nebraska, U.S.A. for use of their facilities.

In addition I wish to thank Professor Peter Fraser for useful correspondence.

participation production rate ball, manufactures

the Lord best of any "place and he leve function

LIST OF TABLES

| Tabl | .e 1-1 | Phase shifts for L=O scattering of positrons by Hydrogen atoms in the static and variational approximations | 15 |
|------|--------|---|-----|
| | 1-2 | Phase shifts for L=O scattering of positrons by Hydrogen atoms in the Close Coupling and variational approximations | 34 |
| | 1-3 | Phase shifts for L=O scattering of positrons by Helium atoms in the static and Close Coupling plus polarization approximation | 38 |
| | 1-4 | Phase shifts for L=O scattering of positrons by Hydrogen atoms in the static plus polarization approximation, perturbation, non-adiabatic and lower-bound calculations | 43 |
| | 1-5 | Phase shifts for L=1 scattering of positrons by Hydrogen atoms in the perturbation, non-adiabatic, extended polarization and variational approximations - | 66 |
| | 1-6 | Phase shifts for L=O scattering of positrons by Hydrogen atoms in the extended polarization, lower bound adiabatic and variational approximations - | 74 |
| | 1-7 | Phase shifts for L=O scattering of positrons by Helium atoms in the adiabatic plus polarization and variational approximations | 80 |
| | 1-8 | Phase shifts for L=0, 1 and 2 scattering of ortho-Positronium by Helium atoms | 90 |
| | 1-9 | Positron-Helium Annihilation rate 2 eff | 96 |
| Tabl | .e 3-1 | A comparison of the kernels K_{12} and K_{24} using the Hartree-Fock and Hylleraas Helium function (small arguments) | 141 |
| | 3-2 | The kernels K ₁₂ and K ₂₂ obtained from using the Hartree-Fock and Hylleraas Helium functions (large arguments) | 142 |

| Table 4- | l Iterated phase shifts produced by the positron- Helium code and a check code in the case of analytic kernels | 191 |
|----------|--|-----|
| 4- | 2 The number of iterations necessary for convergence in the check code in the case of analytic kernels | 192 |
| | | |
| Table 5- | 1 Iterated phase shifts for the Hartree-Fock and Hylleraas Helium function | 211 |
| 5- | 2 Averaged and extrapolated phase shifts produced from the Hartree-Fock Helium function | 218 |
| 5- | S -wave phase shifts for positron-Helium scattering in the M.S.F. approximation | 220 |
| 5- | 4 S -wave phase shifts for positron-Helium scattering in the virtual Positronium formation approximation | 222 |
| 5- | 5 Elastic cross sections for positron - Helium scattering | 224 |

- . Astrophi phase spirit for the Lolssense Childs

Section apprenden lieg. ----

. . .

.

V

LIST OF FIGURES

| Figure | 1-1 | A schematic diagram of the energy levels for positron-Helium scattering | 3 |
|--------|-----|--|-----|
| Figure | 3-1 | Photograph of $K_{12}^{(1)}$ and $K_{12}^{(2)}$ (Hartree-Fock) | 144 |
| | 3-2 | Photograph of K22 and K22 (Hartree-Fock) | 145 |
| | 3-3 | Photograph of $\widetilde{K}_{12}^{(1)}$ and $\widetilde{K}_{12}^{(2)}$ (Hartree-Fock) | 146 |
| | 3-4 | Photograph of $K_{12}^{(2)}$ and $\widehat{K}_{12}^{(2)}$ (Hylleraas) | 147 |
| Figure | 4-1 | Photograph of D, E and H superimposed | 190 |
| | 4-2 | Photograph of solutions F, and F, superimposed | 194 |
| | 4-3 | Photograph of first 8 iterates of F, | 195 |
| | 4-4 | Photograph of first 8 iterates of F2 | 197 |
| | 4-5 | Photograph of F, and F, deliberately mismatched | 198 |
| | 4-6 | Photograph of first 2 iterates of E with a deliberate error in the interpolation | 199 |
| Figure | 5-1 | Iterated phase shifts for the Hartree-Fock and Hylleraas Helium function | 212 |
| | 5-2 | Averaged phase shifts for the Hartree-Fock Helium function | 213 |
| | 5-3 | Averaged phase shifts for the Hylleraas Helium function | 214 |
| | 5-4 | Averaged phase shifts for the Hartree-Fock Helium function for several energies | 216 |
| | 5-5 | S -wave phase shifts in the M.S.F. approximation | 221 |
| | 5-6 | S -wave phase shifts in the virtual Positronium formation approximation | 223 |
| | 5-7 | Elastic cross sections in the virtual Positronium | 226 |

CONTENTS

| ABSTRACT | II |
|------------------|-----|
| ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS | III |
| LIST OF TABLES | IV |
| LIST OF FIGURES | VI |

| CHAPTER I | . Review of Positron Atom Scattering Processes | 1 |
|-----------|--|----|
| 1.1 | Born Approximation Methods | 4 |
| 1.2 | Variational Methods | 8 |
| 1.3 | Bounds on the Scattering Length | 17 |
| 1.4 | Partial Wave Theory and the Close Coupling Approximation | 26 |
| 1.5 | The Method of Polarized Orbitals | 37 |
| 1.6 | Expansion in Sturmian Functions | 49 |
| 1.7 | Non-Adiabatic Theory | 52 |
| 1.8 | Bounds on the Reactance Matrix | 56 |
| 1.9 | Further Adiabatic Methods | 67 |
| 1.10 | Resonances in Positron Atom Scattering | 82 |
| 1.11 | Processes Involving Positronium | 88 |
| | And share of the of the set of th | |
| CHAPTER I | I. Close Coupling Theory of Positron Helium Scattering - | 98 |
| 2.1 | The Schroedinger Wave Equation | 98 |
| 2.0 | The Variational Method | 99 |

| 2.3 | Derivation of the Radial Equations | 106 |
|-----|------------------------------------|-----|
| 2.4 | Simplification of the Kernels | 113 |
| 2.5 | Cross-Section Formulation | 120 |

VII

| CHAPTER III. Kernel Computation | 127 |
|---|-------|
| 3.1 Integration Procedures | 127 |
| 3.2 Numerical Checking Procedures | 133 |
| 3.3 An Alternative Helium Function | 139 |
| 3.4 Use of the Visual Display Device | 143 |
| | |
| CHAPTER IV. Algorithm for Coupled Integro-Differential Equations- | 149 |
| 4.1 Matching Procedure and Iteration Strategy | 149 |
| 4.2 Runga Kutta Method and Interpolation Formulae | - 171 |
| 4.3 Numerical Checking Procedures | 175 |
| 4.4 Review of Alternate Iteration Methods | 200 |
| | |
| CHAPTER V. Scattering Results | 210 |
| 5.1 Convergence Problems | 210 |
| 5.2 Results | 219 |
| (indicate prob) and the second is the second s | |
| CHAPTER VI. Theoretical Extensions | 228 |
| 6.1 Higher Partial Waves | 228 |
| 6.2 Correlation Terms | 229 |
| 6.3 Addition of the 2P state of Helium and Positronium | 248 |
| which states in the states and a state of a state of the states and the states of the | |
| APPENDIX A | 268 |
| APPENDIX B | 272 |
| REFERENCES | 273 |

CHAPTER I

REVIEW OF POSITRON ATOM SCATTERING PROCESSES

The problem of scattering of positrons by atoms has received increasing attention since the advent of sophisticated theoretical treatments of electron-atom scattering and the feasibility of performing positron beam experiments. The physical differences between positron interactions and electron interactions of an atomic system can be exploited to produce more information about the contribution of particular processes of interest. Unlike the electron problem, in the positron case the projectile is distinguisable from the target atom electrons and no allowance for exchange terms is required. However, if Positronium formation is taken into account in describing the collision processes, then rearrangement terms appear which in effect replace the exchange terms of the electron problem. Because of lack of symmetry, these rearrangement terms are more difficult to handle than exchange terms.

The main problem in theoretical calculations is to provide an adequate representation of the target atom state during the collision process. The mean static field of the atom, which would attract an electron, repels a positron, but the induced dipole moment of the atom (polarization of the atom) is attractive in both cases. If Positronium is formed, then it will also be polarized by the positive ion remaining. The various approximation methods formulated to account for

R.H.C.

these physical processes are described in the sections follow-

One of the first experiments was that of Marder, (1) Hughes, Wu and Bennett who studied the enhancement of Positronium formation by a static electric field. The positron energy can be divided into four regions determined by the atomic ionization energy E_{Ion} , the first excited state energy of the atom E_{Exc} and the threshold energy for Positronium formation E_{The} as shown in Figure 1.1 which is a schematic diagram for positron Helium scattering processes.

If $E_{Exc} > E_{Thr}$ then the energy region ($E_{Exc} - E_{Thr}$) is known as the "Ore gap" and is the energy region in which Positronium is most likely to form. For positron energy $< E_{Thr}$ only elastic scattering will occur while in the region ($E_{Ten} - E_{Exc}$) Positronium formation competes with atomic excitation. Finally for positron energy $> E_{Ten}$ Positronium will be formed but with energy such that it is likely to dissociate through further collisions. If we assume that there is a uniform distribution of positron kinetic energy after the last inelastic collision we can estimate the fraction P of positrons forming Positronium as follows:

 $\frac{E_{Exe} - E_{Thr}}{E_{exe}} < P < \frac{E_{Ion} - E_{Thr}}{E_{Tor}}$

For Helium this inequality becomes:

·10 < P < . 28



Figure 1.1 A schematic diagram of the energy levels for positron Helium scattering In their theoretical paper corresponding to the experi-(1) (3) mental results of Marder et al. Teutsch and Hughes analysed the diffusion of the swarm of positrons through gaseous Helium making the following assumptions:

(1) the time required for the positrons to slow down to thermal energies was negligible in comparison to the time required for positron annihilation.

(2) the positron energy distribution was Maxwellian.

(3) the elastic momentum-transfer cross-section was energy-independent.

These assumptions must be viewed cautiously in view of the consequent theoretical disagreement with the momentum-transfer cross-section value of $.023 \pi_{\alpha}^{2}$ at an energy of 18eV.

The various theoretical approximations used in positron atom scattering processes will now be examined.

1.1 Born Approximation Methods

The Born Approximation is the most well-known approximation in collision theory and consequently will be described very briefly. The wave equation for a one body problem in a field V(r) is:

$$\left[\nabla^{2} + k^{2}\right] \Psi(r) = V(r)\Psi(r) \qquad 1.1a$$

where k is the incident energy of the particle. The asymptotic form of ψ is:

 $\psi \sim e + e f(0)$

where f(s) is the scattering amplitude. We now assume that the particle wave is not affected to a large extent by the scattering centre so that we may replace $\psi(r)$ on the right hand side of equation (1.1a) by the unperturbed wave function $\frac{i_k \cdot r}{e}$. The first Born Approximation is given by:

$$\left[\nabla^{a} + k^{a}\right] \Psi_{i}(r) = V(r)e^{i\underline{k}\cdot\underline{r}}$$
 1.2

This can be solved to give Ψ_i and thus a first approximation to the scattering amplitude $f_i(\emptyset)$. If $\Psi_i(*)$ is now substituted in the right hand side of equation (1.1a) then a second approximation $\Psi_2(r)$ and scattering amplitude $f_a(*)$ are obtained which will be the second Born approximation. Thus we are obtaining $\Psi(*)$ by iteration as follows:

$$\Psi(r) = \sum_{n=0}^{\infty} \Psi_n(r)$$
 1.3

where $\left[\nabla^{2} + k^{2}\right] \Psi_{n}(r) = V(r) \Psi_{n-1}(r)$ 1.4a

$$\Psi_{o}(r) = e \qquad 1.4b$$

and

$$\Psi_n(r) \sim e^{-\frac{\kappa r}{r+\infty}} \delta_{n0} + \frac{e}{r} \cdot f_n(0) \qquad 1.4c$$

It can be seen that this method depends on the interaction

5

1.1b

between the particle and the scatterer being small and is thus more applicable to fast collisions than slow. In slow collisions between positrons and atoms the charge distribution of the atomic electrons is distorted to such an extent that the 1st Born approximation cannot be expected to give reliable results.

(a) <u>Positron Hydrogen Collisions</u>. (4)

Massey and Mohr used the 1st Born approximation to calculate cross-sections for formation of Ortho-Positronium in the ground state. The potential energy V of a positron in the mean field of a Hydrogen atom is given by:

$$V(r_{p}) = 2 \int |\psi_{o}(r)|^{2} \left[\frac{1}{r_{p}} - \frac{1}{|t-t_{p}|} \right] dt = 2e^{-2r_{p}} (1+\frac{1}{r_{p}})$$
 1.5

where $\Psi_{o}(\mathbf{r}) = \pi^{-\frac{1}{2}} \mathbf{e}^{-\frac{1}{2}}$ is the normalized ground state Hydrogen function in atomic units and \mathbf{r}_{p} is the position vector of the positron with respect to the proton.

Since $V(r_{\rho})$ is positive and therefore a repulsive potential, it will distort the incoming positron wave. Massey (4) and Mohr therefore used a distorted wave approximation to try to take this into account. That is, the plane wave approximation in the Born formula is replaced by the function:

$$e^{ik\cdot r_{p}} + \frac{1}{kr_{p}} \left[\int_{0} (r_{p}) - sm kr_{p} \right]$$

$$1.6a$$

$$f_{0}(r_{p}) = e^{-.4i} \left[sm(kr_{p} - 0.4) + e^{-1.6r_{p}} \right]$$

$$1.6b$$

where

and \int_{∞}^{a} is an empirical approximation to the Mean Static Field solution (see Section 1.4) for k = 1. The resulting cross-section was a factor of 1/2 smaller than the Born result.

Non is-subject to the fallowing boundary good tionst

more thank a start

Consider the Integral 1 given by

1.2 Variational Methods.

The Kohn variational method is described in detail in Chapter II and consequently only a brief outline of the basic variational procedures will be given here. For simplicity we consider the case of a single particle with zero orbital angular momentum scattered by a spherical potential V(r).

8

1.7

The wave function $\Psi(r)$ describing the scattering of the particle satisfies the following equation:

$$\left[L - V(r)\right] \psi(r) = 0$$

where

V(r) is subject to the following boundary conditions:

$$\Psi(r) = 0$$
 at = r 0 1.8a

$$4(r) \sim Asin(kr+\eta)$$
 1.8b

and gathafring equiling a Balland

Consider the integral I given by:

 $= d^2 + k^2$

$$I = \int \psi(r) \left[L - V(r) \right] \psi(r) dr \qquad 1.9$$

Because of equation (1.7) I=0. Now consider a small arbitrary variation $\delta \Psi$ in Ψ such that:

$$S \Psi(r) = 0$$
 at $r = 0$ 1.10a

$$\delta \psi(r) \sim \delta A \sin(kr + \eta) + A \cos(kr + \eta) \cdot \delta \eta$$
 1.10b

Using the fact that I=0 the variation SI in I is given by:

$$\delta \mathbf{I} = \int_{0}^{\infty} \left[\psi(r) + \delta \psi(r) \right] \left[\mathbf{L} - \mathbf{V}(r) \right] \left[\psi(r) + \delta \psi(r) \right] dr$$

$$\dot{\tau} - \mathbf{A}^{2} \mathbf{k} \cdot \delta \eta \qquad 1.11$$

The expression (1.11) was obtained by using equations (1.10) and is correct to the first order in $\delta \Psi$.

(a) <u>The Kohn and Hulthen's Methods</u>.
 Taking A = sec W we obtain the following:

$$\psi(r) \sim sinkr + tan M. coskr 1.12$$

and
$$\delta [I + k \tan \eta] = 0$$
 1.13

Let us consider a trial wave function \mathcal{V}_t containing parameters c_1, \dots, c_n and satisfying equations (1.8a) and (1.12) but not (1.7). Writing $\tan \mathcal{M}_t = \mathcal{R}_t$ we have the following:

$$2I^{\mathsf{F}} = \sum_{\mu}^{\mathfrak{I}_{\mathsf{F}}} \frac{\mathfrak{I}^{\mathsf{C}}}{\mathfrak{I}^{\mathsf{F}}} \cdot \mathfrak{I}^{\mathsf{C}} + \frac{\mathfrak{I}^{\mathsf{F}}}{\mathfrak{I}^{\mathsf{F}}} \cdot \mathfrak{I}^{\mathsf{F}}$$

Thus equation (1.13) is satisfied if:

The Lasserlant Cillpron

$$\frac{\partial I_t}{\partial c_j} = 0 \quad \text{for} \quad i = 1, \dots, n$$
1.14a

$$\frac{\partial I_{k}}{\partial R_{k}} = -k$$
1.14b

Equations (1.14) define Kohn's variational method. Referring to equation (1.13) we may write:

$$I_{+}+kR_{+}=kR$$

Therefore, to the second order in $\delta \psi$ the best approximation to the exact R is given by:

$$R = k^{-1} I_t + R_t$$

1.15

1.16

We may use a further condition, namely:

$$\frac{\partial H}{\partial L^{F}} = 0$$

which requires $I_t = 0$

Equations (1.14a) and (1.16) define Hulthen's variational method.

this pathod and the

(b) Schwinger's Variational Method.

The important difference between this method and the previous two is that the trial function is not required to have a particular normalization such as is defined by equation (1.12). We consider equation (1.7) where the trial wave function $\Psi_{\rm c}(r)$ satisfies the following boundary conditions:

$$\Psi_{t}(r) = 0$$
 at $r = 0$ 1.17a

$$\Psi_{t}(r) \sim B_{sinkr} + C_{coskr}$$
 1.17b

Therefore the phase shift η_t is defined by:

$$\tan \eta_{e} = \frac{c}{B}$$
1.18

 Ψ_t satisfies the following integral equation:

$$\Psi_{t}(r) = B_{sinkr} + \int_{0}^{\infty} G(r, r') V(r') \Psi_{t}(r') dr'$$
 1.19a

where
$$G(r, r') = -k \operatorname{sm} k \operatorname{rcos} k r'$$
 if $r \leq r'$
= $-k' \operatorname{cos} k \operatorname{rsm} k r'$ if $r \geq r'$ 1.19b

Since
$$\Psi_{t}(r) = B \operatorname{sink} r + \int_{0}^{r} \mathcal{G}(r, r') \mathcal{V}(r') \Psi_{t}(r') dr' + \int_{r}^{\infty} \mathcal{G}(r, r') \mathcal{V}(r') \Psi_{t}(r') dr'$$

$$\sim \operatorname{B} \operatorname{sink} r - k^{-1} \operatorname{cosk} r \int_{0}^{\infty} \operatorname{sink} r' \mathcal{V}(r') \Psi_{t}(r') dr'$$

comparing this to equation (1.17b) we obtain:

$$C = -k^{-1} \int_{0}^{\infty} \sin kr' V(r') \Psi_{t}(r') dr' \qquad 1.20$$

Now consider the integral I_t in the following form:

are the first i

$$I_{t} = \int \Psi_{t}(r) \left[L - V(r) \right] \left[B_{sinkr} + \int_{0}^{\infty} G(r, r') V(r') \Psi_{t}(r') dr' \right] dr \qquad 1.21$$

and choose the variational approximation to I_{av} such that $I_{b} = 0$. Using the fact that the Green's functions G satisfies:

$$LG(r,r') = S(r-r')$$

we have that:

$$\begin{bmatrix} L - V(r) \end{bmatrix} \begin{bmatrix} B \sin kr + \int_{0}^{\infty} G(r, r') V(r') \Psi_{t}(r') dr' \end{bmatrix} = V(r) \Psi_{b}(r)$$

$$= V(r) \begin{bmatrix} B \sin kr + \int_{0}^{\infty} G(r, r') V(r') \Psi_{t}(r') dr' \end{bmatrix}$$
1.22

Substituting equations (1.18), (1.20) and (1.22) into (1.21) gives the following expression for $cot V_{1}$:

$$k^{-i} \operatorname{cot} M_{t} \doteq \frac{\int_{0}^{\infty} \int_{0}^{\infty} \Psi_{t}(r) V(r) \mathcal{G}(r, r') V(r') \Psi_{t}(r') dr' dr - \int_{0}^{\infty} \Psi_{t}(r) V(r) \Psi_{t}(r) dr}{\left[\int_{0}^{\infty} \Psi(r) V(r) \operatorname{sinkrd} r\right]^{2}} \qquad 1.23$$

This defines the Schwinger variational formula. If we choose $\Psi_{t}(r) = sinkr$ we obtain:

$$\tan \eta_{E} = \frac{\tan^{2} \eta_{B}}{\tan \eta_{B}^{(1)} - \tan \eta_{B}^{(2)}}$$

where $\eta_{\mathcal{B}}^{(1)}$ and $\eta_{\mathcal{B}}^{(2)}$ are the first and second iterated Born phase shifts respectively.

1.24

(c) Positron Hydrogen Collisions.

One of the first variational calculations was that of (5) Massey and Moussa who calculated zero-order phase shifts using two types of wave functions. The first function contained no allowance for distortion of the positron wave (6) and was of the form used by Massey and Moiseiwitsch for electron Hydrogen scattering:

$$F_{1}(r_{p}) = \frac{1}{r_{p}} \left[smkr_{p} + \left\{ a + be^{-r_{p}} \right\} \left(1 - e^{-r_{p}} \right) coskr_{p} \right]$$
 1.25

(6) Again following Massey and Moiseiwitsch terms dependent on $\rho = |\mathbf{r}_i - \mathbf{r}_{\rho}|$ were added to \mathbf{F}_i where \mathbf{r}_i and \mathbf{r}_{ρ} are the positron vectors of the electron and positron relative to the proton respectively. The second function \mathbf{F}_a was

$$F_{a}(r_{P}, \rho) = \frac{1}{r_{o}} \left[\operatorname{sinkr}_{P} + \left\{ a + (b + c\rho)e^{-r_{P}} \right\} (1 - e^{-r_{P}}) \operatorname{coskr}_{P} \right] \qquad 1.26$$

Both Kohn's and Hulthen's methods were used but no appreciable difference in the phase shifts was found in using F_1 and F_2 , see Table 1-1.

Rather than considering distortion of the incoming (7) positron wave, Moussa. considered distortion of the Hydrogen atom by the presence of the colliding positron. The total trial wave function Ψ was chosen as:

$$\Psi(r_1,r_p) = \Psi_0(r_1)F(r_p) + \Psi_0(r_1,r_p)$$

where 4, is the ground state Hydrogen function and:

$$e_{0}(r_{1},r_{p}) = w(p)G(\sigma)$$

where $f = \underline{r}_{1} - \underline{r}_{p}$ and $\underline{\sigma} = \frac{1}{2}(\underline{r}_{1} + \underline{r}_{p})$, $\omega(p)$ is the ground state Positronium function and G was chosen as:

$$G(\sigma) = Ce^{-K_{\sigma}}$$

where $\frac{1}{2} \kappa^2 = (\kappa^2 - \frac{1}{2})$

and $\downarrow k$ is the kinetic energy of the Positronium in rydbergs. Moussa applied the Kohn and Hulthen methods with a, b and c as the variational parameters for the single energy $k^2 = \cdot 25$ and s-wave scattering only. The elastic scattering crosssection was reduced when \mathcal{P}_{e} was included in the trial wave TABLE 1-1

static approximation; row (b) 2-parameter variational; row (c) 3-parameter Phase shifts for L=0 scattering of positrons by Hydrogen atoms. Row (a) variational including a term depending on the Positronium coordinate; row (d) extensive variational.

| kan | | 0.1 | 0.2 | 0.3 | 0.4 | 0.5 | 0.6 | Reference |
|-----|---|-------|-------|-------|--------|-------|-------|-----------|
| (a) | | 14.57 | 084 | Ne. | | 203 | | 2 |
| (P) | | • | 114 | • | • | 264 | | 2 |
| (c) | | • | 098 | • | • | 251 | • | 2 |
| (P) | - | +.151 | +.188 | +.168 | +.120. | +.062 | +.007 | 11 |

function but not by a sufficient amount to give any agreement (1) with the experimental results of Marder et al. The form chosen for G is unlikely to be adequate for non-asymptotic distances which could account for the relatively small change in the cross-section value.

Extending the calculations for obtaining equation (1.24) to the scattering amplitude defined in equation (1.1b) it can be shown that if \int_{61} and \int_{62} are the scattering amplitudes obtained from the first and second Born approximation respectively, then the best approximation for the true scattering amplitude \int that can be obtained from \int_{61} and \int_{82} is given by:

$$f = \frac{f_{B1}}{f_{B1} - f_{B2}}$$
1.27

(8)

Using this method Moiseiwitsch gained agreement with (5)Massey and Moussa and an extension of the approximation (9)for by a method due to-Newstein to allow for polarization, resulted in a decrease in the cross-sections. (10)

Moiseiwitsch and Williams used a simplification of the second Born approximation and Schwinger's method to calculate differential cross-sections for elastic scattering. The positron energy considered was greater than 200 eV so allowance for excited states of the atom was included. (11)

Schwartz calculated the elastic scattering for zero angular momentum using the Kohn variational method and the following type of trial wave function:

$$\Psi_{t}(r_{1},r_{p}) = \varphi(r_{1},r_{p}) + \sum_{\ell,m,n \geq 0} C_{\ell m n} e^{-k\rho} \rho r_{1} r_{p}$$
 1.28a

where \$\$ is of the form:

$$e^{-t_{i}}\left[\begin{array}{c} \frac{\sin kr_{p}}{kr_{p}} + \tan \delta \cdot \frac{\cos kr_{p}}{kr_{p}} \left(1 - e^{-\frac{\kappa}{2}r_{p}}\right)\right]$$
 1.28b

and $f = f_1 - f_p$, $g = \frac{1}{2}(f_1 + f_p)$. K is a variable scale parameter adjusted to aid convergence. The ensuing phase shifts are displayed in Table 1-1.

(d) Positron Helium Collisions.

Moiseiwitsch and Williams applied the same methods to positron Helium scattering, for energies greater than 300 eV, as for positron Hydrogen scattering. The two methods gave little agreement and at small angles the differential cross-sections differed by a factor of three.

(10)

1.3 Bounds on the Scattering-Length.

According to effective range theory, for short-range central potential scattering, koot δ_{c} (where δ_{c} is the s-wave phase shift) can be expanded in powers of k^{*} as follows:

$$kist 5_{0} = -\frac{1}{\alpha} + k^{2} \frac{r_{0}}{\alpha} + O(k^{4})$$
 1.29a

where a is the scattering length and r_{o} the effective range. Alternatively we may define a as follows:

$$a = \liminf_{k \to 0} \left[-\frac{\tan \delta_0}{k} \right]$$
 1.29b

Up to this point there has been no criterion to judge whether the addition of more variational parameters would produce (12) improved phase shifts. Spruch and Rosenberg generalised (13) the results of Kato to show that the Kohn variational method provides an upper bound on the scattering length. We first of all consider the case of zero energy scattering in a static central potential V(r). Referring to equation (1.15) the exact expression for R is:

$$R = R_{t} + k^{-1} I_{t} - k^{-1} \int_{0}^{\infty} 5\psi(r) \left[L - V(r) \right] \delta\psi(r) dr \qquad 1.30$$

where $\psi(r)$ satisfies equation (1.12).

If we consider equation (1.30) in the limit as $k \rightarrow 0$ we obtain the following:

$$\alpha = \alpha_t + I_t - \int_0^\infty \delta \psi(r) D(r) \, \delta \psi(r) \, dr \qquad 1.31$$

where $D(r) \equiv \frac{d^2}{dr^2} - V(r)$

4(0) = 0

1.32b

1.32a

and a is the true scattering length. The normalization of $\psi(r)$ in the zero-energy limit has been changed by a factor of k. Estimating the size of the integral term on the right hand side of equation (1.31) will give us some measure of the error incurred in the variational calculations. Spruch (14) and Rosenberg showed that if the potential V(r) could not support a bound state then:

$$-\int_{0}^{\infty} \overline{\delta} \psi(r) D(r) \overline{\delta} \psi(r) dr \leq 0$$

Therefore equation (1.31) reduces to:

a sat + It

That is, any choice of parameters in the trial function will yield an upper bound on the scattering length so the choice leading to the smallest values of $(a_t + I_t)$ will provide the best approximation to the true scattering length.

In the one-dimensional problem Kato calculated upper and lower bounds on the error term in equation (1.30). By considering the associated eigenvalue equation:

 $\mathcal{L} \varphi_n(r) + \mu_n \cdot \rho(r) \varphi_n(r) = 0 \qquad 1.35$

where $\mathcal{L} = L - V(r)$, ρ is a non-negative weight function and φ_{r} satisfies the same boundary conditions as $S\varphi_{t}$, it can be seen that there exists an infinite set of discrete eigenvalues. If we denote the smallest positive eigenvalue by \mathcal{L}

1.34

1.33

and the smallest (in magnitude) negative eigenvalue by $-\beta$ then:

$$-\frac{1}{\beta} \leq \frac{1}{\mu_n} \leq \frac{1}{\alpha}$$
 for all n 1.36

Since $\Psi_t = \Psi_+ S \Psi$ where $\mathcal{L} \Psi = 0$

we use equation (1.36) and the fact that:

$$l_{\psi_{t}} = l_{\xi_{t}}$$

to obtain the following expression:

$$-\frac{1}{\beta}\int_{0}^{\infty} \left[d\psi_{\varepsilon} \right]^{2} \frac{dr}{\rho(r)} \leq \int_{0}^{\infty} 5\psi ds \psi dr \leq \frac{1}{\alpha} \int_{0}^{\infty} \left[d\psi_{\varepsilon} \right]^{2} \frac{dr}{\rho(r)}$$

(12)

Spruch and Rosenberg generalized this to the scattering of a particle by a compound system. Providing the following conditions hold, namely:

(1) the eigenfunctions φ_n of the associated problem form a complete set.

(2) Levinson's theorem generalized to a many-body system is valid. That is: when the exclusion principle is not in effect, the phase shift for zero energy scattering is nTwhere n is the number of bound states of the system. (3) no three-body bound state exists for the positron Helium system.

then the scattering length obtained from Kohn's variational method for positron-Hydrogen is an upper bound to the true scattering length.

(a) <u>Positron Hydrogen Collisions</u>. (12)

Spruch and Rosenberg considered two types of trial wave functions. The first F, corresponds to the Mean Static Field approximation:

$$F_{i}(r_{i}, r_{p}) = \mathcal{P}_{o}(r_{i}) f(r_{p})$$

where $\varphi_o(r_i) = \overline{\Pi} e^{\frac{1}{2}e^{-r_i}}$ is the ground state Hydrogen function and:

$$f(r_p) = 0 \quad \text{at} \quad r_p = 0$$

$$f(r_p) \sim \alpha_1 - r_p$$

where a, is the scattering length in the Mean Static Field Approximation.a, was found to be positive and was an upper bound on the scattering length for the true problem.

The second type of function F_a contained terms in ρ to allow for polarization of the Hydrogen atom:

 $F_{2}(r_{1},r_{p},\rho) = \pi^{-\frac{1}{2}} \Big[Ae^{-r_{1}} (1-e^{-r_{p}}) - r_{p} (e^{-r_{1}} - Be^{-qr_{p}-sr_{1}} - Ce^{-tp-vr_{1}}) \Big]$

The parameters q, s, t and v are varied and the linear parameters determined variationally to give the least value of the scattering length. This produced an upper bound of -1.356ao showing that the positron is attracted to the Hydrogen atom at low energies. The addition of a further term $\pi^{-\frac{1}{4}}$ Dr, e similar to the first excited state of Positronium reduced the upper bound to -1.397ao which can be (11) compared to Schwartz's variational result of -2.1ao.

Allison, McIntyre and Moiseiwitsch calculated the scattering length for elastic collisions using the Kohn and Hulthen variational principles. The total wave function $\Psi(\underline{r},\underline{r})$ for total angular momentum zero was chosen as:

(15)

$$\Psi(\underline{r}_{i},\underline{r}_{p}) = \varphi_{o}(r_{i}) \left\{ 1 + \mathcal{C} \left\{ (\underline{r}_{i},\underline{r}_{p}) \right\} F(r_{i}) \right\}$$

TP

where

$$\int (\underline{C}_{1}, \underline{r}_{p}) = r_{p}^{-2} (1 - e^{-5r_{p}})^{3} (\frac{1}{2}r_{1}^{2} + r_{1}) \cos \theta_{1p}$$

and

$$F(r_{p}) = r_{p}^{-1} \left[(d + \beta e^{-r_{p}})(1 - e^{-r_{p}}) - r_{p} \right]$$

and λ, β, \forall and δ are arbitrary parameters. f contains allowance for the polarization of the Hydrogen atom (see Section 1.5) and F obeys the following asymptotic boundary condition:

$$r_p F(r_p) \sim d - r_{p \to \infty}$$

hence the calculated scattering length is \checkmark . Varying the parameters β , \checkmark and δ in the variational methods, the best value of the scattering length was -.785a₀ which is greater (12) than Spruch and Rosenberg's upper bound result. A probable cause of error in Alison et al's choice of wave function is the omission of any allowance for virtual Positronium formation. (16)

A further trial function similar to Schwartz's defined by equations (1.28) in the zero-energy limit was (16) used by Houston et al.:

$$\Psi_{t}(r_{1},r_{p}) = \chi(r_{1},r_{p},\rho)e\rho_{0}(r_{1})$$

ere $\chi(r_{1},r_{p},\rho) = \frac{1}{r_{0}}\left[\alpha\left\{1-e^{-\delta r_{p}}\right\}-r_{p}\right]+e^{-dr_{p}-\beta r_{1}}\sum_{i=1}^{N}\alpha_{i}r_{p}r_{1}\rho^{n}$ 1.37

whe

and \mathcal{P}_{α} is the ground state Hydrogen function. Calculations were performed for N=4, 10, 20 and 35 corresponding to all possible values satisfying $\ell_{+m+n \leq 1}$, 2, 3 and 4 respectively with $\ell_{,m,n}$, $\mathcal{P}_{,0}$. Optimal values of \measuredangle, β and \aleph were calculated for the N=4 case and these were used for the remaining cases. The lowest scattering length of $-1.89a_0$ was obtained for N=35. Allowance for Positronium formation was made by including a further term:

Q. N+1

This reduced the lowest scattering length to -1.92ao.

(b) <u>Positron Helium Collisions</u>. (15)

Allison et al. applied the Kohn and Hulthen variational methods to positron Helium scattering where the total wave function $\Psi(\underline{r},\underline{r},\underline{r}_{p})$ for zero orbital angular momentum was chosen as:

$$\Psi(\underline{r}_1,\underline{r}_2,\underline{r}_p) = \Psi_0(r_1,r_2) \left[1 + \forall f(\underline{r}_1,\underline{r}_2,\underline{r}_p) \right] F(r_p)$$

where $f(t_1, t_2, t_p) = \frac{1}{t_p^2} \left\{ 1 - e^{-5\frac{2}{2}t_p} \right\} \left\{ \cos \Theta_{1p}(\frac{1}{p_0}t_1 + \frac{1}{p_1}t_1^2) + \cos \Theta_{2p}(\frac{1}{p_0}t_2 + \frac{1}{p_1}t_2^2) \right\}$

and $F(t_p)$ is the same as in the positron Hydrogen case. The Helium ground state function \mathcal{V}_{o} is the 3-parameter approximation to the Hartree-Fock function given by Green, Mulder, (17) Lewis and Woll:

$$\Psi_{p}(r_{1}, r_{2}) = u(r_{1})u(r_{2})$$
1.38a
where $u(r) = \frac{N}{\sqrt{kT}} \left[e^{-Rr} + Ce^{-Br} \right]$
1.38b

and A, B, C and N are defined in Chapter II. The constants p_{0} and p_{1} were chosen so that for large r_{0} , $y_{0}f$ was the first order correction to y_{0} arising from the dipole term of the perturbation due to the positron, see Section 1.5.

As in the Hydrogen case, the scattering length for positron Helium was negative, equaling $-.16a_0$ in the Kohn method and $-.10a_0$ in the Hulthen method. Since the Helium atomic function is approximate no rigorous bounds can be applied in this case. (16)

Houston et al. extended their variational method to Helium using an analogous trial wave function:

$$\Psi_{b}(r_{1},r_{2},r_{p}) = \Psi_{0}(r_{1},r_{2}) \xi(r_{1},r_{2},r_{p},\rho_{1},\rho_{2})$$

where ψ_{\bullet} is defined in equation (1.39) and:

$$\mathcal{E}(r_{1},r_{2},r_{p},\rho_{1},\rho_{2}) = \frac{1}{r_{p}} \left[\alpha(1-e^{-\delta r_{p}}) - r_{p} \right] + e^{-\delta r_{p}} \sum_{i=1}^{N} \alpha_{i}(1+\rho_{i2}) \left\{ e^{-\beta r_{i}} \chi(r_{1},r_{p},\rho_{i}) \right\}$$

and χ is defined by equation (1.37). P_{i2} is the operator interchanging all coordinates 1 and 2 and $p_i = \pm - \pm p_i$ for i=1 and 2. Calculations for N=4, 10 and 20 were performed, the smallest scattering length of -.398ao being obtained for maximum N.

1.4 Partial Wave Theory and the Close Coupling Approximation.

We expand the total wave function I in terms of the eigenstates of the target Hamiltonian. For simplicity we will consider the case of positron Hydrogen scattering, without allowance for Positronium formation.

$$\Psi(\underline{r}_{1},\underline{r}_{p}) = \sum_{n} \varphi_{n}(\underline{t}_{1}) F_{n}(\underline{r}_{p}) \qquad 1.39$$

where φ_n is the nth state Hydrogen function satisfying:

$$\left[-\nabla^{2}-\frac{2}{\tau}-E_{n}\right]\varphi_{n}(t)=0$$
1.40a

where $e P_n(t) = \sum_{\ell m} \frac{R_{n\ell}(t)}{t} Y_{\ell m}(t)$

F, satisfies the following boundary conditions:

$$F_{n}(t_{p}) = 0 \quad \text{at}$$

$$F_{n}(r_{p}) \sim e + e \quad f_{n}(\mathcal{O}_{p})$$

$$F_{n}(r_{p}) \sim r_{p} \rightarrow \infty \quad r_{n}$$

where $k_n = E - E_n$ and E is the total energy of the system. We are considering the positron with energy k. incident on the atom in its ground state of energy Eo.

The Schroedinger wave equation is:

$$\left[-\left(\nabla_{i}^{2}+\nabla_{p}^{2}\right)-\frac{2}{r_{i}}+\frac{2}{r_{p}}-\frac{2}{p}-E\right] \pm (r_{i},r_{p})=0 \qquad 1.41$$

1.40b

Premultiplying by $\varphi_n^{*}(\underline{r}_i)$, integrating with respect to \underline{r}_i , and using equation (1.39) we obtain:

$$\left[\nabla_{\rho}^{2} + k_{n}^{2}\right] F_{n}(\tau_{\rho}) = \sum_{n'} V_{nn'} F_{n'}(\tau_{\rho}) \qquad 1.42a$$

where $V_{nn} = 2 \int \varphi_n^*(r_i) \left[\frac{1}{r_p} - \frac{1}{p} \right] \varphi_{ni}(r_i) dr_i$ 1.42b

To solve these numerically we expand F_n in terms of the spherical harmonics as follows:

$$F_{n}(r_{p}) = \sum_{e_{m}} \underbrace{f_{n}e_{m}(r_{p})}_{r_{p}} Y_{e_{m}}(\hat{r}_{p}) \qquad 1.43$$

Therefore substitution of equation (1.43) into (1.42a) yields the following system of an infinite number of coupled second-order differential equations:

$$\begin{bmatrix} \frac{d^{2}}{dt} + k_{n}^{2} - \frac{e(e_{+})}{t^{2}} \end{bmatrix} \int_{ne_{m}} (r) = r \int d\hat{r} Y_{e_{m}}^{*}(\hat{r}) \sum_{n'} V_{nn'} F_{n'}(r) \qquad 1.44$$

(a) Polarization Potential

Consider a positron incident on a Hydrogen atom in its ground state. The positron energy k_{\circ}^{λ} being insufficient to excite the atom we have:

$$k_{\nu}^{*} > 0$$

 $k_{\nu}^{*} < 0$ for $\nu \neq 1$
 1.45
where $k_{y}^{2} = F - F_{y}$ and E is the total energy of the system. Ey is defined in equation (1.40a). From equations (1.45) we obtain:

$$F_{o}(r) \sim e^{i\underline{k}_{o}\cdot\underline{r}} + \underline{e}^{i\underline{k}_{o}t} f_{o}(o_{o},\varphi_{o})$$

1.46

 $r F_{\nu}(r) \sim 0$ for $r \rightarrow \infty$ Since the $F_{\nu}(r)$ for $\nu \neq 1$ are bound state functions decaying exponentially, for large r_{ρ} the right hand side of equation (1.42a) will be replaced by a single diagonal potential term (18) $V_{\rho}(r_{\rho}) F_{\sigma}(r_{\phi})$. Castillejo, Percival and Seaton showed that:

$$F_{\nu}(r_{p}) \sim -\frac{1}{2} \cdot \frac{V_{\nu o}(r_{p}) F_{o}(r_{p})}{k_{o}^{2} - k_{v}} + O\left(\frac{1}{r_{p}}\right)$$

and hence, substituting n=0 in equation (1.42a) we obtain:

1. 1. 1.

$$\left[\nabla_{p}^{2}+k_{o}^{2}\right]F_{i}(r_{p})\sim-\frac{1}{2}\left[\sum_{n'\neq 0}\frac{V_{on'}(r_{p})V_{n'o}(r_{p})}{(k_{o}^{2}-k_{n'}^{2})}\right]F_{o}(r_{p})+O\left(\frac{1}{r_{p}}\right)$$

Therefore the polarization potential $V_{p}(r_{p})$ is given by:

$$V_{p}(r_{p}) = -\frac{1}{2} \sum_{n' \neq 0} \frac{\left| V_{n'o}(r_{p}) \right|^{2}}{\left(k_{o}^{2} - k_{n'}^{2} \right)}$$
 1.47

Substituting equation (1.43) into (1.47) and using equation (1.42b) we obtain:

$$V_{n'o}(r_{o}) = 2 \int \sum_{e_{m}} f_{n'e}(r') \left[\frac{1}{r} - \frac{1}{12 - \epsilon' 1} \right] f_{oo}(r') Y_{e_{m}}(\hat{r}') Y_{oo}(\hat{r}') d\hat{r}' dr'$$

Using the addition formula for spherical harmonics (see equation 2.12) this reduces to:

$$V_{n'o}(r_{p}) = 2 \sum_{\ell_{m}} \int_{0}^{\infty} \int_{n'\ell}^{\infty} (r') \int_{00}^{\infty} (r') \left[\frac{\delta_{\ell 0} \delta_{m 0}}{r_{p}} - \frac{\sqrt{4\pi}}{r_{s}} \frac{r_{s}}{r_{e}} Y_{\ell_{m}}(\hat{r}) \right] dr'$$

$$\sum_{\tau_{p} \to \infty} -2 \sum_{\ell_{m}} \frac{\sqrt{4\pi}}{2\ell+1} \frac{Y_{\ell_{m}}(\hat{r}_{p})}{r_{p}} \int_{0}^{\infty} \int_{n'\ell}^{\infty} (r') \int_{00}^{r} (r') r' dr'$$
where $r_{s} = r$, $r_{s} = r'$ if $r \leq r'$

$$r_{s} = r'$$
, $r_{s} = r$ if $r \leq r'$

Thus:

$$V_{p}(r_{p}) \sim 2 \sum_{e,n'\neq 0} \frac{|A_{n'e}|^{2}}{(2l+1)r_{p}} (k_{0}^{2} - k_{n'}^{2})$$

where $A_{n'\ell} = \int_{0}^{\infty} f_{n'\ell}(t') f_{00}(t') t' dt'$

Because of the factor of r_p in $V_p(r)$ the largest contribution asymptotically will arise from the smallest ℓ value. Considering $\ell=0$ for Hydrogen, $A_{n'e} = 0$ because of the orthogonality of the Hydrogen radial functions. Therefore the dominant term is the $\ell=1$ term and:

$$V_{p}(r_{p}) \sim \frac{-2}{3r_{p}} \sum_{n'\neq 0} \frac{|R_{n'1}|^{2}}{(E_{n}' - E_{o})}$$

where
$$\mathcal{L} = \frac{\lambda}{3} \sum_{n' \neq 0}^{n' \neq 0} \frac{|A_{n'1}|}{(E_{n'} - E_{o})}$$

1.48b

and L is the polarizability of the atom.

(b) Close Coupling Approximation

If we assume that the effect of any spin-orbit interaction is negligible then the total orbital angular momentum with quantum numbers L and ML and the total spin with quantum numbers S and Mg are separately conserved during the collision. A convenient representation is one that is diagonal in LMLSMg which will be labeled $\Gamma = (k_n n \ell_l \ell_k \perp M \perp S M_s)$ where ℓ_l and ℓ_k are the orbital angular momentum quantum numbers of the atomic electron and the positron respectively and k_n and n are the wave number and principal quantum number of the positron and atom respectively. Thus instead of the expansion given by equation (1.39) we use:

$$\Psi^{P'}(\underline{r}, \underline{s}, \underline{r}_{P} \underline{s}_{P}) = \sum_{P} \Psi_{P}(\underline{r}, \underline{s}, \hat{r}_{P}, \underline{s}_{P}) \frac{F_{PP'}(\underline{r}_{P})}{r_{P}} \qquad 1.49a$$

where Ψ_{r} can be expanded as:

$$Ψ_{p} = φ_{p} (t, s, s_{p}) Y_{e,e_{a}L}^{M_{L}}(\hat{r}_{i}, \hat{r}_{p})$$
 1.49b

where $Y_{\ell_1\ell_2L}^{M_L}$ is an eigenfunction of the total orbital angular momentum L. s, and s, represent the spins of the electron and positron respectively and the system is initially in the state Γ' . F_{rr} , satisfies the following boundary condition:

$$F_{rr}, (r_p) \sim k_{r} \left[sin(k_{r}r_{p} - \frac{\rho_{a}\pi}{a}) \delta_{rr}, + R_{pr} \cos(k_{r}r_{p} - \frac{\rho_{a}\pi}{a}) \right] \qquad 1.50$$

As an illustration we consider the case of a positron incident on a Hydrogen atom without allowance for Positronium formation. Substituting equation (1.49) in the Kohn variational principle (see Section 1.2 and Chapter II) we obtain the following set of coupled second-order differential equations:

$$\left[\frac{d^{2}}{dr^{2}} - \frac{e_{2}(e_{2}+i)}{r^{2}} + k_{n}^{2}\right] F_{v}^{LS}(r) = \sum_{v'} V_{vv'}(r) F_{v}(r)$$
 1.51

where $v = n \ell_1 \ell_2$ and the subscript Γ' has been omitted since the above equations are independent of the boundary conditions. We have that:

$$V_{nn}^{L}(r) = \frac{2}{r} S_{nn} - 2 \sum_{\lambda} f_{\lambda}(e_{i}e_{\lambda}, e_{i}^{\prime}e_{\lambda}^{\prime}; L) y_{\lambda}(P_{n,e_{i}}, P_{n,e_{i}^{\prime}}|r) \quad 1.52a$$

where
$$\int_{\lambda} (\varrho_{,\varrho_{2}}, \varrho_{,\iota}' \varrho_{,\iota}'; L) = \int_{\mathcal{G}_{\varrho,\varrho_{2}L}} \mathcal{G}_{\varrho,\varrho_{2}L}^{M_{L}}(\hat{r}, \hat{r}') \mathcal{G}_{\ell,\varrho_{1}L}^{M_{L}}(\hat{r}, \hat{r}') P_{\lambda}(\hat{r}, \hat{r}') d\hat{r} d\hat{r}'$$
 1.52b

nd
$$y_{\lambda}(P_{ne}, P_{n'e'}|r) = \int_{0}^{\infty} R_{ne}^{*}(r') R_{n'e'}(r') \frac{r_{c}}{r_{\lambda}}^{\lambda} dr'$$
 1.52c

where $r_c = r'$, $r_b = r$ if $r' \in r$ and $t_c = r$, $r_b = r'$ if r < r'

a

 $R_{n\ell}$ is defined in equation (1.39b) and P_{λ} is a Legendre polynomial.

In the Mean Static Field approximation only the ground state of atomic Hydrogen is included in the expansion (1.49). Thus equation (1.51a) reduces to:

$$\left[\frac{d^{2}}{dr^{2}} - \frac{e(e+1)}{r^{2}} + k_{1}^{2}\right] F(r) = V F^{e}(r)$$
 1.53a

where $V = 2(1+\frac{1}{r})e^{-2r}$ 1.53b

In the Strong Coupling approximation we include any two s-states of the Hydrogen atom - therefore equation (1.51a) reduces to the following pair of equations:

$$\begin{bmatrix} \frac{d^{2}}{dt^{2}} - \frac{\varrho(\ell+1)}{r^{2}} + k_{n_{1}}^{2} \end{bmatrix} F_{n_{1}}^{\ell} e(r) = V_{n_{1}\ell_{3}n_{1}\ell} F_{n_{1}}^{\ell} e + V_{n_{1}\ell_{1},n_{2}}\ell_{2} F_{n_{2}}^{\ell} e \\ \begin{bmatrix} \frac{d^{2}}{dt^{2}} - \frac{\varrho(\ell+1)}{r^{2}} + k_{n_{2}}^{2} \end{bmatrix} F_{n_{2}}^{\ell} e(r) = V_{n_{2}\ell_{1}n_{1}\ell} F_{n_{1}}^{\ell} e + V_{n_{2}\ell_{1},n_{2}\ell} F_{n_{2}}^{\ell} e \\ F_{n_{2}}^{\ell} e(r) = V_{n_{2}\ell_{1}n_{1}\ell} F_{n_{1}}^{\ell} e + V_{n_{2}\ell_{1},n_{2}\ell} F_{n_{2}}^{\ell} e \\ F_{n_{2}}^{\ell} e(r) = V_{n_{2}\ell_{1}n_{1}\ell} F_{n_{1}}^{\ell} e(r) + V_{n_{2}\ell_{1}n_{2}\ell} F_{n_{2}}^{\ell} e \\ F_{n_{2}}^{\ell} e(r) = V_{n_{2}\ell_{1}n_{1}\ell} F_{n_{1}}^{\ell} e(r) + V_{n_{2}\ell_{1}n_{2}\ell} F_{n_{2}}^{\ell} e(r) \\ F_{n_{2}}^{\ell} e(r) = V_{n_{2}\ell_{1}n_{1}\ell} F_{n_{2}}^{\ell} e(r) + V_{n_{2}\ell_{1}n_{2}\ell} F_{n_{2}}^{\ell} e(r) \\ F_{n_{2}}^{\ell} e(r) = V_{n_{2}\ell_{1}n_{1}\ell} F_{n_{2}}^{\ell} e(r) + V_{n_{2}\ell_{1}n_{2}\ell} F_{n_{2}}^{\ell} e(r) \\ F_{n_{2}}^{\ell} e(r) = V_{n_{2}\ell_{1}n_{1}\ell} F_{n_{2}}^{\ell} e(r) + V_{n_{2}\ell_{1}n_{2}\ell} F_{n_{2}}^{\ell} e(r) \\ F_{n_{2}}^{\ell} e(r) = V_{n_{2}\ell_{1}n_{1}\ell} F_{n_{2}}^{\ell} e(r) + V_{n_{2}\ell_{1}n_{2}\ell} e(r) \\ F_{n_{2}}^{\ell} e(r) = V_{n_{2}\ell_{1}n_{1}\ell} e(r) + V_{n_{2}\ell_{1}n_{2}\ell} e(r) \\ F_{n_{2}}^{\ell} e(r) = V_{n_{2}\ell_{1}n_{2}\ell} e(r) + V_{n_{2}\ell_{1}n_{2}\ell} e(r) \\ F_{n_{2}\ell_{2}n_{2}\ell} e(r) + V_{n_{2}\ell_{2}n_{2}\ell} e(r) \\ F_{n_{2}\ell_{2}n_{2}\ell} e(r) \\ F_{n_{2}\ell_{2}n_{2}\ell} e(r) + V_{n_{2}\ell_{2}n_{2}\ell} e(r) \\ F_{n_{2}\ell_{2}n_{2}\ell} e(r) + V_{n_{2}\ell_{2}n_{2}\ell} e(r) \\ F_{n_{2}\ell_{2}n_{2}\ell} e(r) \\ F_{n_{2}\ell_{2}n_{2}\ell}$$

In the distorted - wave approximation one of the

coupling terms in the pair of equations is set to zero.

In many problems it is necessary to allow for interactions of intermediate states therefore more terms in the expansion (1.49) would be included.

(c) <u>Positron Hydrogen Collisions</u> (19)

calculated the L=0 phase shifts in Smith and Burke the static and strong coupling approximation. The scattering length in the static case were found to equal +0.582 and the addition of the virtual 2s state of Hydrogen in the strong-coupling approximation onlyreduced it to +.564. The phase shifts for L=0 calculated in the static, strong coupling and 1s-2s-3s coupling scheme are presented in Table 1-2. Comparing these to the reliable variational results of (11)Schwartz it can be seen that spherically symmetric states in the close-coupling expansion are not adequate allowance for polarization of the atom. (18)

This was confirmed by Castillejo et al. who considered the contributions of different states of the Hydrogen atom to the formula (1.48). Using the matrix ele-(20)ments tabulated by Green, Rush and Chandler they found that the 2p state accounted for 65.8% of the polarizability. (22)21) Therefore Burke, Schey and Smith (see Burke and Smith (23)performed a 1s-2s-2p calculation and McEachran and Fraser calculated S, P and D partial wave phase shifts using various combinations of the 1s, 2s, 2p, 3s, 3p and 3d states of Hydrogen. The results for S-wave scattering presented in

TABLE 1-2

static approximation; row (b) strong coupling approximation; row(c) 1s-2s-2s ls-2s-2p-3s-3p coupling; row (g) ls-2s-2p-3s-3p-3d coupling; row (h) ground coupling; row (d) 1s-2s-2p coupling; row (e) 1s-2s-2p-3s coupling; row (f) Phase shifts for L=0 scattering of positrons by Hydrogen atoms. Row (a) state of Hydrogen and Positronium only (i) variational.

| kao | + 0.0 | 0.1 | 0.2 | 0.3 | 4.0 | 0.5 | 0.6 | Reference |
|-----|--------|--------|-------|-------|--------|-------|--------|-----------|
| (a) | +.582 | 0580 | 1145 | • | -,2181 | 2636 | -•3043 | 19 |
| (q) | +.564 | 0562 | 1109 | | 2110 | 2547 | 2936 | 19 |
| (c) | • | | 1102 | | 2095 | 2529 | 2914 | 19 |
| (P) | 1337* | 0054 | 0426 | 0931 | 1472 | 1990 | 2461 | 21,22 |
| (e) | 1374 | 0046 | 0418 | 0925 | 1462 | 1979 | 2447 | 23 |
| (f) | 2698 | +.0055 | 0275 | 0771 | 1313 | 1842 | 2327 | 23 |
| (g) | 2898 | +.0072 | 0251 | 0748 | 1295 | 1829 | 2317 | 23 |
| (H) | +.1704 | 0188 | 0465 | 0858 | 1339 | 1861 | 2379 | 25 |
| (1) | -2.10 | +.151 | +.188 | +.168 | +.120 | +.062 | +.007 | 11 |

+ The zero entries represent scattering lengths. * This scattering length is taken from reference (23) whose results differ in the fourth figure from these in row (d).

....

Table 1-2, demonstrate the extremely slow convergence of the close-coupling expansion with respect to the bound states of atomic Hydrogen.

(12)

Since Spruch and Rosenberg demonstrated the importance of allowing for virtual formation of Positronium, Cody and (24)Smith formulated a close-coupling expansion including the 1s and 2s states of Positronium. Results for the 1s state (25)were given by Cody, Lawson, Massey and Smith and are (25) presented in Table 1-2. For k,3 the Cody et al. results are as good as those of the 5-term close-coupling expansion (23)of McEachran et al. but for kc.3 the phase shifts remain negative. It is necessary to include the 2p state of Hydrogen before the scattering length becomes negative.

An interesting modification to the close coupling expan-(26) sion was suggested by Perkins who replaced the exponential terms of the orbital radial functions (equation (1.40b) by terms containing a parameter in the exponent. Explicitly, the 2p and 3d functions (re⁻¹ and re⁻¹) are replaced by re^{-4r} and re^{-5r} respectively where \measuredangle and β are chosen to maximise the phase shifts. The bound theorems on the phase shift are still valid provided that the exact ground-state wave function is used. The s-wave phase shifts using the ls and modified 2p and 3d terms were comparable to the 6 term close (23) coupling expansion of McEachran and Fraser.

(c) Positron Helium Collisions

(5)

Massey and Moussa performed s-, p- and d-wave calculations in the static approximation and then included a polarization potential $\frac{-de^{i}}{(r^{i}+d^{i})^{2}}$ where d is of the order of atomic dimensions. The addition of the polarization for k=1 resulted in an increase in the phase-shift as is to be expected.

(27)

In comparison, Kraidy allowed for Positronium formation in the ground state and found that the phase shifts were up to three times larger than the corresponding static results and were positive for energies less than or equal to .16. The scattering length was negative (-.9193) and since there is no exact Helium ground state function there are no rigorous bounds on the scattering length in this problem. From the results presented in Chapter V it can be seen that this change in sign of the phase shift at low energies is directly

attributable to the choice of the Hylleras uncorrelated hydrogenic function for the Helium ground state:

$$4_{o}(r_{1}, r_{a}) = \mu^{3} e^{-\mu(r_{1}+r_{a})}$$

where
$$\mu = \frac{27}{16}$$

The S-wave phase shifts are presented in Table 1-3.

1.5 The Method of Polarized Orbitals

In the adiabatic theory we assume that the projectile's velocity is so small that allowance for the distortion of the charge distribution of the atomic electron may be calculated assuming that the projectile is at a fixed point. If we consider the case of a positron incident on a Hydrogen atom in its ground state, then the perturbation potential due to the positron fixed at r, is:

$$\frac{\mathcal{L}}{|q_2^{-12}|} - \frac{\mathcal{L}}{q_2} = (q_2^{-12}) \vee$$

where <u>t</u>, is the atomic electron coordinate relative to the proton. According to the first order perturbation theory, the perturbed wave function of the electron will be:

$$\Psi(\mathbf{r}_{i},\mathbf{r}_{p}) = \varphi_{o}(\mathbf{r}_{i}) - \sum_{q^{*}} \frac{(o|v|q)}{\mathbf{E}_{q} - \mathbf{E}_{o}} \varphi_{q}(\mathbf{f}_{i}) \qquad 1.55$$

1.54

TABLE 1-3

polarization; row (c) ground state of Helium and Positronium; row (d) Row (a) static approximation; row (b) static approximation + dipole Phase shifts for L=0 scattering of positrons by Helium atoms. ground state of Helium and Positronium + dipole polarization.

| kao | 1 0.0 | 0.1 | 0.2 | 0.3 | 41.0 | 0.5 | 0.6 | Reference |
|-----|--------|--------|-------|-------|-------|-------|--------|-----------|
| (a) | .386 | 0382 | 0759 | 1131 | 1493 | 1843 | 2180 | 27 |
| (q) | 3006 | 0193 | 26TO. | .0066 | 0153 | 0426 | 0729 | 27 |
| (c) | 9193 | •0270. | .1019 | .0753 | .0212 | 2040 | 1023 | 27 |
| (P) | -2°047 | .1662 | .2279 | .2123 | .1626 | .1043 | · 0483 | 27 |

The zero-entries represent scattering lengths.

where
$$(0|V|q) = \int \varphi_{o}(r_{i}) V(\underline{r}_{i}, \underline{r}_{p}) \varphi_{q}(\underline{r}_{i}) d\underline{r}_{i}$$
 1.56a

$$\varphi_{g}(t) = \varphi_{nem} = \frac{R_{ne}(r)}{r} Y_{em}(\hat{r}) \qquad 1.56b$$

 $\Psi_{0}(t) \equiv \Psi_{100}(t)$ 1.56c

It is clear that the perturbed wave function depends on r. so in the Polarized Orbitals method we write:

$$\Psi(\mathfrak{r}_{i},\mathfrak{r}_{p}) = \Psi_{o}(\mathfrak{r}_{i}) + \Psi^{pol}(\mathfrak{r}_{i},\mathfrak{r}_{p}) \qquad 1.57$$

where $\varphi_{(t_1,t_p)}^{p,\varrho} = 0$ for $r_p < r_1$

and

We expand $V(\underline{r}_{i},\underline{r}_{i})$ in a multipole series keeping the dipole term only:

$$V(\underline{r}_{1},\underline{r}_{p}) \doteq -\frac{2r_{1}}{r_{p}} \cos \Theta_{1p} \qquad r_{p} > r_{1} \qquad 1.58$$

where \mathcal{O}_{i_p} is the angle between \underline{r}_i and \underline{r}_p . The ground state Hydrogen function \mathcal{O}_{i_p} with associated energy F_i satisfies:

$$\left[H_{*}-E_{*}\right]\varphi_{*}(*)=0$$
1.59a

where $H_{r} = -\nabla_{1}^{2} - \frac{2}{r_{1}}$ and $F_{o} = -1$ 1.59b

The Hamiltonian for the positron and the Hydrogen atom is:

$$H = H_r - \nabla_p + V(r_{r_r})$$
 1.59c

and since we are assuming that the positron is at rest we neglect the ∇_{ρ}^{λ} term. Letting E, be the first-order perturbation of the energy E, we obtain:

$$\left[H_{r}+V\right]\left(\varphi_{o}+e\varphi^{p\circ\ell}\right) = \left[E_{o}+E_{r}\right]\left(e\varphi_{o}+\varphi^{p\circ\ell}\right)$$

Using equation (1.59a) and the result given by Sternheimer that $E_1 = (0 | v | 0) = 0$, the above equation reduces to:

$$\left[H_{r}-E_{o}\right]\phi^{pol}=-V\phi_{o}$$

Substituting $\varphi_o = \pi^{-\frac{1}{2}-r}$ and using equation (1.57b) we obtain:

$$\begin{bmatrix} -\nabla_{1}^{2} - \frac{2}{2} + 1 \end{bmatrix} \varphi^{pol}(\underline{r}_{1}, \underline{r}_{p}) = -\frac{2r_{1}e}{5\pi} \cdot \frac{\cos\theta_{1}p}{\tau_{p}}$$

The substitution: $\varphi = \frac{2}{\sqrt{\pi}} \cdot \frac{R(r_1) \cdot \cos \theta_{1p}}{r_1 + r_p^2}$ gives:

 $\left[-\frac{d^{2}}{dt_{i}^{2}} - \frac{2}{t_{i}} + \frac{2}{t_{i}^{2}} + 1\right] \mathcal{R}(t_{i}) = r_{i} e^{2-t_{i}}$ 1.60

The solution to equation (1.60) has been given by (30) Sternheimer and is:

$$\mathcal{R}(r_{1}) = \frac{e^{-r_{1}}}{2} \left(r_{1}^{2} + \frac{r_{1}}{2} \right)$$

Therefore the expansion for φ^{pe} is given by:

$$e^{po^{Q}}(\underline{r}_{1},\underline{r}_{p}) = -\varepsilon(r_{p},r_{1}) \frac{1}{\sqrt{\pi}} e^{-r_{1}}(r_{1}+\frac{r_{1}}{2}) \frac{\cos (Q_{1p})}{\cos (Q_{1p})}$$

1.61

(30)

where $\xi(r_{\rho}, r_{i}) = l$ if $r_{\rho} > r_{i}$ = 0 if $r_{\rho} < r_{i}$

(28)

Temkin has shown that in the limit as $r_{\rho} \rightarrow \infty$ this technique for determining $\varphi^{\rho \cdot \ell}$ is equivalent to first order perturbation theory. If we consider the total expansion of $V(\underline{t},,\underline{t})$, equation (1.58) will be replaced by:

$$V(\underline{r}_{i},\underline{r}_{p}) = -2 \sum_{\substack{e=1\\ r_{p}}}^{\infty} \frac{e}{\underline{r}_{i}} P_{e}(\hat{r}_{i},\hat{r}_{p}) \qquad 1.62$$

and the corresponding expression for $\Psi(\underline{r},\underline{r})$ is:

$$\Psi(\underline{r}_{1},\underline{r}_{p}) = \Psi_{o}(\underline{r}_{1}) - \underline{e}_{\sqrt{\pi}} \sum_{\ell=1}^{\infty} \left(\frac{\underline{r}_{1}}{\underline{r}_{1}} + \frac{\underline{r}_{1}}{\underline{\ell}} \right) \frac{P_{e}(\cos \theta_{1p})}{\underline{r}_{p}} \qquad \underline{r}_{p} > \underline{r}_{1} \quad 1.63$$

Thus $\varphi^{p \circ \ell}$ is merely the dominant dipole term $(\ell = I)$ of the asymptotic form of the first-order perturbation of the total wave function. The total wave function $\overline{\Psi}(\underline{r}_{i},\underline{r}_{p})$ is given by:

$$\Psi(\underline{r}_{i},\underline{r}_{p}) = \Psi(\underline{r}_{i}) F_{\bullet}(\underline{r}_{p})$$

It can readily be seen that substitution of this wave functioninto the variational methods described in Section 1.2 would produce terms quadratic in $\varphi^{p^{e^{Q}}}$ which would invalidate the first-order perturbation theory. Thus Temkin and Lamkin projected the Schroedinger wave equation onto the known part of the asymptotic wave function as follows:

Thus the scattering length obtained from this method cannot be taken as an upper bound. Simplifying equation (1.64) we obtain the following equation:

$$\left[\nabla_{p}^{2} + k_{o}^{2}\right] F_{o}(r_{p}) = \left[V_{oo}(r_{p}) - \frac{d}{r_{o}}\right] F_{o}(r_{p}) \qquad 1.65a$$

where
$$d = \frac{9}{2} - \frac{2}{3}e^{-r_{p}}\left(r_{p}^{5} + \frac{9}{2}r_{p}^{4} + 9r_{p}^{3} + \frac{27}{2}r_{p}^{4} + \frac{27}{2}r_{p} + \frac{27}{4}r_{p}^{2} + \frac{27}$$

This is identical to equation (1.42a) except for the addition of the attractive potential $\frac{d}{r_p}$. In the limit as $r_p \rightarrow \infty$ we see that d = 4.5, the atomic polarizability of Hydrogen.

(a) Positron Hydrogen Collisions

(35)

Cody et al. gave results for a close coupling expansion with the addition of the polarization potential. Two cases were considered:

- (1) Mean Static Field.
- (2) Virtual Positronium Formation.

The s-wave phase shift results are displayed in Table 1-4 where it can be seen that the polarization potential is sufficiently attractive to produce a negative scattering length in both cases.

(31)

Bransden included virtual Positronium formation in

TABLE 1-4

mizing the atomic energy; row (e) non-adiabatic; row (f) rigorous Phase shifts for L=0 scattering of positrons by Hydrogen atoms. ground state of Hydrogen and Positronium + dipole polarization; row (c) perturbation method: row (d) perturbation method mini-Row (a) static approximation + dipole polarization; row (b) lower bound.

| a0 | 0.0 | 0.1 | 0.2 | 0.3 | 4.0 | 0.5 | 0.6 | Reference |
|------|--------|-------|-------|-------|-------|-------|-------|-----------|
| a.) | 267 | .0803 | .0853 | .0528 | .0048 | 0476 | 0989 | 25 |
| (q | -3.06 | .2260 | .2929 | .2754 | .2228 | .1588 | •0950 | 25 |
| c) | 1 | 1110. | .057. | .022 | 051 | +41 | 236 | 31 |
| * (P | -1.276 | .102 | .111 | .078 | .031 | 027 | 082 | 32 |
| e) | 1 | .0022 | .22 | 1 | Ĩ | I | 1 | 37 |
| f) | 1 | . 1 | 4641. | 1 | .0818 | 1 | 0272 | 64 |

The zero-entries represent scattering lengths.

*

This approximation is equivalent to the inclusion of all p states and the 2s state of Hydrogen.

the ground state by a perturbation procedure and calculated S- and P- wave phase shifts. The L=0 results are displayed in Table 1-4, the L=1 in Table 1-5.

(32) An interesting method was formulated by Stone who considered the distorted atomic wave function to be of the form given by perturbation theory. The total wave function is taken as:

$$\Psi(\underline{r}_{1},\underline{r}_{p}) = \left[\varphi_{0}(r_{1}) + \beta(r_{p}) \Psi_{1}(\underline{r}_{1}) + \lambda(r_{p}) \varphi_{2}(r_{1}) \right] F(\underline{r}_{p}) \qquad 1.66$$

where $\Psi_{o}(\mathbf{r}_{i})$ and $\Psi_{2}(\mathbf{r}_{i})$ are the 1s and 2s states of atomic Hydrogen respectively and $\mathcal{L}(\mathbf{r})$ and $\beta(\mathbf{r})$ are chosen such that the energy E_{A} of the atom is a minimum. Three cases were considered:

(1) $\mathcal{L}(r_p)=0$ and $\Psi(r_i) = \Psi(r_i)$ the 2p state of Hydrogen.

(2) $\mathcal{L}(r_{p})=0$ and $\mathcal{L}_{1}(r_{1})=(r_{1}+r_{1}^{2})\cos\theta_{1}$ the r_{1} part of φ^{per} defined in equation (1.61). This corresponds to the addition of all p states of Hydrogen.

(3) $\downarrow_{(r_p)} \neq 0$ and $\biguplus_{i}(\underline{r}_{i}) = (r_{i} + \underline{r}_{i}^{*}) \cos \theta_{i_p}$ which therefore includes all p states and the 2s state of Hydrogen.

To illustrate the method we will consider the simplest case, namely case (1). The functions $\mathcal{Q}_n(\underline{r}_i)$ satisfy equation (1.39). Now consider the distorted Hydrogen atom with energy E_A . We have:

$$0 = \begin{bmatrix} -\nabla_{i}^{2} - \frac{2}{2} + \frac{2}{2} - \frac{2}{|q_{1}-q_{1}|} - \frac{2}{|q_{2}-q_{1}|} \end{bmatrix} = 0$$

Multiplying on the left by $\left[\varphi_{\sigma}(r_{1}) + \beta(r_{p})\varphi_{1}(r_{1})\right]^{*}$ and integrating with respect to r_{1} we obtain:

$$E_{A} = \frac{1}{2} \cdot \frac{\beta(r_{p}) \left[E_{1} + V_{11}(r_{p}) + 2\beta(r_{p}) V_{01}(r_{p}) + E_{0} + V_{00}(r_{p}) \right]}{\left(\beta^{2}(r_{p}) + 1 \right)}$$

where $V_{ij}(r_p)$ is defined by equation (1.42b) Thus to minimize EA we consider $\Delta E_p=0$ which gives:

$$\frac{\beta}{1-\beta^{a}} = \frac{V_{o1}}{E_{o}-E_{1}+V_{oo}-V_{ii}}$$

As $r_{p} \rightarrow \infty$, $\beta \rightarrow 0$ and the atom is left in the unperturbed ground state. Hence for large r_{p} , β^{2} is small and V_{oo} and $V_{o_{1}}$ may be neglected. Therefore:

$$\beta \rightarrow \frac{V_{o1}}{E_o - E_1} = -\frac{4}{3} V_{o1}, \qquad t_p \rightarrow \infty \qquad 1.67$$

This is exactly the perturbation result obtained from equation (1.55) when only the 2p state is included. Therefore the Schroedinger wave equation will be:

$$-\left(\varphi_{i}^{2}+\varphi_{p}^{2}\right)-\frac{2}{r_{i}}+\frac{2}{r_{p}}-\frac{2}{r_{i}}-\frac{2}{r_{p}}\right]\left[\left\{\varphi_{o}(r_{i})+\beta(r_{p})\varphi_{i}(\underline{r}_{i})\right\}F(\underline{r}_{p})\right]=0$$

Premultiplying by $\Psi_{o}^{*}(r_{i})$ and integrating over r_{i} we obtain:

$$\left[\nabla_{P}^{a} + E - E_{o}\right] F(\underline{r}_{P}) = \left[V_{oo}(r_{P}) + V_{P}(r_{P})\right] F(\underline{r}_{P})$$

where the polarization potential V_p is given by:

$$V_{p}(r_{p}) = -\beta(r_{p}) V_{o1}(r_{p})$$

It can be seen that:

$$V_{p}(r_{p}) \sim -\frac{4}{3} |V_{o1}(r_{p})|^{2}$$

$$r_{p} \rightarrow \infty -\frac{2 \cdot 96}{r_{p}^{4}}$$

By inspection of equation (1.65b) the total polarization potential for large r_p resulting from the inclusion of all p states is $-\frac{4.5}{r_p^4}$ and $-\frac{2.96}{r_p^4}$ is 65.8% of

(18) this in agreement with Castillejo et al.

Equation (1.68) was solved by using the partial wave expansion as in the close coupling method. Exactly the same procedure is followed for cases (2) and (3). The &=O phase shift for case (3) are displayed in Table 1-4 from which it may be concluded that this procedure gives equivalent results to the more complicated coupled equations method.

A modification of the close-coupling method that gives the correct dipole polarizability by explicitly including the polarization term of equation (1.61) was suggested by Damburg (33) and Karule . If in the 1s-2s-2p approximation the term

1.68

R (see equation (1.56b) is replaced by: 21

 $C\left(\frac{r_1}{2}+r_1^2\right)e^{-r_1}$

where C is a normalization factor and adjustment made to the corresponding energy, then the dipole polarization is fully accounted for without losing the lower bound on the phase shift. In addition an extra term whose atomic radial part contains:

 $\left(\frac{t_{i}}{3}+\frac{t_{i}}{3}\right)e^{-t_{i}}$

will account for the quadrupole polarization.

(b) <u>Positron Helium Collisions</u> (27)

Kraidy added the Temkin-Lamkin polarization to the following cases:

(1) Mean static field.

(2) Virtual Positronium formation in the ground state.

As was to be expected from the positron Hydrogen results, the scattering length for both cases was negative, see Table 1-3. The Hylleraas function given by equation (1.54) gives a polarizability of 1.1 in comparison to the experimental value of 1.376. Calculations (1) and (2) were repeated using this "modified" dipole term and the phase shifts increased accordingly. Similar calculations to case (1) by Massey, Lawson (34) and Thompson using the numerical Hartree Fock Helium function produced elastic cross-sections slightly larger (27) than those of Kraidy. This was to be expected since the Hartree Fock Helium function gives a polarizability of 1.56 so increasing the attractive polarization term.

A scattering length calculation including the dipole and quadrupole distortion terms of the Helium atom was (35) performed by Hashino (20) of Green et al. defined in equation (1.38a), was used in the Kohn and Hulthen variational methods. The best value of the scattering length was -.546.

lasteed of the expression given by equation (1.38) we used

where C (Chiling H) is a distant Gordan sperficient defined

Elempt - J Survey Million Serve (top)

1.6 Expansion in Sturmian Functions

The Sturmian functions $S_{NQ}(r)$ are a complete basis without a continuum and are the solutions of the following equation:

$$\left[\frac{d^{2}}{dt^{2}} - \frac{e(e+1)}{t^{2}} - d_{ne} \cdot V(r) + E_{o}\right] S_{ne}(r) = 0 \qquad 1.69$$

where E_{\bullet} is a fixed negative number and the eigenvalue $\mathcal{A}_{\bullet}e$ is chosen to ensure that $S_{\bullet e}(\bullet) = 0$ and $S_{\bullet e}(\bullet)$ decays exponentially for aymptotic r. If V(r) is the potential energy of the system and E_{\bullet} the ground state binding energy then $\mathcal{A}_{10}=|$ and S_{10} equals the ground state radial function. This is the only Sturmian function that equals a physical wave function.

The normalization of the S_{ne} is such that:

$$\int S_{n\ell}(r) \left| V(r) \right| S_{n'\ell}(r) dr = \delta_{nn'} \qquad 1.70$$

Instead of the expansion given by equation (1.38) we use:

$$\Psi(t_{i},t_{p}) = \sum_{n \in e_{a}} \frac{\sum_{n \in i} (r_{i})}{r_{i}} \frac{\Psi_{e_{a}}(r_{p})}{r_{p}} \frac{\Psi_{e_{a}}(r_$$

where

$$S_{e_{i}e_{2}L}^{M}(\hat{r}_{i},\hat{r}_{p}) = \sum_{m_{i}m_{2}} Y_{e_{i}m_{i}}(\hat{r}_{i})Y_{e_{2}m_{2}}(\hat{r}_{2})C(e_{i}e_{2}L;m_{i}m_{2}M) \quad 1.711$$

where $C(\ell,\ell,L;m,m,M)$ is a Clebsch Gordan coefficient defined in Section 2.4b and L is the total angular momentum of the system.

Substituting equation (1.71a) into (1.41) we obtain:

$$\sum_{ne_{i}e_{2}} \left[-\frac{\partial^{2}}{\partial r_{i}^{2}} - \frac{\partial^{2}}{\partial r_{p}^{2}} + \frac{e_{i}(e_{i}+1)}{r_{i}^{2}} + \frac{e_{2}(e_{2}+1)}{r_{p}^{2}} - \frac{\partial}{r_{i}} + \frac{\partial}{r_{p}} - \frac{\partial}{\rho} - E \right] S_{ne_{i}}(r_{i}) \mathcal{Y}_{e_{2}}(r_{p}) \mathcal{Y}_{e_{i}e_{1}L}^{H} = 0$$

$$1.72$$

The Sturmian equation for positron Hydrogen scattering is:

$$\left[\frac{d^2}{dr^2} - \frac{\varrho(\varrho_{+1})}{r^2} + d_n \varrho \cdot \frac{\lambda}{r} + E_o\right] S_{n\varrho}(r) = 0$$

Substituting this into equation (1.72) we obtain the

$$\sum_{n\in_{i}\ell_{a}} \left[-\frac{\partial^{2}}{\partial r_{p}} + \frac{\partial_{2}(\ell_{a}+1)}{r_{p}} + \frac{\partial}{\partial r_{p}} + \frac{\partial}{\partial r_{p}} (d_{n\ell_{i}}-1) - \frac{\partial}{\partial r_{i}} - (E-E_{o}) \right] S_{n\ell_{i}} \psi_{\ell_{a}}^{\ell_{i}} \psi_{\ell_{a}}^{M} = 0$$

Multiplying on the left by $S_{n'e'_{1}}(r_{1})\frac{2}{r_{1}} \bigvee_{e'_{1}e'_{2}}^{H} \overset{*}{*}$, integrating with respect to r_{1} , \hat{r}_{1} , \hat{r}_{p} and using equation (1.70) with V(r) = -2 we obtain:

$$\left[-\frac{d^2}{dr_p^2} + \frac{\varrho_2(\varrho_2+1)}{r_p^2} - (E-E_0) \right] \psi_{\varrho_2}^{n\varrho_1}(r_p) + 4 \sum_{n'} (d_{n'\varrho_1}-1) \int \frac{S_{n\varrho_1}}{r_1} \frac{S_{n\varrho_1}}{r_2} dr \cdot \psi_{\varrho_2}^{n'\varrho_1}(r_p)$$

$$+ \sum_{n' \ell_i' \ell_a'} U_L (n \ell_i \ell_a; n' \ell_i' \ell_a'; r_p). \psi_{\ell_a'}^{n' \ell_i'} = 0 \qquad 1.73a$$

where

$$U_{L}(n, 0, 0, 0, 1) =$$

$$\sum_{n'e_i'e_2'} \int dr_i d\hat{r}_p S_{ne_i(r_i)} \mathcal{Y}_{e_ie_2L}^{M} \frac{4}{r_i} \left[\frac{1-i}{r_p} \right] S_{n'e_i'(r_i)} \mathcal{Y}_{e_i'e_2'L}^{M} \qquad 1.73b$$

 U_L can be simplified by performing the angular integrations as shown in Section 2.4 for the positron Helium problem.

(a) Positron Hydrogen Collisions

Rotenberg's (36) phase shifts obtained from the above Sturmian expansion were in good agreement with the varia-(11) tional results of Schwartz. As in the usual eigenfunction expansion, the ρ Sturmian functions had a large effect on the phase shifts. The Sturmian function expansion gives very good convergence in comparison to close coupling but unfortunately no bound theorems exist for this case.

Po (ino) Pr (not) Pr (in 9) in all.

51

1.7 <u>Non-Adiabatic Theory</u> (37)

Temkin applied a non-adiabatic method to positron Hydrogen scattering. Considering the Schroedinger wave equation (1.41) the total s-wave function $\Psi(\underline{r}_{i},\underline{r}_{p})$ can be expanded in terms of the Legendre polynomial P_{e} as follows:

$$\Psi(\underline{r}_{i},\underline{r}_{p}) = \frac{1}{r_{i}r_{p}} \sum_{\ell=0}^{\infty} (2\ell+1)^{\frac{1}{2}} \Phi_{\ell}(r_{i},r_{p}) P_{\ell}(\cos \sigma_{ip}) \qquad 1.74$$

where \mathcal{O}_{i_p} is the angle between \underline{r}_i and \underline{r}_p . Therefore the Schroedinger equation simplifies to:

$$\left[\Delta_{1p} - e(e_{+1})(\frac{1}{r_{1}^{2}} + \frac{1}{r_{p}}) - \frac{2}{r_{p}} + \frac{2}{r_{1}} + V_{ee}(r_{1}, r_{p}) + E \right] \overline{\Phi}_{e} = -\sum_{m \neq e} V_{em} \overline{\Phi}_{m} \qquad 1.75$$

where $\Delta_{1p} = \frac{\partial^2}{\partial r_1^2} + \frac{\partial^2}{\partial r_p^2}$ $V_{em} = \left[(20+1)(2m+1)\right]^{\frac{1}{2}} \sum_{n=0}^{e+m} \nabla_n C_{emn}$

a

nd
$$C_{emn} = \int_{0}^{n} P_e(\cos \omega) P_m(\cos \omega) P_n(\cos \omega) \sin 0.d\omega$$

We write $\bar{\Phi}_e = \bar{\Phi}_e^{<}$ if $r_p < r_1$ = $\bar{\Phi}_e^{>}$ if $r_p > r_1$

For l=0 we have that $C_{omn} = \frac{2}{2} \delta_{mn}$ and equation (1.73) $\frac{2}{m+1}$

reduces to the following two equations:

$$\begin{bmatrix} \Delta_{1p} - \frac{2}{r_{p}} + \frac{4}{r_{1}} + E \end{bmatrix} \Phi_{0}^{2} = -2 \sum_{m} (2m+1)^{-\frac{1}{2}} \prod_{\substack{r_{1} \\ r_{1}}}^{m} \Phi_{m}^{2} \qquad 1.76a$$

$$\begin{bmatrix} \Delta_{1p} + \frac{2}{r_{1}} + E \end{bmatrix} \Phi_{0}^{2} = -2 \sum_{m} (2m+1)^{-\frac{1}{2}} \prod_{\substack{r_{1} \\ r_{p}}}^{m} \Phi_{m}^{2} \qquad 1.76b$$

 Φ_0 satisfies the following boundary conditions:

$$\begin{split}
\Phi_{e}(r_{1}, \sigma) &= \Phi_{e}(\sigma, r_{p}) = 0 \\
\Phi_{e}(r_{1}, r_{p}) &\sim in(kr_{p} + \delta) R_{10}(r_{1}) \cdot \delta_{e0} \\
&\sim 0 \\
&\sim r_{1} \rightarrow \infty \\
\end{split}$$
1.77a

1.77a

1.77b

where $R_{10}(r_1) = \pi r_1 e^{-r_1}$ is r_1 times the ground state Hydrogen function. Φ_{ℓ} also satisfies the following continuity conditions:

$$\begin{bmatrix} \Phi_{e}^{c} \\ \Theta_{r_{i}=r_{p}}^{c} \end{bmatrix} = \begin{bmatrix} \Phi_{e}^{c} \\ \Theta_{r_{i}=r_{p}}^{c} \end{bmatrix} = \begin{bmatrix} \Phi_{e}^{c} \\ \Theta_{r_{i}=r_{p}}^{c} \end{bmatrix}_{r_{i}=r_{p}}^{c}$$

As a first approximation the coupling terms on the right hand sides of equation (1.76) are neglected to give a zero- order solution $\overline{\Phi}_{\circ}^{(o)}$. Performing the usual premultiplication, subtraction and integration of this equation and equation (1.76) and simplifying using Green's Theorem, the following expression for the exact phase shift δ is obtained:

$$sin(\delta-\delta_{0}) = \frac{1}{k} \sum_{m=1}^{\infty} 2(2m+1)^{-\frac{1}{2}} \int_{0}^{\infty} \int_{0}^{\infty} dr_{1} dr_{p} \Phi_{0}^{(0)} \mathcal{K}_{m} \Phi_{m}^{(0)}$$
1.78

where δ_{0} is the zero-order phase shift and $\delta_{m} = \frac{r_{c}}{r_{b}}$. Since the right hand sides of equations (1.76) will not be negligible for $r_{i} \doteq r_{p}$, the zero-order solution will not give good results in this region. Therefore Temkin considered equations (1.76) for m=0 and 1 and substituted the zero-order solution $\Phi_{i}^{(0)}$ in the coupling term of the equation to produce a $\Phi_{i}^{(0)}$. The forms of Φ_{i} and Φ_{i} were chosen as:

$$\Phi_{o} = \Phi_{o}^{(o)} \{ 1 + C.g(r_{1}, r_{p}) \}$$
1.79a

$$\bar{\Phi}_{1} = \bar{\Phi}_{1}^{(0)} \{ 1 + C_{g}(r_{1}, r_{p}) \}$$
1.79b

where
$$\Phi_{1}^{(o)} = \frac{2}{\sqrt{3}} \frac{sm(kr_{p}+\delta_{o})}{r_{p}^{2}+b} R_{1o}(r_{1}) \left\{ \frac{r_{1}}{2}^{2}+r_{1} \right\}$$
 1.79c
and $q(r_{1},r_{p}) = r_{1}e^{-\frac{r_{1}}{r_{p}}}$ 1.79d

ſρ

and D is a parameter. Three types of expansion were considered for $\Phi_{a}^{(o)}$:

(1) 1s-2s-3s close coupling expansion

(2) the Sturmian functions S_{10} , S_{20} and S_{30} replacing 1s-2s-3s Hydrogen functions

(3) the same Sturmian expansion as in case (2) except that

$$\overline{\Phi}_{i}^{(0)} = \frac{2}{\sqrt{3}} \frac{u_{i}(r_{p})}{r_{p}^{2} + \lambda} \quad \mathcal{R}_{i0}(r_{i}) \left\{ \frac{r_{i}}{\lambda} + r_{i} \right\}$$

where $u_1(r_p)$ is the coefficient of $S_{10}(r_1)$ in the Sturmian expansion. The phase shifts for k=.2 were as follows:

```
Case (1) .0359
```

```
Case (2) .224
```

Case (3) .219

Since Schwartz's result at this k-value is +.135, the inadequacy of close coupling expansion using s-states only is emphasised.

The non-adiabatic theory can be extended to higher partial waves by defining the Lth partial wave function as:

$$\underline{\Psi}_{L}(\underline{r}_{1},\underline{r}_{P}) = \frac{1}{r_{1}r_{P}}\sum_{\underline{r}_{1}\underline{r}_{2}} \underline{\Phi}_{\underline{r}_{1}\underline{r}_{2}}^{(L)}(r_{1},r_{P}) \underbrace{\mathcal{Y}}_{\underline{r}_{1}\underline{r}_{2}L}^{M_{L}}(\hat{r}_{1},\hat{r}_{P})$$

(11)

Temkin (37) Temkin calculated p-wave phase shifts by retaining terms in the Schroedinger equation in Φ_{10} and Φ_{01} only. There was no agreement between these and Bransden's perturbation results, see Table 1-5.

1.8 Bounds on the Reactance Matrix. (38)

(a) The Optical Potential Model

The essence of this method is to reduce the many-body problem to an equivalent one-body problem with a suitable potential term. We first introduce the concept of projection operators. Two operators F and Q are defined such that F projects on to the ground state of the target and Q on to the excited states. If $\oint (\mathbf{f}_{i}, \mathbf{f}_{p})$ is the total wave function in a positron Hydrogen collision then:

$$P \underline{\Psi} (\underline{t}_{i}, \underline{t}_{p}) \underset{r_{p} \to \infty}{\sim} \qquad \Psi_{io}(t_{i}) \underline{Y}_{LM} (\underline{t}_{p}) \operatorname{swi} (kr_{p} - \underline{L} \underline{\pi} + \underline{M}) \qquad 1.80$$

where \mathcal{P}_{i0} is r_i times the ground state Hydrogen function defined in equations (1.39). Thus:

$$P\Psi(\underline{r}_{1},\underline{r}_{p}) \sim \Psi(\underline{r}_{1},\underline{r}_{p})$$

The operator Q is therefore given by:

Q = I - P

1.80a

1.80b

and $P\phi = 0$

56

(31)

Now consider the Schroedinger equation:

$$\left[H-E\right]\left[P+Q\right] \not\equiv (\underline{1},\underline{1}_{p}) \quad O$$

This can be expressed as a pair of coupled equations by operating either with a P or a Q from the left giving:

$$P[H-E][P+Q] = 0$$
1.81a

$$\varphi[H-\varepsilon][P+\varphi] \stackrel{\bullet}{=} 0$$
 1.81b

Using equation (1.80b) and the fact that $Q^{a} = Q$, equation (1.81b) may be solved for $Q \not \Box$ as follows:

$$Q \overline{\Psi} = -G^{\varphi}(E) Q H P \overline{\Psi}$$
 1.81c

where $G^{\Phi}(E)$ is the Green's function of the operator $\left[\phi(H-E) \phi \right]^{-1}$. Substituting this into equation (1.81a) gives:

$$P\left[H + V_{opt} - E\right] P \Psi = 0$$
 1.82a

where

$$V_{opt} = -PHQ G(E) QHP$$
 1.82b

Equation (1.82a) is a one-body problem with the potential term V_{opt} known as the optical potential. It should be emphasised that the expression for the optical potential

is purely formal because of the term $\left[\varphi \left(H - \epsilon \right) \varphi \right]^{-1}$. Q projects on to an infinite dimensionless space, thus in practice this reciprocal operator cannot be determined. Equation (1.81a) can also be solved for PF.

$$P \underline{\Psi} = P \underline{\Psi}_{p} + \underline{I} \quad P H P \underline{\Psi} \qquad 1.83a$$

$$P(E-H)P$$

where PI_{ρ} is the wave function satisfying:

$$P[H-E]P\Psi_{p} = 0$$
1.83b

These are precisely the close coupling equations obtained by retaining open channels in the expression since the coupling to states outside of P is neglected by setting Q=O. Substituting equation (1.83a) into (1.81b) we obtain:

$$Q[H + HP _ I PH - E]Q = -QHP = -QHP = 1.84$$

P(E-H)P

The simplest form for the operator P is:

$$P = |\psi_{o}(r)\rangle \langle \psi_{o}(r)|$$

where $\psi_{o}(r)$ is the ground state of the target.

(b) Multi-Channel Reactions

We first consider a partial wave decomposition of the exact total wave function :

$$\Psi(\underline{r},\underline{x}) = \sum_{m} \Psi_{m}(\underline{r}) u_{m}(\underline{x})$$
 1.85

where $\Psi_m(\pm)$ is the nth. state wave function of the target with associated energy E_m and the summation includes an integration over the continuum. We define a projection operator P that projects on to the set of M possible final states (both open and closed). Therefore in the ith. open channel we have:

$$P \oint_{x_i \to \infty} d_i \psi_i(\underline{r}) \frac{1}{x_i} \left[a_i \sin \left(k_i x_i - \frac{L_i \pi}{2} \right) + b_i \cos \left(k_i x_i - \frac{L_i \pi}{2} \right) \right]$$

where L_i is the total orbital angular momentum quantum number in the ith. channel, d_i contains the spherical harmonic functions in \hat{x}_i and Clebsch Gordan coefficient required to give the correct orbital angular momentum and A_i and b_i satisfy:

$$b_i = \sum_{i \in A} R_{ij} a_j$$

where R is now the multi-channel R-matrix, and ¿ runs over all open channels. Hence:

$$P \stackrel{\sim}{\mp} \underset{x_{i} \rightarrow \infty}{\sim} d_{i} \stackrel{\sim}{+} (\underline{r}) \sum_{j} a_{j} \left[sm(k_{j} \times_{j} - \underline{L}; \underline{\pi}) \cdot \delta_{ij} + R_{ij} \cos(k_{j} \times_{j} - \underline{L}; \underline{\pi}) \right] \frac{1}{x_{i}}$$

We now consider the approximate function $\mathbf{f}^{\mathbf{f}}$ formed by truncating the infinite sum in equation (1.85):

$$\underline{\Psi}^{\mathsf{P}}(\underline{r},\underline{x}) = \sum_{m} \Psi_{m}(\underline{r}) u_{m}^{\mathsf{P}}(\underline{x})$$
1.86

where m runs over all the M coupled channels, N of which are open. The asymptotic boundary conditions are now:

$$P \stackrel{P}{=} \stackrel{P}{\xrightarrow{}}_{x_{i} \to \infty} d_{i} \stackrel{\Psi_{i}(\underline{r})}{=} \sum_{j} a_{j} \left[sim(k_{i} \times i - \underline{L}; \underline{\pi}) \stackrel{P}{=} R_{ij} \cos(k_{j} \times i - \underline{L}; \underline{\pi}) \right] \frac{1}{x_{i}}$$

(39) Hahn, O'Malley and Spruch imposed this boundary condition and the following:

$$\int \Psi_{m}(\underline{r}) \left[H - E \right] \underline{\Psi}^{P}(\underline{r}, \underline{x}) d\underline{r} = 0$$

for each value of m in the sum of equation (1.86) and obtained the following set of M equations:

$$P[H-E]PIP = 0$$

By writing the Hamiltonian H as:

$$H(\underline{t},\underline{x}) = H_{\tau}(\underline{t}) + T(\underline{x}) + V(\underline{t},\underline{x})$$

where H_T is the target Hamiltonian, T the kinetic energy operator of the incident particle and V the interaction of the incident particle with the target, equation (1.82a) reduces to:

$$\left[\left(T_{(\underline{x})} - E \right) I + \mathcal{V}_{(\underline{x})} + \underline{E}_{T} \right] \mathcal{U}_{(\underline{x})} = 0$$

where I is the MxM matrix, ET the diagonal matrix with elements E_m , $U_{(x)}$ the column matrix with elements $u_m(x)$ and $V_{(x)}$ the optical matrix potential given by:

$$\mathcal{V}(\underline{x}) = \int d\underline{r} \, (\underline{r}) \left[V + VQ \, \underline{l} \right] \varphi V \left[\underline{r}^{\dagger}(\underline{r}) \right] \Psi_{\tau}^{\dagger}(\underline{r})$$

$$Q \, (\underline{e} - H_{\tau} - \underline{\tau}) - Q \, VQ$$

where $\Psi_{T}(\mathbf{r})$ is a column vector with elements $\Psi_{m}(\mathbf{r})$. By introducing the (MxM) matrix $\mathcal{V}(\mathbf{k},\lambda)$ where:

$$\mathcal{V}(\mathbf{x}, \mathbf{\lambda}) = \int d\mathbf{\underline{r}} \, (\mathbf{\underline{r}}_{\tau}(\mathbf{\underline{r}}) \left[\mathbf{v} + \mathbf{\lambda} \mathbf{v} \mathbf{Q} - \frac{1}{\mathbf{Q} \cdot \mathbf{v}} \mathbf{Q} \right] \mathbf{v}_{\tau}^{\dagger}(\mathbf{\underline{r}})$$

$$\mathbf{Q} \left(\mathbf{E} - \mathbf{H}_{\tau} - \mathbf{T} \right) - \mathbf{\lambda} \mathbf{Q} \mathbf{v} \mathbf{Q}$$

(39) Hahn et al. showed that $\frac{dU(x,h)}{d\lambda}$ was a negative definite operator and therefore $\frac{dR(\lambda)}{d\lambda}$ was positive definite where it exists. It follows that for a single open channel where $R^{P} = \tan y^{P}$

where η is the true phase shift. This expression is valid for all energies less than that at which the next channel would become open. The theory is easily extended to show that the addition of more virtual excited states of the target will give an improved phase shift. If inelastic channels are open then it can be easily shown that:

where η' is the $\frac{1}{6}$ th. eigenphase shift. This result has (40) also been obtained by McKinley and Macek who considered the explicit form of the coupled equations (1.83b) and (41) also by Gailitis who considered an energy where both elastic and inelastic scattering was possible. If the projectile kinetic energy is sufficient to excite the first m lowest states of the target then the projection operator ρ' can be defined as:

$$P = \sum_{i=1}^{m} |\psi_i\rangle\langle\psi_i|$$

where $\Psi_{:}$ is the wave function of the ith. atomic state. Thus if the trial function Ψ^{t} is chosen as:

$$\Psi^{t}(t_{i},t_{p}) = \sum_{i=1}^{m} F_{i}(t_{p})\Psi_{i}(t_{i}) + \sum_{d=1}^{m} c_{i}\Psi_{d}(t_{i},t_{p}) \qquad 1.87$$

subject to the conditions:

$$\begin{aligned} \int \Psi_i(t) \overline{\Psi}_i(t, t_p) dt_i &= 0 \qquad \text{for } i = 1, \dots, m \qquad 1.88a \\ \text{and } \int |\overline{\Psi}_i(t, t_p)| dt_i dt_p < \infty \qquad \text{for } i = 1, \dots, m \qquad 1.88b \end{aligned}$$

then the reactance matrix R satisfies a lower bound principle.

(b) Positron Hydrogen Collisions

(42) Hahn, O'Malley and Spruch derived a minimum principle for single channel scattering by considering equation (1.84) and by using the basic inequality:

$$kcot(N_0-0) \leq k\omega t(N_0(M.P.)-0)$$
 1.89a

where
$$k \cot (N_{\circ}(M.P.) - 0) = k \cot (N_{\circ}^{P} - 0) + 4(Q \underline{\Psi}_{e}, Q H P \underline{\Psi}^{P})$$

where O satisfies $0 \le 0 \le \pi$ but is otherwise arbitrary, F_{t} is the trial wave function and F^{t} the exact solution of equation (1.83b) with phase N_{L}^{t} . (a,b) denotes the inner product of a and b. Solutions for L=0 and incident energies less than 6.8eV - the threshold for Positronium forma-(43) tion - are given by Hahn and Spruch who define P as follows: for an arbitrary function $f(r_{1},r_{p},0_{p})$:
$$P_{f}^{2}(t_{i},t_{p},O_{ip}) = \frac{1}{2} \phi_{o}(t_{i}) \int \phi_{o}(t_{i}') f(t_{i}',t_{p},O_{ip}') t_{i}'^{2} dt_{i}' d(\omega s O_{ip})$$

Therefore the expressions for $P \not = P$ and $Q \not =$ are:

$$P \underline{\Gamma}^{P} = e_{P}^{P} (r_{i}) \underline{u_{o}(r_{p})}$$

$$r_{p}$$
1.90a

$$Q \Psi_{t} = \sum_{e,i} C_{ei} \chi_{ei}(r_{i}) \omega_{ei}(r_{p}) \frac{P_{e}(\omega_{s} O_{ip})}{r_{i}r_{p}}$$
1.90b

where
$$\chi_{ei}(r_i) = r_i^{e+1} - \frac{b_{ei}r_i}{(1+b_{ei})^3} - \frac{gr_i}{(1+b_{ei})^3} = 1.90c$$

and $w_{ei}(r_p) = r_p e$ 1.90d

P and Q are orthogonal since χ_{ℓ_i} has been chosen orthogonal to φ_{\bullet} for $\ell=0$ and the Legendre polynomial P_{ℓ} ensures (43) the orthogonality for $\ell\neq0$. Hahn and Spruch chose $\mathcal{O}=(\pi+\eta_{\bullet}^{P})$ thereby reducing equation (1.89b) to:

ktan (10-10) > - 1 > 0

where $\Delta = 4 (Q \Psi_{E}, Q H P \Psi^{P}) + 2 (Q \Psi_{E}, Q [H + HP] P H - E] Q \Psi_{E})$ P(E-H)

The coefficients C_{ei} in equation (1.90b) are chosen by

minimizing Δ . If we substitute $b_{e_i} = n$ in equation (1.90c) χ_{ei} will contain some excited states of the Hydrogen atom (those with l_{n-1}). Using this substitution and taking:

$$d_{ei} = d_{e,i-1} + (1)i$$
 $i = 1, 2, \dots, q$

where $d_{10} = 2$, Hahn and Spruch (43) obtained phase shifts equal to or slightly lower than the close coupling results (23)By varying the parameters be: of McEachran et al. and $d_{e:}$ in equations (1.90) rigorous lower bounds on N_o were obtained. These are presented in Table 1-4 and show (31)that Bransden's perturbation results for L=0 are extremely poor and those of Stone are too small. 44)

Kleinman, Hahn and Spruch extended the minimum calculation for total orbital angular momentum L=1 and 2 by suitably modifying the expressions for $P \subseteq P$ and $Q \subseteq Q$. Again calculations with be = n gave phase shifts in good agreement with close coupling and rigorous lower bounds were obtained by varying be and de .. Results for L=1 are displayed in Table 1-5 together with variational results (11)who extended the Schwartz of Armstead variational formulation to P-wave scattering.

The minimum principle calculations clearly demonstrate the disadvantage of the close coupling method because of the slow convergence in ℓ - the angular momentum of the Hydrogen states - and also the principle quantum number n. Bransden's L=0 perturbation results were much lower

TABLE 1-5

Row (a) perturbation method; row (b) non-adiabatic method: row (c) Phase shifts for L=1 scattering of positrons by Hydrogen atoms. rigorous lower bounds; row (d) extended polarization; row (e) variational; row (f) lower bound adiabatic calculation.

| kao | 0.1 | 0.2 | 0.3 | 4.0 | 0.5 | 0.6 | Reference |
|------------------|-------|-------|--------|--------|----------------|---------|-----------|
| (a) | | .016 | • | +101. | • | .167 | 31 |
| (P) | .002 | 600. | .018 | .028 | • 037 | 9410* | 37 |
| (c) ^T | .0082 | .0289 | • 0548 | • 0801 | † 660 * | .1117 | 7171 |
| (P) | .0072 | .0226 | • 0370 | .0458 | • 0468 | • 04:08 | 64 |
| (e) | •009 | • 033 | .065 | .102 | .132 | .156 | 45 |
| (f) | 200. | .026 | .052 | •076 | .095 | .109 | 30 |

The expansion includes virtually excited Hydrogen states restricted +

to angular momenta \$ 3.

It is clear that the minimum principle is extremely useful in deciding which of the many approximation methods produces the best phase shifts. The form of $Q \ (43)$ (44) Hahn et al. and Kleinman et al. is restrictive in the sense that the summation over ℓ must obviously be finite and a limited number of values of ℓ are therefore chosen. For L=0, contributions from 0 \$ ℓ \$ were included whereas for L=1 and 2, 0 \$ ℓ \$ But these phase shifts are still rigorous lower bounds on the true phase shifts.

1.9 Further Adiabatic Methods.

(a) Second Order Polarization Potential

In Section 1.5 it was noted that in the limit as $r_{,} \rightarrow \infty$, the method of Polarized Orbitals was equivalent to first order perturbation theory. The second order adiabatic potential $V_{,}$ is given by:

$$V_{a}(t_{p}) = -\sum_{\substack{m \\ m \neq 0}} \frac{(0|V|_{m})(m|V|_{0})}{E_{m}-E_{0}}$$
1.91

where $(o|V|_{m}) = \int \varphi_{o}^{*}(r) V(r, r_{p}) \varphi_{m}(t) dt$

$$V_{x}(r_{p}) = (0|V_{g}|0) - (0|V|0)(0|g|0)$$
 1.922

where & satisfies:

$$\varphi_{\circ} \nabla^{2} f + 2 \overline{\gamma} f \cdot \overline{\gamma} \varphi_{\circ} = V \varphi_{\circ} - (o|v|o) \varphi_{\circ}$$
 1.92b

(46) This is easily derived by considering the Schroedinger equations for φ_{α} and φ_{m} :

$$\begin{bmatrix} -\nabla^{2} + \nabla - E_{o} \end{bmatrix} \varphi_{o}(r) = 0$$
1.93a
$$\begin{bmatrix} -\nabla^{2} + \nabla - E_{o} \end{bmatrix} \varphi_{o}(r) = 0$$
1.93b

Pre-multiplying equation (1.93a) by φ_{M}^{*} and (1.93b) by φ_{M} and subtracting the two gives:

$$(E_{o}-E_{m})\int f(t) \varphi_{o} \varphi_{m}^{*} dt = \int \left[\varphi_{o} \nabla^{2} \varphi_{m}^{*} - \varphi_{m}^{*} \nabla^{2} \varphi_{o}\right] f(t) dt \qquad 1.94$$

where f is an arbitrary function. Using the relation: $\nabla^2(\varphi_0 f) = \varphi_0 \nabla^2 f + f \nabla^2 \varphi_0 + 2 \Sigma f \cdot \Sigma \varphi_0$

the right hand side of equation (1.94) can be written:

$$\int \left[g \varphi_0 \nabla^2 \varphi_m^* - \varphi_m^* \nabla^2 (\varphi_0 g) + \varphi_m^* (\varphi_0 \nabla^2 g + 2 \chi g \cdot \chi \varphi_0) \right] dg$$

Therefore if we choose f such that:

$$\varphi_0 \nabla^2 f + 2 \Sigma f \cdot \Sigma \varphi_0 = q \varphi_0$$

where g(r) is an arbitrary function, Green's theorem can be applied to the right hand side of equation (1.94) to give:

$$(E_0 - E_m)(m|\xi|0) = (m|\xi|0)$$

Multiplying by (o|g|m) and summing over m gives:

$$\sum_{m \neq 0} \frac{(o |g|m)(m|g|0)}{(E_0 - E_m)} = \sum_{m \neq 0} (m|f|0)(0 |g|m)$$

We now apply the summation formula:

$$\sum_{q} (m|L|q)(q|M|m) = (m|LM|m)$$

where L and M are any dynamical variables and obtain:

$$\sum_{m \neq 0} \frac{(0|g|m)(m|g|0)}{(E_0 - E_m)} = (0|gg|0) - (0|g|0)(0|g|0)$$

If we choose g(r) = V(r) then we obtain equations (1.92).

(47) Dalgarno and Lynn solved equation (1.92b) and evaluated (1.92a) exactly. For positron Hydrogen scattering the expression for V_2 is:

$$V_{\lambda}(r) = r^{-\lambda} \left[\left\{ 5 - (4r^{\lambda} + 8r + 10)e^{-\lambda r} + (4r^{\lambda} + 7r^{\lambda} + 8r + 5)e^{-4r} \right\} - \lambda (r+1)^{\lambda} \left(e^{-\lambda r} + e^{-4r} \right) \left\{ Ei(\lambda r) - \lambda r - \lambda \log(\lambda r) \right\} - \lambda E_{i}(-\lambda r) \left\{ (r-1)^{\lambda} e^{\lambda r} + (r^{\lambda} + \lambda r - 3) + 4(r+1)e^{-\lambda r} \right\} \right]$$

$$1.95$$

where $\forall = .557215$ is Euler's constant and:

$$F_{i}(r) = - \int_{-r}^{\infty} \frac{e}{x} dx$$

(48)

(b) An Adiabatic Approximation

Referring to Section 1.5 the Hamiltonian for the positron Hydrogen system is given by equation (1.59c). Consider the following adiabatic wave function given by (48) Drachman:

$$\Psi(\underline{r}_{i},\underline{r}_{p}) = \left[1 + \mathcal{G}(\underline{r}_{i},\underline{r}_{p})\right] \varphi_{o}(\underline{r}_{i}) \overline{F}(\underline{r}_{p}) \qquad 1.96$$

where G is an adiabatic correlation function describing the distortion of the target and $F(t_{\varphi})$ is the positron scattering function. Equation (1.96) is substituted into the Schroedinger equation, the usual premultiplication by φ_{o} and integration over t_{i} performed to give:

$$-(1+\langle G\rangle)\left[\nabla_{p}^{2}+k^{2}\right]F+(\langle V\rangle+\langle GV\rangle)F=\left[\nabla_{p}^{2}\langle G\rangle+2\nabla_{p}\langle G\rangle,\nabla_{p}\right]F$$

$$1.97$$

where k = E+1 and use has been made of the fact that the function φ is a bound state so that:

$$< [H_r, G] > = 0$$

If G is now chosen such that $\langle G \rangle = 0$ then equation (1.97) reduces to:

$$\left[-\left(\nabla_{p}^{2}+k^{2}\right)+\langle v\rangle+\langle Gv\rangle\right]F(I_{p})=0$$
1.98

Substituting f = G in equation (1.92a) it follows that:

$$V_2 = \langle G V \rangle$$

 $V_1 = \langle V \rangle$

and

where V_i is the familiar static potential. Therefore equation (1.98) becomes:

$$\left[-\left(\overline{V_{p}}^{2}+k^{2}\right)+V_{1}+V_{2}\right]F(\underline{r}_{p})=0$$

where V_1 and V_2 are defined in equations (1.53b) and (1.95) respectively.

(c) Positron Hydrogen Collisions

Drachman used the adiabatic method just described to calculate low-energy S-wave phase shifts. These were (11) larger than those of Schwartz and the scattering length obtained was -2.54 showing that the polarization potential is too attractive. Since the adiabatic method is least accurate when the positron is near to the nucleus (48) Drachman modified the potential by considering the monopole term of V_{a} . $\mathcal{G}(\underline{r}, \underline{r}_{p})$ is expanded in terms of the Legendre polynomials:

$$\mathcal{G}(\underline{r}_{i},\underline{r}_{p}) = \sum_{m=0}^{\infty} \mathcal{G}_{m}(\tau_{i},\tau_{p}) \mathcal{P}_{m}(\cos \theta_{ip})$$

and G_{o} , the monopole term, contains all the short-range effects of V_{a} since terms for m>0 will contain inverse powers of τ_{p} . G_{o} satisfies:

$$\varphi_{\circ} \nabla^{2} G_{\circ} + 2 \Sigma G_{\circ} \cdot \Sigma \varphi_{\circ} = (V_{\circ} - \langle V_{\circ} \rangle) \varphi_{\circ}$$
 1.99

The Samers photo

where $V_o = 2\left(\frac{1}{r_p} - \frac{1}{r_1}\right)$ for $r_p < r_1$.

$$= 0 \qquad \text{for} \quad r_{\mu} \supset r_{\mu}$$

Referring back to equation (1.92a) the expression for the potential V_{20} due to the perturbation V_0 is given by:

$$V_{20} = \langle v_0 g \rangle - v_1 \langle g \rangle$$

where \int_{c} and \int_{c} satisfy equation (1.99) for $r_{p} < r_{1}$ and $r_{p} > r_{1}$ (48) respectively. In this case $\langle f \rangle \neq 0$. Drachman repeated the adiabatic calculation by using the following expression for the full potential in the Schroedinger equation:

 $V_1 + V_2 + (d-1)V_{20}$

where \measuredangle is a parameter. Agreement with Schwartz's scattering length necessitated choosing \measuredangle =·! and this value gave good agreement over the whole energy range up to the threshold for Positronium formation.

An alternative method of reducing the over attractive polarization potential near the origin was formulated by (49) Callaway, LaBahn, Fu and Duxler who calculated a repulsive correction term to the dipole polarization which falls off asymptotically as τ_{ρ} . For Hydrogenic wave functions, this term exactly cancelled with the monopole part of the polarization term at the origin. The S-wave phase shifts are presented in Table 1-6 and are considerably smaller (11) than Schwartz's showing that the correction term is too repulsive.

In order to apply the lower-bound principle of (41) (48) Gailitis , Drachman defines a trial wave function as TABLE 1-6

scattering of positrons by Hydrogen atoms. Row (a) extended polarization; row (b) lower bound adiabatic; 0=1 Fhase shifts for

row (c) variational.

| Icao | 0.0 | 1.0 | 0.2 | 0.3 | 4.0 | 0.5 | 0.6 | Reference |
|------|-------|-------|-------|------|------|-------|------|--------------|
| (a) | 783 | .036 | .0137 | 0352 | 0939 | .1539 | 2112 | 6 <i>i</i> 1 |
| (4) | -1.85 | . 127 | .157 | +13h | .089 | •034 | 022 | 50 |
| (c) | -2.10 | .151 | .188 | .168 | .120 | .062 | 200. | 11 |

+ The zero-entries represent scattering lengths.

follows:

$$\Psi(t_{i}, t_{p}) = \left[H(t_{p}) + G(t_{i}, t_{p}) F(t_{p}) \right] \varphi_{o}(t_{i})$$
 1.100

where ψ satisfies equations (1.88). \mathcal{G} is the usual correlation function satisfying equation (1.92b) and H contains short-range non-adiabatic terms. Substituting ψ into the Kohn variational expressions yields two coupled equations in F and H whose solution for L=0 gives phase shifts (11) roughly 10% lower than those of Schwartz with a scattering length of -1.85, see Table 1-6. The L=1 phase shifts presented in Table 1-5 are close to the lower bound results (44) of Kleinman et al.

By considering the effect on the S- and P- wave phase shifts of various multipole components of the adiabatic (51)polarization potential, Bransden and Jundi showed that the dipole and quadrupole components were the most important. The addition of these two components to the static interaction produced phase shifts less than Schwartz's but the further addition of the monopole component cancels the phase (11)shifts to exceed those of Schwartz thereby giving (48)weight to Drachman's argument of empirically suppressing this term for S-wave scattering.

The inclusion of Positronium states in a wave function expansion introduces special difficulties because the two different sets of centre of mass coordinates produce integral operators. In operator formalism this would require the projection operator for separating out the two channels to be determined from an integral equation. An interesting (52) alternative was suggested by Chen and Mittleman who used the positron coordinate to label the Positronium. The ensuring coupled equations contain no integral operators but the centrifugal term $\frac{e(\varrho+1)}{r_{\rho}^2}$ of the equation representing the closed Positronium channel is modified by the addition

of an energy dependent term.

Fels and Mittleman used this coordinate change and (52) the projection operator P defined by Chen and Mittleman which results in:

$$P \underline{\Psi}(\underline{r}_{1}, \underline{r}_{p}) = \varphi_{o}(\underline{r}_{1}) F(\underline{r}_{p}) + w_{o}(\underline{p}_{1}) G(\underline{r}_{p}) e^{ik_{2}\hat{r}_{p} \cdot \underline{\varphi}}$$

where φ_{o} and ω_{o} are the ground state Hydrogen and Positronium functions respectively and $\frac{1}{2}k_{1}^{2}$ is the energy of the outgoing Positronium. This expression is substituted into equation (1.83b) with a partial wave expansion of F and G to produce two coupled ordinary differential equations. Terms such as:

(g: | Vopt | g;)

i,j = 1,2

where $\int_{1} (t, t) = \Psi_{0}(t, t)$ and $\int_{2} (f, t) = \psi_{0}(f, t) e^{-tt}$ in the limit as $t_{p} \rightarrow \infty$ reduce to the polarization potentials of Hydrogen $(t_{p} = 1)$ and Positronium $(t_{p} = 2)$. The off-diagonal terms vanish exponentially as $r_p \rightarrow \infty$. For above thresh-(53) old energies Fels et al. considered various types of polarization terms including the $\frac{-d}{(r_{*d}^{*})^{*}}$ form and a

(29) modification of the Temkin-Lamkin form. The dominant P-wave partial elastic cross section was found to be very sensitive to the form of polarization and the inclusion of any of these terms reduced the total elastic cross section. The S-wave phase shift at threshold was a factor of six (11) smaller than Schwartz's and it may be concluded that the additional centrifugal term effectively makes the interaction less attractive so reducing the phase shift. (51)

Bransden and Jundi performed a two-state approximation calculation above threshold including various combinations of the monopole, dipole and quadrupole polarizations of Hydrogen and the dipole polarization of Fositronium. A linear extrapolation of the M-matrix in the no-polarization case predicted values of the S-wave elastic phase shift below (25) threshold in good agreement with Cody et al. The elastic cross sections are smaller than the equivalent results of (53) Fels and Mittleman and near threshold were sensitive to the form of polarization.

A recent calculation of rigorous bounds on eigenphase (55)shifts was performed by Hahn and Dirks who used a (56)generalized variational bounds formulation by Hahn. The elastic cross sections were smaller than both Fels (53) (54)et al's and Brandsen et al's being somewhat closer

to the latter.

(d) Positron Helium Collisions

Drachman applied the same procedure to the case of Helium choosing the function ψ as follows:

$$\Psi(t_1, t_2, t_r) = \left[1 + C (G - G_0) + d G_0 \right] \Psi_0(t_1, t_2) F(t_r)$$

where Ψ_0 is the ground state Helium function, G and G the first and second order adiabatic correlation function and its monopole part respectively and C and \measuredangle are parameters. The static potential V_i was calculated using the two term analytic approximation to the best Hartree function which (56) gave :

$$V_{1}(r) = \frac{1}{r} \begin{bmatrix} 5e^{-2\cdot 4915} & -5\cdot 4741 \end{bmatrix}$$

whereas V_{a} and V_{ao} , calculated using the uncorrelated shielded Hydrogenic function defined by equation (1.54), are given by:

$$V_{2}^{\text{Helium}}(r) = 2V_{2}^{\text{Hydrogen}}(\mu r)$$

where $V_a^{Hydrogen}$ is defined in equation (1.95) and $\mathcal{M} = \frac{27}{16}$. With reference to part (a) it can be seen that a Hydrogenic ground state wave function must be chosen for the target (47) atom if the Dalgarno-Lynn method for calculating V_a

Capita 10), (5) and (4) are

Gases (2) and (4) produce smaller

is to be used. C and \measuredangle are chosen to ensure that \bigvee_{2} has the correct polarizability.

The 5-, P- and D- wave phase shifts are smaller than (27) the close-coupling results of Kraidy . The S-wave phase shifts are displayed in Table 1-7.

Kestner, Jortner, Cohen and Rice used an effective potential evaluated in the adiabatic approximation but retained only the monopole, dipole and quadrupole terms. (57) Their phase shifts are comparable to Drachman's adiabatic results, with a best scattering length of -.575. No allowance for virtual Positronium formation was made. (49) Callaway et al. calculated S-, F- and D- wave

phase shifts for the following four cases:

(1) Mean static field

- (2) Adiabatic approximation with dipole polarization
- (3) Adiabatic approximation with monopole, dipole and quadrupole polarization
- (4) Adiabatic approximation with "extended" polarizationi.e., case (2) + correction terms.

The S-wave phase shifts for cases (2), (3) and (4) are presented in Table 1-7. Cases (2) and (4) produce smaller (57) phase shifts than Drachman whereas case (3) results are (57) quite close to both Drachman's and Kestner et al's. Referring to the Hydrogen case, the extended polarization is probably too repulsive and this could perhaps be correc-

TABLE 1-7

e

monopole, dipole and quadrupole polarization; row (c) adiabatic + extended polarization; row (d) non-variational adiabatic with Phase shifts for L=0 scattering of positrons by Helium atoms. Row (a) adiabatic + dipole polarization; row (b) adiabatic + complete monopole suppression; row (e) variational.

| 1 | Reference | 64 | 617 | 64 | 57 | 50 | |
|----------|-----------|--------|-------|-------|-------|-------|--|
| | 0.6 | • 0409 | .0185 | 1454 | . 002 | 039 | |
| | 0.5 | .0348 | .0457 | 1057 | .032 | 007 | |
| 4 | 41.0 | .0268 | .0675 | 0676 | .056 | .020 | |
| 1. N. N. | 0.3 | .0178 | .0802 | +1080 | .071 | • 039 | |
| | 0.2 | .0092 | .0781 | 0068 | .072 | 240. | |
| A CAR | 0.1 | .0293 | .0539 | .0069 | 050 | •036 | |
| | * 0.0 | 437 | 697 | 202 | 659 | 511 | |
| | kao | (a) | (P) | (c) | (P) | (e) | |

The zero-entries represent scattering lengths.

*

ted by addition of virtual Fositronium terms which are known to be attractive.

(50)

Drachman extended the lower bound calculations to Helium by defining a trial wave function as follows:

$$\Psi(t_{1}, t_{2}, t_{p}) = \left[H(t_{p}) + G(t_{1}, t_{2}, t_{p})\right] \Psi_{0}(t_{1}, t_{2}) F(t_{p})$$

where G satisfies:

$$[G,H]$$
 $\Psi_{o}(r_{1},r_{2}) = (V-\langle V \rangle)\Psi_{o}(r_{1},r_{2})$

and H is the appropriate Hamiltonian. The ensuing S-wave phase shifts are displayed in Table 1-7. If the Helium wave function was exact these would be rigorous lower (49)bounds and would show that Callaway et al's. extended polarization results are too small. One immediate source of error is the use of the uncorrelated Hydrogenic function Ψ_{e} given by equation (1.54).

Fels and Mittleman applied their coordinate change method using Clementi's analytic fit to the Hartree-Fock wave function:

(60)

$$\begin{aligned}
\Psi_{o}(r_{1}, r_{2}) &= u(r_{1}) u(r_{2}) \\
u(r_{1}) &= \frac{1}{\left|\frac{5}{12}\right|} \sum_{i=1}^{5} R_{i} \xi_{i} e
\end{aligned}$$

where

(60) and A; and §; are defined by Fels et al. The ground (61) state Helium energy used was Schwartz's variational value of -5.897448. The total elastic cross-sections above (27) threshold for L=0 are a little higher than Kraidy's virtual Positronium results but the L=1 are an order of magnitude larger. The addition of the Temkin-Lamkin potential reduced the cross-sections by two and the L=1 results (27) are now smaller than those of Kraidy allowing for the dipole polarization.

1.10 Resonances in Positron atom scattering

(a) <u>Resonance Mechanisms</u>

A resonance can be interpreted as a quasi-bound state of the compound system of the target and projectile. At a resonance energy the phase shift increases by π and the (86) cross sections exhibit the familiar Breit-Wigner profile.

With reference to Section 1.8(a) we consider the solution of equation (1.82a):

$$P[H-E]P\Psi = PHQG^{\circ}(E)QHP\Psi$$
 1.101

A set of functions Φ_n which are eigenfunctions of the operator QHQ with eigenvalues $\hat{\xi}_n^{\varphi}$ can be introduced:

$$0 = (q_1, q_2, q_3, q_4, q_5) = 0$$

1.102

Since these functions span Q-space we may use:

 $\sum |\Phi_n\rangle < \Phi_n| = \varphi'$

where \sum_{n}^{∞} denotes a sum over the discrete and an integration over the continuous spectrum. Since for simplicity we are considering only one open channel, below the energy of the Positronium formation threshold (E_{ps}), the only non-zero part of the total wave function is $P \Psi$, thus QHQ will possess a discrete spectrum (bound states) in this energy region with eigenfunctions Φ_n that vanish as $r_p \rightarrow \infty$. For energies $\mathcal{E}_n^{\Phi} > F_{ps}$ the Φ_n do not vanish asymptotically and the eigenvalues \mathcal{E}_n^{Φ} form a continuous spectrum.

 $G^{\mathfrak{P}}(E)$ is now expanded in terms of the $\overline{\Phi}_n$ as follows:

$$G^{q}(E) = \sum_{n} \frac{|\bar{\Phi}_{n}\rangle\langle\bar{\Phi}_{n}|}{(\epsilon_{n}^{q}-E)}$$
 1.103

Thus equation (1.101) may be written as:

$$P[H-E]P = \sum_{n} \frac{H_{PQ}[\overline{\Psi}_{n} > < \overline{\Psi}_{n}]H_{QP}}{(E_{n}^{Q}-E)} P$$

where the notation used is $H_{PQ} = P_{HQ}$ and $H_{QQ} = Q_{HP}$ etcetera. Consider the case when E is close to an eigenvalue ξ_s^{φ} of H_{QQ} and re-write equation (1.103) as follows:

$$\begin{bmatrix} H'-E \end{bmatrix} P \stackrel{!}{=} = \frac{H_{PQ} [\frac{1}{2}_{s} > \langle \underline{\Psi}_{s} | H_{QP}]}{(\xi_{s}^{Q} - E)} P \stackrel{!}{=} 1.104a$$

where
$$H' = H_{pp} - \sum_{n \neq r} \frac{|H_{pq}| (\underline{\Phi}_n) < \overline{\Phi}_n |H_{qp}|}{(\varepsilon_n^{q} - \varepsilon)}$$
 1.104b

The formal solution to equation (1.104a) is:

$$P \underline{\Psi} = P \underline{\Psi}_{\circ} - \frac{1}{(\xi_{\circ}^{\circ} - E)} G' |H_{P \varphi}| \underline{\Phi}_{\circ} \times \underline{\Phi}_{\circ} |H_{Q P}|. P \underline{\Psi}$$
1.105
where $[H' - E] P \underline{\Psi}_{\circ} = 0$

and $\underline{\Psi}_{\circ}$ satisfies equation (1.80) with η_{\circ} replacing η . The Green's function G' of the operator $[H'-E]^{-1}$ can be written in standing wave form in terms of a product of a regular and irregular solution:

$$G'(\underline{r}_{1},\underline{r}_{p};\underline{c}',\underline{r}_{p}') \sim - \int \underline{2\pi} \quad \varphi_{o}(t_{1}) \underbrace{Y_{LM}(\hat{r}_{p})}_{r_{p}} \cos(kr_{p}-\underline{L\pi}+\underline{y}_{o}) P \underline{F}_{o}(\underline{c}',\underline{t}_{p}') \quad 1.106$$

Multiplying equation (1.105) on the left by $\langle \Phi_s | H_{\varphi P} |$ and rearranging we obtain:

$$\langle \overline{\Phi}_{s} | H_{qp} | \overline{\Psi} \rangle = \frac{\langle \overline{\Phi}_{s} | H_{qp} | \overline{\Psi}_{s} \rangle}{1 + (\varepsilon_{s}^{\varphi} - \varepsilon)^{2} \langle \overline{\Phi}_{s} | H_{qp} G H_{pq} | \overline{\Phi}_{s} \rangle}$$

and substituting this into equation (1.105) gives:

$$P = P = P = + \frac{F' | H_{Pq} | \Phi_s \rangle \langle \Phi_s | H_{qp} | \Phi_s \rangle}{F - \varepsilon_s^{q} - \Delta_s}$$
1.107a

where
$$\Delta_s = \langle \overline{\Phi}_s | H_{qq} G' H_{pq} | \overline{\Phi}_s \rangle$$
 1.107b

and Δ_s is the shift in energy from $\hat{\ell}_s^{Q}$ caused by interaction with the continuum term $\underline{\Psi}_s$.

Using equations (1.80) and (1.106) the asymptotic form of $P \not \Box$ will be:

$$P \underline{\Gamma} \sim \int_{\overline{T}k} \frac{1}{r_{p} \to \infty} \int_{\overline{T}k} \frac{1}{r_{p}} \frac{1}{r_$$

where
$$\tan \eta_{\star} = \frac{-\frac{1}{2}\Gamma_s}{E - \varepsilon_s - \Delta_s}$$
 1.108b

and $\frac{1}{2}\Gamma_s = \pi |\langle \underline{\Psi}_o | H_{Pq} | \underline{\Psi}_s \rangle|^2$

The resonance position E_{\bullet} can be seen to equal $(\mathsf{E}_{\bullet}^{\mathfrak{S}} + \Delta_{\mathfrak{s}})$. The total phase shift is $(\mathsf{M}_{\bullet} + \mathsf{M}_{\bullet})$ and if it is assumed that the level shifts $\Delta_{\mathfrak{s}}$ are small, the resonance energies can be determined by a calculation of the eigenvalues of $\mathsf{H}_{\mathfrak{S}\mathfrak{S}}$.

Invascorate the sectors below the Postly

Operating on the left of equation (1.102) with $\langle \Phi_s | \varphi = \langle \Phi_s | \varphi^2 \rangle$ gives:

 $\langle \Phi_s | H_{\varphi \varphi} | \Phi_s \rangle = \xi_s^{\varphi} \langle \Phi_s | \varphi^2 | \Phi_s \rangle$ 1.109a which by the Hermiticity of Q and QH can be written: A trial wave function $Q \not =$ can now be chosen for substitutions into a variational calculation.

(b) <u>Resonances in positron Hydrogen scattering</u> (63) (64)

Mittleman employed a projection operator that projected out the ground state of Hydrogen and Positronium to investigate the resonance structure just below the n=2 level of Hydrogen. The trial wave function $Q \overline{Q}_t$ was chosen as:

$$Q \Phi_{t} = \sum_{\substack{\ell_{i}, m_{i} \\ \ell_{a}, m_{a}}} \varphi_{2\ell_{i}, m_{i}} C \left(\ell_{i} \ell_{2} L_{j}; m_{i} m_{2} M \right) Y_{\ell_{a} m_{a}}(\hat{\tau}_{p}) \frac{F_{\ell_{a}}(\hat{\tau}_{p})}{\tau_{p}}$$

To investigate the regions below the Positronium formation thresholds the following trial wave function applicable to the energy region below the nth. level of Positronium was used:

$$Q \overline{\Phi}_{t} = \sum_{\substack{\ell_{1}, m_{1} \\ \ell_{2}, m_{2}}} \omega_{n\ell_{1}, m_{1}}(\boldsymbol{\mu}) C(\ell_{1} \ell_{2} L; m_{1}, m_{2} M) Y_{\ell_{2}, m_{2}}(\boldsymbol{\hat{\sigma}}) \frac{F_{\ell_{2}}(\boldsymbol{r})^{r}}{\sigma}$$

In both cases, infinite sequences of resonances were found because of the degeneracy of the eigenfunctions of different angular momenta for n,2. Consequently no resonances of this type are possible below the ground state Positronium formation threshold and the possibility of resonances here was (65) investigated numerically by Bhatia and Temkin where $\overline{\Phi}_{E}$ was taken as an S-state of the Hylleraas type:

$$\bar{\Phi}_{t}(\varepsilon_{1},\varepsilon_{p}) = e^{-(dr_{p}+\beta r_{1}+\delta p)} \sum_{\ell m n} C_{\ell m n} r_{p} r_{1} p^{n}$$

and $Q = |-|\varphi_{o}(r_{i})\rangle \langle \varphi_{o}(r_{i})|$

It was found that $\varepsilon^{\varphi} \to \cdot 5$ rydbergs from above with $d, \beta \to 0$ and $\forall \to \frac{1}{2}$. This of course corresponds to a Positronium at infinity with respect to a stationary proton which means that there is no resonance.

(54)

Bransden and Jundi found a very steep rise in the L=0 cross-section for Positronium formation when any form of polarization was included. It would seem that this was due to a pole in the R-matrix just below the Positronium threshold giving rise to a resonance in the positron (66) Hydrogen channel at this energy. However Drachman showed that this effect was spurious on account of the (54) omission of the coupling terms in Bransden et al's.

also used the Correction of the party and the two hid to the there also

the tree then this at late part long.

1.11 Processes involving Positronium

Positronium may exist in two forms: para-Positronium (singlet spin data) with a lifetime of approximately 10^{-10} seconds and ortho-Positronium (triplet spin state) with a lifetime of approximately 10^{-7} seconds. The annihilation of para-Positronium leads to the emission of two photons whereas that of ortho-Positronium gives at least three photons. There are several processes whereby the three-photon annihilation is replaced by the two-photon annihilation or "quenching" of the ortho-Positronium. These are discussed in part (c) of this section.

(a) <u>Scattering of Positronium</u> (67),(68),(69)

and Fraser and Kraidy used a Fraser close coupling expansion in the Kohn variational method to calculate low-energy S-wave phase shifts for ortho-Positronium scattering from Hydrogen and Helium. In the former case, allowance for the possibility of conversion to para-Fositronium by electron exchange must be made. In the case of Helium this conversion is not possible for ortho-Positronium energies less than 19.8 eV (see part'(c)). The cross sections were found to be highly energy dependent, in contrast to the assumptions of Teutsch et al. The Hydro-(4)gen results can be compared to those of Massey and Mohr who used the Born-Oppenheimer approximation to calculate (67)elastic cross sections. Fraser's values of 192 Tra.

(70)

and 2.92 Tm, for zero energy and 6.8 eV respectively were (4)
smaller than those of Massey et al. who obtained 230 Tm,
and $25 T_{0}$, respectively. These Hydrogen calculations were
a crude approximation neglecting all angular terms except
the zeroth and making no allowance for polarization.

The addition of an attractive effect such as the Van der Waal's interaction term (this is the force of largest range acting between Positronium and an atom and is in fact the dipole-dipole interaction which occurs between two neutral polarizable systems. It varies as where σ is the distance of separation of the two systems) and a better Helium function than the Hylleraas uncorrelated function would probably improve Fraser's Helium results^{*} since the exchange terms are repulsive. The calculation (71) for L=0, 1 and 2 was repeated by Barker and Bransden with the Van der Waal's term included and the phase shifts are presented in Table 1-8. The long-range potential has quite a small effect.

(b) Formation of Positronium

In the case of Hydrogen Massey and Moussa determined the cross sections for the formation of Positronium in the 1s and 2s state using Born's approximation. This has already been described in Section 1.1 so it will just be emphasised here that the maximum cross section of 4Ta, at an energy of 14 eV clearly demonstrates the importance of *A mistake in Fraser's first Helium paper resulting in (69) excessively large cross sections was corrected by Fraser.

(4)

TABLE 1-8

Rows (a), (b) and (c) static-exchange; rows (d), (e) and (f) static-2 Phase shifts given by Barker and Bransden for L=0, 1 and scattering of ortho-Positronium by Helium atoms. (12) exchange + Van der Waal's interaction.

| kao | T | * 0.0 | 0.1 | 0.2 | 4.0 | 0.6 | 0.8 |
|-----|---|-------|------|------|------|--------|--------|
| (a) | 0 | 1.80 | 181 | 359 | 701 | -1.011 | -1.274 |
| (P) | 1 | | 0021 | 0155 | 0967 | 2359 | 3912 |
| (c) | 2 | | - 10 | 0003 | 0073 | 0393 | 1056 |
| (P) | 0 | 2.05 | 203 | 391 | 716 | 987 | -1.218 |
| (e) | I | | 0022 | 0166 | 1034 | 2462 | 3967 |
| (f) | N | 2. 2. | | 0003 | 0076 | 0489 | 1085 |

* The zero-entries represent scattering lengths.

allowing for virtual Positronium formation. The calcula-(72) tions were repeated by Cheshire whose cross sections were 20% higher.

(53) Fels and Mittleman's Hydrogen results differ from (54) Bransden et al's. of course but were in qualitative (73) agreement with a variational calculation by Drachman which showed the Positronium formation cross-sections to be greatly reduced relative to the Born approximation near threshold.

(74)Massey and Moussa used Born's approximation for the case of Helium and obtained a maximum cross section of · 4Tes at an energy of 27 eV. A similar calculation by (27)Kraidy produced larger cross-sections for energies 22 eV. The addition of virtual Positronium and the Positronium dipole polarization to the static field of a close coupling expansion tripled the total cross sections without (60)polarization for energies up to 30 eV. Fels and Mittleman's Helium results * bear no resemblance to the close coupling results being a factor of a thousand smaller.

A cross section that is frequently used in experimental work is the diffusion or momentum transfer cross-section defined by:

$$Q_{MT} = \frac{4}{k^2} \sum_{e=0}^{\infty} (e+1) \sin^2 (5_e - 5_{e+1})$$

*The Positronium cross sections given in figures 2 and 4 of this paper are to be reduced by a factor of 2.

in units of T_{α} , where S_{ϱ} is the phase shift for the ℓ th. partial wave. At low energies, the momentum transfer crosssection is approximately the same as the elastic scattering cross-section.

Leung and Paul studied the diffusion of slow positrons by the method of delayed coincidences and, contrary (1) to the findings of Marder et al. , found no enhancement of Positronium formation upon application of an electric field. Near the Positronium threshold, the momentum transfer cross sections were found to be $> .115 \pi_{ao}^{4}$. Diffusion cross sections were calculated by taking a linear combina-(57) (50) tion of Drachman's non-variational and variational results as follows:

$$\delta_{0} = A \delta_{0}^{(1)} + (1-A) \delta_{0}^{(L)}$$

where 5 are the non-variational S-wave phase shifts (50) and $\delta_{o}^{(\lambda)}$ the variational The P- and D-wave non-variational phase shifts were used. The optimum value of A (75)was found to lie between 0 and 2. Leung and Paul elimi-(27)(34)and Kraidy from nated the results of Massey et al. consideration since their wave functions did not produce adequate values of Zeff (see part (c)). (76)

A similar conclusion was reached by Tao and Kelly who calculated the allowable values of the averaged momentum - transfer cross-sections in an energy range .1 eV to (34) 17.8 eV to be $\cdot 6\pi_{a}^{2}$ to $\cdot 2\pi_{a}^{2}$. However the Massey et al. results fitted the experimental results quite well but not (50),(57) to such a degree as Drachman's.

(c) Positron Annihilation

The rate of annihilation of positrons in an atomic (77) gas is given by :

where r_{e} is the classical electron radius e_{e} , c is the speed

of light, N the number of electrons in the target gas (N is proportional to the pressure p) and Z_{eff} is the effective number of electrons per atom in a singlet state relative to the positron. The rate of annihilation into three photons of a positron-electron pair in a relative triplet state is smaller by a factor of 1115 therefore the total (78) contribution of three-photon annihilation to the total decay rate is $\frac{3}{115} \div \frac{1}{372}$ of λ_{s} .

If we consider the wave function $\Psi(\underline{r}, \underline{r}, \dots, \underline{r}_{N}; \underline{r},)$ having asymptotic form:

$$\Psi(\mathfrak{r}_{1},\mathfrak{r}_{2},\mathfrak{m},\mathfrak{r}_{N},\mathfrak{r}_{p}) \sim \varphi(\mathfrak{r}_{1},\mathfrak{r}_{2},\mathfrak{m},\mathfrak{r}_{N}) F(\mathfrak{r}_{p})$$

where f, ,....., in are the electron coordinates and r the

positron coordinates then φ is the normalized atomic wave function and $F(\underline{r}_{\rho})$ is normalized to correspond to one positron per unit volume asymptotically then ${}^{1}Z_{eff}$ is given by:

$$'\mathcal{Z}_{qg} = \sum_{i=1}^{N} \int d_{1} \cdots d_{2_{N}} d_{2_{p}} | \Psi(1, \dots, 1_{N}); \Psi_{p} |^{2} \int d_{1} \cdots d_{2_{q}} d_{2_{p}}$$

It can be seen that Z_{eff} gives a measure of the probability of finding the positron and an electron at the same point in space.

During a collision, the positron of the orth-Positronium pair may find itself at the position of an atomic electron, form a singlet spin state and promptly annihilate. This process is termed "pick-off" quenching and should not be confused with "exchange" quenching which occurs when the atom and Positronium exchange an electron, so converting ortho-Positronium to para-Positronium. Since the ground state Helium function is in a singlet spin state, exchange quenching cannot occur for orth-Positronium energies below the triplet excitation threshold of 19.8 eV.

(79) Duff and Heyman's measurement of the pick-off quenching rate of ortho-Positronium in Helium gave:

(68)(69) 1 Fraser calculated Z_{eff} with the static exchange trial wave function with no allowance for polarization effects. This value of .033 obtained at a Positronium energy of .0018 (corresponding to a mean Positronium speed (74)of 6.6x10⁶ cm/sec as given by Duff and Heymann clearly demonstrates the inadequacy of the trial wave function for quenching calculations particularly since other experi-(80)mental values are even higher.

(71) (69) Barker and Bransden repeated Fraser's calculations with the Van der Waal's interaction and found that Zeff was increased to .048 which is still considerably smaller than the experimental values. (34)

Massey, Lawson and Thompson used their static field plus polarized orbital wave function to calculate Zeff for positrons on Helium. Their results are in reasonable (27)agreement with a similar calculation by Kraidy. In these calculations Zeff < 2 (the Dirac rate = number of electrons in the Helium atom) but the addition of virtual (27)Positronium terms produced values greater than 2 for low energies, see Table 1-9. This is to be expected since virtual Positronium formation is essentially a short-range correlation effect providing an increase in (81)attraction for the positron. Most experimental results yield values of Zeff lying between 3.0 and 4.0.

(82) A variational calculation by Houston using the (16) trial wave function of Houston and Moiseiwitsch (see Section 1.3b) produced a very high value of 4.61.

Drachman applied his adiabatic non-variational (57) method with complete monopole suppression to the annihilation of positrons in Helium and obtained Z_{eff}

(83)

TABLE 1-9

Positron-Helium annihilation rate Zeff.

formation + dipole polarization; row (e) non-variational adiabatic; row (c) virtual Positronium formation; row (d) virtual Positronium Row (a) static field; row (b) static field + dipole polarization; row (f) variational adiabatic.

| 200 | 0.04 | 0.09 | 0.16 | 0.25 | 0.36 | Reference |
|-----|------|-------|-------|-------|-------|-----------|
| .7 | 485 | .7728 | .8048 | .8430 | .8859 | 27 |
| 1.1 | 116 | 1.152 | 1.127 | 1.120 | 1.127 | 27 |
| 2.0 | 95 | 1.851 | 1.727 | 1.679 | 1.650 | 27 |
| 2.8 | 10 | 2.266 | 2.00 | 1.866 | 1.792 | 27 |
| 5.5 | 80 | 5.16 | 4.86 | 4.70 | 4.62 | 83 |
| 3.3 | 0 | 3.14 | 3.02 | 2.98 | 2.98 | 50 |

The positron kinetic energy is k^2 in units of 13.6 eV.

(27) values a factor of 2 larger than Kraidy's with a zero (50) energy value of 6.32. Application of a variational method reduced the values giving 3.66 at zero energy. The two sets of Z_{eff} are displayed in Table 1-9.

(75) (50) Leung and Faul found that Drachman's variational calculations the best theoretical fit to their experimental results, their optimum value of Z_{eff} in thermal equilibrium at 77°K being 3.677 ± .025.

Recent work by Fels and Mittleman (private communication to M. H. Mittleman) suggests that the direct annihilation of positrons by capture dominates the annihilation process except in a very small energy band above threshold.

It clearly is obvious that more work needs to be done on the positron Helium system since this is a case of practical interest. It would be instructive to investigate the disagreement between the above threshold close coupling results and the adiabatic approximation with coordinate (60) change. Several additions to the close coupling expansion that take into account long-range attraction as well as short-range correlation effects are discussed in Chapter VI.

the dinky of energy by the Direburg

CHAPTER II

CLOSE COUPLING THEORY OF POSITRON HELIUM SCATTERING

2.1 The Schroedinger Wave Equation

The wave equation for the Positron Helium system is given by:

$$\begin{bmatrix} -\frac{1}{4} \left(\nabla_{1}^{2} + \nabla_{2}^{2} + \nabla_{p}^{2} \right) + \frac{1}{4e} - \frac{1}{4e} - \frac{1}{4e} + \frac{1}{4e} - \frac{1}{4e} -$$

where the Helium nucleus is considered to be of infinite mass and therefore taken as the origin of coordinates.

 f_1 , f_2 and f_p are the coordinate vectors of the two electrons and the positron respectively, f_1 the common electron and positron mass, $f_{1j} = f_1 - f_2$ for i = 1, 2 and p and E is the total energy of the system.

To change to atomic units we substitute $\uparrow a_0$ for \uparrow in equation (2.1) where $a_0 = \frac{1}{h} \frac{a}{2} = .53 \times 10$ c.m. is the Bohr radius.

The unit of energy is the Rydberg = $\frac{e}{2a_0}$ = 13.6 eV therefore in atomic units equation (2.1) becomes:

the configuration of a posision and a fightum

$$\begin{bmatrix} -(\gamma_{1}^{a}+\nabla_{2}^{a}+\nabla_{p}^{a}) + \underline{4} - \underline{4} - \underline{4} + \underline{2} - \underline{2} - \underline{2} - \underline{2} \\ r_{p} + r_{1} + r_{2} + r_{1} - r_{2} + r_{2} \\ r_{p} + r_{1} + r_{2} + r_{1} + r_{2} - \underline{2} - \underline{2} - \underline{2} \end{bmatrix} \stackrel{\text{E}}{=} \begin{bmatrix} \underline{F}(r_{1}, r_{2}, r_{p}) = 0 \\ \underline{F}(r_{1}, r_{2}, r_{p}) \end{bmatrix} = 0$$
2.2

The Hamiltonian H of the whole system may be expressed in the following forms:

$$H = -(\nabla_{1}^{a} + \nabla_{2}^{a} + \nabla_{p}^{a}) + \frac{4}{r_{p}} - \frac{4}{r_{1}} - \frac{4}{r_{2}} + \frac{2}{r_{12}} - \frac{2}{r_{1p}} - \frac{2}{r_{ap}}$$
2.38

$$= -(\frac{1}{2}\nabla_{e_{1}} + 2\nabla_{p_{1}} + \nabla_{p_{1}}) + \frac{4}{4} - \frac{4}{4} - \frac{4}{4} - \frac{2}{4} - \frac{2}{$$

for
$$i = 1$$
, $j = 2$
and $i = 2$, $j = 1$
where $f_i = f_{ip}$ and $f_i = \frac{1}{2} (f_i + f_p)$

2.2 The Variational Method

(a) The Exact Wave Function

Consider an axially symmetric wave function $f(x, s_x, y, s_y)$ satisfying equation (2.2) where x and s_x are the coordinate vector and spin function respectively of the separation of the two clusters and y and s_y represent the remaining coordinates and spin respectively. For example, if we are considering the configuration of a positron and a Helium atom then:

 $x = r_{p}$, $y = (r_{1}, r_{a})$

Neglecting spin-orbit interactions we take advantage of the fact that the total orbital angular momentum with quantum numbers L and ML, the total spin with quantum numbers S and MS and overall parity of the system with quan-
tum number Π are all separately conserved and expand the total wave function, initially in the state Γ' , as follows:

$$\Psi_{r}(x,s_{x},y,s_{y}) = \sum_{r} \Psi^{rr'}(x,s_{x},y,s_{y}) \frac{F_{vv'}(x)}{F_{vv'}(x)}$$
 2.4

where $\Gamma = (nk_n \ell_l \ell_l \perp M_L S M_S)$ and the channel index $v = (nk_n \ell_l \ell_l)$. Here n and ℓ_l are the principle and orbital angular momentum quantum numbers respectively of the target and k_l and ℓ_l the wave number and orbital angular momentum respectively of the projectile. The function $F_{vv'}^{LS}$ satisfy the following boundary conditions:

$$F_{vv}^{LS}(x) = 0$$

$$F_{vv}^{LS}(x) \sim k_{v}^{\frac{1}{2}} \left[sim(k_{v}x - l_{z}\pi) \cdot \delta_{vv} + R_{vv}^{LS} cos(k_{v}x - l_{z}\pi) \right] \qquad k_{v}^{2} = 0$$
2.5a

where R^{LS} is the real symmetric Reactance or R-matrix. Consider the following expression:

R. < 0

- Ikulx

$$I_{r_{1}r_{2}} = \int \Psi_{r_{1}}^{*} \left[H - E \right] \Psi_{r_{2}} d\tau \qquad 2.6$$

where H is defined in equations (2.3) and dt is the volume element for integration of the independent variables over all space. For arbitrary variations $\delta \not \!$ about the exact wave function $\not \!$ we obtain the following expression for $\delta I_{r,r}$:

2.5b

$$\Sigma I_{r,r_{\star}} = \int \Psi_{r_{\star}}^{*} [H-E] S \Psi_{r_{\star}} d\tau \qquad 2.7$$

correct to the first order in $S \not \Box$. We note that $I_{f_1 f_2} = 0$ since $\not \Box_{f_2}$ is an exact solution of equation (2.2). We have that:

$$5 = \sum_{P} \psi^{PP} \frac{5F_{x}}{x}$$

and δF_{xx}^{LS} satisfies equation (2.5a) and the following:

$$\delta F_{uu'}(x) \sim k_{u}^{-\frac{1}{2}} \delta R_{uu'} \cos(k_{u}x - \frac{\rho_{u}\pi}{2}) \qquad 2.8$$

Equation (2.7) can be written as follows:

$$\begin{split} \delta \mathbf{I}_{\mathbf{P}_{1}\mathbf{P}_{2}} &= \int \mathbf{\Psi}_{\mathbf{P}_{1}}^{*} \left[\mathbf{H} - \mathbf{E} \right] \, \delta \mathbf{\Psi}_{\mathbf{P}_{2}}^{*} d\tau \, - \int \delta \mathbf{\Psi}_{\mathbf{P}_{2}}^{*} \left[\mathbf{H} - \mathbf{E} \right] \, \mathbf{\Psi}_{\mathbf{P}_{1}}^{*} d\tau \\ &= \int \mathbf{\Psi}_{\mathbf{P}_{1}}^{*} \left[\mathbf{T} \right] \, \delta \mathbf{\Psi}_{\mathbf{P}_{2}}^{*} d\tau \, - \, \int \delta \mathbf{\Psi}_{\mathbf{P}_{2}}^{*} \left[\mathbf{T} \right] \, \mathbf{\Psi}_{\mathbf{P}_{1}}^{*} d\tau \end{split}$$

where $T = -\nabla_x^2 - \nabla_y^2$ is the sum of the appropriate kinetic energy operators. For example we have:

$$T = = \left(\nabla_{i}^{*} + \nabla_{i}^{*} + \nabla_{p}^{*}\right) \qquad \text{for a positron and a Helim atom.}$$

for Positronium and a Helium ion.

where $\underline{\sigma}_{i} = \frac{1}{2} (\underline{r}_{i} + \underline{\tau}_{p})$ and $\hat{f}_{i} = \underline{r}_{i} - \underline{\tau}_{p}$

 $= = \left(\underbrace{1}_{\lambda} \nabla_{e_{1}}^{\lambda} + \partial \nabla_{e_{1}}^{\lambda} + \nabla_{\lambda}^{\lambda} \right)$

Consider the expression $J_{r_1r_2}^{(x)}$ given by

$$\delta \mathcal{I}_{r_{1}r_{2}}^{(x)} = \int \overline{\Psi}_{r_{1}}^{*} \left[\nabla_{x}^{2} \right] S \overline{\Psi}_{r_{2}}^{*} d\tau - \int S \overline{\Psi}_{r_{2}}^{*} \left[\nabla_{x}^{2} \right] \overline{\Psi}_{r_{1}} d\tau$$
2.9

Applying Green's Theorem we obtain:

$$\delta \mathcal{J}_{P_{1}P_{2}}^{(x)} = -\int d\tau_{y} \int_{S_{x}} \Psi_{P_{1}}^{*} \left[\nabla_{x} \right] \delta \Psi_{P_{2}} - \delta \Psi_{P_{2}}^{*} \left[\nabla_{x} \right] \Psi_{P_{1}} \cdot dS_{x} \qquad 2.10$$

where the surface integration is taken over the surface of a sphere with centre at the origin of coordinates and radius large enough to ensure that I_r has assumed its asymptotic form. The surface vector element $dS_x = x \times d\hat{x}$ and $d\tau_y$ is the volume element of the y coordinates.

We expand 4" as follows:

$$\Psi^{rr'}(\hat{x}, s_{x}, y, s_{y}) = \Psi_{s}(y) \Psi^{M_{L}}_{e, e_{sL}}(\hat{x}, \hat{y}) \chi^{M_{s}}_{s}(s_{x}, s_{y})$$
 2.11a

where
$$Y_{e_{i}e_{2}L}^{M_{L}}(\hat{x},\hat{y}) = \sum_{m,m_{2}} C(e_{i}e_{2}L;m,m_{2}M)Y_{e_{i}m_{1}}(\hat{y})Y_{e_{2}m_{2}}(\hat{x})$$
 2.11b

nd
$$\chi_{s}^{M_{s}}(s_{x},s_{y}) = \sum_{m_{s}m_{s}} C(\ell_{s}\ell_{s}'s;m_{s}m_{s}'M_{s})\chi_{\ell_{s}m_{s}}(s_{y})\chi_{\ell_{s}m_{s}'}(s_{x})$$
 2.11c

The C's are Clebsch Gordan coefficients (as defined in Rose "Elementary Theory of Angular Momentum"). We will use the following orthonormalization formula for the spherical harmonics function Y_{ℓ_m} :

$$\int d\hat{x} Y_{e_{m}}(\hat{x}) Y_{e'_{m}}(\hat{x}) = \delta_{ee'} \delta_{mm}.$$
 2.12

Substituting equation (2.11) into (2.10) and using equations (2.8) and (2.12) we obtain:

$$2\mathcal{I}_{L_{x}}^{(x)} = \sum_{r_{x}} 2\mathcal{I}_{r_{x}n_{x}}^{(x)r_{x}} = \sum_{r_{x}} 2\mathcal{L}_{r_{x}n_{x}n_{x}}^{(x)r_{x}}$$

Following the same procedure for the y coordinates we obtain:

$$\delta T_{r_{1}r_{2}}^{(y)} = -\int d\tau_{x} \int \left[\bar{\Psi}_{r_{1}}^{*} \bar{\Psi}_{y} \, \delta \bar{\Psi}_{r_{2}} - \delta \bar{\Psi}_{r_{2}}^{*} \bar{\Psi}_{y} \, \bar{\Psi}_{r_{1}} \right] \cdot dS_{y}$$

$$= 0$$

since Limit $\varphi_{y}(y) = 0$

Therefore the final expression for $\delta I_{r_i r_i}$ is:

$$\delta \mathbf{I}_{\mathbf{r}_{i}\mathbf{r}_{\lambda}} = \sum_{\mathbf{k}S} \delta \mathbf{I}_{\mathbf{v}_{i}\mathbf{v}_{\lambda}}^{\mathbf{k}S} = -\sum_{\mathbf{k}S} \delta \mathbf{R}_{\mathbf{v}_{i}\mathbf{v}_{\lambda}}^{\mathbf{k}S}$$

That is :
$$\sum_{\mathbf{k}S} \delta \left[\mathbf{I}_{\mathbf{v}_{i}\mathbf{v}_{\lambda}}^{\mathbf{k}S} + \mathbf{R}_{\mathbf{v}_{i}\mathbf{v}_{\lambda}}^{\mathbf{k}S} \right] = 0$$

Therefore we may consider the variation of the wave function for each L and S. Thus:

$$5 \left[I_{\eta_1 \eta_2}^{LS} + R_{\eta_1 \eta_2}^{LS} \right] = 0$$
 2.13

This provides the basis for a variational principle since $\begin{bmatrix} L^{S} \\ J_{v_{1}v_{2}} + R_{v_{1}v_{2}}^{LS} \end{bmatrix}$ is stationary with respect to the arbitrary variations considered.

(b) The Approximate Wave Function

Consider an approximate wave function Ψ_{Γ} , which can be

everywhere expanded in the following form:

$$\Psi_{p}^{t}(\underline{x}, s_{x}, \underline{y}, s_{y}) = \sum_{p} \Psi_{pp}^{t}(\underline{x}, s_{x}, \underline{y}, s_{y})$$
$$= \sum_{p} \Psi_{pp}^{pp'}(\underline{x}, s_{x}, \underline{y}, s_{y}) \frac{F_{vv'}(\underline{x})}{\underline{x}}$$

where Γ runs over the number of coupled channels considered in the asymptotic region. $F_{\gamma\gamma}^{LS}$ satisfies equations (2.5) except that the trial R-matrix $R_{\gamma\gamma}^{LS}$ will also be approximate. We consider the expression:

$$\mathbf{I}_{\mathbf{v}_{i}\mathbf{v}_{k}}^{\mathbf{t}\,\mathbf{L}s} = \sum_{\mathbf{p}\mathbf{p}'} \int \mathbf{\Psi}_{\mathbf{p}\mathbf{p}'}^{\mathbf{t}\,\mathbf{s}} \left[\mathbf{H} - \mathbf{E} \right] \quad \mathbf{\Psi}_{\mathbf{p}'\mathbf{p}_{k}}^{\mathbf{t}} \, d\mathbf{\tau} \, \cdot \, \mathbf{S}_{\mathbf{L}\mathbf{L}'} \, \mathbf{S}_{\mathbf{s}\mathbf{s}'}$$

Following through the steps of part (a) but remembering that we are considering a particular total orbital angular momentum L we obtain:

$$\begin{aligned} \mathcal{S}\left[\mathbf{I}_{u_{i}u_{2}}^{\mathsf{k}_{\mathsf{LS}}} + \mathcal{R}_{u_{i}u_{2}}^{\mathsf{k}_{\mathsf{LS}}}\right] &= \sum_{p p'} \mathcal{S}_{\mathsf{LL}'} \mathcal{S}_{\mathsf{SS}'} \int \mathcal{S} \overline{\Psi}_{p' p_{1}}^{\mathsf{k}} \left[\mathsf{H}-\mathsf{E}\right] \overline{\Psi}_{p' p_{1}}^{\mathsf{k}} d\tau \\ &+ \sum_{p p'} \mathcal{S}_{\mathsf{LL}'} \mathcal{S}_{\mathsf{SS}'} \int \mathcal{S} \overline{\Psi}_{p' p_{1}}^{\mathsf{k}} \left[\mathsf{H}-\mathsf{E}\right] \overline{\Psi}_{p' p_{2}}^{\mathsf{k}} d\tau \end{aligned}$$

by using Green's Theorem. We require the approximate wave function to satisfy equation (2.13) therefore:

$$\delta \left[I_{v_{1}v_{2}}^{t^{LS}} + R_{v_{1}v_{2}}^{t^{LS}} \right] = 0$$
2.15

and the righthand side of equation (2.14) must therefore be

zero.

Writing the following:

$$R_{\nu_i\nu_a}^{E^{LS}} = R_{\nu_i\nu_a}^{LS} + \Delta R_{\nu_i\nu_a}^{LS}$$

and using the fact that $I_{v_i v_i}^{LS} = Q$ and equation (2.15) we obtain:

$$\mathbb{I}_{\nu_{1}\nu_{2}}^{k^{LS}} = \mathbb{I}_{\nu_{1}\nu_{2}}^{LS} + \Delta \mathbb{I}_{\nu_{1}\nu_{2}}^{LS}$$

 $= -\Delta R_{\gamma_1\gamma_2}^{LS}$

Therefore we have the following expression for the exact R-matrix:

$$R^{LS} = R^{LS} + I^{LS}$$

2.16

Consider the expressions $A_{\Gamma_{a}\Gamma_{i}}$ and $B_{\Gamma_{i}\Gamma_{a}}$ where:

$$A_{P_{*}P_{i}} = \sum_{PP'} \int S \overline{\Psi}_{PP_{i}}^{t} [H-E] \overline{\Psi}_{PP_{i}}^{t} d\tau \quad S_{LL'} S_{ss'}$$
$$B_{P_{*}P_{i}} = \sum_{PP'} \int S \overline{\Psi}_{PP_{i}}^{t} [H-E] \overline{\Psi}_{PP_{i}}^{t} d\tau \quad S_{LL'} S_{ss'}$$

It can be seen that $\beta_{\Gamma_1\Gamma_2} = \Pi_{\Gamma_1\Gamma_2}^*$ and the right hand side of equation (2.14) equals $(A_{\Gamma_2\Gamma_1} + B_{\Gamma_1\Gamma_2})$, therefore we consider $A_{\Gamma_2\Gamma_1}$ only:

$$A_{P_{*}P_{*}} = \sum_{PP'} \int \frac{SF_{v_{*}v_{*}}^{t_{*}s}}{x} \Psi_{v_{*}}^{PP_{*}} \left[H-E \right] \Psi_{PP_{*}}^{t_{*}} d\tau_{*} S_{LL}, S_{SS'}$$

Since $A_{\Gamma_{n}\Gamma_{1}} + B_{\Gamma_{1}\Gamma_{2}} = 0$ for arbitrary variations SF^{t} then the terms independent of SF^{t} must each be zero. Therefore we have:

$$\sum_{\Gamma} S_{\mu} S_{ss} \left[\psi^{\Gamma \Gamma_{2}}(\hat{x}, s_{x}, y, s_{y}) \left[H - E \right] \psi^{\Gamma \Gamma_{1}}(\hat{x}, s_{x}, y, s_{y}) \frac{F_{vv}(x)}{x} d\hat{x} d\tau_{y} = 0 \qquad 2.17$$

This defines the radial equations for the general system.

2.3 Derivation of the Radial Equations

(a) The Trial Wave Function

Since we are only considering the ground state of the Helium atom and the Helium ion the trial wave function $\Psi_{L}^{t}(\mathfrak{r}_{1},\mathfrak{s}_{1},\mathfrak{r}_{2},\mathfrak{s}_{2},\mathfrak{r}_{p},\mathfrak{s}_{p})$ for a particular total orbital angular momentum L reduces to:

$$\Psi_{L}^{t}(1,a,p) = \Psi_{0}(\overline{ia})\chi(p,\widehat{ia})F(p) + (1-P_{ia})\Psi_{0}(a)\omega(p_{i})\left[\mathcal{G}^{(L)}(\underline{s},\widehat{ip}) + \mathcal{G}^{(L)}(\underline{s},\widehat{ip})\right]^{2.18}$$

where 1, 2 and p refer to the two electrons and the positron coordinates respectively, $\mathcal{V}_{\bullet}(\bar{\iota})$ is the ground state Helium atom function, $F_{(\rho)}^{(L)}$ describes the motion of the positron relative to the proton, $\mathcal{P}_{o}(r)$ is the ionized Helium ground state function and $\omega(\rho)$ is the Positronium ground state

function. $\int_{12}^{(12)} describes the motion of the Positronium$ relative to the proton and the superscripts p and 0 denotepara-positronium (parallel spins) and ortho-positronium $(anti-parallel spins) respectively. <math>\chi$ is the normalized overall spin function of the positron and the electrons where $A(\overline{xy})$ denotes symmetry with respect to interchange of x and y and $A(\widehat{xy})$ denotes anti-symmetry with respect to the same interchange. P_{12} is the operator interchanging all coordinates 1 and 2.

To reduce equation (2.18) to a simpler form we express the Positronium spin functions as linear combinations of the electron spin functions as follows:

 $\chi(a, \hat{i}p) = -\frac{\sqrt{3}}{2} \chi(p, \overline{i}a) + \frac{1}{2} \chi(p, \hat{i}a)$ 2.19a

$$\lambda(a, l_p) = -\frac{1}{a} \chi(p, \overline{a}) - \frac{\sqrt{3}}{a} \chi(p, \overline{a})$$
 2.19b

$$\chi(1, \bar{a}_{p}) = -\frac{13}{2} \chi(p, \bar{a}) - \frac{1}{2} \chi(p, \bar{a})$$

$$\chi(1, \bar{a}_{p}) = -\frac{1}{2} \chi(p, \bar{a}) + \frac{13}{2} \chi(p, \bar{a})$$
2.19d
2.19d

For example: $\chi(\rho,i_2) = d(\rho)\chi_o(i_2)$

where
$$\chi_{o}(i\lambda) = \frac{1}{\sqrt{\lambda}} \left\{ \mathcal{L}(i)\beta(\lambda) - \mathcal{L}(\lambda)\beta(i) \right\}$$
 is the singlet spin

state of electrons 1 and 2 and $\measuredangle(\alpha)$ and $\beta(\alpha)$ are the spinors representing "spin up" and "Spin down" of particle a respectively. Hence:

$$(1 - P_{12}) \varphi_{o}^{0}(a) w(P_{i}) \left[\begin{cases} \varphi^{P(L)}(\underline{\sigma}_{i}) \chi(a, i_{P}) + g^{o}^{(L)}(\underline{\sigma}_{i}) \chi(a, i_{P}) \end{bmatrix} \right]$$

$$= (1 - P_{12}) \varphi_{o}(a) w(P_{i}) \left[-\chi(P_{i}, i_{2}) \frac{1}{2} \left\{ J_{3} g^{P(L)}(\underline{\sigma}_{i}) + g^{o}^{(L)}(\underline{\sigma}_{i}) \right\} \right]$$

$$+ \chi(P_{i}, i_{2}) \frac{1}{2} \left\{ g^{P(L)}(\underline{\sigma}_{i}) - J_{3} g^{o}^{(L)}(\underline{\sigma}_{i}) \right\}$$

To satisfy the Pauli Exclusion principle $\[mu]{}_{L}^{t}(1,2,p)\]$ must be anti-symmetric in the electron coordinates since there are no spin-dependent interactions. Therefore the coefficient of $\[mu]{}_{R,\overline{a}}$ in the above equation must be zero. This leads to the following expressions:

$$\sqrt{3} \int_{0}^{p(L)} (\underline{r}) + \int_{0}^{o(L)} (\underline{r}) = 0$$

$$2.20a$$

$$\int_{0}^{p(L)} (\underline{r}) - \sqrt{3} \int_{0}^{o(L)} (\underline{r}) = 4 \int_{0}^{p(L)} (\underline{r})$$

$$2.20b$$

Thus if we write $G^{(L)}(\underline{\sigma}) = \lambda g^{P^{(L)}}(\underline{\sigma})$ and use the fact that $\chi(\underline{\rho}, \widehat{a}) = -\chi(\underline{\rho}, \widehat{a})$, equation (2.18) becomes:

$$\Psi^{t} = \chi(\rho, \hat{\mu}) \left[\Psi_{o}(\mu) F(\rho) + (1 + \rho_{\mu}) \varphi_{o}(\mu) \omega(\rho, \beta(\sigma, \rho)) \right] \qquad 2.21$$

Since the spin function $\chi(\rho, \hat{a})$ is normalized to unity any summation over the spins will give a factor of one. Hence we may consider the spatial part only of equation (2.21) for substitution into the variational principle outlined in Section 2.2. Our total spatial wave function is therefore:

$$\Psi_{L}^{t}(1,2,p) = \Psi_{0}(\bar{n}_{2})F_{(p)}^{t} + (1+P_{12})\varphi_{0}(2)w(p_{1})G^{(L)}(\sigma_{1}) \qquad 2.22$$

(b) Wave Functions and Energy Values.

The normalized Helium ion ground-state wave function $\varphi_{\bullet}(\tau)$ with binding energy $E_{H_{\bullet}} = 4$ satisfies:

$$\begin{bmatrix} -\nabla^2 - \frac{1}{4} + 4 \\ r \end{bmatrix} \varphi_0(r) = 0$$
 2.23a

$$\varphi_{o}(r) = \sqrt{\frac{8}{\pi}} e^{-\lambda r}$$
 2.23b

and the normalized Positronium ground-state wave function

w(p) with binding energy $E_{ps} = \frac{1}{\lambda}$ satisfies:

$$\begin{bmatrix} -2\nabla_{p}^{2} - \frac{\lambda}{p} + \frac{1}{\lambda} \end{bmatrix} w(p) \quad 0 \qquad 2.24a$$

$$\omega(\rho) = \frac{1}{\sqrt{8\pi}} e^{-\frac{\rho}{4}}$$
2.24b

The exact eigenfunction of the unperturbed Helium ground state Hamiltonium is not known so in this work we will use the 3-parameter Hartree-Fock wave function $\Psi_o(r_1, r_2)$ given by:

$$\Psi_{o}(r_{1},r_{2}) = u(r_{1})u(r_{2})$$

where $u(r) = N(e^{-ar}+Ce^{-br})$

2.25b

and
$$a = 1.455799$$
, $b = 2a$, $c = 0.6$ 2.25c

The three $\sqrt{4\pi}$

$$N^{-a} = \frac{1}{4a^{3}} + \frac{c^{2}}{4b^{3}} + \frac{4c}{(a+b)^{3}}$$
2.25d

 $\Psi_{o}(r_{1},r_{2})$ satisfies:

$$\begin{bmatrix} -(\nabla_{1}^{a} + \nabla_{a}^{a}) + \frac{2}{r_{12}} - \frac{4}{r_{12}} + E_{He} \end{bmatrix} 4_{o}(r_{1}, r_{2}) = 0 \qquad 2.26$$

where the variational Helium binding energy $E_{He} = 5.72334$ rydbergs is 1.4% away from the experimental binding energy value of 5.808 rydbergs.

If we denote the kinetic energy of the positron by k_1 and that of the positronium by $\frac{1}{2}k_2^2$ then the total energy E of the system can be written as follows:

$$E = k_{1}^{a} - E_{He} = \frac{1}{2}k_{a}^{a} - E_{He^{+}} - E_{P_{s}}$$

Therefore:

$$k_{a}^{a} = 2(k_{1}^{a} + \frac{9}{2} - E_{He})$$
 2.27

(c) The Radial Equations for Positron Helium Scattering

In the notation of Section 2.2 we have three sets of coordinates:

(1) $\underline{x} = \underline{r}_{p}$ and $\underline{y} = (\underline{r}_{1}, \underline{r}_{2})$ Positron plus Helium atom (2) $\underline{x} = \underline{r}_{1}$ and $\underline{y} = (\underline{f}_{1}, \underline{r}_{2})$ Positronium plus Helium ion (3) $\underline{x} = \underline{r}_{2}$ and $\underline{y} = (\underline{f}_{2}, \underline{r}_{1})$ " " "

Hence substituting equation (2.22) into (2.17) we obtain the following two expressions denoted by $A_{L}^{(1)}(r_{P})$ and $A_{L}^{(2)}(\sigma_{I})$ respectively:

$$A_{L}^{(2)}(\sigma_{1}) = \int \phi_{0}(2) \omega(\rho_{1}) Y_{LM}(\sigma_{1}) [H-E] \psi_{0}(\overline{a}) F_{(p)}^{(L)} + (I+P_{12}) \phi_{0}(2) \omega(\rho_{1}) b_{(2)}^{(L)} d\hat{\sigma}_{1} d\hat{\rho}_{1} d\hat{\rho}_{2}$$

= 0 2.281

The simplification of $A_{L}^{(n)}$ and $A_{L}^{(a)}$ is outlined in detail in Appendix A. The final result is:

$$A_{L}^{(1)}(r_{p}) = -\int Y_{LM}(\hat{r}_{p}) \left[\nabla_{p}^{2} + U(\underline{r}_{p}) + k_{1}^{2} \right] F_{(p)}^{(L)} d\hat{r}_{p}$$
$$-\int Y_{LM}(\hat{r}_{p}) G_{(\underline{r}_{1})}^{(L)} K_{1}(\underline{r}_{p},\underline{r}_{1}) d\hat{r}_{p} d\underline{r}_{1} \qquad 2.29a$$

$$\begin{split} &\mathcal{A}_{L}^{(2)}(\sigma_{i}) = -\frac{1}{2} \int Y_{LM}(\hat{\sigma}_{i}) \left[\overline{Y}_{\sigma_{i}}^{2} + k_{\lambda}^{2} \right] \mathcal{G}^{(L)}(\underline{\sigma}_{i}) d\hat{\sigma}_{i} \\ &-\frac{1}{2} \int Y_{LM}(\hat{\sigma}_{i}) F^{(L)}(\underline{\rho}) \mathcal{K}_{1}(\underline{\rho}, \underline{\sigma}_{i}) d\hat{\sigma}_{i} d\underline{\rho}_{p} - \int Y_{LM}(\hat{\sigma}_{i}) \mathcal{G}^{(L)}(\underline{\sigma}_{2}) \mathcal{K}_{\lambda}(\underline{\sigma}_{1}, \underline{\sigma}_{2}) d\hat{\sigma}_{i} d\underline{\sigma}_{\lambda} \\ &\text{where } \mathcal{K}_{1}(\underline{\rho}, \underline{\rho}, \underline{\rho}) = \vartheta \left[S(\overline{\nabla}_{\tau_{i}}^{2} - \underline{\vartheta} + \underline{\vartheta} + k_{\lambda}^{2}) + \mathcal{A}P(\tau_{p}) - \mathcal{A}P(\tau_{i}) \right] u(i) w(p_{i}) \\ \mathcal{K}_{\lambda}(\underline{\sigma}_{1}, \underline{\sigma}_{\lambda}) = \mathcal{A}^{\lambda}(I + P_{IA}) \int d\underline{\sigma}_{p} \left[\overline{\nabla}_{\lambda}^{2} - \underline{\vartheta} + \underline{\vartheta} + \underline{\vartheta} + L - \underline{\mu} + k_{\lambda}^{2} \right] \mathcal{G}_{0}(i) \mathcal{G}_{0}(\lambda) w(p_{i}) w(p_{\lambda}) \\ &\text{and } S = \int d\underline{\varepsilon} \mathcal{Q}_{0}(\tau) u(\tau) \\ \end{split}$$

$$P(\mathbf{r}) = \int d\underline{r}' \frac{\varphi_o(\mathbf{r}') u(\mathbf{r}')}{|\underline{r} - \underline{r}'|}$$
2.31b

$$U(\underline{r}_{\rho}) = \iint d\underline{r}_{,} d\underline{r}_{,2} \left\{ \Psi_{\rho}(\overline{n}) \right\}^{2} \left[\frac{2}{\rho_{,}} + \frac{2}{\rho_{,}} - \frac{4}{r_{\rho}} \right]$$
 2.31c

We now expand $F_{(r)}^{(L)}$ and $G_{(r)}^{(L)}$ in terms of the spherical harmonic functions Y_{ℓ_m} . Since we only consider the Helium atom and Helium ion in their ground state, the total orbital angular momentum L is equal to the orbital angular momentum ℓ of the projectile. Thus:

$$F^{(L)}_{(r)} = \underbrace{f^{(\ell)}_{(r)}}_{r} Y_{e_m}(\hat{r}) J_{e_L} S_{mM} \qquad 2.32a$$

$$G^{(L)}_{(\sigma)} = \underbrace{g^{(\sigma)}_{\sigma}}_{\sigma} Y_{e_m}(\hat{\sigma}) S_{e_L} J_{mM} \qquad 2.32b$$

Using the formula:

$$\nabla_{r}^{a} \underbrace{f(r)}_{r} Y_{e_{m}}(\hat{r}) = \frac{1}{r} Y_{e_{m}}(\hat{r}) \underbrace{d}_{a}^{a} f(r) - \underbrace{e(e_{+1})}_{r} Y_{e_{m}}(\hat{r}) \underbrace{f(r)}_{r} 2.33$$

the orthonormalization formula (2.12) and equations (2.32), equations (2.29) reduce to:

$$\begin{bmatrix} \frac{d}{dr_{p}}^{2} - \frac{e(e+i)}{2} + V_{i}(r_{p}) + k_{i}^{2} \\ \frac{d}{dr_{p}}^{2} + r_{p} \end{bmatrix} \begin{cases} e(r_{p}) = -\int_{0}^{\infty} \frac{de_{i}}{dr_{i}} g(e_{i}) K_{i2}(r_{p}, e_{i}) \\ \frac{de_{i}}{dr_{i}} g(e_{i}) K_{i2}(r_{p}, e_{i}) \end{cases}$$
 2.34a

$$\begin{bmatrix} \frac{d^{2}}{d\sigma_{1}} - \frac{e(e+1)}{a} + k_{a}^{2} \end{bmatrix} \begin{pmatrix} e \\ g \end{pmatrix} (r_{p}) = -\int_{0}^{\infty} \frac{dr_{p}f(r_{p})K_{12}(r_{p},\sigma_{1})}{d\sigma_{a}g(\sigma_{2})K_{22}(\sigma_{1},\sigma_{2})} = 2.34b$$

The Kernels $K_{12}^{(\ell)}$ and $K_{22}^{(\ell)}$ are given by:

$$K_{12}^{(e)}(r_{p},\sigma_{1}) = \int Y_{e_{m}}(\hat{r}_{p})Y_{e_{m}}(\hat{\sigma}_{1})r_{p}\sigma_{1}K_{1}(\underline{r}_{p},\underline{\tau}_{1})d\hat{r}_{p}d\hat{\sigma}_{1} \qquad 2.35a$$

$$K_{aa}^{(e)}(\sigma_{1},\sigma_{a}) = \lambda \int Y_{e_{m}}(\hat{\sigma}_{1})Y_{e_{m}}(\hat{\sigma}_{a})\sigma_{1}\sigma_{a}K_{a}(\underline{\sigma}_{1},\underline{\tau}_{a})d\hat{\sigma}_{1}d\hat{\sigma}_{a} \qquad 2.35b$$

and the local potential $V_i(r_p)$ by: $V_i(r_p) = \int Y_{e_m}(\hat{r}_p) Y_{e_m}(\hat{r}_p) \mathcal{U}(\underline{r}_p) d\hat{r}_p$ $= -4N^{a} \left[\frac{e^{-2ar_p}(1+\underline{1}) + \underline{C}^{a}e^{-2br_p}(1+\underline{1}) + \frac{2Ce}{4a}(1+\underline{2}) \\ -\frac{4}{4a} + \underline{C}^{a}e^{-2br_p}(\underline{1}+\underline{1}) + \frac{2Ce}{4a}(\underline{1}+\underline{2}) \right]$

2.4 Simplification of the Kernels

(a) The Functions S and P

2.36

From equation (2.23), (2.24) and (2.31a) we obtain:

$$S = 8 N \sqrt{a} \left[\frac{1}{(a+a)^3} + \frac{C}{(b+a)^3} \right]$$

$$P(r) = \frac{S}{r} + P^N(r)$$
2.38a

$$P^{N}(r) = -4N\sqrt{2} \left[\frac{e^{-(a+a)r}}{(a+a)^{3}} \left\{ a+a+a \right\} + \frac{Ce^{-(b+a)r}}{(b+a)^{3}} \left\{ b+a+a \right\} \right]$$
 2.38b

(b) Kernel
$$K_{1a}^{(\ell)}$$

Using equations (2.24) and substituting $\underline{r}_{1} = \lambda \underline{r}_{1} - \underline{r}_{p}$,
 $f_{1} = \lambda (\underline{r}_{1} - \underline{r}_{p})$ we obtain the following expression:
 $\nabla_{\underline{r}_{1}} \left[u(r_{1})u(p_{1}) \right] = u(p_{1}) \left[u(r_{1}) \left\{ 1 - \underline{\mu}_{1} \right\} + \underline{\mu} u'(r_{1}) \left\{ \frac{\lambda}{r_{1}} - \underline{r}_{1} \underline{p}_{1} \right\} + \underline{\mu} u'(r_{1}) \right]$ 2.39
where primes denote differentiation. Thus equation (2.30a)

where primes denote differentiation. Thus equation (2.30a) reduces to:

$$K_{i}(\underline{r}_{P},\underline{\sigma}_{i}) = 8 \left[Su(r_{i}) \begin{cases} 1 - \underline{\mu}_{i} + \underline{\mu}_{i} - \underline{\mu}_{i} + k_{a}^{2} \\ p_{i} + r_{i} + r_{p} \end{cases} + 4Su'(r_{i}) \begin{cases} 2 - \underline{r}_{i} \cdot \underline{p}_{i} \\ r_{i} + r_{p} \end{cases} + 4Su''(r_{i}) + 4u(r_{i}) \begin{cases} P^{N}(r_{p}) - P^{N}(r_{i}) \end{cases} \right] w(p_{i})$$

$$2.40$$

The following substitutions, originally suggested by Fraser , are now used:

$$u^{(A)}(|\underline{a}\underline{\sigma}\underline{r}|)w(\underline{a}|\underline{\sigma}\underline{r}|) = \frac{1}{\sigma r} \sum_{\lambda} \mathcal{H}^{\circ}_{\lambda}(A,r,\sigma) P_{\lambda}(\eta) \qquad 2.41a$$

$$\frac{u(|2\underline{\sigma}-\underline{r}|)w(2|\underline{\sigma}-\underline{r}|)}{|\underline{\sigma}-\underline{r}|} = \frac{1}{\sigma\tau} \sum_{\lambda} H_{\lambda}'(r,\sigma) P_{\lambda}(\eta) \qquad 2.41b$$

$$\frac{\frac{(A)}{(|2\underline{r}-\underline{r}|)}\omega(2|\underline{r}-\underline{r}|)}{|2\underline{r}-\underline{r}|} = \frac{1}{er} \sum_{\lambda} \mathcal{H}_{\lambda}^{2}(A,r,\sigma) P_{\lambda}(\eta) \qquad 2.41c$$

$$\frac{u'(2z-z1)w(2|z-z1)(2z-z)\cdot(z-z)}{|2z-z1|(z-z1)(2-z)} = \frac{1}{\sigma\tau} \sum_{\lambda} \oint_{\lambda}^{z} (r,\sigma) f_{\lambda}(\eta) \qquad 2.41d$$

$$u(|2\underline{\sigma}-\underline{r}|)\omega(\underline{a}|\underline{\sigma}-\underline{r}|)P^{N}(|2\underline{\sigma}-\underline{r}|) = \frac{1}{\sigma \tau} \sum_{\lambda} g^{2}_{\lambda}(r,\sigma)P_{\lambda}(\eta) \qquad 2.410$$

where $\eta = \hat{r} \cdot \hat{\sigma}$ and $\hat{P}_{\chi}(\eta)$ is the $\lambda + \lambda$. Legendre Polynomial. The superscript A and u is defined as follows:

(A) If A=1 then w is replaced by w.

(R) If A=-a then u is replaced by the 1st derivative u. If A=a² then u is replaced by the 2nd derivative u.
Alternatively we may express equation (2.41) in the following form:

$$H_{\lambda}^{*}(A,r,\sigma) = M_{\lambda}(1+CP_{ab}) \int_{-1}^{+1} P_{\lambda}(\eta) Ae^{-|g-g|-a|2g-g|} d\eta \qquad 2.42a$$

$$H_{\lambda}^{+}(r,\sigma) = M_{\lambda}(1+CP_{ab}) \int_{-1}^{+1} P_{\lambda}(\eta) \frac{e^{-|g-g|-a|2g-g|}}{|g-g|} d\eta \qquad 2.42b$$

$$\mathcal{H}_{\lambda}^{2}(A,r,\sigma) = M_{\lambda}(1+CP_{ab}) \int_{-1}^{+1} P_{\lambda}(\eta) \underline{Ae}^{-|\underline{s}-\underline{s}|-a|\underline{a}\underline{s}-\underline{s}|} d\eta \qquad 2.42c$$

$$g_{\lambda}(r,\sigma) = M_{\lambda}(1+CP_{ab}) \int_{-1}^{+1} P_{\lambda}(\eta) \frac{-[s-r]-\lambda(2s-r)}{ds-r} (ds-r) \cdot (s-r) \cdot d\eta \qquad 2.42d$$

$$g_{\lambda}^{2}(r,\sigma) = M_{\lambda} \int P_{\lambda}(\eta) P^{N}(|2g-2|) \{1+CP_{ab}\}e^{-|g-2|-a|2g-2|} d\eta$$
 2.42e

where $P_{a,j}$ is the interchange operator interchanging a and b and $M_{\lambda} = \frac{N \sigma r (2\lambda + 1)}{8 \sqrt{2} \pi}$.

Using equation (2.40) and (2.41), equation (2.35a) may be written as follows:

$$\begin{split} & \mathcal{K}_{1a}^{(\ell)}\left(\tau,\sigma\right) = \int \mathcal{Y}_{\ell_{m}}(\hat{\tau}_{\rho})\mathcal{Y}_{\ell_{m}}(\hat{\sigma}_{i})\mathcal{S}\sum_{\lambda} \left[\mathcal{Z}S\left\{5-\mathcal{E}_{He}-\frac{2}{\tau}+\frac{2\mathcal{P}_{i}^{N}(\tau)}{S}+k_{i}^{2}\right\}\mathcal{H}_{\lambda}^{\circ}\left(\tau,\sigma\right)\right] \\ & +\mathcal{Z}S\left\{-\mathcal{H}_{\lambda}^{\prime}(\tau,\sigma)+\mathcal{Z}\mathcal{H}_{\lambda}^{a}(\tau,\sigma)+\mathcal{L}\mathcal{H}_{\lambda}^{a}(-a,\tau,\sigma)-\mathcal{Z}\mathcal{H}_{\lambda}^{\prime}(\tau,\sigma)+\mathcal{Z}\mathcal{H}_{\lambda}^{\circ}\left(a,\tau,\sigma\right)\right\}-\mathcal{L}\mathcal{H}_{\lambda}^{a}(\tau,\sigma)\right]\mathcal{P}_{\lambda}(\eta)d\hat{\tau}_{\rho}d\hat{\sigma}_{i} \\ & \text{where we have used the notation} \qquad \mathcal{H}\left(1,\tau,\sigma\right)=\mathcal{H}\left(\tau,\sigma\right) \\ & \text{This expression for} \quad \mathcal{K}_{1a}^{(\ell)} \quad \text{can be further simplified by} \\ & \text{use of the addition formula:} \end{split}$$

ŝ

$$P_{\lambda}(\eta) = \frac{k\pi}{2\lambda+1} \sum_{m=-\lambda}^{+\lambda} Y_{\lambda m}^{*}(\hat{r}_{p}) Y_{\lambda m}(\hat{\sigma}_{1}) \qquad 2.43$$

and the orthnormalization formula given by equation (2.12). Therefore the kernel $K_{12}^{(\ell)}$ can be written as follows:

$$K_{12}^{(e)}(+,\sigma) = \frac{64\pi}{2e+1} \left[S \left\{ k_{1}^{2} + 5 + E_{He} - \frac{2}{r} + \frac{2P(r)}{S} \right\} H_{e}^{o}(r) \right]$$

+
$$S \left\{ -H_{e}^{2}(1) + 2H_{e}^{2}(1) + 4H_{e}^{2}(-a) - 2g_{e}^{2}(1) + 2H_{e}^{2}(a^{2}) \right\} = 2g_{e}^{2}(1)$$
 2.44

with the notation that $\mathcal{H}(z) \equiv \mathcal{H}(z,r,\sigma)$

Since in this work we are considering $\ell=0$ scattering the final form of equation (2.34a) will be (dropping the superscript $\ell=0$):

$$\left[\frac{d^{2}}{dr_{p}}+V_{i}(r_{p})+k_{i}^{2}\right]f(r_{p})=-\int_{\sigma}^{\sigma}d\sigma_{i}g(\sigma_{i})K_{i2}(r_{p},\sigma_{i})$$
 2.45a

where $K_{12}(t, \sigma) = 64\pi \left[S \left\{ k_{1}^{2} + 5 - E_{He} - \frac{2}{2} + \frac{2P(r)}{r} \right\} H_{0}^{0}(1) \right]$

+
$$S \left\{ -H_{o}^{i}(1) + 2H_{o}^{a}(1) + 4H_{o}^{a}(-a) - 2f_{o}^{i}(1) + 2H_{o}^{a}(a^{2}) \right\} - 2f_{o}^{a}(1) \right\} = 2.45b$$

(c) Kernel K

Using equations (2.23) and (2.24) and substituting $\underline{r}_{1} = 2 \underline{r}_{1} - \underline{r}_{1}$, and $f_{1} = 2(\underline{r}_{2} - \underline{r}_{1})$ we obtain the following expression:

$$\nabla_{\mathbf{r}_{2}}^{2} \left\{ \varphi_{\mathbf{r}_{2}}(\mathbf{r}_{2})\omega(\boldsymbol{\rho}_{2}) \right\} = \varphi_{\mathbf{r}}(\mathbf{r}_{2})\omega(\boldsymbol{\rho}_{2}) \left[17 - \frac{16}{r_{2}} - \frac{4}{\boldsymbol{\rho}_{2}} + \frac{8\underline{r}_{2}\cdot\boldsymbol{\rho}_{2}}{r_{2}\boldsymbol{\rho}_{2}} \right] \qquad 2.46$$

Therefore substituting equation (2.46) into equation (2.30b) we obtain the following:

$$K_{a}(\underline{\sigma}_{1},\underline{\sigma}_{a}) = Ib(I+P_{12}) \int d\underline{\tau}_{p} \left[\begin{array}{c} k_{a}^{2} + 17 - \underline{16} - \underline{8} + \underline{8} - \underline{4} + \underline{8}\underline{r}_{a} \cdot \underline{p}_{a} \\ \underline{r}_{a} & \underline{r}_{p} & \underline{r}_{i} & \underline{r}_{a} & \underline{r}_{a} \\ \underline{r}_{a} & \underline{r}_{p} & \underline{r}_{i} & \underline{r}_{a} & \underline{r}_{a} \\ \end{array} \right] \varphi_{o}(i) \varphi_{o}(a) u(p_{i}) u(p_{a}) 2 \cdot 47$$

We now make the following substitutions:

$$\frac{\varphi_{o}\left(|2\underline{\sigma}-\underline{r}|\right)\omega\left(2|\underline{\sigma}-\underline{r}|\right)}{\varphi_{o}\left(|2\underline{\sigma}-\underline{r}|\right)\omega\left(2|\underline{\sigma}-\underline{r}|\right)} = \frac{1}{\sigma\tau}\sum_{\lambda} \frac{\varphi_{\lambda}^{-1}(r_{j}\sigma)P_{\lambda}(\eta)}{\varphi_{\lambda}(r_{j}\sigma)P_{\lambda}(\eta)} \qquad 2.48a$$

$$\frac{\varphi_{o}\left(|2\underline{\sigma}-\underline{r}|\right)\omega\left(2|\underline{\sigma}-\underline{r}|\right)\left(2\underline{\sigma}-\underline{r}\right)\cdot(\underline{\sigma}-\underline{r})}{|2\underline{\sigma}-\underline{r}|} = \frac{1}{\sigma\tau}\sum_{\lambda} \frac{\varphi_{\lambda}^{-1}(r_{j}\sigma)P_{\lambda}(\eta)}{\sigma\tau} \qquad 2.48b$$

$$\frac{\varphi_{n}\left(|2\underline{r}\underline{r}|\right)\omega(2|\underline{r}\underline{r}\underline{r})}{|2\underline{r}\underline{r}|} = \frac{1}{\sigma r} \sum_{\lambda} \frac{\varphi_{\lambda}}{\gamma} (r, \sigma) P_{\lambda}(\eta) \qquad 2.48c$$

where \mathcal{N} and \mathcal{P}_{λ} are defined in part (b). Alternatively we may express equations (2.48) in the following form:

$$G_{\lambda}'(r,r) = M_{\lambda}' \int_{-1}^{+1} P_{\lambda}(\eta) e^{-(r-r)-\lambda[\lambda r-r]} d\eta$$
 2.49a

$$\beta_{\lambda}^{a}(r_{1}\sigma) = M_{\lambda}^{i} \int_{-1}^{1} \frac{P_{\lambda}(\eta)e^{-|\underline{r}-\underline{r}|-\lambda|2\underline{r}-\underline{r}|}}{|\underline{d}\underline{r}-\underline{r}||\underline{\sigma}-\underline{r}|} d\eta \qquad 2.49b$$

$$G_{\lambda}^{3}(r_{1}\sigma) = M_{\lambda}^{\prime} \int_{-1}^{+1} \frac{P_{\lambda}(\eta)e^{-|\underline{r}-\underline{r}|-2|2\underline{r}-\underline{r}|}}{|2\underline{r}-\underline{r}|} d\eta$$
 2.49c

where
$$M_{\lambda} = \frac{r\sigma}{2\lambda+1}$$

2.49d

Using equations (2.27), (2.46) and (2.48) the kernel $K_{22}^{(0)}$ given by equation (2.35b) may be written as follows:

$$K_{22}^{(e)}(\sigma_{i},\sigma_{a}) = 64 \int Y_{em}(\hat{\sigma}_{i}) Y_{em}(\hat{\sigma}_{a}) (1+P_{i2}) \sum_{\lambda\lambda'} \frac{1}{t_{p}} \left[\begin{cases} 13-4+k_{i}^{2}-E_{He} \} G_{\lambda}^{\prime}(i) G_{\lambda'}^{\prime}(a) \\ t_{p} \end{cases} - 8 G_{\lambda}^{3}(i) G_{\lambda'}^{\prime}(a) + 4 \left\{ G_{\lambda}^{\prime}(i) G_{\lambda'}^{3}(a) + G_{\lambda}^{2}(i) G_{\lambda'}^{\prime}(a) \right\} \\ - G_{\lambda}^{\prime}(i) G_{\lambda'}^{\prime}(a) \sum_{\gamma} \frac{\sigma_{\gamma}}{\sigma_{\gamma}} P_{\gamma} \left(\hat{\sigma}_{i} \cdot \hat{\sigma}_{a} \right) \right] P_{\lambda}(\hat{\sigma}_{i} \cdot \hat{\tau}_{p}) P_{\lambda'}(\hat{\sigma}_{a} \cdot \hat{\tau}_{p}) d\hat{\sigma}_{i} d\hat{\sigma}_{a} d\underline{\tau}_{p} \qquad 2.50$$

where $\sigma_{\zeta} = \sigma_{1}, \sigma_{\gamma} = \sigma_{2}$ if $\sigma_{1} < \sigma_{2}$ and $\sigma_{\zeta} = \sigma_{2}, \sigma_{\gamma} = \sigma_{1}$ if $\sigma_{2} < \sigma_{1}$ and we are using the notation $f(t) = f(\tau, \sigma_{1})$ and $f(t) = f(\tau, \sigma_{2})$ Using equation (2.43) and the relation:

$$\int d\hat{r} Y_{\lambda m}(\hat{r}) Y_{\lambda m'}(\hat{r}) Y_{\lambda m''}^{*}(\hat{r}) = \left[\frac{(2\lambda+1)(2\lambda'+1)}{4\pi (2\lambda''+1)} \right]^{\frac{1}{2}} C(\lambda \lambda' \lambda'';000) C(\lambda \lambda' \lambda'';mm'm'') 2.51$$

where the C's are Clebsch Gordan coefficients defined in Section (2.1). The angular part of the last term of can be written as follows:

$$\int Y_{e_{m}}(\hat{\sigma}_{1}) Y_{e_{m}}(\hat{\sigma}_{2}) P_{V}(\hat{\sigma}_{1},\hat{\sigma}_{2}) P_{\lambda}(\hat{\sigma}_{1},\hat{\tau}_{1}) P_{\lambda'}(\hat{\sigma}_{2},\hat{\tau}_{p}) d\hat{\sigma}_{1} d\hat{\sigma}_{2} d\hat{\tau}_{p}$$

$$= (4\pi)^{2} \frac{(2\ell+1)}{(2\lambda+1)^{3}} J_{\lambda\lambda'} C^{2} (\ell_{q}\lambda;000)$$

The angular part of the remaining terms of $K_{aa}^{(e)}$

119

is:

$$\int Y_{e_{m}}(\hat{\sigma}_{i}) Y_{e_{m}}(\hat{\sigma}_{a}) P_{\lambda}(\hat{\sigma}_{i},\hat{r}_{p}) P_{\lambda'}(\hat{\sigma}_{a},\hat{r}_{p}) d\hat{\sigma}_{i} d\hat{\sigma}_{2} d\hat{r}_{p} = \frac{(\mu\pi)^{2}}{(\lambda + 1)^{2}} S_{\lambda \lambda'} S_{e_{\lambda}}$$

Therefore $K_{22}^{(\ell)}$ can be written as follows:

$$K_{aa}^{(e)}(\sigma_{i},\sigma_{a}) = 64(4\pi)^{2}(1+P_{1a}) \int_{e}^{\infty} dr_{p} \frac{1}{(2e+1)^{2}} \left\{ \begin{cases} 13-\frac{4}{4}+k_{i}^{2}-E_{He} \\ r_{p} \end{cases} g_{e}^{1}(i) g_{e}^{1}(2) + k_{i}^{2} - E_{He} \\ r_{p} \end{cases} g_{e}^{1}(i) g_{e}^{1}(2) + k_{i}^{2} - g_{e}^{1}(1) g_{e}^{1}(2) + k_{i}^{2} - g_{e}^{1}(1) g_{e}^{1}(2) \\ r_{p} \end{cases} = 2.52$$

For l=0 we use the relation $C(qO\lambda; 000) = \delta_{q\lambda}$ and obtain the following forms of the second radial equation (2.34b):

$$\left[\frac{d^{2}}{d\sigma_{i}}+K_{a}^{2}\right]g(\sigma_{i})=-\int_{0}^{\infty}dr_{p}f(r_{p})K_{i2}(r_{p},\sigma_{i})-\int_{0}^{\infty}d\sigma_{a}g(\sigma_{a})K_{a2}(\sigma_{i},\sigma_{a})$$
 2.53a

where
$$K_{aa}(\sigma, \sigma_{a}) = 1024 \operatorname{Tr}^{a}(1+P_{1a}) \int_{0}^{\infty} dr_{p} \left[\left\{ 13 - \frac{L}{4} + k_{1}^{a} - \overline{E}_{He} \right\} \int_{0}^{1} (1) \int_{0}^{1} (a) + 4 \left\{ \int_{0}^{a} (1) - \int_{0}^{3} (1) \int_{0}^{1} (a) - \sum_{\lambda} \frac{\sigma_{z}}{\sigma_{y}^{\lambda+1}} \frac{\int_{\lambda}^{1} (1) \int_{\lambda}^{1} (a)}{(a\lambda+1)^{a}} \right]$$
 2.53b

2.5 Cross-Section Formulation

.....

(a) The Scattering Amplitude

1.20

boundary condition:

which represents an incident scattered wave and superimposed outgoing spherical waves. The system is in an initial state $\chi' = (\kappa' k_n' \ell_1' m_1' \ell_2' m_2' \ell_{s_1} \ell_{s_2} m_{s_1} m_{s_1}') \cdot \int_{\chi'\chi} \xi_{\chi'\chi'}$ is the scattering amplitude for the reaction $\chi' \rightarrow \chi$ and the notation follows that of Section 2.2.

(b) The differential Cross-Section

The flux of particles passing through an area dS is given by

$$\frac{1}{2}\left[\varphi^* \nabla \varphi - (\nabla \varphi)^* \varphi\right]$$

ince the w

where φ is the wave function of the particle and m its mass. The differential cross-section Q is defined as follows:

 $Q(0, q) = \frac{\text{Scattered flux per unit solid angle}}{\text{Incident flux per unit area}}$

Referring to equation (2.54) we obtain:

$$Q_{x'x}(\varphi_x,\varphi_x)d\mathcal{R} = \frac{k_n}{k_n} \left| f_{x'x}(\varphi_x,\varphi_x) \right|^2 \frac{|\chi_{e_x,m_{e_x}}|^2}{|\chi_{e_x,m_{e_x}}|^2} d\mathcal{R}$$

$$2.55$$

 $Q_{s's'}(O_r, \varphi_r)$ is the differential cross-section for a collision in which the emerging particle has changed its spin from m_{s_1}' to m_{s_2} after exciting the target atom from the state $(n'\ell_i'\ell_{s_1}')$ to $(n\ell_i\ell_{s_1})$.

(c) Total Cross-Sections

The total cross-section Q of an atom for particles of a given velocity scattered by the target per unit time is obtained by integrating the corresponding differential crosssection over all scattering angles, averaging over initial spins and summing over final spins. Therefore:

(d) The Scattering Matrix

Since the various formulae have been given by Blatt (84) and Biedenharn and Percival and Seaton , only a brief description will be given here. With reference to Section 2.1, asymptotically the total wave function consists of the target atom and a superposition of ingoing and outgoing spherical waves.

$$\overline{\Psi}_{p_{1}}^{tdxe}(\underline{x}, \underline{s}_{x}, \underline{y}, \underline{s}_{y}) = \sum_{n} \varphi_{v}(\underline{y}) \, \mathcal{Y}_{e_{i}e_{x}i}^{M_{L}}(\hat{x}, \hat{\underline{y}}) \, \mathcal{X}_{s}^{M_{s}}(\underline{s}_{x}, \underline{y}_{y}) \, \overline{F}_{vv}(\underline{x})$$
2.57

where
$$F_{uv}^{LS}(x) \sim \frac{1}{k_{uv}} \begin{bmatrix} A_{v}^{LM_{u}SM_{s}} & -i0 \\ A_{v}^{L} & e & -B_{v}^{LM_{u}SM_{s}} & +i0 \end{bmatrix}$$
 2.58

$$O_{n} = k_{n} \times - \frac{\ell_{n} T}{2}$$
, $\Gamma = (n k_{n} \ell_{1} \ell_{2} \perp M_{L} \leq M_{s})$, $\upsilon = (n \ell_{1} \ell_{2} \ell_{s_{1}})$

The scattering matrix S is defined by:

$$B_{\nu}^{LM_{L}SM_{s}} = \sum_{n} S_{\nu\nu}^{LS} A_{\nu}^{LM_{L}SM_{s}}$$

where the sum is taken over all incident channels - S is related to the R-matrix in the following manner:

$$S = \frac{1+iR}{1-iR}$$
2.59

Equation (2.58) is written as:

$$F_{vv}^{LS}(x) \sim \frac{1}{k_{o}^{\frac{1}{2}}} \sum_{x'} H_{v'}^{LM_{L}SM_{S}} \left[e \cdot \delta_{vv''} - S_{vv''}^{LS} e^{+i\theta_{v}} \right] \qquad 2.60$$

The incident total wave function $\Psi_{\mathbf{x}'}^{\mathsf{inc}}$ is composed of an incoming plane wave with the target in the state \mathbf{x}' .

Using the expansion:

$$e \sim i \pi \sum_{e} e \frac{(2e+1)^{\pm}}{kx} \left[e^{-i\theta} - e^{+i\theta} \right] Y_{eo}(\hat{x})$$

and combining the angular and spin functions using Clebsch-Gordan coefficients, equation (2.61) can be written as:

$$\Psi_{p'} \xrightarrow{\times \to \infty} \frac{i\sqrt{\pi}}{k_n' \times} \sum_{\substack{LM_L \\ g_a}} \varphi_{J}(y) i^{e_a} (2e_a+1)^{\frac{1}{2}} \mathcal{Y}_{e_i'e_aL}^{M_L} \mathcal{X}_{s}^{M_s} \begin{bmatrix} -i\theta_{J} & i\theta_{J} \\ e_{J}(e_{J}) & e_{J}(e_{J}) \end{bmatrix}$$

$$\times C(e_1'e_2L;m_1'OM_L)C(e_2'e_3S;m_5,m_3M_S) S_{ne,e_3,S_n'e_1'e_1'}$$

The outgoing part $\overline{\mu}_{p'}^{out}$ of the total wave function is defined by:

$$\begin{split} \overline{\Psi}_{p'}^{\text{out}} &= \overline{\Psi}_{p'}^{\text{tdel}} - \overline{\Psi}_{p'}^{\text{inc}} \\ & \underset{x \to \infty}{\sim} \sum_{\substack{P_{y}y''}} \Psi_{y}(y) \overline{\mathcal{Y}}_{e,e_{2L}}^{M_{L}} \chi_{s}^{M_{5}} \frac{1}{k_{s}^{\frac{1}{2}} \chi} A_{x''}^{LH_{L}SM_{5}} \begin{bmatrix} -i\theta_{y} \\ e \cdot \delta_{xy''} - S_{yy''} e^{i\theta_{y}} \end{bmatrix} \\ & - \frac{i\sqrt{\pi}}{k_{s}} \sum_{\substack{n'e_{1}'e_{s}}} \delta_{ne_{1}e_{s,y}n'e_{1}'e_{s}} \sum_{\substack{LM_{L}}} \Psi_{y}(y) \overline{\mathcal{Y}}_{e,e_{2L}}^{M_{L}} \chi_{s}^{M_{5}} e^{i(2e_{2}+1)} \frac{1}{2} \\ & \times C(e_{1}'e_{2}L_{y}m_{y}'OM_{L})C(e_{s_{1}}'e_{s_{2}}S_{y}'m_{y}'m_{s_{2}}M_{s}) \begin{bmatrix} -i\theta_{y} & +i\theta_{y} \\ e & -e \end{bmatrix} \end{bmatrix} \end{split}$$

Since $I_{r'}$ must contain outgoing spherical waves only the coefficient of the ingoing waves must vanish:

$$A_{n}^{LM_{L}SM_{s}} = \frac{i \sqrt{\pi}}{k_{n}^{\frac{1}{2}}} i \frac{e_{2}}{(2e_{2}+1)^{\frac{1}{2}}} C(e_{1}'e_{2}L;m,'OM_{L})C(e_{1}'e_{2}S;m_{1}'m_{s}M_{s})$$

$$\times \delta_{ne_{1}e_{1},n'e_{1}'e_{1}'}$$

Therefore I reduces to:

$$\Psi_{\Gamma'}^{out} \xrightarrow{\times \to \infty} \frac{i\sqrt{\pi}}{x} \sum_{\Gamma, e_2'} \Psi_{\nu}(y) Y_{e, e_2 \perp}^{M_{L}} \chi_{s}^{M_{s}} \frac{i^{e_2'}(2e_2'+1)}{(k_{n}k_{n}')^{\frac{1}{2}}} e^{i\phi_{\nu}}$$

$$\times C(e_1'e_2'L;m_1'OM_L)C(e_s'e_{s_2}'S;m_{s_1}'m_{s_2}'M_S)\left[S_{JJ}'-S_{JJ}'\right]$$

Expanding the functions $\mathcal{Y}_{e,e_{s}L}$ and $\mathcal{X}_{s}^{\mu_{s}}$ we obtain:

$$\begin{split} \begin{split} & \bar{\Psi}_{g'}^{out} \xrightarrow{\sim} \frac{i \sqrt{\pi}}{x \to \infty} \sum_{\substack{g \in g' \\ y \neq g_{g'} \\ y \to g_{g'}}} \varphi_{g}(y) Y_{g_{g'}}(\hat{g}) X_{g_{g'}}(s_{y}) Y_{g_{g'}}(\hat{g}) X_{g_{g'}}(\hat{g}) X_{g_{g'}}(\hat{g}) X_{g_{g'}}(\hat{g}) \\ & \frac{e_{a}}{x \to \infty} \frac{i \sqrt{\pi}}{x \to 0} \sum_{\substack{g \in g' \\ y \neq g_{g'}}} \varphi_{g}(y) Y_{g_{g'}}(\hat{g}) X_{g_{g'}}(s_{g'}) Y_{g_{g'}}(\hat{g}) X_{g_{g'}}(\hat{g}) \\ & \frac{e_{a}}{x \to 0} \frac{i \sqrt{\pi}}{x \to 0} \sum_{\substack{g \in g' \\ g \neq g_{g'}}} \varphi_{g}(y) Y_{g_{g'}}(\hat{g}) X_{g_{g'}}(s_{g'}) Y_{g_{g'}}(\hat{g}) X_{g_{g'}}(\hat{g}) \\ & \frac{e_{a}}{x \to 0} \sum_{\substack{g \in g' \\ g \neq g_{g'}}} \frac{i \sqrt{\pi}}{x \to 0} \sum_{\substack{g \in g' \\ g \neq g_{g'}}} \varphi_{g}(y) Y_{g_{g'}}(\hat{g}) X_{g_{g'}}(s_{g'}) Y_{g_{g'}}(\hat{g}) Y_{g_{g'}}(\hat{g}) \\ & \frac{e_{a}}{x \to 0} \sum_{\substack{g \in g' \\ g \neq g_{g'}}} \sum_{\substack{g \in g' \\ g \neq g_{g'}}} \varphi_{g}(y) Y_{g_{g'}}(\hat{g}) Y_{g_{g'}}(\hat{g}) Y_{g_{g'}}(\hat{g}) Y_{g_{g'}}(\hat{g}) Y_{g_{g'}}(\hat{g}) \\ & \frac{e_{a}}{x \to 0} \sum_{\substack{g \in g' \\ g \neq g_{g'}}} \sum_{\substack{g \in g' \\ g$$

Comparing this to equation (2.54) results in the following expression for the scattering amplitude:

$$f_{xx}(O_{x}, \varphi_{x}) = \frac{i}{(k_{n}k_{n}')^{\frac{1}{2}}} \sum_{\substack{e_{x}e_{x}'\\ \downarrow n_{n}}} i^{\frac{e_{x}'-e_{x}}{2}} (2e_{x}'+1)^{\frac{1}{2}} Y_{e_{x}m_{x}}(\hat{x}) C(e_{1}e_{2}L_{1}'m_{1}m_{2}M) \times$$

1)

$$C(e_{s_{1}}e_{s_{2}}S;m_{s_{1}}m_{s_{2}}M_{s})C(e_{1}'e_{2}'L;m_{1}'OM_{L})C(e_{s_{1}}'e_{s_{2}}'S;m_{s_{1}}'m_{s_{2}}'M_{s})\left[\delta_{vv},-S_{vv}'\right] 2.62$$

Therefore the total cross-section formula reduces to:

$$Q(n'\ell'_{i}\ell_{s}) = \frac{1}{k_{n'}} \sum_{\substack{a \in I_{a}\ell_{a} \\ LS}} \frac{(2L+1)(2S+1)}{(2\ell_{s_{a}}+1)(2\ell_{s_{a}}+1)} |T_{n'}|^{2} \qquad 2.63$$

where the transition matrix T is defined as:

T ... = S ... - 1

2.64

ų.

CHAPTER III

KERNEL COMPUTATION

3.1 Integration Procedures.

(a) Kernel Kia .

The functions H., H., H., H., J. and J. are defined by equations (2.42) and can be written as follows:

$$\mathcal{H}_{o}^{o}(A,r,\sigma) = M_{o}(1+CP_{ob})\int_{a}^{+1} d\eta Ae^{-(e^{2}+r^{2}-2\sigma r\eta)^{\frac{1}{2}}-\alpha(4\sigma^{2}+r^{2}-4\sigma r\eta)^{\frac{1}{2}}} 3.1a$$

$$\mathcal{H}_{o}^{'}(r,\sigma) = M_{o}(1+CP_{ob}) \int_{-1}^{+1} d\eta \cdot \frac{e}{(\sigma^{2}+r^{2}-2\sigma r\eta)^{2}-\alpha(4\sigma^{2}+r^{2}-4\sigma r\eta)^{2}} 3.1b$$

$$\mathcal{H}_{o}^{2}(A,r,\sigma) = M_{o}(1+CP_{ab}) \int_{-1}^{+1} \frac{-(\sigma^{2}+r^{2}-2\sigma r \pi)^{\frac{1}{2}} - (4\sigma^{2}+r^{2}-4\sigma r \pi)^{\frac{1}{2}}}{(4\sigma^{2}+r^{2}-4\sigma r \pi)^{\frac{1}{2}}} 3.1c$$

$$\int_{0}^{1} (r, \sigma) = M_{0} (I+CP_{ab}) \int_{-1}^{1} d\eta \cdot \frac{\alpha e}{(4\sigma^{2}+r^{2}-4\sigma r\eta)^{2} (\sigma^{2}+r^{2}-3\sigma r\eta)^{2}} \qquad 3.1d$$

$$\int_{0}^{2} (r, \sigma) = M_{o} \int_{-1}^{+1} d\eta \cdot P^{N} (|2\sigma - \tau|) (1 + CP_{ab}) e^{-(\sigma^{2} + r^{2} - 2\sigma r \eta)^{2} - \alpha (4\sigma^{2} + r^{2} - 4\sigma r \eta)^{2}} 3.1e$$

By inspection of equations (3.1) it is clear that the presence of the radicals $(\sigma^2 + r^2 - 2\sigma r\eta)^{\frac{1}{2}}$ and $(4\sigma^2 + r^2 - 4\sigma r\eta)^{\frac{1}{2}}$ in the

denominator of the integrands will lead to numerical difficulties, since for $\eta = 1$ the first radical vanishes for $r = \sigma$ and the second for $r = 2\sigma$. This difficulty can be avoided by the following (68) change of variable suggested by Fraser:

$$\int_{0}^{2} (q,\sigma) = -M_{o}(1+CP_{ab}) \frac{\alpha}{\alpha} \int_{0}^{\pi} d\xi \cdot X_{4}^{-1}(1+2q^{2}+bq\xi+3\xi^{2}) e^{-\sigma X_{4}^{-2\alpha\sigma(1+\frac{\beta}{4})}} \qquad 1 \le q < \sqrt{2}$$

where
$$X_{1} = (4 - p^{a} + 4p\xi + 2p^{a}\xi^{a})^{\frac{1}{2}}, X_{a} = (p^{2} + 2 + 4p\xi + 2\xi^{a})^{\frac{1}{2}},$$

 $X_{3} = (\frac{4}{q^{a}} - 1 + \frac{4\xi}{q} + 2\xi^{a})^{\frac{1}{2}}, X_{4} = (\frac{2}{q^{a}} + 1 + \frac{4\xi}{q} + \frac{2\xi^{a}}{q^{a}})^{\frac{1}{2}}$

It should be noted that the new radicals are non-vanishing in the ranges of p and q specified. The integration over ξ was performed using a 16-point Gaussian quadrature.

 K_{1a} can be divided into two parts: one depending on k_1^2 and one independent of k_1^2 . Therefore, using the notation of Section 2.4 we can write the following:

$$K_{12}(r,\sigma) = K_{12}^{(1)}(r,\sigma) \cdot k_1^2 + K_{12}^{(2)}(r,\sigma)$$
 3.3

where

and

K ...

$$\binom{(1)}{r}(r,\sigma) = 64\pi S \mathcal{H}_{\circ}^{\circ}(1)$$

$$K_{12}^{(2)}(r,\sigma) = 64\pi \left[S \left\{ 5 - E_{\mu_{e}} - \frac{2}{r} + \frac{2P(r)}{S} \right\} H_{o}^{o}(r) + S \left\{ -H_{o}^{1}(r) + 2H_{o}^{2}(r) - 4H_{o}^{2}(-r) - 2G_{o}^{1}(r) + 2H_{o}^{o}(r^{2}) \right\} - 2G_{o}^{2}(r) \right] \qquad 3.4b$$

(1) (2) K_{12} and K_{12} were tabulated separately for r = O(05)S(01)32and $\sigma = 0.05(05)S(01)17.5$. The expression for $K_{12}(0, \sigma)$

129

3.4a

is derived as follows:

By inspection of equation (3.12) it can be seen that: $\mathcal{H}_{o}^{\circ}(1,0,\sigma) = 0$

but Limit
$$\frac{1}{r} \stackrel{}{ \underset{r \to 0}{ }} \frac{1}{r} \stackrel{}{ \underset{r \to 0}{ }} \begin{pmatrix} \circ & (1, r, \sigma) \\ \circ & \frac{1}{4\sqrt{2}} \\ \hline \end{array} \begin{bmatrix} -\sigma(2\alpha+1) & -\sigma(2b+1) \\ e & + e \\ \hline & \frac{1}{4\sqrt{2}} \\ \hline \end{bmatrix}$$

Therefore $K_{1a}^{(1)}(0,\sigma) = 0$ but $K_{1a}^{(a)}(0,\sigma) \neq 0$ since $K_{1a}^{(a)}$ contains factors of $\frac{1}{r}$. The only terms contributing to $K_{1a}^{(a)}(r,\sigma)$ at r=0 are the following:

$$64\pi \left[-\frac{2S}{r} + 2P^{N}(r) \right] \mathcal{H}^{\circ}(r,\sigma)$$

$$= -128 \pi \left[\frac{S}{r} + 4N\sqrt{2} \left\{ \frac{e}{(a+2)^3} \left(a+2+\frac{2}{r} \right) + \frac{Ce}{(b+2)^3} \left(b+2+\frac{2}{r} \right) \right\} \right] \mathcal{H}_o^o(r,\sigma)$$

Therefore using the above results we obtain:

$$K_{12}^{(a)}(0,\sigma) = -128\pi \left[S + 4N\sqrt{2}\left\{\frac{2}{(a+2)^3} + \frac{2C}{(b+2)^3}\right\}\right] \frac{N\sigma}{4\sqrt{2}\pi} \left[e^{-\sigma(2b+1)} + Ce^{-\sigma(2b+1)}\right]$$
$$= -32\sqrt{2}SN\sigma \left[e^{-\sigma(2a+1)} + Ce^{-\sigma(2b+1)}\right] \qquad 3.5$$

$$G_{\lambda}(r,\sigma) = M_{\lambda} \int_{-1}^{1} d\eta \cdot P_{\lambda}(\eta) e^{-(\sigma^{2}+r^{2}-2\sigma r\eta)^{\frac{1}{2}} - \lambda(4\sigma^{2}+r^{2}-4\sigma r\eta)^{\frac{1}{2}}} 3.6a$$

$$G_{o}^{2}(r,\sigma) = M_{o}^{\prime} \int_{-1}^{+1} \frac{-(\sigma^{2}+r^{2}-2\sigma r \eta)^{\frac{1}{2}}-2(4\sigma^{2}+r^{2}-4\sigma r \eta)^{\frac{1}{2}}}{(\sigma^{2}+r^{2}-2\sigma r \eta)^{\frac{1}{2}}(4\sigma^{2}+r^{2}-4\sigma r \eta)^{\frac{1}{2}}} (2\sigma^{2}+r^{2}-3\sigma r \eta) \qquad 3.61$$

$$g_{o}^{3}(r,\sigma) = M_{o}^{'} \int_{-1}^{+1} d\eta \cdot \frac{e^{-(\sigma^{2}+r^{2}-2\sigma\tau\eta)^{\frac{1}{2}}-2(4\sigma^{2}+r^{2}-4\sigma\tau\eta)^{\frac{1}{2}}}{(4\sigma^{2}+r^{2}-4\sigma\tau\eta)^{\frac{1}{2}}} 3.6\sigma$$

where M_{λ} is defined by equation (2.49d).

We make the substitutions defined by equations (3.2). Therefore G_{1}^{\prime} , for example, will be given by:

$$g'_{\lambda}(p,\sigma) = M'_{\lambda} \int_{-1}^{+1} d\xi \cdot P_{\lambda}(\frac{p}{2} - \xi - \frac{p}{2} \frac{e^{2}}{2}) \cdot (1 + p\xi) e^{-\sigma(1 + p\xi) - 2\sigma X}, \qquad 0$$

$$G_{\lambda}^{\prime}(\rho,\sigma) = M_{\lambda}^{\prime} \frac{1}{\rho} \int_{-1}^{+1} d\xi \cdot P_{\lambda} \left(\frac{1}{\rho} - \frac{\rho}{2\rho} - \frac{\rho^{\lambda}}{2\rho} \right) \cdot \left(\rho + \xi\right) e^{-\sigma(\rho + \xi) - 2\sigma X_{\lambda}}$$

$$1 \le \rho < \sqrt{\lambda}$$

$$G_{\lambda}^{\prime}(q,\sigma) = M_{\lambda}^{\prime}q \int_{-1}^{+1} d\xi \cdot P_{\lambda}\left(\frac{q}{2} - \xi - \frac{q\xi^{2}}{2}\right) \cdot \left(\xi + \frac{1}{q}\right) e^{-\sigma X_{3} - 4\sigma(\xi + \frac{1}{q})} q < q \leq 1$$

$$G_{\lambda}^{1}(q,\sigma) = M_{\lambda}^{1} \int_{-1}^{+1} d\xi \cdot P_{\lambda} \left(\frac{1}{2q} - \xi - \frac{e^{\lambda}}{2q}\right) \cdot \left(1 + \frac{e}{2}\right) e^{-\sigma X_{k} - 4\sigma \left(1 + \frac{e}{2}\right)}$$
 $1 \le q \le \sqrt{\lambda}$

where X_1, X_2, X_3 and X_4 are defined in part (a). These angular integrations were performed using a 16-point Gaussian quadrature. The Legendre function P_{χ} was generated using the following recursion formula:

$$\begin{split} & P_{n+1}(\omega) = \frac{1}{\lambda+1} \left[(2\lambda+1)\omega P_{\lambda}(\omega) - \lambda P_{\lambda-1}(\omega) \right] & 3.7a \\ & P_{0}(\omega) = 1 \quad \text{and} \quad P_{1}(\omega) = \omega & 3.7b \\ & K_{22}(\cos \omega) = 1 \quad \text{and} \quad P_{1}(\omega) = \omega & 3.7b \\ & K_{22}(\cos \omega) = 1 \quad \text{and} \quad P_{1}(\omega) = \omega & 3.7b \\ & K_{22}(\cos \omega) = K_{22}^{(1)}(\sigma_{1},\sigma_{2}), k_{1}^{2} + K_{22}^{(2)}(\sigma_{1},\sigma_{2}) & 3.8 \\ & \text{where} \quad K_{22}^{(1)}(\sigma_{1},\sigma_{2}) = 128(4\pi)^{2} \int_{0}^{\infty} dr_{p} \int_{0}^{1} (\omega) \int_{0}^{1} (\omega) & 3.9a \\ & \text{and} \quad K_{22}^{(2)}(\sigma_{1},\sigma_{2}) = 128(4\pi)^{2} \int_{0}^{\infty} dr_{p} \left[\left\{ 13 - E_{\mu_{e}} - \frac{4}{r_{p}} \right\} \int_{0}^{1} (\omega) \int_{0}^{1} (\omega) \\ & + 2 \left(1 + P_{12} \right) \left\{ \int_{0}^{2} (\omega) - \int_{0}^{3} (\omega) \right\} \int_{0}^{1} (\omega) - \sum_{\lambda} \frac{\sigma_{\lambda}}{\sigma_{\lambda}} \frac{\Gamma_{\lambda}}{r_{\lambda}} \left(\frac{\Gamma_{\lambda}}{r_{\lambda}} \frac{\Gamma_{\lambda}}{r_{\lambda}} \right) \right] & 3.9b \end{split}$$

Here, equation (2.52) has been simplified to give equation (3.9b). The summation over λ was taken from $\lambda = 0$ to $\lambda = 10$. The integration over r_p will now be described, the interval of integration being .1 and the upper integration limit being taken as 16.

Since K_{aa} is symmetric in σ_1 and σ_2 it is only necessary to compute $K_{22}(\sigma_1, \sigma_2)$ for $\sigma_1 \geqslant \sigma_3$. A brief inspection of equations (3.6) would lead one to assume that the integrand of equation (3.9b) is discontinuous at four points: $r_p = \sigma_1, 2\sigma_1, \sigma_2$ and $2\sigma_2$ But closer examination of the form of $\begin{cases} 2\\ 0 \end{cases}$ defined by equation (3.6b) reveals that there is no singularity in the integrand for $-1 \le \eta \le +1$

and therefore the function $\begin{cases} 3\\ 0 \end{cases}$ defined by equation (3.6c) is the only function with a singular integrand, in this case at $r_{\rho} = 2\sigma$. Therefore the integrand of $K_{aa}^{(2)}(\sigma_{1},\sigma_{b})$ is discontinuous at the two points $r_{\rho} = 2\sigma_{1}$ and $2\sigma_{a}$ and allowance for this must be made in the integration over r_{ρ} .

It follows therefore that K_{22} (σ_1, σ_2) will be discontinuous at the point $\sigma_1 = \sigma_2$. This is clearly shown in the graphical displays, see Section 3.3(c).

 $K_{22}^{(1)}$ and $K_{23}^{(2)}$ were tabulated separately for σ_1 and σ_2 = $\cdot 1(\cdot 1)16\cdot 0$. The proof that $K_{22}(0, \sigma_2) = 0$ is as follows: From equation (3.6a) and (2.45d) it can be seen that:

$$\begin{aligned}
 G_{\lambda}(r, 0) &= 0 \\
 but \ \text{Limit} \quad \frac{1}{\sigma} G_{\lambda}(r, \sigma) &= \frac{re}{\pi} \cdot \delta_{\lambda 0} \\
 \sigma &= \sigma \quad \pi
 \end{aligned}$$

Since we are considering the case $\sigma_1 \gtrsim \sigma_2$ and K_{22} is symmetric we examine $K_{22}(\sigma_2, 0)$. From the above results it is clear that $K_{22}^{(1)}(0, \sigma_2) = 0$. By inspection of equation (3.9b) it can be seen that $K_{22}^{(2)}(\sigma_2, 0)$ has no factors of inverse powers of σ_1 since in this case $\sigma_2 = \sigma_2$. Therefore the summation over λ will vanish at $\sigma_1 = 0$ and $K_{22}^{(2)}(\sigma_2, 0) = K_{22}^{(A)}(0, \sigma_2) = 0$

- 3.2 Numerical Checking Procedures.
- (a) Kernel K₁₂.

At the points $\rho = \sqrt{2}$ the functions given by equations (3.1) can be solved in closed form. Substituting $r = n\sqrt{2}$ and $\sigma = n$, where n is any positive, non-zero integer, equations (3.1) reduce to the following:

$$\mathcal{H}_{o}^{\circ}(A, n\sqrt{2}, n) = M_{o}(1+CP_{ab}) \int_{-1}^{+1} d\eta \cdot \mathrm{Re}^{-n(3-2\sqrt{2})^{2}(1+a\sqrt{2})}$$

$$= M_{o} \left(1+CP_{ab}\right) \underline{A}_{n\sqrt{2}\left(1+a\sqrt{2}\right)} \left[e^{-nX_{1}} \left\{ \left(3-2\sqrt{2}\right)^{\frac{1}{2}} + \frac{1}{n\left(1+a\sqrt{2}\right)} \right\} - e^{-nX_{a}} \left\{ \left(3+2\sqrt{2}\right) + \frac{1}{n\left(1+a\sqrt{2}\right)} \right\} \right] 3.10a$$

$$\mathcal{H}_{o}^{a}(A, n\sqrt{a}, n) = \mathcal{M}_{o}(1+CP_{ab})\int_{-1}^{+1} d\eta \cdot \frac{Ae}{n\sqrt{a}(3-2\sqrt{a})^{\frac{1}{2}}} d\eta \cdot \frac{Ae}{n\sqrt{a}(3-2\sqrt{a})^{\frac{1}{2}}}$$

$$= M_{\circ} \left(1 + C P_{\alpha b} \right) \frac{A}{n^{2} \sqrt{a} \left(1 + a \sqrt{a} \right)} \left[e^{-n X_{1}} - e^{-n X_{a}} \right]$$
3.10b

$$\mathcal{H}_{o}^{i}\left(n\sqrt{2},n\right) = \sqrt{2}\mathcal{H}_{o}^{a}\left(1,n\sqrt{2},n\right) \qquad 3.10c$$

$$= M_{o} \underbrace{\frac{4N}{n}}_{n} \left(1 + C^{2} P_{ab}\right) \underbrace{\frac{e}{(a+2)^{3}Y_{i}}}_{(a+2)^{3}Y_{i}} \left\{ \underbrace{\frac{(a+2)}{Y_{i}}}_{(a+2)} - \left[\sqrt{2} + n\left(a+2\right)(3-2\sqrt{2})^{\frac{1}{2}}\right] \right\}$$

$$=\frac{e}{(a+a)^{3}Y_{1}}\left\{\frac{(a+a)}{Y_{1}}-\left[\sqrt{a}+n(a+a)(3+a\sqrt{a})^{\frac{1}{a}}\right]\right\}$$

+ M
$$_{n}$$
 $\frac{4NC}{n^{a}} \left(1+P_{ab}\right) \left[\frac{e^{-n(3-a)\overline{a}}Y_{2}}{(a+a)^{3}Y_{2}} \left\{\frac{(a+a)}{Y_{2}} - \left[\sqrt{a}+n(a+a)(3-a)\overline{a}\right]^{\frac{1}{a}}\right]\right\}$

$$\frac{-n(3+2\sqrt{2})^{\frac{1}{2}}Y_{2}}{(a+2)^{\frac{1}{2}}Y_{2}} \left\{ \frac{(a+2)}{Y_{2}} - \left[\sqrt{2}+n(a+2)(3+2\sqrt{2})^{\frac{1}{2}}\right] \right\}$$

$$3.10e$$
where X, $(3-2\sqrt{2})^{\frac{1}{2}}(1+a\sqrt{2})$ and $X_{a} = (3+2\sqrt{2})^{\frac{1}{2}}(1+a\sqrt{2})$

$$Y_{1} = \left\{1+2\sqrt{2}(a+1)\right\}$$
 and $Y_{a} = \left\{1+(a+b+2)\sqrt{2}\right\}$

A separate computer code was written to calculate $\mathcal{H}_{\circ}^{\circ}$, \mathcal{H}_{\circ}^{a} and \mathcal{J}_{\circ}^{2} given by equations (3.10). Because of the symmetry in a and \mathcal{J} all cases were checked for $\mathcal{C} = \mathcal{O}$. \mathcal{J}_{\circ}^{1} as defined by equation (3.10d) introduced special difficulties since the integral term:

the state of the land out the

$$\int_{-1}^{+1} \frac{-n(3-2\sqrt{2}\pi)^{\frac{1}{2}}(1+a\sqrt{2})}{(3-2\sqrt{2}\pi)}$$

gives a logarithmic term plus an oscillating series. The series did not produce satisfactory results on account of round-off errors. Therefore the substitution $n(3-2\sqrt{2}\gamma)^{\frac{1}{2}}(1+\sqrt{2}) = t$ was performed transforming the above integral to:
$$\frac{1}{\sqrt{2}}\int_{n}^{n}\frac{(3+2\sqrt{2})^{\frac{1}{2}}(1+\sqrt{2})}{(3-2\sqrt{2})^{\frac{1}{2}}(1+\sqrt{2})}\frac{-t}{t}dt$$

which was then computed using tables and a desk calculator. \mathcal{H}_{\circ}^{*} , \mathcal{H}_{\circ}^{*} and \mathcal{J}_{\circ}^{*} were each checked for n=1 and \mathcal{J} giving seven figure agreement. $\mathcal{J}_{\circ}^{'}$ was checked for n=1 giving five figure agreement.

A further test is to write a separate routine calculating the \mathcal{H} 's and \mathcal{G} 's using a 16-point Gaussian Quadrature, before the substitution of equations (3.2) is applied. This was done for r = 1.6 and $\sigma = 2.4$ and gave a minimum of five figure agreement. It is interesting to note that the same test applied to r = 1.6 and $\sigma = .8$ and 1.6 gave disagreement at the third significant figure demonstrating the effect of the singular integrands at the upper limit of integration. The following alternative method was used in the case of $r = \sigma = 1.6$:

Substituting $(1-\eta) = x$ in equations (3.1a) we obtain for $\gamma = \sigma$:

$$H_{o}^{\circ}(A,\sigma,\sigma) = M_{o}(1+CP_{ab}) \int_{0}^{a} Ae^{-\sigma\sqrt{ax} - a\sigma\sqrt{bx+1}}$$

Using Taylor's theorem we expand the well-behaved function about x=0 as follows:

 $e^{-\alpha\sigma\sqrt{4\chi+1}} = e^{-\alpha\sigma} - \alpha\sigma + O(\chi^2)$

Therefore we may rewrite the expression for \mathcal{H}_{a}

$$H_{o}^{o}(A,\sigma,\sigma) = M_{o}(1+CP_{ab})\int_{0}^{a} e^{-\sigma\sqrt{2x}} A\left[e^{-a\sigma\sqrt{4x+1}} - e^{-a\sigma}(1-2a\sigma x)\right] dx + I(\sigma,a)$$

where $I(\sigma, a) = M_o(1+CP_{ab})e^{-a\sigma}\int_0^2 Ae^{-\sigma \sqrt{2x}}(1-2a\sigma x) dx$

$$= M_{o}(1+CP_{ab}) \frac{2e}{2} A \left[\frac{\sigma}{2} - 3a - e \left\{ \frac{\sigma}{2} + \frac{\sigma}{2} - a \left(4\sigma + 6\sigma + 3 \right) \right\} \right]$$

and the integrand of the integral term is now continuous in the range considered.

An identical process was carried out for the remaining functions and a program computing this form of the integrals gave a minimum of five figure agreement.

(b) Kernel Kaa .

Substituting $r = n\sqrt{\lambda}$ and $\sigma = n$ in equations (3.6) we obtain:

$$G_{\lambda}^{1}(n\sqrt{a},n) = M_{\lambda}^{1} \int_{-1}^{+1} d\eta \cdot P_{\lambda}(\eta) e^{-n(3-2\sqrt{a}\eta)^{\frac{1}{2}}(2\sqrt{a}+1)}$$

$$G_{\lambda}^{2}(n\sqrt{a},n) = M_{0}^{1} \int_{-1}^{+1} d\eta \cdot \frac{e}{(3-2\sqrt{a}\eta)} (4-3\sqrt{a}\eta)$$

$$G_{\lambda}^{3}(n\sqrt{a},n) = M_{0}^{1} \int_{-1}^{+1} d\eta \cdot \frac{e}{(3-2\sqrt{a}\eta)} (2\sqrt{a}+1)$$

$$G_{\lambda}^{3}(n\sqrt{a},n) = M_{0}^{1} \int_{-1}^{+1} d\eta \cdot \frac{e}{(3-2\sqrt{a}\eta)^{\frac{1}{2}}(2\sqrt{a}+1)}$$

$$= \underbrace{M_{o}^{\prime}}_{M_{o}} \underbrace{n}_{\overline{2}} \underbrace{H_{o}^{2}(2, n \sqrt{2}, n)}_{M_{o}} C 0$$

Since $G_0'(n\sqrt{a}, n) = (2M_0)^{-1} M_0' H_0'(2, n\sqrt{2}, n, C = 0)$ both G_0' and G_0'' were checked using the code for K_{1a} . G_0'' was checked in a similar manner to G_0'' . The tests were run for n = 1and gave a minimum of five figure agreement. For $r = \sigma$ equations (3.6) reduce to:

$$\int_{0}^{3} (\dot{\sigma}, \sigma) = M_{o}^{\prime} \underbrace{1}_{\sigma} \int_{-1}^{+1} d\eta \cdot \underbrace{e}_{(5-4\eta)^{\frac{1}{2}}}_{(5-4\eta)^{\frac{1}{2}}}$$

Using the substitution $y = \sqrt{2}(1-\eta)^{\frac{1}{2}}$ these become:

$$G'_{\lambda}(\sigma,\sigma) = M'_{\lambda} \prod_{\sigma^{a}} \int_{\sigma^{a}}^{2\sigma} dy \cdot P_{\lambda} \left(I - \frac{y}{y^{a}}\right) ye$$

$$\begin{aligned}
\int_{\sigma}^{a} (\sigma, \sigma) &= M_{o}^{\dagger} \frac{3}{2\sigma^{a}} \int_{\sigma}^{a\sigma} \frac{dy}{dy} \cdot \frac{y}{(2y^{2} + \sigma^{a})^{\frac{1}{2}}} e^{-y - 2(2y^{a} + \sigma^{a})^{\frac{1}{2}}} \\
\int_{\sigma}^{3} (\sigma, \sigma) &= M_{o}^{\dagger} \frac{1}{\sigma^{a}} \int_{\sigma}^{2\sigma} \frac{dy}{dy} \cdot \frac{y}{(2y^{2} + \sigma^{a})^{\frac{1}{2}}} e^{-y - 2(2y^{2} + \sigma^{a})^{\frac{1}{2}}} \\
\end{aligned}$$

and the integrands now have first order derivatives in the range considered. Using the same substitution for $\gamma = 2c$ we obtain the following:

$$G_{\lambda}(2\sigma,\sigma) = M_{\lambda'} \frac{1}{\sigma^2} \int_{\sigma}^{2\sigma} dy f_{\lambda} \left(1 - \frac{y^2}{\sigma^2}\right) y e^{-4y - (2y^2 + \sigma^2)^{\frac{1}{2}}}$$

$$g_{0}^{2}(2\sigma_{0}\sigma) = M_{0}^{2} \frac{3}{2\sigma} \int_{0}^{2\sigma} dy \frac{y}{(2y^{2}+\sigma^{2})^{2}} e^{-4y-(2y^{2}+\sigma^{2})^{\frac{1}{2}}}$$

$$G_{0}^{3}(2\sigma,\sigma) = M_{0}^{\prime} \frac{1}{2\sigma} \int_{0}^{2\sigma} dy e^{-4y^{2}(2y^{2}+\sigma^{2})^{\frac{1}{2}}} dy e^{-4y^{2}(2y^{2}+\sigma^{2})^{\frac{1}{2}}}$$

Therefore a separate code was written calculating the ξ'_s given by equations (3.6). For $\star = \sigma$ or 2σ the new forms of the ξ'_s described above were used with the transformation:

$$\int_{0}^{+\infty} \beta(y) \, dy = \epsilon \int_{0}^{+1} \beta(\epsilon sy + 1s) \, dy$$

so enabling the same 16-point Gaussian Quadrature to be used. At least five figure agreement was obtained.

3.3 An Alternative Helium Function.

The simple Hylleraas Helium function:

$$\Psi_{o}(r_{1}, r_{a}) = \mu e^{3 - \mu (r_{1} + r_{a})}$$

 $\pi = \frac{27}{16}$

with a corresponding energy $E_{He}^{H_{yee}} = 2\mu^{a} = 5.6953125$ can easily be obtained from the Hartree-Fock function defined in equations (2.25) by substituting C = 0 and $\alpha = \mu$. Therefore the code was written to allow the use of both functions. This necessitated generating the Hylleraas Kernels. K_{12} (Hylleraas) was tabulated by re-running the kernel code but K_{22} (Hylleraas) is a linear combination of the energy dependent and energy independent parts of K_{22} (Hartree-Fock) as follows:

 $\begin{array}{l} \mathsf{K}_{22}^{(1)} \\ \mathsf{K}_{22}^{(2)} \\ \mathsf{K}_{22}^{(2)} \end{array} & (\text{Hylleraas}) = \begin{array}{c} \mathsf{K}_{12}^{(1)} \\ \mathsf{K}_{22}^{(2)} \end{array} & (\text{Hartree-Fock}) + 0.0280275 \\ \mathsf{K}_{22}^{(1)} \end{array} & (\text{Hartree-Fock}) + 0.0280275 \\ \mathbf{K}_{22}^{(1)} = 0.0280275 \\ \mathbf{K}_{22}^{($

This can be seen by inspection of equation (2.53b) which shows $K_{22}^{(2)}$ to be dependent on the Helium energy. Tables 3-1 and 3-2 present a sample set of values of K_{12} and K_{22} , using each Helium function, for small and large arguments respectively. Although the kernels are similar for small arguments, the Hartree-Fock kernels are a factor of five larger numerically than the Hylleraas at large distances.

For small arguments, the Hylleraas kernels generated by Kraidy (private communication to P. Fraser) agreed to a minimum of 3 figures for K_{12} and 4 for K_{12} (data received from Fraser only gave four figures). It should be mentioned that the angular (27) integrations of Kraidy's calculation used a 10-point Gaussian quadrature.

TABLE 3-1

A comparison of the kernels K12(x,) and K22(x,) using the Hartree-Fock (H.F.) and

Hylleraas (H.) ground state Helium function.

| | | | | | 30 11 20 | | |
|--------|---------------------|---------------|-------------------------------|-----------------------------|----------------------|-------------------------------|-----------------|
| 6 × | (i) K (a. (H.F.) | (1) K (H.) | (3) K ₁₂ (H.F.) | (a) K _{ia} (H.) | (1) K 2. (50me) | (2) K ₂₂ (H.F.) | (a) Kar (H.) |
| .1,.1 | .3071 | .3009 | -18.204 | -17.233 | .1734 | -3.598 | -3.594 |
| .2,.1 | .5233 | .5159 | -19.219 | -17.258 | .3075 | -4.234 | -4.22.5 |
| .2.,2 | .7452 | .7536 | -18.696 | -19.071 | .5550 | -7.136 | -7.120 |
| .3,.1 | .6214 | .6206 | -11.993 | -11.627 | .3848 | -3.887 | -3.876 |
| .32 | .9956 | 1.0055 | -18.043 | -17.902 | .7080 | -6.749 | -6.729 |
| .33 | 1.0559 | 1.0841 | -14.938 | -15.925 | .9270 | -8.292 | -8.266 |
| 4.64. | .6396 | .6473 | -7.275 | -7.588 | .4083 | -3.125 | -3.114 |
| .4.,2 | 1.1275 | 1.1403 | -17.689 | -16.572 | .7650 | -5.536 | -5.515 |
| .4.3 | 1.2884 | 1.3177 | -14.225 | -14.897 | 1.0286 | -7.039 | -7.010 |
| 村.,4. | 1.2205 | 1.2586 | -10.948 | -11.921 | 1.1772 | -7.627 | -7.594 |

TABLE 3-2

A comparison of the kernels $K_{12}(x,\sigma)$ using the Hartree-Fock(H.F.) and the Hylleraas (H.) ground state Helium function.

| × | , - | K (1) (H.F.) | K 12 (H.) | K (2) K (12 (H.F.) | K12 (H.) |
|-----|-------|-------------------|-------------|-----------------------|--------------|
| 10. | ,4.8 | .03632 | .03350 | .01888 | .01838 |
| 10. | ,4.9 | .01187 | .08864 | .02336 | .02283 |
| 10. | ,5.0 | 06005 | 04903 | .02710 | .02646 |
| 100 | 100 | (90) (100) () | | Capacity alleres | Eline by for |
| 10. | ,10.0 | .1010 (-04) | .2317 (-05) | .4748 (-05) | .6591 (-06) |
| 10. | ,10.1 | .9331 (-05) | .1926 (-05) | .3549 (-05) | .4705 (-06) |
| 10. | ,10.2 | .7946 (-05) | .1512 (-05) | .2624 (-05) | .3321 (-06) |
| 10. | ,10.3 | .6447 (-05) | .1144 (-05) | .1922 (-05) | .2323 (-06) |
| 10. | ,10.4 | .5065 (-05) | .8433 (-05) | .1398 (-05) | .1613 (-06) |

The numbers in parentheses denote the power of 10 by which the equivalent entries should be multiplied.

3.4 Use of the Visual Display Device.

The geometric characteristics of the kernels can easily be verified by the visual display device. K_{12} , \tilde{K}_{12} and K_{22} are continuous and exponentially decaying asymptotically. Figure 3-1 presents photographs of $K_{12}^{(1)}(1\cdot r, \sigma)$ and $K_{12}^{(2)}(1\cdot r, \sigma)$ for $\sigma = 0$ ($\cdot \sigma s$)5 which clearly show the discontinuities of $K_{12}^{(2)}$ at $\sigma = \cdot 9$ and $1\cdot r$.

 $K_{12}^{(1)}$ is seen to be continuous and both functions exhibit the correct exponential decay.

Figure 3-2 presents photographs of $K_{22}^{(1)}(3\cdot5,\sigma)$ and $K_{22}^{(2)}(3\cdot5,\sigma)$ for $\sigma = O(\cdot1)10$ which again show the single discontinuity of $K_{22}^{(2)}$ at $\sigma = 3\cdot5$ and the smaller magnitude of the kernel for

one of the arguments large.

A simple code was written to transpose K_{12} and Figure 3-3 presents photographs of $\widetilde{K}_{12}^{(1)}(1\cdot\vartheta,\sigma)$ and $\widetilde{K}_{12}^{(2)}(1\cdot\vartheta,\sigma)$ for $\sigma = O(\cdot os)s$. In this case the discontinuities are at $\sigma = 1\cdot\vartheta$ and 3.6.

Figure 3-4 presents photographs of $K_{12}^{(2)}(1.8,\sigma)$ and $\widetilde{K}_{12}^{(2)}(1.8,\sigma)$ for $\sigma = O(.05) S$ produced from the Hylleraas Helium function which can be compared to Figures 3-1 and 3-3. The K_{12} curves are very similar but the \widetilde{K}_{12} curves are a different shape near the second discontinuity point.

By inspection of Figures 3-1 to 3-4 it is clear that, after a certain value of σ , a larger step size would have been adequate for all three kernels. This value of σ can easily be determined by using the graphical display.





Figure 3-1 The upper photograph shows $K_{12}^{(a)}(1.8,\sigma)$ for $\sigma = 0(.05)5$. The lower photograph shows $K_{12}^{(i)}(1.8,\sigma)$ for $\sigma = 0(.05)5$.



Figure 3-2 The upper photograph shows $K_{aa}^{(a)}(3.5,\sigma)$ for $\sigma=0(.1)10$. The lower photograph shows $K_{aa}^{(0)}(3.5,\sigma)$ for $\sigma=0(.1)10$.





Figure 3-4 The upper photograph shows $K_{12}^{(a)}(1.8,\sigma)$ for $\sigma=0(.05)5$. The lower photograph shows $\tilde{K}_{12}^{(a)}(1.8,\sigma)$ for $\sigma=0(.05)5$.

Initially K_{12} and K_{22} were generated at a constant step length of .1 but the visual display device demonstrated this to be inadequate near the points lacking a first derivative. After examination of successive graphs it was decided to generate K_{12} (and therefore \widetilde{K}_{12}) at intervals of .05 for γ and $\sigma \leq 5$. Because of the complexity of K_{22} and the large amount of computer time required to generate it, K_{22} was tabulated for the constant step length of .1 and was interpolated for the half-values later in the iteration code.

A further interesting fact brought to light by the graphical displays was the comparatively large size of the kernels when both arguments are large, even though the kernels are almost zero for one argument large but the other small. K_{12} was therefore tabulated out to x = 32 and $\sigma = 17.5$ and K_{12} out to x = $\sigma = 11.6$. At these distances both kernels were of the order of 10^{-9} .

and the branching of the orientians are defined of physical ent.

CHAPTER IV

ALGORITHM FOR COUPLED INTEGRO-DIFFERENTIAL EQUATIONS

4.1 Matching Procedure and Iteration Strategy.

The algorithm described in this section is the matching algorithm (19) of Smith and Burke. The system under consideration is a set of M second order ordinary integro-differential equations:

$$\frac{d^{a}}{dx^{a}} F_{i}(x) = \sum_{j=1}^{M} U_{ij}(x) F_{j}(x)$$

where
$$U_{ij}(x) = -k_i \delta_{ij} - V_{ij}(x)$$

and $\bigvee_{ij}(x)$ may be either short range exponentially decaying potentials or integral operators. Let there be NA positive k_{μ}^{2} (open channels) and therefore (M-NA) negative k_{τ}^{2} (closed channels). In this section it will be assumed that μ will take the values 1, 2, -----, NA and will be associated with open channels, τ will take the values 1, 2, ----, (M-NA) and will be associated with closed channels and i will take the values 1, 2, ----, M and will label the elements of the total solution vector.

The asymptotic form of the solutions are defined by physical considerations such that $F_{\mu}(x)$ will be oscillatory and $F_{\tau}(x)$ will decay exponentially. Each equation has two integration constants so 2M constants must be specified for any value of the independent variable x before the numerical solution can begin. If the closed channel functions are integrated out from the origin, they will asymptotically contain

149

4.1

4.2

 $\begin{array}{c} +|k_{\tau}|\times & -|k_{\tau}|\times \\ \text{the components e} & \text{and e} & & \text{In a numerical calculation} \\ +|k_{\tau}|\times & \text{will soon swamp that of e} \\ \text{in order to obtain a physically meaningful solution, } F_{\tau}(x) must decay exponentially at large x. To avoid the numerical difficulty encountered in outward integration into the asymptotic domain, we show below, in section (a), how linearly independent outward solutions are generated starting at the origin and integrating out to some point <math>r_{M}$ where the $+|k_{\tau}|^{\times}$ is not too dominant, while other linearly independent inward solutions are generated starting at the asymptotic distance r_{R} and integrating inwards to r_{M} . The required solution over the whole range of x is some linear combination of the outward solutions and a different linear combination of the inward solutions. The linear co-efficients are determined by matching the solutions and their derivatives at $r = r_{M}$ and imposing an overall normalization condition.

It is known that we require solutions of equation (4.1) which have the form:

$$F_{\mu}^{\nu}(x) \sim k_{\mu}^{-\frac{1}{4}} \left[\delta_{\mu\nu} \sin k_{\mu} x + R_{\mu\nu} \cos k_{\mu} x \right]$$
 4.3

for $k_{\mu}^{2} > 0$ and μ , $\nu = 1, 2, \dots$, NA and $\underline{dF_{\tau}}(x) = |k_{\tau}|F_{\tau}(x)$ for $k_{\tau}^{2} < 0$ 4.4

where $R_{\mu\nu}$ is the real symmetric Reactance or R-matrix from which we obtain the cross-sections. These asymptotic forms are a linear

-Ikz x superposition of the functions $sin k_{\mu} x$, $cos k_{\mu} x$ and Consequently, the problem at hand is to construct the correct linear combination of these basis functions. It can be seen that there is not a single set of the solution vector $\{F_{i}(x)\}$ where:

but NA such sets denoted by the superscript ϑ in equations (4.3) and (4.4). Alternatively, we can examine this problem from the standpoint of needing to find 2M integration constants for the system of equations.

(a) Solution of the System of Homogeneous Equations.

The system of homogeneous equations is obtained from equations (4.1) and (4.2) by setting all integral operators of $V_{ij}(x)$ to zero. A known boundary condition is:

 $F_i(x) = 0$ at x = 0 for i = 1, 2, ..., M 4. 4.6

where by $F_{:}(x)$ we mean the total solution vector $\{F_{:}(x)\}$ see equation (4.5). Therefore M of the 2M constants for the system of equations are known. The remaining M may be determined by specifying the derivatives of F : (x) at the origin. There are M linearly independent

4.5

ways of choosing these derivatives, designated by \measuredangle . They are chosen to be:

$$\left[\frac{dF_{i}^{(d)}(x)}{dx}\right]_{x=0} = \delta_{di} \qquad \text{for } x=1, 2, \dots, M \qquad 4.7$$

Using these boundary conditions we integrate out from the origin to compute the d families of solution vectors which we shall label $F_i^{(d)}$ As already pointed out, these solutions must be terminated at some point r_M and another set of solutions generated starting from the asymptotic distance r_A and integrating inwards. Asymptotic solutions of equation (4.1) will be:

$$F_{\tau}(x) \sim A_{\mu} \sin k_{\mu} x + B_{\mu} \cos k_{\mu} x \quad \text{for } k_{\mu}^{a} > 0 \qquad 4.8a$$

$$F_{\tau}(x) \sim C_{\tau} e^{-|k_{\tau}| x} \quad \text{for } k_{\tau}^{a} < 0 \qquad 4.8b$$

Thus (M-NA) constants have already been eliminated by specifying + $|k_{\tau}|_{\times}$ must be zero. There remain (M+NA) coefficients A_{μ} , B_{μ} and C_{τ} to determine. Setting A_{μ} , B_{μ} and C_{τ} equal to unity one at a time with the others zero will generate (M+NA) linearly independent solutions in the region $r_{M} \leq x \leq r_{R}$ denoted by $G_{\tau}^{(\beta)}(x)$ for $\beta = 1, 2, ----, (M NA)$.

Therefore :
$$\begin{bmatrix} A \\ M \\ B \\ M \\ C_{T} \end{bmatrix} = \delta_{j\beta} \quad \text{for } j = 1, 2, \dots, M + NH$$

4.9a

We can now construct any solution of the homogeneous portion of equation (4.1) by taking appropriate linear combinations of $F_i^{(\alpha)}$ and $f_i^{(\beta)}$ as follows:

General outward homogeneous solution =
$$\sum_{k=1}^{M} \overline{u}_{k} F_{i}^{(d)} F_{i}^{(d)}$$
 for $0 \le x \le r_{M}$ 4.10a
General inward homogeneous solution = $\sum_{\beta=1}^{M+NA} \overline{\omega}_{\beta} F_{i}^{(\beta)} F_{i}^{(\beta)}$ for $r_{M} \le x \le r_{A}$ 4.10b

where the superscript ϑ denotes that solution vector for the particular ϑ value.

Determination of the NA sets of (2M+NA) coefficients \overline{u}_{α} and $\overline{\omega}_{\beta}$.

for v=1, 2, ---, NA 4.11

The two solution vectors and their derivatives must match at $r_{\rm M}$ giving the following system of equations:

$$\sum_{\alpha=1}^{M} \overline{u}_{\alpha}^{(\nu)} \left[\overline{F}_{i}(x) \atop F_{i}(x) \right]_{x=r_{M}}^{(\alpha)} = \sum_{\beta=1}^{M+NR} \overline{w}_{\beta}^{(\nu)} \left[\begin{array}{c} G_{i}(x) \\ G_{i}(x) \end{array} \right]_{x=r_{M}}^{(\beta)}$$

where a prime denotes differentiation.

A further NA equations depending on v are required. The value of the inward solution for open channels, see equation (4.10b), at $x = r_{e}$ is:

M+NA

$$\sum_{\beta=1} \overline{w}_{\beta}^{(N)} G_{\mu}^{(\beta)}(r_{\beta}) = \overline{w}_{\mu}^{(N)} \operatorname{sink}_{\mu} r_{\beta} + \overline{w}_{\mu+N\beta} \operatorname{cosk}_{\mu} r_{\beta}$$

because of the construction of $\mathcal{G}_{\mu}^{(\beta)}$, see equation (4.9). But from equation (4.3) we require that:

$$F_{\mu}(x) \sim k_{\mu} \left[\delta_{\mu\nu} \sin k_{\mu} x + R_{\mu\nu} \cos k_{\mu} x \right] \quad \text{for } \nu = 1, 2, ..., NA$$

Therefore by comparing coefficients of $sink_{\mu}r_{A}$ and $cosk_{\mu}r_{A}$ we obtain the following:

$$\overline{w}_{\mu}^{(v)} = k_{\mu}^{-\frac{1}{2}} \overline{\delta}_{\mu\nu} \qquad 4.12a$$

$$\overline{w}_{\mu+NR}^{(v)} = k_{\mu}^{-\frac{1}{2}} \overline{R}_{\mu\nu} \qquad 4.12b$$

where $\overline{R}_{\mu\nu}$ is the R-matrix for the system of homogeneous equations.

Thus equation (4.12a) provides the necessary NA equations for each value of v. The NA sets of (2M+NA) equations determining $\overline{u}_{d}^{(v)}$ and $\overline{\omega}_{\beta}^{(v)}$ may be conveniently expressed in the following matrix form:



For example, to calculate the v = 2 solution vector, this system of equations is solved with $k_a^{-\frac{1}{2}}$ in the (2M+2)th. position of the right hand side column matrix and with zeros everywhere else. The R-matrix can then be determined using equation (4.12b).

(b) Solution of the System of Inhomogeneous Equations.

The matched homogeneous solutions are now substituted into the integral terms on the right hand side of equations (4.1). One outward solution vector $\oint_{i}^{(v)}(x)$ and one inward solution vector $\oint_{i}^{(v)}(x)$ is generated for each value of v. In other words, a particular integral is obtained so that we have:

General outward solution =
$$\int_{i}^{(n)} (x) + \sum_{d=1}^{M} u_{d} F_{i}^{(d)} for 0 \le x \le r_{M}$$
 4.14a
General inward solution = $\int_{i}^{(n)} (x) + \sum_{\beta=1}^{M+NR} w_{\beta} G_{i}^{(\beta)} (x) for r_{M} \le x \le r_{R}$ 4.14b

where we emphasise that $F_i^{(a)}$ and $G_i^{(\beta)}$ are the linearly independent

homogeneous solutions, not the matched homogeneous solutions. The coefficients $u_{\alpha}^{(\nu)}$ and $\omega_{\beta}^{(\nu)}$ are not the same as \overline{u}_{α} and $\overline{\omega}_{\beta}^{(\nu)}$ although the summations are still over the homogeneous solution vectors.

Determination of the NA sets of (2M+NA) coefficients
$$u_{\alpha}$$
 and ω_{β}

Imposing the same continuity conditions at r_{M} as in the homogeneous case we have:

$$\begin{bmatrix} \gamma_{i}^{(v)} \\ f_{i}^{(v)} \\ f_{i}^{(v)}$$

We have as yet to specify the boundary conditions that will be imposed on the particular integral. We will refer specifically to the nth. iterate $\int_{i}^{n} \frac{\gamma(\varphi)}{\chi}(x)$ for $0 \le x \le r_{M}$ and $\int_{i}^{n} \frac{\gamma(\varphi)}{\chi}(x)$ for $r_{M} \le x \le r_{R}$. We choose the value of the (n-1)th. total outward solution and its derivative at x=0 as the initial conditions for generating $\int_{i}^{n} \frac{\gamma(\varphi)}{\chi}(x)$ and the value of the (n-1)th. total outward solution and its derivative at $x = r_{R}$ as the initial conditions for generating $\int_{i}^{n} \frac{\varphi(\varphi)}{\chi}(x)$. That is:

$$f_{i}^{(n)}(x) = 0$$

 $\begin{bmatrix} n & y & (v) \\ J_{i} & (x) \end{bmatrix}_{x=0} = \begin{bmatrix} n-i & y & (v) \\ J_{i} & (x) \end{bmatrix}_{x=0} + \sum_{d=1}^{M} n-i & u_{d}^{(v)} \begin{bmatrix} F_{i}(x) \\ F_{i}(x) \end{bmatrix}_{x=0}^{(d)}$

for n > 1

$$= \sum_{d=1}^{M} \overline{u}_{d}^{(n)} \left[F_{i}'(x)\right]_{x=0}^{(d)}$$

1. 13)

whereby $u_{\alpha}^{(n)}$ we mean the (n-1)th iterated $u_{\alpha}^{(n)}$. But from equation (4.7) we see that $\left[\bar{F}_{i}'(x)\right]_{x=0}^{(d)} = \delta_{\alpha i}$ therefore the above equations can be rewritten as follows:

$$\int_{i}^{n} \frac{y(u)}{J_{i}} = 0$$
 at $x = 0$ 4.15a
$$\left[\int_{i}^{n} \frac{y(u)}{J_{i}} \right]_{x=0} = \left[\int_{i}^{n-1} \frac{y(u)}{J_{i}} \right]_{x=0} + \sum_{d=1}^{M} \int_{u_{d}}^{n-1} u_{d} \int_{d_{i}}^{u_{d}} for n \ge 1$$
 4.15b
$$= \sum_{d=1}^{M} \overline{u}_{d} \int_{d_{i}}^{u_{i}} for n = 1$$

The coefficients $\overline{u}_{\alpha}^{(n)}$ are defined in part (a) of this section. The asymptotic boundary conditions are:

$$\begin{bmatrix} n & G_{1}^{(N)} \\ g_{1}^{(N)} \end{bmatrix}_{x=r_{R}} = \begin{bmatrix} k_{\mu}^{-\frac{1}{2}} (\delta_{\mu\nu} \sin k_{\mu}r_{R} + R_{\mu\nu} \cos k_{\mu}r_{R}) \\ n-1 & G_{1}^{(N)} \\ g_{\tau}^{-1} (r_{R}) + \sum_{\beta}^{n-1} \begin{pmatrix} (\nu) \\ \omega_{\beta} \end{pmatrix} G_{\tau}^{-1} (r_{R}) \end{bmatrix}$$
for $n > 1$
$$= \begin{bmatrix} k_{\mu}^{-\frac{1}{2}} (\delta_{\mu\nu} \sin k_{\mu}r_{R} + \overline{R}_{\mu\nu} \cos k_{\mu}r_{R}) \\ M_{\mu}^{-1} (\delta_{\mu\nu} \sin k_{\mu}r_{R} + \overline{R}_{\mu\nu} \cos k_{\mu}r_{R}) \\ \sum_{\beta} \omega_{\beta} \end{pmatrix}$$
for $n = 1$
$$\sum_{\beta} \omega_{\beta}^{(N)} G_{\tau}^{-1} (r_{\beta}) \end{bmatrix}$$

 $R^{(n-1)}$ is the (n-1)th. iterated R-matrix obtained from the (n-1)th. total solution and \overline{R} is the R-matrix obtained from the homogeneous equations.

157

for n=1

Using equations (4.9) we can write $G_{\tau}^{(\beta)}(r_{A}) = S_{j\beta} e^{-|k_{\tau}|r_{A}}$ for $j = 2NA + 1, \dots, M + NA$ and therefore $G_{\tau}^{(\beta)}(r_{A}) = -|k_{\tau}| G_{\tau}^{(\beta)}(r_{A})$. We write the asymptotic boundary condition for the derivative as follows:

$${}^{n} \mathcal{G}_{i}^{(n)'}(x) = \begin{bmatrix} k_{jn}^{\frac{1}{n}} (\delta_{jnn} \cos k_{jn} r_{n} - R_{jnn}^{(n-1)} \sin k_{jn} r_{n} \\ n^{-1} \mathcal{G}_{\tau}^{(n)'}(r_{n}) - |R_{\tau}| \sum_{\beta} \sum_{\mu=1}^{n-1} \sum_{\nu=1}^{(n)} \mathcal{G}_{\tau}^{(\mu)}(r_{n}) \end{bmatrix}$$
 for $n > 1$

$$= \begin{bmatrix} k_{jn}^{\frac{1}{n}} (\delta_{jnn} \cos k_{jn} r_{n} - \overline{R}_{jnn} \sin k_{jn} r_{n}) \\ - |k_{\tau}| \sum_{\beta} \sum_{\mu=1}^{n-1} \overline{w}_{\beta} \mathcal{G}_{\tau}^{(\mu)}(r_{n}) \end{bmatrix}$$
 for $n = 1$

Consequently, the remaining NA matching equations are:

$$w_{\mu}^{(v)} = 0$$
 for $\mu = 1, 2, \dots, NA$ 4.16a

while the elements of the R-matrix are given by:

$$R_{\mu\nu}^{(n)} = R_{\mu\nu}^{(n-1)} + k_{\mu} \omega_{\mu+NR}^{\frac{1}{2}}$$
 (V)
4.16b

Here we have omitted the superscript n from the coefficients wWe will continue doing so unless we are referring to an iterate other than the nth.

In an analagous way to the homogeneous case, the NA sets of (2M + NA) equations determining $u_{\chi}^{(n)}$ and $\omega_{\beta}^{(n)}$ may be written in the following matrix form:



It should be noted that the $(2M + NA) \times (2M + NA)$ matching matrix is identical to the equivalent matrix in the homogeneous case, only the right hand side column matrix is different.

These matched solutions are now substituted into the integral terms of the right hand side of equation (4.1) and the process repeated until the R-matrix has converged. In other words, the nth. iterated solution ${}^{n} \mathcal{F}_{i}^{(4)}(x)$ is forced to have the asymptotic form given by equation (4.15) and the nth. iterated values at r_{M} are substituted into equation (4.17) yielding ${}^{n} u_{a}^{(N)}$ and ${}^{n} \omega_{\beta}^{(N)}$. The total contribution of the homogeneous solutions, that is $\sum_{\alpha} u_{\alpha}^{(N)} \left[\mathcal{F}_{i}(x) \right]^{(\beta)}$ and $\sum_{\beta} \omega_{\beta}^{(N)} \left[\mathcal{G}_{i}(x) \right]^{(\beta)}$ in equations (4.14), must tend toward zero as the particular integral approaches the required solution.

To make the iteration procedure transparent, we write the inhomogeneous system of equations in the form:

$$\frac{d^{2}}{dx^{2}} = F_{i}^{(4)}(x) + \sum_{j=1}^{M} V_{ij}(x) = U_{i}^{(4)}(x) = U_{i}^{(4)}(x)$$

ere
$${}^{n}U_{i}^{(v)}(x) = \sum_{j}\int_{a}^{\infty}K_{ij}(x,x') \cdot {}^{n-1}F_{j}^{(v)}(x')dx$$

whe

and n denotes the number of iterations performed.

In the inner region, $O \le x \le r_M$ we have:

$$\frac{d^{a}}{dx^{a}} + \frac{d^{(u)}}{dx^{(u)}}(x) + \sum_{j=1}^{M} V_{ij}(x) + \frac{d^{(u)}}{dx^{(u)}}(x) = \mathcal{U}_{i}^{(u)}(x)$$

and
$$\frac{d^2}{dx^2} \left[\sum_{d=1}^{M} u_d^{(v)} F_i^{(d)}(x) \right] + \sum_{d=1}^{M} V_{id}(x) \left[\sum_{d=1}^{M} u_d^{(v)} F_i^{(d)}(x) \right] = 0$$

which can be added together to give:

$$\frac{d^{2}}{dx^{2}}\left[\begin{array}{c} \frac{n}{2} \frac{\chi(v)}{dx} + \sum_{d=1}^{M} \frac{n}{u_{d}} \frac{(v)}{F_{i}} F_{i}^{(d)}(x)\right] + \sum_{d=1}^{M} V_{ij}(x) \left[\begin{array}{c} \frac{n}{2} \frac{\chi(v)}{dx} + \sum_{d=1}^{M} u_{d}^{(v)} F_{i}^{(d)}(x)\right] = \frac{n}{U_{i}} U_{ij}^{(v)}(x)$$

For convergence we have that:

and
$$\sum_{d=1}^{n} u_{d}^{(v)} \stackrel{n-1}{\longrightarrow} U_{i}^{(v)}(x) \xrightarrow{n} V_{i}^{(v)}(x)$$

$$u_{a}^{(v)} F_{i}^{(a)}(x) \xrightarrow{n>N} O$$

where for stability and accuracy we expect N < 20 .

(c) The Case of 1 Open and 1 Closed Channel.

This is the case when $k_1^2 > 0$ and $k_2^2 < 0$. The homogeneous equations are:

$$\frac{d^{2}}{dx^{a}} + V(x) + k_{1}^{a} = 0$$
4.18a

and

$$\left[\frac{d^{2}}{dx^{2}} + k_{a}^{2}\right]F_{a}(x) = 0$$
4.18b

To determine the outward solution in the range $0 \le x \le r_M$ we follow the process outlined in (a). Two solution vectors $F_i^{(d)} = \begin{bmatrix} F_i \\ F_k \end{bmatrix}^{(d)}$ for d = 1 and 2 are generated. By inspection of equation (4.18b) we $\begin{bmatrix} F_i \\ F_k \end{bmatrix}$ see that:

$$F_{a}^{(d)}(x) = A^{(d)} e^{|k_{a}|x} + B^{(d)} e^{-|k_{a}|x}$$

(d) (d) where A and B are four constants. But we choose the following boundary conditions:

$$f_{a}(x) = 0$$
 at x = 0 4.19a

and

$$4.19b$$

$$4.19b$$

which leads to $A^{(1)} = B^{(1)} = 0$ and $A^{(2)} = -B^{(2)} = \frac{1}{2|k_2|}$

It is known that $F_{i}^{(d)}(x)$ will be required for the numerical procedure and this is determined by equation (4.18a). That is,

 $F_{i}^{(d)}(x) = -(k_{i}^{2} + V(x))F_{i}^{(d)}(x)$ and thus the limiting value of $F_{i}^{(d)}(x)$ at x = 0 can be calculated, see section 4.2. We choose the linearly independent solutions by imposing the following boundary conditions:

$$F_{i}^{(d)}(x) = 0 \qquad \text{at } x = 0 \qquad 4.20a$$
and
$$\left[\frac{dF_{i}^{(d)}(x)}{dx}\right]_{x=0} = \delta_{d,i} \qquad 4.20b$$
Since
$$F_{i}^{(a)}(x) = F_{i}^{(a)}(x) = 0 \qquad \text{at } x = 0 \text{ it follows by}$$
the existence and uniqueness theorems that
$$F_{i}^{(a)}(x) = 0 \qquad \text{Therefore,}$$

we have the following:

1

$$F_{i}^{(i)}(x) = \begin{bmatrix} F_{i}^{(i)}(x) \\ 0 \end{bmatrix}$$

$$F_{i}^{(a)}(x) = \begin{bmatrix} 0\\ \frac{1}{a|k_{a}|} \left\{ e^{-k_{a}|x} - e^{-k_{a}|x} \right\} \end{bmatrix}$$

and $F_{i}^{(1)}(x)$ is generated using the boundary conditions given by equations (4.20).

To obtain the inward solution in the range $r_{M} \leq x \leq r_{A}$ we generate three solution vectors $G_{i}^{(\beta)} = \begin{bmatrix} G_{i} \end{bmatrix}_{j}^{(\beta)}$ for

 β = 1, 2 and 3. The following boundary conditions are known:

4.21a

4.21b

$$G_{(k)}^{(\beta)}(x) \sim A_{(k)}^{(\beta)} \sin k_{i} x + B_{(k)}^{(\beta)} \cos k_{i} x$$

and $G_{a}^{(\beta)}(x) \sim C_{a}^{(\beta)} e^{-|k_{2}|x|}$

where $A_{1}^{(\beta)}$, $B_{1}^{(\beta)}$ and $C_{\lambda}^{(\beta)}$ are nine constants. Setting:

$$\begin{bmatrix} A_{i} \\ B_{i} \\ C_{a} \end{bmatrix}^{(\beta)} = \delta_{\dot{a}\beta} \quad \text{for } \dot{b} = 1, 2 \text{ and } 3,$$

that is:
$$\begin{bmatrix} A_{i} \\ B_{i} \\ C_{a} \end{bmatrix}^{(i)} = \begin{bmatrix} I \\ 0 \\ 0 \end{bmatrix}, \begin{bmatrix} A_{i} \\ B_{i} \\ C_{a} \end{bmatrix}^{(a)} = \begin{bmatrix} 0 \\ I \\ 0 \end{bmatrix}, \begin{bmatrix} A_{i} \\ B_{i} \\ C_{a} \end{bmatrix}^{(a)} = \begin{bmatrix} 0 \\ I \\ 0 \end{bmatrix}, \begin{bmatrix} A_{i} \\ B_{i} \\ C_{a} \end{bmatrix}^{(3)} = \begin{bmatrix} 0 \\ 0 \\ I \end{bmatrix}$$

we obtain the following:

$$\begin{aligned} \mathcal{G}_{i}^{(1)}(r_{R}) &= \begin{bmatrix} sink_{1}r_{R} \\ 0 \end{bmatrix} \\ \mathcal{G}_{i}^{(2)}(r_{R}) &= \begin{bmatrix} cosk_{1}r_{R} \\ 0 \end{bmatrix} \\ \mathcal{G}_{i}^{(3)}(r_{R}) &= \begin{bmatrix} 0 \\ -|k_{1}|r_{R} \\ e \end{bmatrix} \end{aligned}$$

$$4.22b$$

$$4.22b$$

$$4.22c$$

Starting with these values at $x = r_{R}$ we can generate the three solution vectors inward to $x = r_{M}$, The matching matrix equation (4.13) becomes:

$$\begin{bmatrix} F_{1}^{(1)}(x) & 0 & -G_{1}^{(1)}(x) & -G_{1}^{(2)}(x) & 0 \\ 0 & F_{2}^{(2)}(x) & 0 & 0 & -G_{2}^{(3)}(x) \\ F_{1}^{(1)}(x) & 0 & -G_{1}^{(1)}(x) & -G_{1}^{(2)}(x) & 0 \\ 0 & F_{2}^{(2)}(x) & 0 & 0 & -G_{2}^{(3)}(x) \\ 0 & 0 & 1 & 0 & 0 \end{bmatrix} \begin{bmatrix} \overline{u}_{1} \\ \overline{u}_{2} \\ \overline{u}_{3} \\$$

and $\mathcal{R}_{i,i} = k_i^{\frac{1}{2}} \overline{\mathcal{D}}_{a}$. In this particular case the R-matrix consists of one element only so the subscripts will be omitted from now on.

Therefore, the matched and normalized solution $F_{i}(x)$ to be used in the integral terms of equation (4.1) will be:

$$F_{i}(x) = \begin{bmatrix} \overline{u}, \overline{F}_{i}^{(i)}(x) \\ 0 \end{bmatrix} \qquad 0 \le x \le r_{M} \qquad 4.24a$$
$$= \begin{bmatrix} \overline{u}, \mathcal{G}_{i}^{(i)}(x) + \overline{u}_{a} \mathcal{G}_{i}^{(a)}(x) \\ 0 \end{bmatrix} \qquad r_{M} \le x \le r_{B} \qquad 4.24b$$

Since we know that the only solution of $F_a(x)$ that is consistent with both sets of boundary conditions is $F_a(x) \equiv 0$ then the coefficients \overline{u}_a and $\overline{\omega}_3$ must be zero also - a self consistency numerical feature that the computer code exhibits correctly.

To obtain the particular integral for the inhomogeneous equations, the solution vector $F_i(x)$ given by equations (4.24) is substituted into the integral terms of equation (4.1) and one outward solution vector $f_i(x)$ and one inward solution vector $f_i(x)$ is generated. The boundary conditions given by equations (4.15) become:

$${}^{n} \int_{C} (x) = 0 \qquad \text{at: } x=0$$

$$\left[{}^{n} \int_{C} (x)\right]_{x=0} = \left[{}^{n-1} \int_{C} (x)\right]_{x=0} + \sum_{d=1}^{2} {}^{n-1} u_{d} \delta_{d,1} \qquad \text{for } n>1$$

$$= \sum_{d=1}^{2} \overline{u}_{d} \delta_{d,1} \qquad \text{for } n=1$$

$$\left[{}^{n} \int_{C} (x)\right]_{x=r_{n}} = \left[{}^{n-\frac{1}{2}} \int_{C} (x)k_{1}r_{n} + k^{n-1} cosk_{1}r_{n} \\ {}^{n-1} \int_{d} (x)r_{n} + {}^{n-1} u_{n} e^{-1k_{n}r_{n}} \\ {}^{n-1} \int_{d} (x)r_{n} + {}^{n-1} u_{n} e^{-1k_{n}r_{n}} \\ \end{array}\right] \qquad \text{for } n>1$$

$$= \left[{}^{n} \int_{C} (x) \int_{x=r_{n}} e^{-\frac{1}{2}} \int_{C} (x)k_{1}r_{n} + k^{n-1} cosk_{1}r_{n} \\ {}^{n-1} \int_{d} (x)r_{n} + {}^{n-1} u_{n} e^{-1k_{n}r_{n}} \\ \end{array}\right] \qquad \text{for } n=1$$

$$= \left[{}^{n} \int_{C} (x) \int_{x=r_{n}} e^{-\frac{1}{2}} \int_{C} (x)k_{1}r_{n} - k^{n-1} cosk_{1}r_{n} \\ {}^{n-1} \int_{d} (x)r_{n} - k^{n-1} cosk_{1}r_{n} \\ \end{array}\right] \qquad \text{for } n=1$$

$$= \left[{}^{n} \int_{C} (x) \int_{C} e^{-\frac{1}{2}} \int_{C$$

Following the method outlined in (b) the column matrix on the right hand side of equation (4.17) will be:

$$\begin{bmatrix} G_{1}(x) - J_{1}(x) \\ G_{2}(x) - J_{2}(x) \\ G_{3}'(x) - J_{4}'(x) \\ G_{3}'(x) - J_{4}'(x) \\ 0 \end{bmatrix}_{x=x}$$

and the matching matrix is defined by equations (4.23). The coefficients u_1 , u_2 , w_2 and w_3 determine the matched solution vector given by:

$${}^{n}F_{1}(x) = \begin{bmatrix} {}^{n}Y_{1}(x) + u_{1}F_{1}^{(1)}(x) \\ {}^{n}Y_{2}(x) + u_{2}F_{2}^{(2)}(x) \end{bmatrix}$$
 for $0 \le x \le r_{M}$ 4.25a
$$= \begin{bmatrix} {}^{n}G_{1}(x) + u_{2}G_{1}^{(2)}(x) \\ {}^{n}G_{2}(x) + u_{3}G_{2}^{(2)}(x) \end{bmatrix}$$
 for $r_{M} \le x \le r_{R}$ 4.25b

This process is repeated until the R-matrix converges.

(d) The Case of 2 Open Channels.

Here both k, and k_2 are positive and the homogeneous equations are given by equations (4.18). By inspection of equation (4.18b) we see that:

$$F_a^{(\alpha)}(x) = A_a^{(\alpha)} \operatorname{sin} k_a x + B_a^{(\alpha)} \operatorname{cosk}_a x$$

where $A_{a}^{(d)}$ and $B_{a}^{(d)}$ are 4 constants. But we choose the boundary conditions:

$$F_{i}^{(d)}(x) = 0 \qquad \text{at } x = 0 \qquad 4.26a$$

and $\left[\frac{d}{dx}F_{i}^{(d)}(x)\right]_{x=0} = \delta_{di}$
 $4.26b$

therefore $F_a^{(1)}(x) = k_a^{-1} \sin k_a x$ Because of equation (4.26) $F_a^{(a)}(x) = 0$ also so we have the following:

$$F_{i}^{(1)}(x) = \begin{bmatrix} F_{i}^{(1)}(x) \\ 0 \end{bmatrix}$$

$$4.27a$$

$$F_{i}^{(a)}(x) = \begin{bmatrix} 0 \\ k, \quad sink, x \end{bmatrix}$$

$$4.27b$$

To obtain the inward solution in the range $r_M \leq x \leq r_A$

we generate four solution vectors
$$G_{i}^{(\beta)}(x) = \begin{bmatrix} G_{i}(x) \\ G_{i}(x) \end{bmatrix}^{(\beta)}$$
 for

 $\beta = 1, 2, 3$ and 4. The following boundary conditions are known:

$$G_{i}^{(\beta)}(x) \sim A_{i}^{(\beta)} smk_{i}x + B_{i}^{(\beta)} cosk_{i}x$$

where $A_{i}^{(\beta)}$ and $B_{i}^{(\beta)}$ are sixteen constants. Setting

$$\begin{bmatrix} A_{i} \\ B_{i} \end{bmatrix}^{(\beta)} = \begin{bmatrix} A_{i} \\ A_{a} \\ B_{i} \\ B_{a} \end{bmatrix}^{(\beta)} = \begin{vmatrix} \delta_{i\beta} \\ \beta_{i\beta} \end{vmatrix} \quad \text{for } i = 1, 2, 3 \text{ and } 4$$

we obtain the following:

$$\begin{array}{c} G_{i}^{(1)} \\ G_{i}^{(1)} \\ G_{i}^{(1)} \\ G_{i}^{(1)} \\ G_{i}^{(2)} \\ G_{i}^{(2)} \\ G_{i}^{(2)} \\ G_{i}^{(2)} \\ G_{i}^{(3)} \\ G_{i}^{($$

By inspection of (4.18b) it can be seen that $G_{\lambda}^{(3)}(x) = \sin k_{\lambda} x$ and $G_{\lambda}^{(4)}(x) = \cos k_{\lambda} x$ are solutions for all x and since there is no term in $\cos k_{\lambda} x$ in the outward solutions given by equations (4.27), the coefficients of this term, $\overline{w}_{\mu}^{(\nu)}$, in the matching equation must vanish. Applying this to equation (4.12b) we see that $\overline{R}_{\lambda} = \overline{R}_{\lambda\lambda} = 0$ It follows from the symmetry of the R-matrix that $\overline{R}_{1\lambda} = 0$. This is a further self-consistency numerical feature that the computer code exhibits correctly. Starting with the above values for $G_i^{(\beta)}(r_A)$ we can generate the four solution vectors inward to $x = r_M$. The matching matrix equation (4.13) becomes:



Therefore the matched and normalised solution $F_{i}^{(v)}(x)$ to be used in the integral terms of equation (4.1) is:

$$F_{i}^{(v)}(x) = \begin{bmatrix} u_{i}^{(v)} F_{i}^{(i)}(x) \\ u_{i}^{(v)} F_{i}^{(a)}(x) \end{bmatrix}$$
 for 4.28a

 $= \left[\overline{\omega}_{1}^{(4)} \mathcal{C}_{1}^{(1)} (x) + \overline{\omega}_{2} \mathcal{C}_{1}^{(2)} (x) \\ \overline{\omega}_{3}^{(4)} \mathcal{C}_{2}^{(3)} (x) \right]$

which the state

for

4.28b

To obtain the particular integral for the inhomogeneous equations, equations (4.28) are substituted into the integral terms of equations (4.1) and a single outward solution vector $f_{i}^{(v)}(x)$ and a single inward solution vector $\begin{cases} \begin{pmatrix} v \\ i \end{pmatrix} \\ k \end{pmatrix}$ is generated for each value of v = 1and 2. The boundary conditions are:

$$\begin{split} \overset{n}{J}_{i} \overset{(v)}{(x)} = 0 \quad \text{at } x = 0 \\ \begin{bmatrix} n & \downarrow_{i} (v)' \\ \vdots & \downarrow_{i} (x) \end{bmatrix}_{x=0} = \begin{bmatrix} n-1 & \downarrow_{i} (v)' \\ \vdots & \downarrow_{i} (x) \end{bmatrix}_{x=0} + \sum_{d=1}^{2} n-1 & \downarrow_{d} (v) \\ = \sum_{d=1}^{2} \overline{u}_{d} (v) \\ d_{d} d_{d} \end{bmatrix} \quad \text{for } n > 1 \\ = \sum_{d=1}^{2} \overline{u}_{d} (v) \\ \int_{d} (v)' \\ f_{i} (v)' \\ f_{i} (v)' \\ f_{i} (x) \end{bmatrix}_{x=r_{A}} = \begin{bmatrix} \sum_{d=1}^{2} (sink_{i}r_{A} \cdot \delta_{iv} + R_{iv} cosk_{i}r_{A}) \\ R_{i} (cosk_{i}r_{A} \cdot \delta_{iv} - R_{iv} sink_{i}r_{A}) \end{bmatrix} \quad \text{for } n > 1 \\ \end{cases}$$

where $R \stackrel{(\circ)}{=} \overline{R}$, the matrix obtained from the homogeneous equations. Therefore the column matrix on the right hand side of equation (4.17) will be:

 $R_{\mu\nu}^{(n-1)} + k_{\mu} \frac{1}{\omega_{\mu+2}}$

and

R (n) R "11 The coefficients $u_1^{(4)}$, $u_2^{(4)}$ and w_3 ($w_1^{(4)} = w_2^{(4)} = 0$ from equation (4.16a) and $w_4^{(4)} = 0$ as explained previously) determine the matched solution vectors ${}^{n}F_i^{(4)}(x)$ given by:

$${}^{n} F_{i}^{(v)}(x) = \begin{bmatrix} {}^{n} \psi_{i}^{(v)} & {}^{(v)} F_{i}^{(i)}(x) \\ {}^{n} \int_{1}^{(v)} (x) + u_{i} F_{i}^{(v)}(x) \\ {}^{n} \int_{2}^{(v)} (x) + u_{i} F_{i}^{(v)}(x) \end{bmatrix}$$
 for $0 \le x \le r_{M}$ 4.29a
$$= \begin{bmatrix} {}^{n} e_{i}^{(v)} \\ {}^{0} e_{i}^{(v)}(x) \\ {}^{0} e_{i}^{(v)}(x) + u_{i} F_{i}^{(v)} e_{i}^{(3)} \\ {}^{0} e_{i}^{(v)}(x) + u_{i} F_{i}^{(v)} e_{i}^{(3)} \end{bmatrix}$$
 for $r_{M} \le x \le r_{A}$ 4.29b

To continue the iterative process the matched solutions given by equations (4.29) are substituted into the integral terms of equations (4.1) and the whole procedure repeated until the R-matrix converges.

4.2 Runga Kutta Method and Interpolation Formulae.

The Runga Kutta formula for integrating
$$\frac{dy}{dx} = f(x, y)$$

subject to the starting condition $y = y_{\circ}$ at $x = x_{\circ}$ is:

 $y_n + \frac{1}{6} (k_1 + 2k_2 + 2k_3 + k_4)$

where

$$k_{1} = hf(x_{n}, y_{n})$$

$$k_{2} = hf(x_{n} + \frac{h}{2}, y_{n} + \frac{k_{1}}{2})$$

$$k_{3} = hf(x_{n} + \frac{h}{2}, y_{n} + \frac{k_{2}}{2})$$

$$k_{4} = hf(x_{n} + h, y_{n} + k_{3})$$

and

Ł

4.30

With a second order differential equation $\frac{d^2y}{dx^2} = f(x, y)$ we

ate the Linth F (a) Vila) i stace V (a)

substitute $y_1 = \frac{dy}{dx}$ and transform the original second order differential equation into two coupled first order differential equations given by:

$$\frac{dy}{dx} = y_i$$

$$\frac{dy}{dx} = \int (x, y)$$

It can be seen that the initial values of y and $\frac{dy}{dx}$ at x = x. are required to start off the integration.

(a) Starting Values at the Origin For Equations (4.1).

We write equations (2.41a) and (2.48a) in the following form:

$$\frac{d^{2}}{dx^{a}}F_{i}(x) = -(k_{i}^{a}+V(x))F_{i}(x) - \int_{\sigma}^{\infty} d\sigma F_{a}(\sigma)K_{ia}(x,\sigma) \qquad 4.31a$$

$$\frac{d^{2}}{dx^{2}}F_{a}(x) = -k_{a}^{2}F_{a}(x) - \int_{\sigma}^{\infty} d\sigma F_{a}(\sigma)\widetilde{K}_{a}(x,\sigma) - \int_{\sigma}^{\infty} d\sigma F_{a}(\sigma)K_{aa}(x,\sigma)$$
4.31b

The system of homogeneous equations will be:

$$\frac{d^{2}}{dx^{2}}F_{1}^{(0)}(x) = -(k_{1}^{2} + V(x))F_{1}^{(0)}(x)$$
4.32a
$$\frac{d^{2}}{dx^{2}}F_{2}^{(0)}(x) = -k_{a}^{2}F_{a}^{(0)}(x)$$

The boundary conditions are specified by equations (4.20) and these ensure that $F_{a}^{(o) \, \prime \prime}(x=0) = 0$, where a double prime denotes the second derivative. To find the value of $F_{t}^{(o) \, \prime \prime}(x=0)$ we must calculate the Limit $F_{t}^{(o)}(x) \, \forall (x)$ since $\forall (x) \sim \frac{1}{x \to 0} = \frac{1}{x}$.

Using equation (2.36) we see that:

$$x V(x) = -4N^{a} \left[\frac{e^{-2ax}}{4a} \left(x + \frac{1}{a} \right) + \frac{Ce^{-2bx}}{4b^{a}} \left(x + \frac{1}{b} \right) + \frac{2Ce^{-(a+b)x}}{(a+b)^{a}} \left(x + \frac{2}{a} \right) \right]$$

Since $F_{1}(x) \sim x$ we have the following:

 $\underset{x \to 0}{\text{Limit}} F_{i}^{(0)}(x) V(x) = \underset{x \to 0}{\text{Limit}} x V(x) = -4N^{2} \left[\frac{1}{4a^{3}} + \frac{c^{2}}{4b^{3}} + \frac{4c}{(a+b)^{3}} \right]$

= -4 since
$$N^{-a} = \frac{1}{4a^3} + \frac{C^a}{4b^3} + \frac{4C}{(a+b)^3}$$

Therefore $F_{1}^{(0)}(x=0) = -4$

It has been shown in section 3.1 that $K_{12}(0,\sigma) \neq 0$ for $\sigma \neq 0$ therefore there will be a contribution to $F_1''(x=0)$ from the integral term in equation (4.31a). It was also shown in section 3.1

173

4.320

 $K_{aa}(0,\sigma) = K_{ab}(\sigma,0) = 0$ for all values of σ . that $K_{12}(\sigma, 0) = 0$ it follows that $\widetilde{K}_{12}(o, \sigma) = K_{12}(\sigma, 0) = 0$ Since for all values of σ therefore there is no contribution to $F_2''(x=0)$ from the integral terms in equation (4.31b).

It can be seen that we require values of f(x) at x = nh where n is a positive, odd integer. In the positron - Helium problem f consists of integrals that cannot be solved in closed form therefore they must be tabulated for set values of x. The required values at $x = \underline{nh}$ can then be acquired through interpolation. We use Newton's forward Interpolation formula:

$$\int (x) = \int_{0}^{\infty} + s \Delta \int_{0}^{\infty} \frac{1}{s(s-1)} \Delta^{2} \int_{0}^{\infty} + \frac{s(s-1)(s-2)}{s} \Delta^{3} \int_{0}^{\infty} + \cdots - \cdots - \frac{1}{s}$$

2

where $\int_{o} \equiv \int (x_{o})$ and

$$\Delta f_{\circ} = f_{1} - f_{\circ}$$

$$\Delta^{a} f_{\circ} = \Delta f_{1} - \Delta f_{\circ} = f_{a} - \lambda f_{1} + f_{\circ}$$

$$\Delta^{n} f_{\circ} = \Delta^{n-1} f_{1} - \Delta^{n-1} f_{\circ}$$

In particular Newton's forward quartic interpolation formula reduces to:

$$f(x_{o}+sh) = (s-1)(s-2)(s-3)(s-4)f_{o} - s(s-2)(s-3)(s-4)f_{o} + 4!$$

$$s(s-1)(s-3)(s-4)f_{2} - s(s-1)(s-2)(s-4)f_{3} + s(s-1)(s-2)(s-3)f_{4} + 33$$

$$2! \qquad 3! \qquad 4!$$

4.3 Numerical Checking Procedures.

The equations under consideration are:

. 00

$$\left[\frac{d^{2}}{dx^{2}} + V(x) + k_{1}^{2}\right]F_{1}(x) = D(x)$$
4.34a

$$\begin{bmatrix} \frac{d^{2}}{dx^{2}} + k_{2}^{2} \end{bmatrix} F_{a}(x) = E(x) + H(x)$$
4.34b

where
$$D(x) = -\int_{0}^{1} F_{2}(\sigma) K_{12}(x, \sigma) d\sigma$$
 4.35a

$$E(x) = -\int F_{1}(\sigma) \widetilde{K}_{12}(x,\sigma) d\sigma$$
 4.350

$$H(x) = -\int_{a}^{\infty} F_{a}(s) K_{aa}(x, \sigma) ds \qquad 4.35c$$

The integrands of D(x), E(x) and H(x) are discontinuous at well defined points which necessitate dividing the integration into several regions. Simpson's rule in the following two forms was used:

n even
$$\int_{x}^{x+nh} f(y) dy = \frac{h}{3} (f_0 + 4f_1 + 2f_2 + \dots + 4f_{n-1} + f_n) 4.36a$$

175

$$\frac{n \text{ odd}}{x} \int_{x}^{x+nh} f(y) \, dy = \frac{h}{24} \left(9f_0 + 28f_1 + 23f_2 + 24f_3 - - 24f_{n-3} + 23f_{n-2} + 28f_{n-1} + 9f_n\right) + 9f_n$$

where $\int_{0}^{\infty} = f(x)$, $f_{1} = f(x+h)$ etcetera.

At the beginning and end of the integration range it was necessary to use Simpson's rule of integration over one interval only as follows:



$$A = \int_{x+b}^{x+b} f(y) dy = \frac{h}{12} \left(-f_0 + 8f_1 + 5f_2 \right)$$

Because of the variation in step length of K_{1a} and therefore \widetilde{K}_{1a} (see Chapter III) the following single-interval formula was used:



$$A_{1} = \int_{x-h} f(y) dy = \frac{h}{36} \left\{ 16f(x-h) + 21f(x) - f(x+2h) \right\}$$
 4.36d

1.1

4.36c

$$A_{2} = \int_{x}^{x+2h} f(y) dy = \frac{h}{q} \left\{ -4f(x-h) + 15f(x) + 7f(x+2h) \right\}$$
 4.36e

The kernel $K_{12}(x,\sigma)$ is discontinuous at $\sigma = \frac{x}{2}$ (as well as at $\sigma = x$) and all of these half-values are not tabulated. The following formula was therefore derived:



Total Area = $\int_{x-h}^{x+2h} f(y) dy = \frac{3h}{g} \left\{ f(x-h) + 3f(x) + 3f(x+h) + f(x+2h) \right\} 4.36f$

It is interesting to note that the value of the function at the half-value $(x+\frac{h}{2})$ is not required. The only value of x for which this could not be applied was x = .05. The value of K_{12} (.05,.025) was calculated using a quartic interpolation formula, see section 4.2:

$$\begin{split} \mathcal{D}(\cdot \circ s) &= \int_{0}^{\infty} F_{2}(\sigma) K_{12}(\cdot \circ s, \sigma) d\sigma \\ &= \underbrace{(\cdot \circ s)}_{4} \left\{ 2F_{2}(\cdot \circ 2s) K_{12}(\cdot \circ s, \cdot \circ 2s) + F_{2}(\cdot \circ s) K_{12}(\cdot \circ s, \cdot \circ s) \right\} + \int_{0}^{\infty} F_{2}(\sigma) K_{12}(\cdot \circ s, \sigma) d\sigma \\ &= \underbrace{(\cdot \circ s)}_{4} \left\{ 2F_{2}(\cdot \circ 2s) K_{12}(\cdot \circ s, \cdot \circ 2s) + F_{2}(\cdot \circ s) K_{12}(\cdot \circ s, \cdot \circ s) \right\} + \int_{0}^{\infty} F_{2}(\sigma) K_{12}(\cdot \circ s, \sigma) d\sigma \\ &= \underbrace{(\cdot \circ s)}_{4} \left\{ 2F_{2}(\cdot \circ 2s) K_{12}(\cdot \circ s, \cdot \circ 2s) + F_{2}(\cdot \circ s) K_{12}(\cdot \circ s, \cdot \circ s) \right\} + \int_{0}^{\infty} F_{2}(\sigma) K_{12}(\cdot \circ s, \cdot \sigma) d\sigma \\ &= \underbrace{(\cdot \circ s)}_{4} \left\{ 2F_{2}(\cdot \circ 2s) K_{12}(\cdot \circ s, \cdot \circ 2s) + F_{2}(\cdot \circ s) K_{12}(\cdot \circ s, \cdot \circ s) \right\} + \int_{0}^{\infty} F_{2}(\sigma) K_{12}(\cdot \circ s, \cdot \circ s) d\sigma \\ &= \underbrace{(\cdot \circ s)}_{4} \left\{ 2F_{2}(\cdot \circ 2s) K_{12}(\cdot \circ s, \cdot \circ 2s) + F_{2}(\cdot \circ s) K_{12}(\cdot \circ s, \cdot \circ s) \right\} + \int_{0}^{\infty} F_{2}(\sigma) K_{12}(\cdot \circ s, \cdot \circ s) d\sigma \\ &= \underbrace{(\cdot \circ s)}_{4} \left\{ 2F_{2}(\cdot \circ 2s) K_{12}(\cdot \circ s, \cdot \circ 2s) + F_{2}(\cdot \circ s, \cdot \circ s) \right\} + \underbrace{(\cdot \circ s)}_{0} \left\{ F_{2}(\cdot \circ s, \cdot \circ s) + F_{2}(\cdot \circ s, \cdot \circ s) \right\} + \underbrace{(\cdot \circ s, \cdot \circ s)}_{0} \left\{ F_{2}(\cdot \circ s, \cdot \circ s) + F_{2}(\cdot \circ s, \cdot \circ s) \right\} + \underbrace{(\cdot \circ s, \cdot \circ s)}_{0} \left\{ F_{2}(\cdot \circ s, \cdot \circ s) + F_{2}(\cdot \circ s, \cdot \circ s) \right\} + \underbrace{(\cdot \circ s, \cdot \circ s)}_{0} \left\{ F_{2}(\cdot \circ s, \cdot \circ s) + F_{2}(\cdot \circ s, \cdot \circ s) \right\} + \underbrace{(\cdot \circ s, \cdot \circ s)}_{0} \left\{ F_{2}(\cdot \circ s, \cdot \circ s) + F_{2}(\cdot \circ s, \cdot \circ s) \right\} + \underbrace{(\cdot \circ s, \cdot \circ s)}_{0} \left\{ F_{2}(\cdot \circ s, \cdot \circ s) + F_{2}(\cdot \circ s, \cdot \circ s) \right\} + \underbrace{(\cdot \circ s, \cdot \circ s)}_{0} \left\{ F_{2}(\cdot \circ s, \cdot \circ s) + F_{2}(\cdot \circ s, \cdot \circ s) \right\} + \underbrace{(\cdot \circ s, \cdot \circ s)}_{0} \left\{ F_{2}(\cdot \circ s, \cdot \circ s) + F_{2}(\cdot \circ s, \cdot \circ s) \right\} + \underbrace{(\cdot \circ s, \cdot \circ s)}_{0} \left\{ F_{2}(\cdot \circ s, \cdot \circ s) + F_{2}(\cdot \circ s, \cdot \circ s) \right\} + \underbrace{(\cdot \circ s, \cdot \circ s)}_{0} \left\{ F_{2}(\cdot \circ s, \cdot \circ s) \right\} + \underbrace{(\cdot \circ s, \cdot \circ s)}_{0} \left\{ F_{2}(\cdot \circ s, \cdot \circ s) + F_{2}(\cdot \circ s, \cdot \circ s) \right\} + \underbrace{(\cdot \circ s, \cdot \circ s)}_{0} \left\{ F_{2}(\cdot \circ s, \cdot \circ s) + F_{2}(\cdot \circ s) \right\} + \underbrace{(\cdot \circ s, \cdot \circ s)}_{0} \left\{ F_{2}(\cdot \circ s, \cdot \circ s) \right\} + \underbrace{(\cdot \circ s, \cdot \circ s)}_{0} \left\{ F_{2}(\cdot \circ s, \cdot \circ s) \right\} + \underbrace{(\cdot \circ s, \cdot \circ s)}_{0} \left\{ F_{2}(\cdot \circ s) + F_{2}(\cdot \circ s) \right\} + \underbrace{(\cdot \circ s, \cdot \circ s)}_{0} \left\{ F_{2}(\cdot \circ s) + F_{2}(\cdot \circ s) \right\} + \underbrace{(\cdot \circ s, \cdot \circ s)}_{0} \left\{ F_{2}(\cdot \circ s) + F_{2}(\cdot \circ s) \right\} + \underbrace{(\cdot \circ s, \cdot \circ s)}_{0} \left\{ F_{2}(\cdot \circ s) + F_{2}(\cdot \circ s) \right\} + \underbrace{(\cdot \circ s, \circ s)}_{0} \left\{ F_{2}(\cdot$$

where $F_{2}(.025) K_{12}(.05,.025)$ was calculated using $F_{2}(0) K_{12}(0,.5), F_{2}(.2) K_{12}(.2,.1), F_{2}(.4) K_{12}(.4,.2), F_{2}(.6) K_{12}(.6,.3)$ and $F_{2}(.8) K_{12}(.8,.4)$.

(a) The Functions D(x), F(x) and H(x).

By inspection of equations (4.35) it can be seen that the integrands of D(x), E(x) and H(x) are discontinuous at the points $\sigma = \frac{x}{2}$ and x; $\sigma = x$ and 2x; $\sigma = x$ respectively. Therefore three separate routines were written to calculate D, E and H.

Using equations (4.36a) and (4.36b) we define the following notation:

$$S_{1}^{h}(a,b) = \frac{h}{3} \left\{ f^{F}(a) + 4f^{F}(a+b) + 2f^{F}(a+2h) + \cdots + f^{F}(b) \right\}$$

$$S_{2}^{h}(a,b) = \frac{h}{24} \left\{ 9f^{F}(a) + 28f^{F}(a+b) + 23f^{F}(a+b) + 24f^{F}(a+3h) + 24f^{F}(a+4h) + \cdots + 24f^{F}(a+4h) + \cdots + 24f^{F}(b+2h) + 28f^{F}(b+h) + 9f^{F}(b) \right\}$$

$$\cdots + 24f^{F}(b-3h) + 23f^{F}(b-2h) + 28f^{F}(b-h) + 9f^{F}(b) \right\}$$

where F corresponds to either D, E or H and $\int_{\sigma}^{F} f(\sigma)$ represents the integrand of the corresponding integral. For example $\int_{\sigma}^{b} (\sigma) = -f_{2}(\sigma) K_{12}(x, \sigma)$.

Consider the case of D(4.95). The integrand $\int_{-\infty}^{\infty} f(\sigma) = -f_{\lambda}(\sigma) K_{\mu\nu}(4.95, \sigma)$ has singular first derivatives at the point $\sigma = 2.475$ (which is not tabulated) and the point $\sigma = 4.95$ (which is tabulated). As shown below, the integration must be split up into four sections, namely:

 $0 \le \sigma \le 2.475$ $2.475 \le \sigma \le 4.95$ $4.95 \le \sigma \le 5.0$ $5.0 \le \sigma \le 17.5$



The first two sections occur because of the singular first derivatives and the second two because of the change in step length at $\sigma = 5$ from .05 to .1. Using equations (4.36a), (4.36b), (4.36c) and (4.36f) we may write the following:

$$\mathcal{D}(4.95) = S_{1}^{05}(0,2.4) + \frac{3}{8}(.05) \left\{ \int_{0}^{1}(2.4) + 3\int_{0}^{1}(2.45) + 3\int_{0}^{1}(2.5) + \int_{0}^{1}(2.5) \right\}$$

+ $S_{1}^{05}(2.55,2.95) + \frac{(.05)}{36} \left\{ 16\int_{0}^{1}(4.95) + 21\int_{0}^{1}(5.0) - \int_{0}^{1}(5.1) \right\} + S_{2}^{1}(5.0,17.5)$

Similar formulae can be derived for E and H. Each integration routine was checked separately using a suitably discontinuous straight line graph. The case of D(x) will now be illustrated:





1-7 - .. The interpolat

Therefore the area A(x) under the graph is given by:

$$A(x) = \frac{x^{2}}{4} + 3x - 70 \qquad \text{for } 0 \le x \le 17.5$$
$$= -\frac{x^{2}}{4} - \frac{1225}{x} + \frac{33x}{2} - \frac{665}{8} \qquad \text{for } 17.5 < x$$

and the discontinuity at x = 17.5 is clearly demonstrated. Exact agreement was obtained on these checks.

(b) The Interpolation of
$$D(x)$$
, $E(x)$ and $H(x)$.

The same tests as illustrated in part (a) were used. Because the upper integration limit r_{max} must necessarily be taken as finite, the numerical integration introduces a further discontinuity in D and E.

As was shown in part (a), D(x) is discontinuous at x = 17.5since for x > 17.5 the discontinuity in the integrand at $\sigma = x$ is out of the range of integration. The interpolation of D(x)must therefore be split up into the following two sections:

La Farmer

The code allowed r to take any value between 18 and 32.

 $E_{(x)}$ will be discontinuous at the point $x = \underline{r}_{MRX}$ since for 2

 $x < \underline{r}_{MAX}$ the integrand has two discontinuities and for $x > \underline{r}_{MAX}$ 2

it has only one. Since \widetilde{K}_{12} is tabulated for $\gamma_{MRX} = 17.4$ therefore the discontinuity is fixed at x = 8.7. The interpolation of E(x)is performed as follows:

By inspaction of equation (N. 355) we use that F.

Since $K_{22}(x,\sigma)$ is discontinuous at $\sigma = x$ and is tabulated for x and $\sigma = \cdot 1 \rightarrow 11.6$, this discontinuity will always fall in the range of integration, thus H(x) will be continuous for all x in the range $O \le x \le 11.6$. (c) The Iteration Procedure for One Open and One Closed Channel.

We rewrite equations (4.1) in the following way:

$$\mathcal{L}, F_{1}^{(n)} = W_{12} F_{2}^{(n-1)}$$
 4.37a

$$L_2 F_a^{(n)} = W_{21} F_1^{(n-1)} + W_{22} F_2^{(n-1)}$$
 4.371

where $l_{i} = \frac{d^{2}}{dx^{2}} + V(x) \cdot \delta_{i1} + k_{i}^{2}$ i = 1, 2

an that F. () = F

In this case equation (4.37b) return

and W_{12} , W_{21} and W_{12} are the appropriate integral operators as defined in equations (4.1) The superscript *n* denotes the nth. iterate and it can be seen that the (n-1)th. functions are substituted into the right hand side of equations (4.37) to produce the nth. iterated functions.

To start the iterative procedure we set all integral operators to . zero and solve the following:

$$L_{1}F_{1}^{(0)} = 0$$
 4.38a
 $L_{2}F_{2}^{(0)} = 0$ 4.38b

By inspection of equation (4.38b) we see that $f_{2}^{(\circ)} \equiv 0$

The functions $\overline{F}_{1}^{(\circ)}$ and $\overline{F}_{2}^{(\circ)}$ are now substituted into the inhomogeneous terms of equations (4.37) giving the following:

$$\mathcal{L}_{1}F_{1}^{(1)} = W_{12}F_{2}^{(0)} = 0$$
 4.39a

$$\mathcal{L}_{a}F_{a}^{(1)} = W_{a1}F_{1}^{(0)} + W_{a2}F_{a}^{(0)} = W_{a1}F_{1}^{(0)}$$
 4.39b

It can be seen that equation (4.39b) is identical to equation (4.34a) so that $F_{,}^{(i)} = F_{,}^{(o)}$. We continue this process until the R-matrix-(defined in Chapter II) has converged.

An interesting symmetry arises if W_{22} is set equal to zero. In this case equation (4.37b) reduces to:

$$d_{2}F_{2}^{(2)} = W_{21}F_{1}^{(\prime)} = W_{21}F_{1}^{(\prime)} - \text{since } F_{1}^{(\prime)} = F_{1}^{(\prime)}$$

and this equation is identical to equation (4.39b). Therefore $F_2 \stackrel{(2)}{=} F_2^{(1)}$. Continuing the iterative process we reach the following result:

| for n odd |
|------------|
| for n even |
| |

replacing . W. F.

This feature of the iteration algorithm was displayed by the code.

Check on Equation (4.37a). Setting V(x) = 0, equation (4.37a) was solved with an inhomogeneous term:

$$\frac{x}{36}(x-3)(6-x)e^{-Ax}$$

replacing $W_{12} F_2^{(n-1)}$. To ensure the same boundary conditions as in the positron-Helium case, A was taken as 3. The particular integral $f_1(x)$ for the equation is:

$$\mathcal{F}_{1}(\mathbf{x}) = \left(a + b\mathbf{x} + c\mathbf{x}^{2} + d\mathbf{x}^{3}\right)e^{-3\mathbf{x}}$$

where $a = 2K^{2}(-7 + 10K - 18K^{2})$

$$b = K\left(-\frac{1}{2} + \frac{19K}{6} - 6K^{2}\right)$$
$$c = K\left(\frac{1}{4} - \frac{K}{2}\right)$$

 $d = -\frac{K}{36}$ $K = \frac{1}{k_1^{a} + 9}$

The general solution is given by:

$$F_{1}(x) = k_{1}^{-\frac{1}{4}} (sink_{1}x + Rcosk_{1}x) + H_{1}(x)$$

where R is the R-matrix which in this case is a scalar. The boundary condition $F_{i}(x=0) = 0$ gives $R = -k_{i}^{\frac{1}{2}} \alpha$.

Therefore
$$F_1(x) = k_1 \sin k_1 x - \alpha \cos k_1 x + f_1(x)$$

Five figure agreement between the computed answer and this analytic answer was obtained.

Check on Equation (4.37b).

This equation was solved with an inhomogeneous term e $\left\{ W_{21} F_{1}^{(n-1)} + W_{22} F_{2}^{(n-1)} \right\}$. To ensure the replacing same boundary conditions again, B was taken as 2. The particular integral $f_{2}(x)$ for the equation is:

$$f_{2}(x) = \frac{e}{k_{2}^{2}+4}$$

and the general solution is given by:

$$F_{a}(x) = A' e^{-|k_{2}|x} + \frac{e}{k_{2}^{2} + 4}$$

The boundary condition $F_2(o) = 0$ gives A' = -1 therefore: k + 4

$$F_{2}(x) = \frac{1}{k_{2}^{2}+4} \left(e^{-2x} - e^{-|k_{2}|x} \right)$$

- Bx

Six figure agreement between the computed answer and this analytic answer was obtained:

(d) A Different Iteration Strategy.

In section 4.1 we described the iterative technique used for solving the system of equations (4.1). Instead of the boundary conditions specified by equations (4.15) we initially imposed the following conditions on the particular integral:

$$\int_{i}^{n} \psi(x) = 0$$

$$\int_{i}^{n} (x = 0) = 0$$

$$\int_{i}^{n} (x = 0) = \delta_{i0}$$

$$\int_{i}^{(n)} (x = 0) = \delta_{i0}$$

$$\int_{i}^{(n)} (x = 0) = \left(\frac{sink_{\mu}r_{\mu}}{e^{-lk_{\tau}}r_{\mu}} \right)$$

$$\int_{i}^{(n)} (x = r_{\mu}) = \left(\frac{k_{\mu}cosk_{\mu}r_{\mu}}{e^{-lk_{\tau}}r_{\mu}} \right)$$

It can be seen that equation (4.16) will be replaced by:

$$w_{\mu} = k_{\mu} \delta_{\mu\nu} - 1$$

and

Run

Therefore the right hand side matrix in equation (4.17) is replaced



The iterated R-matrices produced from this set of boundary conditions were identical to eight significant figures to those produced using the method of section 4.1.

(e) Checking the Code Using Analytic Kernels.

Consider the following pair of coupled equations:

 $\left[\frac{d^2}{d^2} + k_1^2\right] F_1(x) = \mu_1 x e^{-ax} \int_{\sigma}^{\infty} e^{-b\sigma} F_2(\sigma) d\sigma \qquad 4.40a$

$$\left[\frac{d^{2}}{dx^{2}}+k_{2}^{a}\right]F_{2}(x) = \mu_{1}xe\int_{0}^{-bx}\sigma e^{-a\sigma}F_{1}(\sigma)d\sigma + \mu_{2}xe\int_{0}^{-bx}\sigma e^{-b\sigma}F_{2}(\sigma)d\sigma \qquad 4.40b$$

These are of the same form as equations (4.34) with $Y_{(X)}=0$ and:

11.6 stapestively to sight up with the article ! onde. The upper

$$K_{12}(x,\sigma) = \widehat{K}_{12}(\sigma,x) = -\mu_1 x \sigma e^{-\alpha x - b\sigma}$$

$$K_{22}(x,\sigma) = -\mu_{2}x\sigma e^{-b(x+\sigma)}$$

By taking the Laplace Transform of equations (4.40) and applying the positron-Helium asymptotic boundary conditions the solutions F_{4} , and F_{4} are seen to be:

$$F_{1}(x) = k_{1} \sum_{n=1}^{\frac{1}{2}} \sum_{n=1}^{\infty} k_{1}x + \mu_{1} I_{1} \left[\beta \left(a, k_{1}^{a} \right) \cos k_{1}x + \left\{ C \left(a, k_{1}^{a} \right) + x \right\} \left(a, k_{1}^{a} \right) \right\} \left\{ e^{-bx} \right] + 4 la$$

for $k_{1}^{a} < 0$
$$F_{2}(x) = \left(\mu_{1}, I_{2} + \mu_{3} I_{3} \right) \left[\beta \left(b, -k_{2}^{a} \right) e^{-k_{2}x} + \left\{ C \left(b, -k_{2}^{a} \right) + x \right\} \left(b, -k_{2}^{a} \right) \right\} \left\{ e^{-bx} \right] + 4 lb$$

for $k_{2}^{a} > 0$ and $b > > |k_{2}|$

where $\mathcal{B}(a,k^{2}) = -\mathcal{C}(a,k^{2}) = \frac{-\lambda a}{(a^{2}+k^{2})^{2}}$, $\mathcal{D}(a,k^{2}) = \frac{1}{a^{2}+k^{2}}$

$$I_{1,3} = \int_{0}^{\infty} \sigma e^{-b\sigma} F_{2}(\sigma) d\sigma \qquad \text{and} \qquad I_{2} = \int_{0}^{\infty} \sigma e^{-\alpha\sigma} F_{1}(\sigma) d\sigma \qquad 4.42$$

Numerically I, and I_3 differ since the upper limits will be 32 and 11.6 respectively to match up with the original code. The upper

limit for I, is taken as 17.4.

The phase shift 5 is given by the expression:

$$\tan \delta = k, \mu, I, B(\alpha, k, a)$$

Equations (4.41) were solved iteratively by a separate check computer code. Table 4-1 presents the first few iterated phase shifts of each code for $\alpha=b=3$, $\mu_1=100$, $\mu_2=10$ and $k_1^2=.5$. The zeroth iteration shows immediately that we can only expect four place accuracy in the code.

Although the analytic kernels do not possess the discontinuities of the true kernels some attempt was made to match the two sets for values of x and r near the origin by choosing:

 $\mu_1 = 9980$, $\mu_2 = 925$, a = 11, b = 5

Since convergence was slow the check code was run keeping a and b fixed at these values but varying μ_1 and μ_2 by factors of 10. Table 4-2 clearly demonstrates the slower convergence for large μ_1 and μ_2 and also shows that the second kernel K_{22} affects the convergence to a larger extent than K_{12} .

4.4 Use of the Visual Display Device.

The size and shape of the functions), F and H defined by equations (4.35) determine the behavior of the iterated functions F, and F₂. Their geometric characteristics have already



Figure 4-1

Photograph of a superimposition of D(x), E(x) and H(x) for x=0(.05)5 obtained from the Hylleraas Helium function at an energy $k_{,}^{2}=1.0$.

TABLE 4-1

A comparison of the "exact" iterated phase shifts of the check code and the "computed" phase shifts of the positron-Helium code for a=b=3, $\mu_1 = 100$, $\mu_2 = 10$ and $k_1^2 = \cdot 5$.

| Iteration | Exact Iterate | Computed Iterate | | |
|-----------|---------------|-------------------------|--|--|
| 0 | .0 | 2252 x 10 ⁻⁵ | | |
| 1 | .05739 | .05737 | | |
| 2 | .05634 | .05632 | | |
| 3 | .05998 | .05995 | | |
| 4 | .05985 | .05982 | | |
| 5 | .06008 | .06005 | | |
| 6 | .06006 | | | |
| 7 | .06008 | | | |

TABLE 4-2

A partial table of the number of iterations necessary for convergence in the check code for a = 11, b=5 and μ_1 and μ_2 as shown.

| M. Ma | 925.0 | 92.5 | 9.25 | .925 | .0925 | .00925 |
|--------|-------|------|------|------|-------|--------|
| 9980.0 | 14 | 10 | 8 | 4. | | |
| 998.0 | 7 | 4 | 4 | 4 | 4 | 4 |
| 99.8 | 7 | 4 | 3 | 3 | | |
| 9.98 | 7 | 4 | 3 | 3 | | |
| 0.998 | 7 | | 60. | | | |
| .0998 | 7 | | | | 3 | 3 |
| .00998 | 7 | | | | 3 | 3 |

and fine the set of the way more and which a provide a

at un entropy k, allo . Takes is a state of

been discussed in Section 4.3(a) and (b) and Figure 4-1 presents a photograph of a superimposition of D(x), E(x) and H(x) for x = 0 (.05)5 obtained from the Hylleraas function at an energy $k_1^2 = 1.0$. Below is a sketch identifying the curves.



Figure 4-2 presents photographs of the first iterated $F_{1}(x)$ and $F_{2}(x)$ for x = 0 (.1)10 and Figures 4-3 and 4-4 present a photograph of a superimposition of the first eight iterates of F_{1} and F_{2} respectively obtained from the Hylleraas function at an energy $k_{1}^{2} = 1.0$. Below is a sketch identifying the iterates of F_{2} in Figure 4-4.

Ê j ·





Figure 4-2 The upper photograph shows $F_1(x)$ for x=0(.1)10. The lower photograph shows $F_2(x)$ for x=0(.1)10.

194



Figure 4-3

Photograph of the first 8 iterated F_1 functions obtained from the Hylleraas Helium function at an energy $k_1^a = 1.0$.



It is clear that F_1 and F_2 are displaying their correct asymptotic sinusoidal and exponentially decaying form respectively. All the functions mentioned can be seen to be continuous and have a first derivative at x = 5. A mismatch is easily detected as demonstrated in Figure 4-5 which shows photographs of $F_1(x)$ and $F_2(x)$ for x=0 (.)10 deliberately mismatched at x=5. A more subtle error is shown in Figure 4-6 which is a photograph of the first two iterates of E which were interpolated for midpoint values using a routine that had an incorrect minus sign. This is an excellent example of the usefulness of the graphical display since this error would be difficult to detect without laboriously drawing a graph by hand.



Figure 4-4

Photograph of the first 8 iterated F_a functions obtained from the Hylleraas Helium function at an energy $k_1 = 1.0$.



at x=5.



Figure 4-6 Photograph of the first 2 iterated E(x) functions interpolated for the midpoint values with a deliberate error in the interpolation routine.

199

In conclusion, it has been found that a graphical display device is a very effective tool for de-bugging a computer code whose elements possess distinct geometric characteristics. Although numerical checking must still be implemented, a visual display now replaces the drawn graph. The display is particularly useful for deciding upon the range and step size of integration and invaluable for comparing succeeding iterated solutions.

4.4. Review of Alternate Iteration Methods.

Alternate iteration methods fall into two broad categories. In the first, the actual iterative procedure is different to that of the matching procedure that has been described in section 4.1 and in the second, techniques of speeding up convergence are applied to an existing iteration procedure.

In the first category, we have the method of Burke and Schey which is essentially that of the matching procedure but with a different set of equations replacing equations (4.12a) and (4.16a). NR integral conditions on the open channel functions F_{μ} for $\mu = 1, 2, ----$, NA are specified as follows. Equation (4.11) is replaced by:

 $\sum_{d=1}^{M} \overline{u}_{k} \int_{0}^{t_{M}} F_{\mu}^{(d)}(x) dx + \sum_{\beta=1}^{M+NR} \overline{u}_{\beta} \int_{r_{M}}^{(v)} G_{\mu}^{(\beta)}(x) dx = C_{\mu}$

200

(87)

and equation (4.14a) is replaced by:

where

$$\int_{0}^{t_{M}} \frac{y(v)}{y_{\mu}(x)dx} + \sum_{d=1}^{M} \frac{(v)}{u_{d}} \int_{0}^{t_{M}} \frac{F_{\mu}(x)dx}{F_{\mu}(x)dx} + \int_{r_{M}}^{r_{0}} \frac{(v)}{y_{\mu}(x)dx} + \sum_{\beta=1}^{M+NA} \frac{(v)}{w_{\beta}} \int_{r_{M}}^{r_{0}} \frac{G_{\mu}(x)dx}{F_{\mu}(x)dx} = C_{\mu}$$

where the C_{μ} are arbitrary real constants and \uparrow_{\circ} is also arbitrary and chosen so as to speed up convergence. (88)

McEachran and Fraser (Smith, McEachran and Fraser; McEachran (23) and Fraser) solved the following system of equations:

L: F: (r) =
$$\sum_{i}^{2} W_{ij} F_{i}(r)$$
 4.43
L: = $\frac{d^{2}}{dr^{2}} - \frac{e(e+1)}{r^{2}} + k_{i}^{2}$

and the W_{ij} include short-range exponentially decaying potentials and integral operators.

in turn is used to receively to Harry . This process is repeated

In order to illustrate this method we will consider the case of one open channel and one closed channel only. The boundary conditions are:

$$F_{i}(r = o) = 0 \qquad \text{for } i = 1 \text{ and } 2$$

$$F_{i}(r) \sim \min(k_{i}r - \underline{e\pi}) + \tan M_{e} \cdot \cos(k_{i}r - \underline{e\pi})$$

$$F_{i}(r) \sim F_{e} = -\frac{|k_{i}|r}{r \to \infty}$$

4.44

where η_{ℓ} is the phase shift for the particular orbital angular momentum ℓ and A is a constant. Using these boundary conditions equations (4.48) can be converted into an integral equation as follows:

$$F_{i}(r) = u_{e}(k,r), \ \delta_{i1} - H_{i}(r) \qquad 4.45a$$
where $H_{i}(r) = \int_{0}^{\infty} \theta_{i}(r,r') \sum_{j=1}^{2} W_{ij} F_{j}(r') dr' \qquad 4.45b$

and $u_{\ell}(k,r)$ and the Green's function $G_{\ell}(r,r')$ are defined by Smith (88) et al.

The iterative procedure is started by evaluating $\mathcal{H}_{2}(r)$ using the free wave solution $F_{i}(r) = u_{\ell}(k_{i}r)\delta_{ij}$ obtained from solving $L_{i}u_{\ell}(k_{i}r) = 0$. This value of $\mathcal{H}_{2}(r)$ is substituted into the $i=\lambda$ equation (4.45a) keeping $F_{i}(r)$ fixed, to yield a new $F_{2}(r)$ which in turn is used to recalculate $\mathcal{H}_{2}(r)$. This process is repeated until $F_{2}(r)$ converges. $F_{2}(r)$ is now kept fixed and a similar process carried out for $F_{i}(r)$ using the i=1 equation (4.45a). The entire procedure is repeated until both $F_{i}(r)$ and $F_{2}(r)$ converge simultaneously.

For certain energies this method was found to give very slow (89) convergence and sometimes no convergence at all so Kraidy and Fraser used this same iterative procedure but imposed different asymptotic boundary conditions. They replaced equations (4.44) by:

$$F_{i}(r) \sim cot M_{e} \cdot sin(k_{i}r - e\pi) + cos(k_{i}r - e\pi)$$

$$F_{i}(r) \sim r + cot M_{e} \cdot sin(k_{i}r - e\pi) + cos(k_{i}r - e\pi)$$

$$F_{a}(r) \sim A e^{-|k_{a}| + r}$$

Therefore equations (4.43) are replaced by:

$$F_{i}(r) = \cot M_{e}. u_{e}(k,r) \delta_{i} - H_{i}(r)$$
 4.47

The boundary conditions specified by equations (4.46) impose a further condition:

$$-\int u_{e}(kr') \sum W_{10} F_{i}(r')dr' = 1 \qquad 4.48$$

from which the phase shift M_e may be calculated.

The iterative process is started with $\overline{F}_{i}(r) = \cot M_{e} \cdot u_{e}(k,r) + (1-e^{-r})v_{e}(k,r)$ and $\overline{F}_{\lambda}(r) = 0$ where the starting value of M_{e} is obtained from equation (4.48) and $v_{e}(k,r)$ is the irregular solution of the free (88) wave equation which is defined by Smith et al. The same process as described previously was performed except that the wHM iterate $\cot M_{e}$ is calculated from equation (4.48).

It was found that this method produced convergence in most domains where the previous method did not and in general speeded up convergence. 203

4.46

The following methods fall into the second category. A very simple way of speeding up convergence was first introduced by 22) . One replaces the mHz iterate $F_{i}^{(m)}$ by Burke and Smith a linear combination of the mH. and (m-1)H. iterates, $dF_{i}^{(m)} + (d-1)F_{i}^{(m-1)}$ where & is some predetermined constant. This new function is substituted into the integral terms of equations (4.45) or (4.47) (22)and the appropriate iteration procedure continued. Burke and Smith found that the choice of d > 1 speeded up a slow, monotonically converging sequence, $d = \frac{1}{2}$ reduced the number of iterations required for a converging oscillatory sequence and $\mathcal{L} < 0$ could sometimes avoid monotonically diverging sequences. Of course, extra computer time is required to find out which value of \mathcal{L} is the best for a particular case.

Saraph and Seaton showed that in the case of the antisymmetric s-wave in electron-Hydrogen scattering, all iteration procedures gave slow convergence. This occurs because the Hydrogen ground state wave function $P_{(r)} = \lambda r e^{-r}$ also satisfies the electron-Hydrogen integro-differential equation and in a numerical calculation, the contribution of $P_{(r)}$ to the iterated wave functions can become dominant so producing a loss of significant figures. To avoid this, an orthogonality condition can be imposed:

(90)

$$\int P(r) F(r) dr = 0 , \qquad \qquad \text{limit} F(r) = F(r) \\ n \to \infty$$

Again, this does not always produce convergence and so the

equivalent orthogonality condition can be applied to each iterate $F^{(n)}_{(r)}$. We re-write equation (4.43) as follows:

$$LF^{(n)} = WF^{(n-1)}$$
 4.49

Let a solution be $f^{(n)}$ and choose a new function $J^{(n)}(r) = f^{(n)}(r) + \lambda^{(n)}Q$ where $J^{(n)}(r)$ is to be orthogonal to P(r).

Therefore
$$\int_{0}^{\infty} \mathcal{F}_{(n)}^{(n)} P(n) dn = 0$$
 4.50

Using equation (4.49) we have:

$$L_{f}^{(m)}(r) = WF^{(m-1)} + \Lambda^{(m)}LQ$$

Choosing LQ = -2P and using equation (4.50) we have the following:

$$\lambda^{(m)} = - \frac{\int_{0}^{\infty} P(r) f^{(m)} dr}{\int_{0}^{\infty} P(r) Q(r) dr}$$

and

If the sequence converges then Limit $\lambda = 0$. John has

found that convergence could be obtained using this method but a relatively large number of iterations was required.

The various iteration-variation methods fall into the second (90) category too. Saraph and Seaton developed such a method for (92) scattering problems with one open channel and Saraph extended this to allow for multi-open channels. Equation (4.43) can be re-written in matrix form, with matrices of dimension equal to the total number of channels M , explicitly demonstrating the iterative process as follows:

$$LF_{i}^{(n)} = WF_{i}^{(n-1)}$$
 4.51

where L is a diagonal matrix with elements $k_{ii} = \frac{d^2}{dr^2} - \frac{\ell(\ell+1)}{r^2} + k_i^2$ and F_i is a column vector having elements $F_{ij}^{(n)}$ which satisfy the following boundary conditions:

$$F_{ij}^{(n)}(r=0) = 0 \qquad 4.52a$$

$$F_{ij}^{(n)}(r) \sim sm(k_ir-e\pi).\delta_{ij} + R_{ij}^{(n)} us(k_ir-e\pi) \qquad for \quad k_i>0 \quad 4.52b$$

$$F_{ij}^{(n)}(r) \sim A_{ij} e^{-|k_i|r} \qquad for \quad k_i<0 \quad 4.52c$$

where $R^{(n)}$ is the R-matrix obtained from the nHR iterates $F_{i}^{(n)}$. The n=0 solution is the free wave solution $F_{ij}^{(0)} = u_e(k;r) \delta_{ij}$ as defined previously.

Using the notation:

$$(\mathcal{X}_{i}|_{L-W}|_{\mathcal{X}_{i}}) = \int_{0}^{\infty} dr \left[\sum_{p,q} \mathcal{Y}_{ip}(r) \{ L_{p} \delta_{pq} - W_{pq} \} \mathcal{Y}_{iq} \right]$$
 4.53

the stationary expression of Kohn is:

$$R_{ij}^{k,n} = R_{ij}^{t,n} + \frac{1}{k} \left(\frac{Y_i^{t}}{Y_i^{t}} | 1 - w | \frac{Y_i^{t}}{Y_i^{t}} \right)$$
4.54

where J^{t} is some trial function satisfying equations (4.52) and giving a trial R-matrix $R^{t,n}$. (92) functions a linear combination of the iterated wave functions $F^{(m)}$ for m = 0, 1, ----, n as follows:

$$\mathcal{A}_{ij}^{k}(r) = \left[1 - \sum_{\nu=1}^{n} C_{ij}^{(\nu)}\right] F_{ij}^{(\nu)}(r) + \sum_{\nu=1}^{n} C_{ij}^{(\nu)} F_{ij}^{(\nu)}(r)$$
4.55

It can be seen that $J_{ij}^{t}(r)$ has the correct asymptotic form if:

$$R_{ij}^{t,n} = \left[1 - \sum_{j=1}^{n} C_{ij}^{(n)}\right] R_{ij}^{(n)} + \sum_{j=1}^{n} C_{ij}^{(n)} R_{ij}^{(n)} + \sum_{j=1}^{n} C_{ij}^{(n)} R_{ij}^{(n)} + 56$$

where the $C_{ij}^{(n)}$ are constants. Equation (4.55) is substituted into equation (4.54) and equations for the constants $C_{ij}^{(n)}$ are found by requiring that $R_{ij}^{K,n}$ be stationary with respect to the $C_{ij}^{(n)}$. That is:

$$\frac{\partial R_{ij}^{K,n}}{\partial C_{ij}^{(N)}} = 0 \qquad \text{for } n = 1, 2, \dots, n$$

The

 $C_{ij}^{(\nu)}$ are then substituted into equation (4.54) to

207

obtain the stationary Kohn value of the R- matrix.

(23)

It was found that this iteration-variation method speeded up an already convergent sequence for the elements of the R-matrix and could produce convergence where ordinary iterative procedures gave diverging sequences.

McEachran et al. developed a version of this method making use of recursion relations in order to simplify equation (4.54). They showed that the n.H.Kohn R-matrix $R^{K,n}$ could be expressed in terms of the (n-1)th. R-matrix $R^{K,n-1}$ and the nth variational parameters $C_{ij}^{(N)}$. (89)

Kraidy and Fraser developed a simpler version of the iteration - variation method by using trial functions that were linear combinations of two iterates only. This trial function was then substituted into the integral terms of equations (4.51) to produce the next iterated solution. For example, equation (4.51) was solved for $F^{(n)}$ and R^{n} . The trial functions $F^{t(n)}$ were taken as follows:

$$F_{ij}^{t(n)}(r) = \left[1 - C^{(n)}\right] + C^{(n)}F_{ij}(r)$$

where the functions $\frac{4}{3}$ were taken either as $F^{(n-1)}$ or $F^{(1)}$. The corresponding expression for the R-matrix elements is:

$$R_{ij}^{t(n)} = \left[1 - C^{(n)}\right] b_{ij}^{t} + C^{(n)} R_{ij}^{(n)}$$
where $b_{ij} = R_{ij}^{(n-1)}$ if $f_{ij} = F_{ij}^{(n-1)}$ = R_{ij} if $f_{ij} = F_{ij}^{(n-1)}$

It can be seen that there is only one variational parameter $C^{(m)}$ which is determined by solving $\frac{\partial R}{\partial C} = 0$ where $R^{K,n}$ is $\frac{\partial R}{\partial C}^{(m)}$

defined in equation (4.54). (89)

Kraidy and Fraser applied this technique to electron-atom scattering using both the tangent and cotangent asymptotic boundary conditions specified by equations (4.44) and (4.46). They found that convergence was generally faster if $\frac{4}{7}$ was chosen to = $F^{(1)}$. In some cases, taking $\frac{4}{7} = F^{(n-1)}$ produced wrong answers because $F^{\pm(n-1)}$ approached $F^{\pm(n)}$ as the sequence converged and this caused numerical difficulties in the form of loss of significant figures. But in the majority of cases tried, the number of iterations required for convergence was less than that in an ordinary iteration scheme.

after an assigned contact of Merustons, and south average the well

iterate. Figure 5-2 presents the ordinary iterator 5, and E.E.

CHAPTER V SCATTERING RESULTS

5.1 Convergence Problems.

For all energies below threshold the iterated phase shifts oscillated. The oscillations for the Hylleraas function are more pronounced and less symmetrical than those produced by the Hartree-Fock function. Table 5-1 presents the first 15 iterated values of the phase shift δ_n for each Helium function at an energy of $k_1^2 = \cdot 81$ and Figure 5-1 presents the equivalent graphical form.

By inspection of Figure 5-1 it can be seen that the Hartree-Fock phase shift has settled down to a symmetric oscillation which (91) (93) by the work of John and Salmona and Seaton should be averaged to give the required solution. No such symmetry is displayed by the Hylleraas phase shift which jumps about wildly even out as far as 30 iterations.

An averaging procedure was incorporated into the code that, after an assigned number of iterations n, would average the n.H. and (n-1)th solutions and parameters to produce the (n+1)th. H.F. iterate. Figure 5-2 presents the ordinary iterates δ_n and H.F. averaged iterates η_n for the Hartree-Fock function at an energy $k_1^2 = \cdot \$1$, averaged for n=7 onwards. Figure 5-3 presents the equivalent first 20 iterates (δ_n^H, η_n^H) produced by the H.F. Hylleraas function. After the llth iteration η_n increases

TABLE 5-1

The first 15 iterates of the phase shift S_n for the Hartree-Fock and Hylleraas Helium functions at an energy $k_n^2 = .81$.

| n | S. Hartree-Fock | δ _n Hylleraas |
|----|-----------------|--------------------------|
| 1 | 3090 | 3090 |
| 2 | 2748 | 2434 |
| 3 | 2770 | 2317 |
| 4 | 2713 | 2512 |
| 5 | 2843 | 2825 |
| 6 | 2697 | 2623 |
| 7 | 2741 | 2433 |
| 8 | 2630 | 2350 |
| 9 | 2746 | 2613 |
| 10 | 2649 | 2633 |
| 11 | 2730 | 2574 |
| 12 | 2618 | -:2387 |
| 13 | 2716 | 2494 |
| 14 | 2624 | 2550 |
| 15 | 2719 | 2619 |



Phase shift iterates for the Hartree-Fock and Hylleraas Helium functions.





Averaged and non-averaged phase shift iterates for the Hartree-Fock Helium.





steadily whereas η_n^{μ} is still oscillating even after 50 iterations. Figure 5-4 shows the first 15 iterates of η_n for energies $k_n^2 = .36$, .49; .64 and .81. It is interesting to note that the iterates have the same profile at all energies.

H.F. H. Since N_n and N_n are still changing in the fourth decimal place for n > 20 the extrapolation procedure of Cody, Lawson, (25) Massey and Smith was incorporated into the code. The first differences ∇_i are defined as follows:

$$\nabla_{j} = \eta_{j+1} - \eta_{j}$$

A ratio r; of two succeeding differences is given by:

$$r_{j} = \frac{p_{j+1}}{p_{j}}$$

After a certain number of iterations \mathcal{T} , $r_{\mathbf{T}}$ starts to converge to some number \mathbf{r} where $|\mathbf{r}| < 1$. At this point the remaining iterates can be considered as members of a convergent geometric series with ratio \mathbf{r} and the final phase shift \mathcal{N} is obtained by summing the infinite series to give the following:

$$M = N^{2} + \frac{1 - k^{2}}{\Delta^{2}} \qquad |k^{2}| < 1$$

Averaged phase shift iterates for the Hartree-Fock Helium function at energies k =.36, .49, .64 and .81 rydbergs.



Since the code can only be relied upon to give accuracy to 4 decimal places, the addition of the extrapolation procedure will reduce this further. The following convergence criterion was applied to \mathcal{N} :

Let $\mathcal{N}(n)$ and $\mathcal{N}(n-1)$ be the extrapolated phase shifts obtained from r_n and r_{n-1} . Then if:

$$1 - \frac{N(n-1)}{N(n)} < 10^{-4}$$

the extrapolated phase shift has converged and $\mathcal{N} = \mathcal{N}(n)$. Thus the final phase shifts are certainly good to three decimal places. Table 5-2 presents the last 12 extrapolated phase shifts in comparison to the averaged ones for the Hartree-Fock function at an energy $k_1^{a} = .25$. The minimum number of iterations required was 14 at an energy $k_1^{a} = .09$. No convergence was obtained for $k_1^{a} > 1$ in both cases. It was found sufficient to integrate out to 20 atomic units. At $k_1^{a} = .04$ and .16 the phases obtained by choosing the asymptotic distance r_{a} as 30 differed in the 7th decimal place from those with $r_{a} = 20$.

TABLE 5-2

Averaged and extrapolated phase shifts produced from the Hartree-Fock Helium function at an energy $k_{,}^{2}$ = .25 rydbergs.

| Iteration | Averaged phase | Extrapolated phase |
|-----------|----------------|--------------------|
| 7 | 1329 | 1296 |
| 8 | 1281 | 1300 |
| 9 | 1280 | 1280 |
| 10 | 1278 | 1282 |
| 11 | 1276 | 1256 |
| 12 | 1274 | 1251 |
| 13 | 1272 | 1252 |
| 14 | 1270 | 1253 |
| 15 | 1269 | 1254 |
| 16 | 1267 | 1254 |
| 17 | 1266 | 1254 |
| 18 | 1265 | 1254 |

polarization. Table 5-4 presents the two sets of phase shifts

obtained here together with the Frillerans really of Endidy

5.2 Results.

Phase shifts and cross sections for $0 < k_1 \le 1$ rydbergs were generated using both the Hartree-Fock and the Hylleraas Helium function.

(a) Mean Static Field Approximation (M.S.F.).

Table 5-3 presents the two sets of phase shifts together with $\binom{27}{27}$ those obtained by Kraidy using the Hylleraas function. Figure 5-5 presents a graph of the phase shifts obtained from the Hartree-Fock $\binom{27}{27}$ function together with the Hylleraas results of Kraidy when the dipole polarization term $\frac{1}{24}$ was added to the M.S.F. equations.

This attractive term is sufficient to make the phase shifts positive at low energies. Since the M.S.F. potential is repulsive the corresponding phase shifts are negative for all energies.

(b) Virtual Positronium Formation.

It is known that polarization in any form serves to make the atom more attractive and this is born out by the addition of virtual Positronium formation terms which can be thought of as a short-range polarization. Table 5-4 presents the two sets of phase shifts (27) obtained here together with the Hylleraas results of Kraidy and (50). the variational results of Drachman The phase shifts are plotted in Figure 5-6.

The three sets of elastic cross-sections below threhold are (50) displayed in Table 5-5. Figure 5-7 shows Drachman's variational

TABLE 5-3

S-wave phase shifts for positron-Helium scattering in the Mean Static Field Approximation.

| kao | Hartree-Fock | Hylleraas | Hylleraas (Kraidy) |
|-----|--------------|-----------|--------------------|
| .05 | 01984 | 01908 | . / |
| .1 | 03961 | 03812 | 03815 |
| .2 | 07875 | 07592 | 07593 |
| .3 | 1170 | 1131 | 1131 |
| .4 | 1538 | 1493 | 1493 |
| .5 | 1890 | 1843 | 1843 |
| .6 | 2222 | 2179 | 2180 |
| .7 | 2534 | 2500 | 2500 |
| .8 | 2823 | 2804 | 2803 |
| .9 | 3090 | 3090 | 3089 |
| 1.0 | 3334 | 3358 | 3355 |



top-Solium contrering in the M.S.F. and

FIGURE 5-5

TABLE 5-4

S-wave phase shifts for positron-Helium scattering in the M.S.F. and virtual Positronium approximation. Column (a) Hartree-Fock Helium function, column (b) Hylleraas Helium function (this work); column (c) (27) Hylleraas Helium function (Kraidy), Column (d) gives Drachman's variational results.

| ka. | a | ъ | с | d |
|-----|-------|-------|-------|------|
| .05 | 00316 | .0306 | | |
| .1 | 00762 | .0547 | .0770 | .036 |
| .2 | 0240 | .0700 | .1019 | .047 |
| .3 | 0513 | .0445 | .0753 | .039 |
| .4 | 0866 | 00394 | .0213 | .020 |
| .5 | 125 | 0599 | 0407 | 007 |
| .6 | 164 | 115 | 102 | 039 |
| •7 | 201 | 166 | 158 | 073 |
| .8 | 235 | 212 | 208 | 107 |
| .9 | 266 | 252 | 251 | 142 |
| 1.0 | 293 | 287* | 288 | 176 |

*This result had not converged after 50 iterations and this entry is an estimated value.

FIGURE 5-6

S-wave phase shifts in the virtual Positronium formation approximation.



TABLE 5-5

Elastic cross-sections for positron-Helium scattering in the M.S.F. and virtual Positronium approximation. Column (a) Hartree-Fock Helium function; column (b) Hylleraas Helium function (this work); (27) column (c) Hylleraas Helium function (Kraidy).

| k t | 8 | b * | с |
|------|-------|-------------|-------|
| .01 | .0232 | 1.20 | 2.369 |
| .04 | .0574 | .489 | 1.034 |
| .09 | .117 | .0878 | .251 |
| .16 | .187 | .0389 (-02) | .0113 |
| .25 | .250 | .0574 | .0265 |
| .36 | .298 | .147 | .116 |
| .49 | .327 | .223 | .203 |
| .64 | .340 | .276 | .265 |
| .81 | .341 | .307 | . 304 |
| 1.00 | •334 | .320** | .323 |

+ The positron energy is k rydbergs.

* The numbers in parentheses give the powers of 10 by which the corresponding entries must be multiplied to give the cross-sections in units of $\pi_{\alpha_n}^2$.

** Same remark as in Table 5-4.

suare root of the blad to charge

cross-sections plotted against those of this work. If there were (50)an exact Helium function then Drachman's phase shifts would be rigorous lower bounds and the Hartree-Fock results would be too small for all energies below threshold, and the Hylleraas too small for k_1^2 .3 rydbergs.

It is evident that scattering results of this problem are extremely sensitive to the choice of ground state Helium function. It has been pointed out in Section 3.3. that to obtain the Hylleraas case from the Hartree-Fock code one merely substitutes:

C = 0, $a = \frac{27}{16}$ and $E_{He} = 5.6953125$

As a consequence of these trivial changes, we obtain the two very different sets of phase shifts.

The sensitivity of the scattering results to the ground state (96) Helium function has also been noted by Burke, Cooper and Ormonde who considered the electron-Helium problem. They chose the groundstate Helium function as:

$$\Psi_{o}(\overline{1a}) = \frac{1}{4\pi \sqrt{a}} (1+P_{1a}) \varphi_{o}(r_{1}) P_{1c}(r_{2})$$

where φ_o is the 1s state of the Helium ion defined by equation (2.23b) and $P_{1s}(r) = \alpha f e^{\frac{1}{2} - f r}$ where f is varied to minimize the total energy. It was found that allowing f to be less than the square root of the binding energy led to meaningless results.



Elastic cross-sections in the virtual Positronium formation approximation (this work) and a variational lower bound calculation (Drachman 50).



Several ways of improving these results are described in Chapter VI. The most important of these is the addition of the 2ρ states of Helium and Positronium since this will immediately introduce a large percentage of the attractive polarization effects. Short-range correlation terms (41) are chosen so that the lower bound principle of Gailitis can be applied.

12 - aler ale gover - a Cost har free and and a sur

mane R. and Rai are defined by equations (2.14) and (2.52)

Known = un sphils + En - 2 + 2 Port How

+ if the work on the of the work is the state

CHAPTER VI

6.1 Higher Partial Waves.

Equations (2.34) define the set of coupled integro-differential equations resulting from allowing the total angular momentum to be ℓ and the Helium atom, ion and Positronium to remain in the ground state:

$$\left[\frac{d^{2}}{dr^{2}} - \frac{e(e+1)}{r^{2}} + V(r) + k,^{2}\right] \begin{cases} e \\ (r) \\ r \end{cases} = -\int_{0}^{\infty} d\sigma \cdot g (r) K_{12}(r, \sigma) \end{cases}$$
 6.1a

$$\begin{bmatrix} \frac{d^{2}}{d\sigma^{2}} - \frac{e(e_{+1})}{\sigma^{2}} + k_{2}^{2} \end{bmatrix} g^{(e)}(\sigma) = - \int_{0}^{\infty} dr \cdot g^{(e)}(r) K_{12}^{(e)}(r_{1}\sigma) - \int_{0}^{\infty} d\sigma \cdot g^{(e)}(r) K_{22}^{(e)}(\sigma, \sigma') \qquad 6.1b$$

where $K_{12}^{(\ell)}$ and $K_{22}^{(\ell)}$ are defined by equations (2.44) and (2.52) respectively as:

$$K_{12}^{(\ell)}(r_{3}\sigma) = \frac{6\mu\pi}{2\ell+1} \left[S \left\{ k_{1}^{2} + 5 - E_{He} - \frac{2}{\gamma} + \frac{2\rho^{N}(r)}{S} \right\} H_{e}^{0}(r) + S \left\{ -H_{e}^{1}(r_{3}) + 2H_{e}^{2}(r_{3}) + 2H_{e}^{2}(r_{3}) + 2H_{e}^{0}(r_{3}) \right\} - 2f_{e}^{2}(r) \right]$$

$$+ S \left\{ -H_{e}^{1}(r_{3}) + 2H_{e}^{0}(r) + 4H_{e}^{2}(r_{3}) - 2f_{e}^{1}(r) + 2H_{e}^{0}(r_{3}^{2}) \right\} - 2f_{e}^{2}(r) \right]$$

$$= \frac{102\mu\pi^{2}}{(2\ell+1)^{2}} (1+\rho_{12}) \int_{0}^{\infty} dr_{p} \left[\left\{ k_{1}^{2} + 13 - \frac{\mu}{r_{p}} - E_{He} \right\} \int_{0}^{r} dr_{e}(r) \int_{e}^{1}(r) \int_{0}^{r} dr_{p} \left[\left\{ k_{1}^{2} + 13 - \frac{\mu}{r_{p}} - E_{He} \right\} \int_{0}^{r} dr_{e}(r) \int_{0}^{r} dr_{p}(r) \right]$$

$$= \frac{102\mu\pi^{2}}{(2\ell+1)^{2}} (1+\rho_{12}) \int_{0}^{\infty} dr_{p} \left[\left\{ k_{1}^{2} + 13 - \frac{\mu}{r_{p}} - E_{He} \right\} \int_{0}^{r} dr_{e}(r) \int_{0}^{r} dr_{p}(r) \right]$$

$$= \frac{102\mu\pi^{2}}{(2\ell+1)^{2}} (1+\rho_{12}) \int_{0}^{r} dr_{p} \left[\frac{1}{r_{p}} \left\{ k_{1}^{2} + 13 - \frac{\mu}{r_{p}} - E_{He} \right\} \int_{0}^{r} dr_{p}(r) \int_{0}^{r} dr_{p}(r) \right]$$

$$= \frac{102\mu\pi^{2}}{(2\ell+1)^{2}} (1+\rho_{12}) \int_{0}^{r} dr_{p} \left[\frac{1}{r_{p}} \left\{ k_{1}^{2} + 13 - \frac{\mu}{r_{p}} - \frac{1}{r_{p}} \right\} \right]$$

$$= \frac{102\mu\pi^{2}}{(2\ell+1)^{2}} (1+\rho_{12}) \int_{0}^{r} dr_{p} \left[\frac{1}{r_{p}} \left\{ k_{1}^{2} + 13 - \frac{\mu}{r_{p}} - \frac{1}{r_{p}} \right\} \right]$$

$$= \frac{102\mu\pi^{2}}{(2\ell+1)^{2}} (1+\rho_{12}) \int_{r_{p}}^{r} dr_{p} \left[\frac{1}{r_{p}} \left\{ k_{1}^{2} + 13 - \frac{\mu}{r_{p}} - \frac{1}{r_{p}} \right\} \right]$$

$$= \frac{102\mu\pi^{2}}{(2\ell+1)^{2}} (1+\rho_{12}) \int_{r_{p}}^{r} dr_{p} \left[\frac{1}{r_{p}} \left\{ k_{1}^{2} + 13 - \frac{\mu}{r_{p}} - \frac{1}{r_{p}} \right\} \right]$$

$$= \frac{102\mu\pi^{2}}{(2\ell+1)^{2}} (1+\rho_{12}) \int_{r_{p}}^{r} dr_{p} \left[\frac{1}{r_{p}} \left\{ k_{1}^{2} + \frac{1}{r_{p}} - \frac{1}{r_{p}} \right\} \right]$$

$$= \frac{1}{r_{p}} \left\{ k_{1}^{2} + \frac{1}{r_{p}} \left\{ k_{1}^{2} + \frac{1}{r_{p}} + \frac{1}{r_{p}} \left\{ k_{1}^{2} + \frac{1}{r_{p}} + \frac{1}{r_{p}} \right\} \right\} \right]$$

$$= \frac{1}{r_{p}} \left\{ k_{1}^{2} + \frac{1}{r_{p}} + \frac{1}{r_{p}} \left\{ k_{1}^{2} + \frac{1}{r_{p}} + \frac{1}{r_{p}} + \frac{1}{r_{p}} + \frac{1}{r_{p}} \right\} \right]$$

and all quantities are defined in Sections 2.3 and 2.4.

6.2 Correlation Terms.

(a) Derivation of the radial equations.

The total wave function for L=0 is now taken as:

where Ψ_{\circ} , φ_{\circ} and χ are defined in Section 2.3 and $\overline{\Psi}_{\checkmark}$ is a correlation function. The terms of $\overline{\Psi}_{\checkmark}$ must vanish exponentially at large distances so that they do not contribute either to the long-range forces or to the scattered flux. $\overline{\Psi}_{\checkmark}$ is therefore chosen as follows:

$$\overline{\Phi}_{\nu}(r_{1},r_{2},r_{p}) = r_{p} \left(r_{12}^{e} + p_{1}^{e} + p_{2}^{e}\right) e^{-\nu \left(r_{1}+r_{2}+r_{p}\right)} (1+P_{ik})r_{1}^{j}r_{2}^{k} \qquad 6.4$$

where P_{jk} is the operator interchanging j and k and C $_{v}$ is a variational parameter and $v = (i, j, k, \ell)$. The total wave function now contains terms explicitly dependent on the electron-electron and electron-positron coordinates. In order to define the number of linear parameters C $_{v}$ we introduce N:

$$N = i + j + k + 6$$

i, j, k and l are varied for N less than or equal to some specified number which in this work will be taken as four. \measuredangle can

be chosen to help convergence.

(95) Burke and Taylor have shown that the phase shifts obtained from the wave function defined by equation (6.3) still satisfy a minimum principle even though the correlation terms are not orthogonal to the remaining terms. Therefore equation (6.3) is substituted into the variational principle to give the following:

$$\int \Psi_{0}(\bar{n}_{2}) [H-E] \Psi(r_{1}, r_{2}, r_{p}) d\hat{r}_{p} d\underline{r}_{1} d\underline{r}_{2} = 0 \qquad 6.5$$

$$\int \Psi_{0}(a) w(p_{1}) [H-E] \Psi(r_{1}, r_{2}, r_{p}) d\hat{\sigma}_{1} d\underline{r}_{1} d\underline{r}_{2} = 0 \qquad 6.6$$

$$\int \overline{\Psi}_{v}(r_{1}, r_{2}, r_{p}) [H-E] \Psi(r_{1}, r_{2}, r_{p}) d\underline{r}_{1} d\underline{r}_{2} d\underline{r}_{p} = 0 \qquad 6.7$$

Following the method of Appendix A equations (6.5) and (6.6) reduce to:

$$\left[\frac{d^{2}}{dr_{p}} + V_{i}(r_{p}) + k_{i}^{2}\right] f(r_{p}) = -\int_{0}^{\infty} d\sigma_{i} g(\sigma_{i}) K_{i2}(r_{p}, \sigma_{i})$$

$$+ r_{p} \sum_{v} C_{v} \int \Psi_{0}(\overline{a}) [H-E] \overline{\Phi}_{v} d\hat{r}_{p} d\underline{r}_{1} d\underline{r}_{2}$$

$$6.8$$

$$\begin{bmatrix} \frac{d^2}{d\sigma_1^2} + k_1^2 \end{bmatrix} g(\sigma_1) = -\int_0^\infty dr_p f(r_p) K_{12}(r_p,\sigma_1) - \int_0^\infty d\sigma_2 g(\sigma_2) K_{22}(\sigma_1,\sigma_2)$$

+ $2\sigma_1 \sum_{\nu} C_{\nu} \int c_{\nu} \int c_{\nu} \sigma_1 \nabla D(\rho_1) [H-\epsilon] \Phi_{\nu} d\sigma_1 d\rho_1 d\rho_2$ 6.9

Green's Theorem can be applied to equation (6.7) to give:

$$\int \Psi (r_{1}, r_{2}, r_{p}) [H-E] \stackrel{1}{=} \Psi_{\nu} (r_{1}, r_{2}, r_{p})$$

$$= \int dr_{p} \int (r_{p}) P_{\nu}(r_{p}) + \int d\sigma_{1} g(\sigma_{1}) q_{\nu}(\sigma_{1}) + \sum_{\mu} C_{\mu} N_{\mu\nu} \qquad 6.10$$
where $P_{\nu} (r_{p}) = \frac{r_{p}}{r_{p}} \int \Psi_{\sigma} (\overline{r_{a}}) [H-E] \stackrel{1}{=} \Phi_{\nu} d\hat{r_{p}} d\underline{r}_{1} d\underline{r}_{2} \qquad 6.11a$

$$q_{\nu}(\sigma_{i}) = \frac{2\sigma_{i}}{\sqrt{4\pi}} \int \phi_{0}(a) w(\rho_{i}) [H-E] \bar{\Phi}_{v} df_{i} df_{i} df_{i}$$
6.11b

$$N_{\mu\nu} = \int \Phi_{\nu} [H-E] \Phi_{\nu} dr_{\nu} dr_{\nu} dr_{\rho} \qquad 6.11c$$

From equation (6.10) we obtain:

JATT.

$$C_{v} = -\sum_{\mu} M_{v\mu}$$
 6.12a

where
$$M_{\nu \mu} = (N^{-1})_{\nu \mu} \left[\int dr_{\rho} f(r_{\rho}) P_{\nu}(r_{\rho}) + \int d\sigma_{i} g(\sigma_{i}) q_{\nu}(\sigma_{i}) \right]$$
 6.121

Substituting equation (6.12a) into equations (6.8) and (6.9) produces the following system of integro-differential equations:

$$\left[\frac{d^{2}}{dr_{p}}+V_{i}(r_{p})+k_{i}^{2}\right]\xi(r_{p}) = -\int_{0}^{\infty}d\sigma_{i}q(\sigma_{i})K_{i2}(r_{p},\sigma_{i})$$
$$-\sqrt{4\pi}\sum_{i}M_{v,i}p_{v}(r_{p}) \qquad 6.13a$$

$$\left[\frac{d^{2}}{d\sigma_{1}}+k_{2}^{2}\right]g(\sigma_{1}) - \int_{0}^{\infty}dr_{p}f(r_{p})K_{12}(r_{p},\sigma_{1}) - \int_{0}^{\infty}d\sigma_{2}g(\sigma_{2})K_{22}(\sigma_{1},\sigma_{2}) - \int_{0}^{\infty}d\sigma_{2}g(\sigma_{2})K_{22}(\sigma_{2},\sigma_{2}) - \int_{0}^{\infty}d\sigma_{2}g(\sigma_{2})K_{22}(\sigma_{2},\sigma_{2}) - \int_{0}^{\infty}d\sigma_{2}G(\sigma_{2})K_{22}(\sigma_{2}) - \int_{0}^{\infty}d\sigma_{2}G(\sigma_{2})K_{$$

(a) Simplification of 2.

A superscript ℓ will be affixed to $\overline{\mathbb{P}}_{\mathcal{A}}$ and $p_{\mathcal{A}}$ to denote which value of ℓ is under consideration. In this work ℓ will take the values 0, 1 and 2. Thus:

$$\Phi_{\nu} = (\rho_{i} + \rho_{2} + \tau_{i2}) X(r_{p}) Z(r_{i}, \tau_{2})$$
6.14b

$$\underline{\Phi}_{v}^{*} = (\rho_{1}^{*} + \rho_{2}^{*} + r_{12}^{*}) \times (r_{p}) \mathcal{Z}(r_{1}, r_{2}) \qquad 6.14e$$

where

$$X(r_p) = r_p e$$

and
$$\vec{z}(r_1,r_2) = e^{-\kappa(r_1+r_2)} (1+\rho_{jk})r_1^{\frac{1}{2}}r_2^{\frac{1}{2}}$$

P

-dr.

The expressions for p_{ν} can be simplified by use of the following formulae:

$$\int_{0}^{t_{a}} r e^{-qr} dr = \frac{p!}{q^{p+1}} - p! e^{-qr_{a}} \sum_{m=0}^{p} \frac{r_{a}}{(p-m)! q^{m+1}}$$
 6.15a

$$\int_{r_{2}}^{\infty} r^{p} e^{-qr} dr = p! e^{-qr_{2}} \sum_{m=0}^{p} \frac{p-m}{\frac{r_{2}}{(p-m)! q}}$$
6.15b

After much detailed calculation, expressions for γ_v are obtained as follows:

$$p_{v}^{o}(r_{p}) = 3N^{2}r_{p}(4\pi)^{\frac{3}{2}} \times (r_{p}) \left[2A^{\frac{1}{p}+3}A^{\frac{1}{p}+3} \left\{ \frac{(i+1)}{2(i+1)}(2\alpha - \frac{i}{2}) - 3\alpha^{2} - E \right\} + (1+P_{jk}) \left\{ 2A^{\frac{1}{p}+3}A^{\frac{1}{p}+3}(2\alpha(\frac{1}{p}+1) - 3) - 2\frac{i}{6}(\frac{1}{6}+1)A^{\frac{1}{p}+1}A^{\frac{1}{p}+3} + 4A^{\frac{1}{p}+3}(\frac{1}{6}+1)^{\frac{1}{p}+1}\sum_{m=1}^{i+1}\frac{mr_{p}}{(\frac{1}{q}+2-m)!} \left[\frac{e^{-(\alpha+\alpha)}r_{p}}{(\alpha+\alpha)^{m+1}} + \frac{e^{-(b+\alpha)}r_{p}}{(b+\alpha)^{m+1}} \right] - \frac{(\frac{1}{p}+1)!}{2^{\frac{1}{p}+\frac{1}{p}+3}\sum_{m=1}^{i+1}\frac{m(k+1+3-m)!}{(\frac{1}{q}+2-m)!} \left[\frac{2}{(\alpha+\alpha)^{\frac{1}{p}+\frac{1}{p}+\frac{2}{m}}C^{\frac{1}{\alpha}} + \frac{2^{\frac{k+1}{p}+k}CB^{\frac{k+1}{p}+1}}{(\alpha+b+2\alpha)^{\frac{k+1}{p}+k-m}} \right] \right\} \right] \quad 6.16$$

where
$$A^{P} = (p-1)! \left\{ \frac{1}{(a+d)^{P}} + \frac{C}{(b+d)^{P}} \right\}$$
 6.17a

and
$$\beta^{P} = \left\{ \frac{1}{(\alpha+d)^{P}} + \frac{1}{(b+d)^{P}} \right\}$$
 6.17b

$$P_{\nu}(r_{p}) = N^{2}(4\pi)^{\frac{3}{2}}r_{p} \times (r_{p})(1+P_{jk}) \left[4R^{\frac{j+3}{2}}R^{\frac{k+3}{2}} \left\{ d-1 - \frac{(6+3i+3j+k)}{3r_{p}} \right\} \right]$$

+
$$8A^{j+3}A^{k+4}(\underline{(d-1)} + 4A^{j+3}A^{k+2}(r_p-1-\underline{j+k})$$

 $3r_p$

$$+ \frac{4}{3r_{p}} A^{\frac{1}{p}a^{3}} A^{\frac{1}{p}a^{3}} A^{\frac{1}{p}a^{2}} \frac{A^{\frac{1}{p}a^{2}}}{r_{p}} + \frac{A^{\frac{1}{p}a^{2}}}{3r_{p}} A^{\frac{1}{p}a^{2}} A^{\frac{1}{p}a^{2}}$$

$$+ \frac{1}{3r_{p}} \left(\frac{1}{9} + k \right)! \sum_{m=0}^{\frac{1}{2}} \frac{E}{(\frac{1}{9} + k - m)!} - \frac{1}{3} \frac{1}{9}! \sum_{m=0}^{\frac{1}{2}} \frac{E}{(\frac{1}{9} + m)!} - \frac{1}{3} \frac{1}{9}! \sum_{m=0}^{\frac{1}{2}} \frac{E}{(\frac{1}{9} + m)!} + \frac{1}{3} \frac{1}{9}! \frac{1}$$

$$-\frac{k_{r}r_{p}}{3}(k+2)!\sum_{m=0}^{k+2}\frac{(k_{r}\frac{1}{2}+2-m)!}{(k+2-m)!}\sum_{v=0}^{k_{r}\frac{1}{2}+2-m-r}E^{k_{r}\frac{1}{2}+2-m-r}$$

$$-\frac{k_{r}(k+1)!}{3}\sum_{m=0}^{k+1}\frac{(k_{r}\frac{1}{2}+3-m)!}{(k+1-m)!}\sum_{v=0}^{k_{r}\frac{1}{2}+2-m}F^{k_{r}\frac{1}{2}+k-m-r}$$

$$+\frac{k_{r}r_{p}}{3}(k+1)!\sum_{m=0}^{k+1}\frac{(k_{r}\frac{1}{2}+2-m)!}{(k+1-m)!}\sum_{v=0}^{k_{r}\frac{1}{2}+2-m}F^{k_{r}\frac{1}{2}+3-m-r}$$

$$+\frac{k_{r}}{3}(k+1)!\sum_{m=0}^{k+1}\frac{(k_{r}\frac{1}{2}+k-m)!}{(k+1-m)!}\sum_{v=0}^{k_{r}\frac{1}{2}+2-m}F^{k_{r}\frac{1}{2}+3-m-r}$$

$$+\frac{k_{r}}{r_{p}}(k+2)!\sum_{m=0}^{k+1}\frac{(k_{r}\frac{1}{2}+k-m)!}{(k+1-m)!}\sum_{v=0}^{k_{r}\frac{1}{2}+2-m-r}F^{k_{r}\frac{1}{2}+3-m-r}$$

$$-\frac{k_{r}}{r_{p}}(k+2)!\sum_{m=0}^{k+2}\frac{(k_{r}\frac{1}{2}+5-m)!}{(k+3-m)!}\sum_{v=0}^{k_{r}\frac{1}{2}+2-m}F^{k_{r}\frac{1}{2}+5-m-r}$$

$$-\frac{k_{r}}{r_{p}}(k+2)!\sum_{m=0}^{k+2}\frac{(k_{r}\frac{1}{2}+5-m)!}{(k+3-m)!}\sum_{v=0}^{k_{r}\frac{1}{2}+5-m-r}F^{k_{r}\frac{1}{2}+5-m-r}$$

$$-\frac{k_{r}}{r_{p}}(k+2)!\sum_{m=0}^{k+2}\frac{(k_{r}\frac{1}{2}+5-m)!}{(k+3-m)!}\sum_{v=0}^{k_{r}\frac{1}{2}+5-m-r}F^{k_{r}\frac{1}{2}+5-m-r}$$

$$-\frac{k_{r}}{r_{p}}(k+2)!\sum_{m=0}^{k+2}\frac{(k_{r}\frac{1}{2}+5-m)!}{(k+1-m)!}\sum_{v=0}^{k_{r}\frac{1}{2}+5-m-r}F^{k_{r}\frac{1}{2}+5-m-r}$$

$$-\frac{k_{r}}{r_{p}}(k+1)!\sum_{m=0}^{k+2}\frac{(k_{r}\frac{1}{2}+k-m)!}{(k+1-m)!}\sum_{v=0}^{k_{r}\frac{1}{2}+5-m-r}F^{k_{r}\frac{1}{2}+5-m-r}$$

where:
$$D^{j+n-m} = D^{j+n-m} (r_p) = r_p \begin{bmatrix} -(a+d)r_p & -(b+d)r_p \\ e & +Ce \\ (a+d)^{m+1} & (b+d)^{m+1} \end{bmatrix} 6.193$$

6.18

$$E \stackrel{k+j+n-m}{=} E \stackrel{k+j+n-m}{(r_p)} = (k+j+n-m-1)! \left[\frac{1}{(a+d)^{m+1} [a(a+d)]^{k+j+n-m}} \right]$$

$$\frac{+ c^{2}}{(b+d)^{m+1} [2(b+d)]^{k+j+n-m}} + \frac{c \cdot B}{(a+b+2d)^{k+j+n-m}}$$
6.19b

$$F^{k+j+n-m} = F^{k+j+n-m}(r_{p}) = r_{p} \frac{E^{k+j+n-m}}{\left[(k+j+n-m-1)!\right]^{2}}$$
6.19c

$$p_{v}^{a}(r_{p}) = \frac{9}{2} (4\pi)^{\frac{3}{2}} N^{2} r_{p} X(r_{p}) A^{\frac{1}{2}+3} A^{k+3} \left[-r_{p}^{2} (E+3d^{2}) \right]$$

1.

$$+ (4\pi)^{\frac{3}{2}} N^{2} r_{p} X(r_{p}) (1+P_{jk}) \left[4R^{\frac{1}{2}+3} R^{\frac{1}{2}+3} \left\{ \frac{2}{r_{p}} \left[2+d(i+1) \right] \right. \right]$$

$$- \frac{i}{(i+1)} - E - 3d^{2} + 4A^{\frac{1}{2}+3} R^{\frac{1}{2}+4} \left\{ d(k+j+6) - 3 \right\}$$

$$+4r_{p}^{2}A^{\frac{1}{p+3}}A^{k+2} \left\{ d(k+j+2)-3 \right\}$$

$$-2A^{k+1}(r_{p}^{2}A^{\frac{1}{p+3}}+A^{\frac{1}{p+5}}) \left\{ j(j+1)+k(k+1) \right\} +4A^{\frac{1}{p+5}}A^{k+2} \left\{ d(j+k+2)-\frac{10}{3} \right\} +8A^{k+3} \left\{ (j+2)! \sum_{m=0}^{\frac{1}{p+3}} \frac{D^{\frac{1}{p+3}-m}}{(j+2)} \right\}$$

$$+ \frac{d}{3} (\dot{j}+4)! \sum_{m=0}^{\dot{j}+4} \frac{D}{(\dot{j}+4)m} - \frac{2}{3} (\dot{j}+1)! \sum_{m=0}^{\dot{j}+1} \frac{D}{(\dot{j}+3-m)!} - \frac{2}{3} (\dot{j}+1)! \sum_{m=0}^{\dot{j}+1} \frac{D}{(\dot{j}+3-m)!} + \frac{2}{3} (\dot{j}+3)! \sum_{m=0}^{\dot{j}+2} \frac{D}{(\dot{j}+3-m)!} + \frac{2}{3} (\dot{j}+1)! \sum_{m=1}^{\dot{j}+2} \frac{m}{(\dot{j}+3-m)!} + \frac{2}{3} (\dot{j}+1)! \sum_{m=1}^{\dot{j}+2} \frac{m}{(\dot{j}+2-m)!} + \frac{2}{3} ($$

6.20

It can be seen that p_{ν} is the most complicated of the three expressions and this is on account of the factors ρ_{1} , ρ_{2} and r_{12} appearing linearly.

(b) Simplification of q.

q is more complicated than p because of the coordinate system $(\underline{s}_1, \underline{\beta}_1, \underline{s}_2)$ which will be changed to $(\underline{s}_1, \underline{s}_2, \underline{s}_2)$ as was done for the second kernel $K_{\underline{s}\underline{s}}$. The three expressions are as follows:

$$q_{v}^{o}(\sigma_{i}) = 3(16)^{3} \pi^{\frac{3}{2}}(1+P_{jk}) \int d\sigma_{\lambda} dr_{p} r_{p} X(r_{p}) \sigma_{i} \sigma_{\lambda}^{2} \left[\mathcal{L}_{o}^{k}(\lambda) \mathcal{M}_{o}^{j}(\iota) \right] \left\{ E - 3 d^{2} + \frac{\mu}{r_{p}} + \frac{1}{r_{p}} (2d - \frac{1}{c})(i+1) \right\} + \mathcal{L}_{o}^{k}(\lambda) \mathcal{M}_{o}^{j-1}(\iota) \left\{ 2d(j+1) - 4 \right\} - \mathcal{L}_{o}^{k}(\lambda) \mathcal{M}_{o}^{j-2}(\iota) \frac{1}{\delta}(j+1) + \mathcal{L}_{o}^{k-2}(\lambda) \mathcal{M}_{o}^{j}(\iota) \left\{ 2d(j+1) - 4 \right\} - \mathcal{L}_{o}^{k}(\lambda) \mathcal{M}_{o}^{j}(\iota) \frac{1}{\delta}(j+1) + \mathcal{L}_{o}^{k-2}(\lambda) \mathcal{M}_{o}^{j}(\iota) \left\{ 2d(j+1) - 4 \right\} - \mathcal{L}_{o}^{k}(\lambda) \mathcal{M}_{o}^{j}(\iota) \frac{1}{\delta}(j+1) + \mathcal{L}_{o}^{k-2}(\lambda) \mathcal{M}_{o}^{j}(\iota) - \mathcal{L}_{o}^{k}(\lambda) \sum_{\lambda} \frac{\mathcal{M}_{\lambda}(\iota)}{\lambda} \mathcal{M}_{\lambda}(\iota)}{\lambda + 1} + \mathcal{L}_{\lambda} \frac{\mathcal{L}_{\lambda}^{k}(\iota)}{\lambda} \mathcal{M}_{\lambda}^{j}(\iota)}{\lambda + 1} + \mathcal{L}_{\lambda} \frac{\mathcal{L}_{\lambda}^{k}(\iota)}{\lambda} \mathcal{M}_{\lambda}^{j}(\iota)}{\lambda + 1} + \mathcal{L}_{\lambda} \frac{\mathcal{L}_{\lambda}^{k}(\iota)}{\lambda} \mathcal{M}_{\lambda}^{j}(\iota)}{\lambda + 1} + \mathcal{L}_{\lambda} \frac{\mathcal{L}_{\lambda}^{k}(\iota)}{\lambda} + \mathcal{L}_{\lambda} \frac{\mathcal{L}_{\lambda}^{k}(\iota)}{\lambda + 1} + \mathcal{L}_{\lambda} \frac{\mathcal{L}_{\lambda}^{k}(\iota)}{\lambda + 1} + \mathcal{L}_{\lambda} \frac{\mathcal{L}_{\lambda}^{k}(\iota)}{\lambda} + \mathcal{L}_{\lambda} \frac{\mathcal{L}_{\lambda}^{k}(\iota)}{\lambda + 1} + \mathcal{L}_{\lambda} \frac{\mathcal{L}_$$

$$\mathcal{L}_{\lambda}^{k}(i) = \mathcal{L}_{\lambda}^{k}(r_{i},r_{p}) = \frac{\lambda \lambda + i}{2} \int_{-1}^{+1} r_{i} e^{-dr_{i}} P_{\lambda}(\eta) d\eta \qquad 6.22a$$

and

where

$$M_{\lambda}^{k}(i) = M_{\lambda}^{k}(\sigma_{i}, r_{p}) = \frac{3\lambda + 1}{2} \int_{-1}^{+1} r_{i} e^{-dr_{i} - \frac{1}{2}i} P_{\lambda}(\eta) d\eta$$
 6.22

where
$$\eta = \hat{\sigma}_{1} \cdot \hat{r}_{p}$$

$$S_{\lambda} = \frac{r_{c}}{r_{\lambda+1}}$$
 where r_{c} is the smaller of σ_{i} and r_{p} and r_{j} is

the greater. δ'_{λ} and δ''_{λ} are defined similarly except that σ_{μ} and r_{μ} are replaced by σ_{λ} and r_{μ} , σ_{μ} and σ_{λ} respectively.

$$q_{\nu}(\sigma_i) = 64\pi^{\frac{3}{2}} \sigma_i \int d\sigma_2 dr_p \sigma_2 r_p e^{-dr_p} (1+P_{jk}) \left[$$

$$\left(\begin{array}{cc} \underline{4} & -E & -3d^{2} + \frac{2d}{2d}(i+1) & -\underline{i}(i+1) \end{array}\right) \left\{\begin{array}{c} \mathcal{N}_{\bullet}^{i}(i) & \mathcal{L}_{\bullet}^{k'}(i) \\ \mathbf{f}_{P} & \mathbf{f}_{P} & \mathbf{f}_{P} \end{array}\right)$$

+
$$M_{o}^{j}$$
 (1) φ_{o}^{k} (2) + ∂M_{o}^{j} (1) \mathcal{L}_{o}^{k} (2). $A(\sigma_{1}, \sigma_{2}) + 2 \sum_{\lambda=1}^{\infty} B_{\lambda}^{jk}$

+ 2
$$\int \mathcal{A}(j+1) - 2 \int \int \mathcal{N}_{0}^{j-1}(1) \mathcal{L}_{0}^{k}(2) + \mathcal{M}_{0}^{j-1}(1) \mathcal{P}_{0}^{k}(2)$$

+ 2 $\mathcal{M}_{0}^{j-1}(1) \mathcal{L}_{0}^{k}(2)$. $\mathcal{A}(\sigma_{1},\sigma_{2}) + 2 \sum_{k=1}^{\infty} B_{k}^{j-1}, k \int \mathcal{B}_{k}^{k}$

$$\begin{aligned} &+ 2 \left\{ d(k+i) - 2 \right\} \left\{ \mathcal{M}_{0}^{j} (u) d_{0}^{k+1} (u) + \mathcal{M}_{0}^{j} (u) \psi_{0}^{k+1} (u) \\ &+ 2 \mathcal{M}_{0}^{j} (u) d_{0}^{k+1} (u) \cdot \mathcal{A}(\tau_{i}, \tau_{\Sigma}) + 2 \sum_{k=1}^{\infty} - \mathcal{B}_{k}^{j,k+1} \right\} \\ &- \frac{1}{4} (\frac{1}{4} + 1) \left\{ \mathcal{M}_{0}^{j-2} (u) d_{0}^{k} (u) + \mathcal{M}_{0}^{j-2} (u) \psi_{0}^{k} (u) + 2 \mathcal{M}_{0}^{j-2} (u) d_{0}^{k} (u) \mathcal{R}(\tau_{i}, \tau_{\Sigma}) \right\} \\ &+ 2 \sum_{k=1}^{\infty} - \mathcal{B}_{k}^{j-2,k} \right\} - k(k+1) \left\{ \mathcal{M}_{0}^{j} (u) \mathcal{A}_{0}^{k-2} (u) + \mathcal{M}_{0}^{j} (u) \psi_{0}^{k-2} (u) \right\} \\ &+ 2 \mathcal{M}_{0}^{j} (u) \mathcal{A}_{0}^{k-2} (u) \mathcal{A}(\tau_{i}, \tau_{\Sigma}) - 2 \mathcal{M}_{0}^{j} (u) \mathcal{A}_{0}^{k} (u) + 2 \mathcal{M}_{0}^{j} (u) \psi_{0}^{k-2} (u) \\ &+ 2 \mathcal{M}_{0}^{j} (u) \mathcal{A}_{0}^{k-2} (u) \mathcal{A}(\tau_{i}, \tau_{\Sigma}) - 2 \mathcal{M}_{0}^{j} (u) \mathcal{A}_{0}^{k} (u) - 2 \mathcal{R}_{0}^{j} (u) \psi_{0}^{k} (u) \\ &- 4 \mathcal{R}_{0}^{j} (u) \mathcal{A}_{0}^{k} (u) + 2 \mathcal{M}_{0}^{j} (u) \cdot \mathcal{A}(\tau_{i}, \tau_{\Sigma}) \right\} - 4 \sum_{k=1}^{\infty} \mathcal{D}_{k}^{jk} \\ &- 4 \left(\mathcal{R}_{0}^{j} (u) \mathcal{A}_{0}^{k} (u) + 2 \mathcal{M}_{0}^{j} (u) \cdot \mathcal{A}_{0}^{k} (u) \right) - 4 \left(i - 4 \tau_{P} \right) \left(\mathcal{R}_{0}^{j} (u) \mathcal{A}_{0}^{k} (u) \right) \\ &+ \mathcal{M}_{0}^{j} (u) \mathcal{L}_{0}^{k} (u) - 4 \int_{j} \left(2 \tau_{1}^{2} + \tau_{P}^{2} \right) \mathcal{R}_{0}^{j-2} (u) \mathcal{L}_{0}^{k} (u) \\ &- 4 k \left(2 \tau_{1}^{2} + \tau_{P}^{2} \right) \mathcal{R}_{0}^{j-1} (u) \mathcal{L}_{0}^{k-1} (u) + \sum_{k=0}^{\infty} \chi_{k}^{k} \left[\frac{\mathcal{M}_{j}^{j} (u) \mathcal{L}_{k}^{k} (u) + \mathcal{M}_{0}^{j} (u) \mathcal{L}_{0}^{k-2} (u) \\ &+ 4 k \left(2 \tau_{1}^{2} + \tau_{P}^{2} \right) \mathcal{M}_{0}^{j} (u) \mathcal{L}_{0}^{k-1} (u) + \sum_{k=0}^{\infty} \chi_{k}^{k} \left[\frac{\mathcal{M}_{j}^{j} (u) \mathcal{L}_{k}^{k} (u) + \mathcal{M}_{j}^{k} (u) \mathcal{L}_{0}^{k-2} (u) \\ &+ 4 k \left(2 \tau_{1}^{2} + \tau_{P}^{2} \right) \mathcal{M}_{0}^{j} (u) \mathcal{L}_{0}^{k-1} (u) + \sum_{k=0}^{\infty} \chi_{k}^{k} \left[\frac{\mathcal{M}_{j}^{j} (u) \mathcal{L}_{k}^{k} (u) + \mathcal{M}_{j}^{k} (u) \mathcal{L}_{k}^{k} (u) \\ &+ 4 k \left(2 \tau_{2}^{2} + \tau_{1}^{2} \right) \mathcal{M}_{0}^{j} (u) \mathcal{L}_{0}^{k-1} (u) + \sum_{k=0}^{\infty} \chi_{k}^{k} \left[\frac{\mathcal{M}_{j}^{j} (u) \mathcal{L}_{k}^{k} (u) + \mathcal{M}_{k}^{j} (u) \mathcal{L}_{k}^{k} (u) \\ &+ 2 \mathcal{M}_{k}^{j} (u) \mathcal{L}_{k}^{k} (u) + 2 \mathcal{M}_{k}^{j} (u) \mathcal{L}_{k}^{k-1} (u) + \sum_{k=0}^{\infty} \chi_{k}^{k} \left[\frac{\mathcal{M}_{k}^{j} (u) \mathcal{L}_{k}^{k} (u) + \mathcal{M}_{k}^{j} (u) \mathcal{L}_{k}^{k} (u) \\ &+ 2 \mathcal{M}_{k}^{j} (u) \mathcal{L}_{k}$$

$$-\frac{2M_{\lambda}^{j}(1)d_{\lambda}^{k}(2)}{(2\lambda+1)^{2}} - \frac{4\epsilon_{1}^{2}\left\{jM_{\lambda}^{j}(1)-dM_{\lambda}^{j'}(1)\right\}d_{\lambda}^{k}(2)}{(2\lambda+1)^{2}}$$

$$= 4 \sigma_{h}^{*} \frac{\left\{ k \int_{h}^{h} \frac{k \cdot 2}{(2\lambda + 1)^{\lambda}} + \frac{d}{2} \int_{h}^{h} \frac{d}{2} \left(x \right) \right\}$$

$$= \frac{1}{2} \int_{h}^{h} \frac{1}{(2\lambda + 1)^{\lambda}} \left\{ \int_{h}^{h} \left(\frac{d \cdot \frac{1}{2}}{2} \right) \int_{h}^{h} \frac{1}{2} \left(x + \frac{1}{2} \right) \int_{h}^{h} \frac{1}{2} \left(x + \frac{1}{2} \right) \int_{h}^{h} \frac{1}{2} \left(x + \frac{1}{2} \right) \int_{h}^{h} \frac{1}{2} \int_{h}^{h} \left(x + \frac{1}{2} \int_{h}^{h} \frac{1}{2} \int_{h}^{h} \left(x + \frac{1}{2} \int_{h}^{h} \frac{1}{2}$$

$$\left\{ \left(\frac{d}{r_{p}} - \frac{i}{r_{p}} \right) S_{\lambda}^{k}(i) + 3dS_{\lambda}^{k-1}(i) - 3kS_{\lambda}^{k-2}(i) \right\} \right\}$$

$$\frac{M_{\lambda+1}(2)}{(2\lambda+3)} \cdot \frac{\sigma_{c}}{\sigma_{s}}^{2} + \frac{M_{\lambda}(2)}{(2\lambda+1)} \cdot \frac{\sigma_{c}}{\sigma_{s}} + \frac{M_{\lambda-1}(2)}{(2\lambda+1)} \bigg\}$$

$$= 4\sigma_{1}\sigma_{2} \sum_{\lambda=1}^{\infty} \frac{\chi_{\lambda-1}^{"}}{(2\lambda+1)^{2}} \bigg\{ \left(dM_{\lambda}^{d^{-1}}(1) - dM_{\lambda}^{d^{-2}}(1) \right) d_{\lambda}^{k}(2) \bigg\}$$

+
$$\mathcal{M}_{\lambda}^{d}(1)\left(\mathcal{A}_{\lambda}^{k-1}(2)-k\mathcal{A}_{\lambda}^{k-2}(2)\right)\left\{\left(\frac{\sigma_{c}^{2}}{2}+\frac{\sigma_{c}}{2}+1\right)\right\}$$
 6.23

where J_{k}^{k} and M_{k}^{k} are defined in equations (6.22).

$$\mathcal{N}_{\lambda}^{k}(i) = \mathcal{N}_{\lambda}^{k}(\sigma_{i}, r_{p}) = \frac{2\lambda + 1}{2} \int_{-1}^{+1} r_{i} \rho_{i} e^{-dr_{i} - \frac{\rho_{i}}{2}} P_{\lambda}(\eta) d\eta$$
 6.24a

$$\varphi_{\lambda}^{k}(i) = \varphi_{\lambda}^{k}(s_{i}, r_{p}) = \frac{\lambda \lambda + 1}{\lambda} \int_{-1}^{+1} r_{i} \rho_{i} e^{-(\lambda + \lambda)r_{i}} \rho_{\lambda}(\eta) d\eta \qquad 6.24b$$

$$R_{\lambda}^{k}(i) = R_{\lambda}^{k}(\sigma_{i}, r_{p}) = \frac{\lambda + 1}{2} \int_{-1}^{+1} \frac{r_{i}}{p_{i}} e^{-\lambda r_{i} - \frac{p_{i}}{2}} P_{\lambda}(\eta) d\eta$$
 6.24c

$$S_{\lambda}^{k}(i) = S_{\lambda}^{k}(\sigma_{\beta}r_{p}) = \frac{2\lambda+1}{2} \int_{-1}^{+1} \frac{r_{i}}{p_{i}} e^{-(d+2)r_{i}} P_{\lambda}(\eta) d\eta \qquad 6.24d$$

$$H(\sigma_1, \sigma_2) = \frac{1}{\sigma_1} \left(\sigma_1^2 + \sigma_2^2 - \frac{\sigma_2}{\sigma_2} \frac{\lambda \sigma_1 \sigma_2}{\sigma_2} \right) \qquad (6.25a)$$

where σ_c is the smaller of ϵ_1 and ϵ_2 and ϵ_3 is the greater.

$$B_{\lambda}^{jk}(\sigma_{1},\sigma_{\lambda}) = \frac{\mathcal{M}_{\lambda}^{j}(1)\mathcal{L}_{\lambda}(\lambda)}{(2\lambda+1)^{a}} \mathcal{K}_{\lambda-1}^{ii} \left\{ \begin{pmatrix} \sigma_{1}^{a} + \sigma_{\lambda}^{a} \end{pmatrix} \frac{\sigma_{c}}{\sigma_{2}} \\ - \left[\frac{\lambda}{2\lambda-1} + \frac{\lambda+1}{2\lambda+3} \left(\frac{\sigma_{c}}{\sigma_{2}} \right)^{a} \right] 2\sigma_{1}\sigma_{\lambda} \right\}$$

$$6.25b$$

where $\mathscr{C}_{\lambda}^{\mu} = \frac{\sigma_{c}}{\sigma_{s}}^{\lambda}$ $C_{\lambda}^{jk}(\sigma_{1},\sigma_{2}) = \frac{\mathcal{R}_{\lambda}^{j}(1)\mathcal{L}_{\lambda}^{k}(2)}{(2\lambda+1)^{\lambda}} \mathscr{C}_{\lambda-1}^{\mu} \left\{ (\sigma_{1}^{2}+\sigma_{2}^{2})\frac{\sigma_{c}}{\sigma_{s}} \right\}$ 6.25c

$$-\left[\frac{\lambda}{2\lambda-1}+\frac{\lambda+1}{2\lambda+3}\left(\frac{\sigma_{c}}{\sigma_{y}}\right)^{2}\right]2\sigma_{1}\sigma_{2}\right\}$$

$$D_{\lambda}^{jk}(\tau_{1},\sigma_{2}) = \frac{M_{\lambda}^{j}(\tau_{1})S_{\lambda}^{k}(z)}{(2\lambda+1)^{2}} S_{\lambda-1}^{*} \left\{ \left(\sigma_{1}^{2} + \sigma_{2}^{2} \right) \underline{\sigma_{2}} \right.$$

 $-\left[\frac{\lambda}{2\lambda-1}+\frac{\lambda+1}{2\lambda+3}\left(\frac{\sigma_{c}}{\sigma_{y}}\right)^{2}\right]2\sigma_{1}\sigma_{2}\bigg\}$ 6.25d

And finally:

$$\begin{split} q_{v}^{\lambda}(\sigma_{i}) &= b + \pi^{\frac{3}{2}} \sigma_{i} \int d\sigma_{a} dr_{p} \sigma_{a}^{2} r_{p}^{i+2} - dr_{p} \left[-\frac{g}{3} \left\{ \sigma_{i} r_{p} \bigoplus_{i,0} + \sigma_{a} r_{p} \bigoplus_{i,0} \right\} + \sigma_{a} r_{p} \bigoplus_{i,0} \left\{ \sigma_{i} r_{p} \bigoplus_{i,0} + \sigma_{a} r_{p}^{2} \right\} + g \left(\sigma_{i}^{\lambda} + \sigma_{a}^{\lambda} + \sigma_{p}^{\lambda} \right) \bigoplus_{i,0} \sigma_{i,0} \\ &+ 4 \left(4 + r_{p} - 4 + c - q \right) \psi \left(\sigma_{i}^{j}(t) \right) \frac{g}{\sigma_{i}^{k}(a)} + g \psi \left(\sigma_{i}^{j}(t) \right) \left\{ -\frac{\sigma_{a} r_{p}}{3 \sigma_{i}} \right\} + \frac{g}{3} \left(d - \frac{c}{c} \right) \frac{g}{r_{p}} \left(d + \sigma_{a}^{2} + r_{p}^{\lambda} \right) \left(k \frac{g}{\sigma_{i}^{k-2}} + \sigma_{i}^{\lambda} + \sigma_{i}^{\lambda} + \sigma_{i}^{\lambda} \right) \\ &+ \frac{g}{3} \left(d - \frac{c}{c} \right) \frac{g}{r_{p}} \left(k \frac{g}{\sigma_{i}^{k-2}} + \sigma_{i}^{\lambda} \right) \left(k \frac{g}{\sigma_{i}^{k-2}} + \sigma_{i}^{\lambda} + \sigma_{i}^{\lambda} + \sigma_{i}^{\lambda} \right) \\ &+ \frac{g}{3} \left(d - \frac{c}{c} \right) \frac{g}{r_{p}} \left(k \frac{g}{\sigma_{i}^{k-2}} + \sigma_{i}^{\lambda} \right) \left(k \frac{g}{\sigma_{i}^{k-2}} + \sigma_{i}^{\lambda} + \sigma_{i}^{\lambda} + \sigma_{i}^{\lambda} \right) \\ &+ \frac{g}{3} \left(k \frac{g}{\sigma_{i}^{k-2}} + \sigma_{i}^{\lambda} + \sigma_{i}^{\lambda} + \sigma_{i}^{\lambda} \right) \left(k \frac{g}{\sigma_{i}^{k-2}} + \sigma_{i}^{\lambda} + \sigma_{i}^{\lambda} + \sigma_{i}^{\lambda} \right) \\ &+ \frac{g}{3} \left(k \frac{g}{\sigma_{i}^{k-2}} + \sigma_{i}^{\lambda} + \sigma_{i}^{\lambda} + \sigma_{i}^{\lambda} \right) \left(k \frac{g}{\sigma_{i}^{k-2}} + \sigma_{i}^{\lambda} + \sigma_{i}^{\lambda} + \sigma_{i}^{\lambda} \right) \\ &+ \frac{g}{3} \left(k \frac{g}{\sigma_{i}^{k-2}} + \sigma_{i}^{\lambda} + \sigma_{i}^{\lambda} + \sigma_{i}^{\lambda} \right) \right) \\ &+ \frac{g}{3} \left(k \frac{g}{\sigma_{i}^{k-2}} + \sigma_{i}^{\lambda} + \sigma_{i}^{\lambda} + \sigma_{i}^{\lambda} \right) \left(k \frac{g}{\sigma_{i}^{k-2}} + \sigma_{i}^{\lambda} + \sigma_{i}^{\lambda} + \sigma_{i}^{\lambda} \right) \\ &+ \frac{g}{3} \left(k \frac{g}{\sigma_{i}^{k-2}} + \sigma_{i}^{\lambda} + \sigma_{i}^{\lambda} + \sigma_{i}^{\lambda} \right) \left(k \frac{g}{\sigma_{i}^{k-2}} + \sigma_{i}^{\lambda} + \sigma_{i}^{\lambda} + \sigma_{i}^{\lambda} \right) \\ &+ \frac{g}{3} \left(k \frac{g}{\sigma_{i}^{k-2}} + \sigma_{i}^{\lambda} + \sigma_{i}^{\lambda} + \sigma_{i}^{\lambda} \right) \right) \\ &+ \frac{g}{3} \left(k \frac{g}{\sigma_{i}^{k-2}} + \sigma_{i}^{\lambda} + \sigma_{i}^{\lambda} + \sigma_{i}^{\lambda} \right) \left(k \frac{g}{\sigma_{i}^{k-2}} + \sigma_{i}^{\lambda} + \sigma_{i}^{\lambda} + \sigma_{i}^{\lambda} \right) \\ &+ \frac{g}{3} \left(k \frac{g}{\sigma_{i}^{k-2}} + \sigma_{i}^{\lambda} + \sigma_{i}^{\lambda} + \sigma_{i}^{\lambda} + \sigma_{i}^{\lambda} + \sigma_{i}^{\lambda} + \sigma_{i}^{\lambda} \right) \right) \\ &+ \frac{g}{3} \left(k \frac{g}{\sigma_{i}^{k-2}} + \sigma_{i}^{\lambda} + \sigma_{i}^{\lambda} + \sigma_{i}^{\lambda} + \sigma_{i}^{\lambda} + \sigma_{i}^{\lambda} \right) \\ &+ \frac{g}{3} \left(k \frac{g}{\sigma_{i}^{k-2}} + \sigma_{i}^{\lambda} \right) \\ &+ \frac{g}{3} \left($$

$$- \frac{\sigma_{1}}{3} \left(d - \frac{i}{2} \right) M_{1}^{d} (a) - \left(4 \sigma_{1}^{2} + r_{p}^{2} \right) \left(\frac{1}{3} M_{0}^{d-2} - d M_{0}^{d-1} (a) \right)$$

+
$$\frac{1}{4}\sigma_{1}r_{p}$$
 ($\frac{1}{4}M_{1}^{\frac{1}{4}-2}(2) - dM_{1}^{\frac{1}{4}-1}(2)$) + $\frac{8}{3}L_{1}^{\frac{1}{4}}(1)$

$$\frac{2}{3}\sigma_{1}\sigma_{2}\left(\frac{1}{3}M_{1}^{d-2}(z)-dM_{1}^{d-1}(z)\right)-\sigma_{2}r_{p}\left(\frac{1}{3}M_{0}^{d-2}(z)-dM_{0}^{d-1}(z)\right)$$

$$-\frac{\sigma_{1}\sigma_{2}}{3\sigma_{2}}M_{1}^{d}(z)\left\{\frac{1}{3}M_{1}^{d}(z)\left\{\frac{2}{3}\sigma_{1}\sigma_{2}\left(kL_{1}^{k-2}(z)-dL_{1}^{k-1}(z)\right)\right\}$$

÷
$$- \sigma_{1} r_{p} \left(k k_{0}^{k-2} (x) - \alpha k_{0}^{k-1} (x)\right) \right\}$$

$$+ 8 \sum_{h} \left[\frac{M_{h}^{j} (x)}{(2h+1)^{h}} \frac{g_{h}^{k} (z)}{(2h+1)^{h}} \gamma_{h}^{m} \right] \left(\sigma_{1}^{2} + \sigma_{2}^{2} + \sigma_{p}^{2} \right) \frac{\sigma_{c}}{\sigma_{c}} - \sigma_{1} \sigma_{2} \left(l + \sigma_{c} + \sigma_{c}^{k} - 1 \right) \right\}$$

$$- \frac{r_{p}}{2h+1} \frac{\sigma_{c}}{\sigma_{5}} \left\{ \sigma_{1} M_{h}^{j} (x) \left[\frac{g_{h}^{k} (z)}{2h-1} + \frac{g_{h}^{k} (z)}{2h-1} + \frac{g_{h}^{k} (z)}{2h+1} - \frac{\sigma_{c}}{2h+3} + \frac{g_{h}^{k} - \sigma_{c}^{k}}{2h+3} \right] \right\}$$

$$+ \sigma_{k} \frac{g_{h}^{k} (x)}{2h-1} \left[\frac{M_{h}^{j} (z)}{2h-1} + \frac{M_{h}^{j} (z)}{2h+1} - \frac{\sigma_{c}}{2} + \frac{M_{h+1}^{j} (z)}{2h+3} - \frac{\sigma_{c}}{2} \right] \right\}$$

$$+ \sigma_{k} \frac{g_{h}^{k} (x)}{2h-1} \left[\frac{M_{h}^{j} (z)}{2h+1} - \frac{g_{c}}{2h+3} + \frac{M_{h}^{j} (z)}{2h+3} - \frac{\sigma_{c}}{2} \right] \right\}$$

$$+ \sigma_{k} \frac{g_{h}^{k} (x)}{2h-1} \left[\frac{M_{h}^{j} (z)}{2h+1} - \frac{\sigma_{c}}{2} + \frac{M_{h+1}^{j} (z)}{2h+3} - \frac{\sigma_{c}}{2} \right] \right\}$$

$$= (E+3d^{k}) \sqrt{h}^{k} (x) - 2 R_{h}^{j} (x) \frac{g_{h}^{k} (z)}{2h+1} - 2 M_{h}^{j} (x) \frac{g_{h}^{k} (z)}{2h+1} - 2 M_{h}^{j} (x) \frac{g_{h}^{k} (z)}{2h+3} - \frac{g_{h}^{j} (z)}{2h+3} - \frac{g_{h}^{k} (z)}{2h+3} - \frac{g_{h}^{j} ($$

The various values of v are shown below:

| v | 1 | i | j | k | |
|----|-----|---------|------|---|--|
| | | state a | 10 M | | |
| 1 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | |
| 2 | 0 | 1 | 0 | 0 | |
| 3 | 0 | 0 | 1 | 0 | |
| 4 | 0 | 1 | 1 | 0 | |
| 5 | 0 | 1 | 1 | l | |
| 6 | 1 | 0 | 0 | 0 | |
| 7 | 1 | l | 0 | 0 | |
| 8 | 1 | 1 | 1 | 0 | |
| 9 | 1 | 1 | 1 | 1 | |
| 10 | 2 ' | 0 | 0 | 0 | |
| 11 | 2 | 1 | 0 | 0 | |
| 12 | 2 | 1 | 1 | 0 | |
| | | | | | |

share K= (algonizers) and an ora and to

6.3 Addition of the 2P states of Helium and Positronium.

The radial equations will be derived assuming that the Helium ion remains in its ground state and the Helium atomic states considered are the $(1sn\ell)^{(2s+1)\ell}$. The total wave function with angular and spin quantum numbers L and S respectively, describing the scattering of a positron by a Helium atom is given by:

$$\Psi^{LS}(I,\lambda,p) = \sum_{n} \Psi^{LS}(\underline{P} S_{s}; \underline{P} S_{p}) + (I+P_{12}) \sum_{m} \Psi^{LS}(\underline{H} S_{n}; \underline{S}_{1}S_{2})$$
6.28

where $\underline{F} = (\underline{r}_1, \underline{r}_2)$ and $\underline{\Psi} = (\underline{r}_2, \underline{f}_1)$ $\boldsymbol{v} = (n_{\underline{r}}k_{\underline{r}}l_{\underline{s}}l_{\underline{p}})$ and $\boldsymbol{\mu} = (n_{\underline{r}}k_{\underline{r}}l_{\underline{s}}l_{\underline{s}})$ where $n_{\underline{M}} = (n_{\underline{s}}, n_{\underline{s}})$ and $l_{\underline{M}} = (l_{\underline{s}} \ l_{\underline{s}})$

Thus the two electrons are labelled by angular and spin quantum numbers $(\ell_{i}m_{1}S_{i}m_{5})$ and $(\ell_{2}m_{2}S_{2}m_{5})$ and the positron by $(\ell_{p}m_{p}S_{p}m_{5})$. The components of equation (6.28) are expanded as follows:

$$\overline{\Phi}_{\nu}^{LS}\left(\underline{g} S_{s}; \underline{r}_{p} S_{p}\right) = \sum_{\substack{m_{g}m_{s_{g}}\\m_{p}m_{s_{p}}}} \varphi_{\kappa}(\underline{g}, S_{s}) C(\ell_{p} \ell_{s} L; m_{p} m_{s} M_{L})$$

$$\times C\left(\frac{1}{2} S_{s} S; m_{s_{p}} m_{s_{g}} M_{s}\right) \frac{F_{\nu}^{LS}}{f_{p}} Y_{\ell_{p}m_{p}}(\widehat{r}_{p}) X_{\frac{1}{2}m_{s_{p}}}(p) \qquad 6.29$$

where $\forall = (n_s \ell_{sm_s} S_{sm_s})$ and the C's are Clebsch-Gordon coefficients. χ is the normalized single-particle spin function and φ_s is the (96) Helium atomic function. Following Burke, Cooper and Ormonde we write the wave function for the $(l_{sm}\ell)^{(2S_s+1)}\epsilon_i$ state of Helium in the form:

$$\varphi_{\kappa}(\underline{s}, S_{s}) = \chi_{S_{s}}^{m_{s_{s}}}(1, z) [1 + (-1)^{S_{s}} P_{1z}] \varphi_{n_{s} P_{s} m_{s}}(\underline{s})$$

6.30a

where
$$\varphi_{n_{g}}e_{s}m_{s}(\underline{r}) = \frac{\varphi_{o}(r_{1})}{\sqrt{2\pi}} u_{n_{g}}e_{s}(r_{2}) Y_{e_{g}}m_{g}(\hat{r}_{2})$$
 6.301

and φ_{o} is the 1s radial wave function of the Helium ion defined in equation (2.23b). The radial function $u_{n\ell}$ is determined variationally by solving:

$$S \int \varphi_{\delta}(\underline{s}, S_{\delta}) \left[H_{H_{e}} - E_{\delta}^{H_{e}} \right] \varphi_{\delta}(\underline{s}, S_{\delta}) d\tau_{i} d\tau_{2} = 0 \qquad 6.31a$$

subject to : $\int \varphi_{x} \varphi_{x} d\tau_{t} d\tau_{x} = \delta_{xx'}$ 6.31b

where dT includes a summation over the spins and :

$$H_{He} = -(\nabla_{1}^{2} + \nabla_{2}^{2}) - \frac{4}{r_{1}} - \frac{4}{r_{2}} + \frac{4}{r_{12}}$$
6.32

The second term in equation (6.28) can be expanded as follows:

$$\Phi_{\mu}^{LS}(\Psi S_{\eta}; \underline{\sigma}, S_{2}) = \sum_{\substack{m_{3}m_{s_{2}} \\ m_{\eta}m_{s_{\eta}}}} \Phi_{\lambda}(\Psi, S_{\eta}) C(\theta_{3}\theta_{\eta}L; m_{3}m_{\eta}M_{L}) Y_{\theta_{3}m_{3}}(\widehat{\sigma}_{1})$$

$$\frac{\Phi_{\lambda}(\Psi, S_{\eta}) C(\theta_{3}\theta_{\eta}L; m_{3}m_{\eta}M_{L})}{K} C(\underline{1}S_{\eta}S; \underline{m}_{s_{2}}m_{s_{\eta}}M_{S}) \underline{G}_{\mu}(\underline{\sigma}_{1}) X_{\underline{1}}M_{\underline{s}}(a) \qquad 6.33$$

where $\lambda = (n_n P_n m_n S_n m_{s_n}) \cdot \varphi_{\lambda}$ is defined as follows:

$$\Psi_{\Lambda}(\underline{M}, \underline{S}_{n}) = \Psi_{o}(\underline{t}_{2}) \omega_{n} e_{n}(\underline{p},) Y_{e_{n}m_{n}}(\underline{p},) X_{\underline{S}_{n}}(\underline{I}, \underline{p})$$
 6.34

where ω_{n,Q_n} is the radial Positronium function. H_{ps} and H_{2} are

defined as follows:

5

.

$$H_{ps} = -2\nabla_{p}^{2} - \frac{2}{D}$$
 $\left[H_{ps} - E_{ne}^{p}\right] w_{nem}(p) = 0$ 6.35a

$$H_{2} = -\nabla_{2}^{2} - \frac{4}{f_{2}} \qquad \left[H_{2} + 4 \right] = 0 \qquad 6.35b$$

and $w_{nem}(p) = w_{ne}(p) V_{em}(\hat{p})$

Referring to equation (2.17) the general expression for A_{LS} is:

$$A_{LS}^{(1)}(r_{p}) = \int \sum_{\substack{m_{1}^{'}m_{2}^{'}m_{2}^{'}m_{2}}} \varphi_{g_{1}}(\underline{e}, S_{g}) C(e_{p}'\underline{b}_{s}'L; m_{p}'m_{s}'M_{L})C(\underline{b}_{s}'S_{s}'S; m_{2}m_{2}'m_{2}'M_{s})$$

$$\times Y_{e_{p}'m_{p}'}(\hat{r}_{p})X_{\underline{b}_{s}m_{p}'}(p)[H-E] \underline{\Psi}^{LS}_{(1,2,p)}d\hat{r}_{p}d\underline{b}_{1}d\underline{b}_{2} \qquad 6.36$$

The following formula is used to simplify the spin expressions:

$$\sum_{\substack{\text{spin}\\\text{somponents}}} \chi_{SM_{S}}(i) \chi_{S'M_{S}}(i) = \delta_{SS'} \delta_{M_{S}M_{S}'} \qquad 6.37$$

One type of spin product in equation (6.36) is:

$$\chi_{s_{s}^{i}}(1,2) \chi_{\frac{1}{2}ms_{t}^{i}}(p) \chi_{s_{s}}^{ms_{s}}(1,2) \chi_{\frac{1}{2}ms_{p}}(p) = \delta_{s_{s}}s_{s}^{i} \delta_{ms_{s}}ms_{s}^{i} \delta_{ms_{p}}ms_{p}^{i}$$

A second type of spin product is :

$$\chi_{s_{s}'(1,\lambda)}^{ms_{s}'}\chi_{\frac{1}{2}ms_{p}'}(\rho)\chi_{s_{\eta}}^{ms_{\eta}}(1,\rho)\chi_{\frac{1}{2}ms_{\lambda}}(\lambda) = \sum_{\substack{ms_{s}'ms_{\lambda}'m$$

(1)

Therefore equation (6.36) reduces to:

$$\begin{aligned} \mathsf{A}_{LS}^{(0)}(\mathbf{r}_{p}) &= \int \sum_{\substack{m_{1}^{-}m_{2}^{-}}} \left[1 + (-1)^{S_{1}^{-}} \mathsf{P}_{1k}^{-} \right] \mathcal{P}_{n_{1}^{-}}[\xi_{1}^{-}m_{1}^{-}(\xi_{1}^{-}) C \left(\ell_{p}^{-} \ell_{s}^{-}L_{j}^{-}m_{p}^{-}m_{s}^{-}M_{L}^{-}\right) \\ &\times Y_{e_{p}^{+}m_{p}^{-}}(\hat{r}_{p}) \left[H - E \right] \left[\sum_{j=1}^{L} \left\{ 1 + (-1)^{S_{1}^{-}} \mathsf{P}_{12} \right\} \mathcal{Q}_{n_{2}} \varrho_{2m_{2}}\left(\frac{g}{2}\right) \delta_{s_{2}} s_{s_{1}} \right] \\ &\times C \left(\ell_{p} \varrho_{s} L_{j}^{-}m_{p}m_{s}^{-}M_{L}^{-}\right) \frac{\mathsf{F}_{s}^{LS}}{\mathsf{P}_{p}} \frac{V_{e_{p}m_{p}}(\hat{r}_{p})}{\mathsf{P}_{p}} + \frac{(1 + \varrho_{1})}{\mathsf{V}_{k}\pi} \sum_{\substack{m_{2}m_{m} \\ m_{2}m_{m}}} \mathcal{Q}_{0}\left(r_{2}\right) \\ &\times \mathsf{w}_{n_{q}} \varrho_{n}\left(\rho_{1}\right) \mathbb{V}_{e_{n}m_{n}}\left(\hat{\rho}_{1}\right) \left[C \left(\varrho_{3} \varrho_{n} L_{j}^{-}m_{3}m_{n}^{-}M_{L}^{-}\right) \frac{\mathsf{T}_{s}^{-S}}{\mathsf{S}_{s}^{+}} s_{n}^{-} \frac{\mathcal{G}_{p}\left(r_{2}\right)}{\sigma_{1}} \\ &\times \mathsf{w}_{n_{q}} \varrho_{n}\left(\rho_{1}\right) \mathbb{V}_{e_{n}m_{n}}\left(\hat{\rho}_{1}\right) \left[C \left(\varrho_{3} \varrho_{n} L_{j}^{-}m_{3}m_{n}^{-}M_{L}^{-}\right) \frac{\mathsf{T}_{s}^{-S}}{\mathsf{S}_{s}^{+}} s_{n}^{-} \frac{\mathcal{G}_{p}\left(r_{2}\right)}{\sigma_{1}} \\ &\times \mathsf{w}_{n_{q}} \varrho_{n}\left(\rho_{1}\right) \mathbb{V}_{e_{n}m_{n}}\left(\hat{\rho}_{1}\right) \left[C \left(\varrho_{3} \varrho_{n} L_{j}^{-}m_{3}m_{n}^{-}M_{L}^{-}\right) \frac{\mathsf{T}_{s}^{-S}}{\mathsf{S}_{s}^{+}} s_{n}^{-} \frac{\mathcal{G}_{p}\left(r_{2}\right)}{\sigma_{1}} \\ &\times \mathsf{w}_{n_{q}} \varrho_{n}\left(r_{1}\right) \mathbb{V}_{e_{n}m_{n}}\left(\hat{\rho}_{1}\right) \left[C \left(\varrho_{3} \varrho_{n} L_{j}^{-}m_{3}m_{n}^{-}M_{L}^{-}\right) \frac{\mathsf{T}_{s}^{-S}}{\mathsf{S}_{s}^{+}} s_{n}^{-} \frac{\mathcal{G}_{p}\left(r_{2}\right)}{\sigma_{1}} \\ &\times \mathsf{w}_{n_{q}} \varrho_{n}\left(r_{1}\right) \mathbb{V}_{e_{n}m_{n}}\left(\hat{\rho}_{1}\right) \left[d\hat{r}_{p} d\underline{r}_{1} d\underline{r}_{n} \\ &\times \mathsf{w}_{n_{q}} v_{n_{q}}}\left(r_{1}^{-}\right) \frac{\mathsf{T}_{s}}{\mathsf{S}_{s}^{+}} s_{n}^{-} s_{s}^{-}} \left[s_{n}^{-} s_{n}$$

where denotes a 6-j coefficient as defined by (97) Rotenberg, Bivins, Metropolis and Wooten . The 6-j coefficient can be defined in terms of the 3-j coefficients as follows:

$$\left\{ \begin{array}{ccc} \eta_{1} & \eta_{2} & \eta_{3} \\ \eta_{1} & \eta_{2} & \eta_{3} \\ \eta_{1} & \eta_{2} & \eta_{3} \end{array} \right\} = \sum_{\substack{n \in \mathbb{N} \\ n \neq n \\ n \neq n}} (-1)^{n_{1} + n_{2} + n_{3}} \left(\begin{array}{ccc} \eta_{1} & \eta_{2} & \eta_{3} \\ \eta_{1} & \eta_{2} & \eta_{3} \end{array} \right) \left(\begin{array}{ccc} \eta_{1} & \eta_{2} & \eta_{3} \\ \eta_{1} & \eta_{2} & \eta_{3} \end{array} \right) \left(\begin{array}{ccc} \eta_{1} & \eta_{2} & \eta_{3} \\ \eta_{1} & \eta_{2} & \eta_{3} \end{array} \right) \left(\begin{array}{ccc} \eta_{1} & \eta_{2} & \eta_{3} \\ \eta_{1} & \eta_{2} & \eta_{3} \end{array} \right) \left(\begin{array}{ccc} \eta_{1} & \eta_{2} & \eta_{3} \\ \eta_{1} & \eta_{2} & \eta_{3} \end{array} \right) \left(\begin{array}{ccc} \eta_{1} & \eta_{2} & \eta_{3} \\ \eta_{1} & \eta_{2} & \eta_{3} \end{array} \right) \left(\begin{array}{ccc} \eta_{1} & \eta_{2} & \eta_{3} \\ \eta_{1} & \eta_{2} & \eta_{3} \end{array} \right) \left(\begin{array}{ccc} \eta_{1} & \eta_{2} & \eta_{3} \\ \eta_{1} & \eta_{2} & \eta_{3} \end{array} \right) \left(\begin{array}{ccc} \eta_{1} & \eta_{2} & \eta_{3} \\ \eta_{1} & \eta_{2} & \eta_{3} \end{array} \right) \left(\begin{array}{ccc} \eta_{1} & \eta_{2} & \eta_{3} \\ \eta_{1} & \eta_{2} & \eta_{3} \end{array} \right) \left(\begin{array}{ccc} \eta_{1} & \eta_{2} & \eta_{3} \\ \eta_{1} & \eta_{2} & \eta_{3} \end{array} \right) \left(\begin{array}{ccc} \eta_{1} & \eta_{2} & \eta_{3} \\ \eta_{1} & \eta_{2} & \eta_{3} \end{array} \right) \left(\begin{array}{ccc} \eta_{1} & \eta_{2} & \eta_{3} \\ \eta_{2} & \eta_{3} \end{array} \right) \left(\begin{array}{ccc} \eta_{1} & \eta_{2} & \eta_{3} \\ \eta_{2} & \eta_{3} \end{array} \right) \left(\begin{array}{ccc} \eta_{1} & \eta_{2} & \eta_{3} \\ \eta_{2} & \eta_{3} \end{array} \right) \left(\begin{array}{ccc} \eta_{1} & \eta_{2} & \eta_{3} \\ \eta_{2} & \eta_{3} \end{array} \right) \left(\begin{array}{ccc} \eta_{1} & \eta_{2} & \eta_{3} \\ \eta_{1} & \eta_{2} & \eta_{3} \end{array} \right) \left(\begin{array}{ccc} \eta_{1} & \eta_{2} & \eta_{3} \\ \eta_{2} & \eta_{3} \end{array} \right) \left(\begin{array}{ccc} \eta_{1} & \eta_{2} & \eta_{3} \\ \eta_{2} & \eta_{3} \end{array} \right) \left(\begin{array}{ccc} \eta_{1} & \eta_{2} & \eta_{3} \\ \eta_{2} & \eta_{3} \end{array} \right) \left(\begin{array}{ccc} \eta_{1} & \eta_{2} & \eta_{3} \\ \eta_{2} & \eta_{3} \end{array} \right) \left(\begin{array}{ccc} \eta_{2} & \eta_{3} \\ \eta_{3} & \eta_{3} \end{array} \right) \left(\begin{array}{ccc} \eta_{1} & \eta_{2} & \eta_{3} \\ \eta_{2} & \eta_{3} \end{array} \right) \left(\begin{array}{ccc} \eta_{2} & \eta_{3} \\ \eta_{3} & \eta_{3} \end{array} \right) \left(\begin{array}{ccc} \eta_{1} & \eta_{2} & \eta_{3} \\ \eta_{1} & \eta_{2} \end{array} \right) \left(\begin{array}{ccc} \eta_{2} & \eta_{3} \\ \eta_{1} & \eta_{2} \end{array} \right) \left(\begin{array}{ccc} \eta_{2} & \eta_{3} \\ \eta_{1} & \eta_{2} \end{array} \right) \left(\begin{array}{ccc} \eta_{1} & \eta_{2} \end{array} \right) \left(\begin{array}{ccc} \eta_{1} & \eta_{2} \\ \eta_{2} & \eta_{3} \end{array} \right) \left(\begin{array}{ccc} \eta_{1} & \eta_{2} \end{array} \right) \left(\begin{array}{ccc} \eta_{2} & \eta_{2} \end{array} \right) \left(\begin{array}{ccc} \eta_{2} & \eta_{2} \end{array} \right) \left(\begin{array}{ccc} \eta_{1} & \eta_{2} \end{array} \right) \left(\begin{array}{cccc} \eta_{2} & \eta_{2} \end{array} \right) \left(\begin{array}{ccc} \eta_{2} & \eta_{2} \end{array} \right$$

251

6.39

where () represents a 3-j coefficient which is directly related to the Clebsch-Gordan coefficients as follows:

$$C(\ell_{1}\ell_{2}\ell_{3};m_{1}m_{2}m_{3}) = (2\ell_{3}+1)^{\frac{1}{2}}(-1) \begin{pmatrix} \ell_{1}+\ell_{2}-m_{3}\\ m_{1}&m_{2}&-m_{3} \end{pmatrix} \qquad 6.40$$

ALS is now written as follows:

and

$$A_{LS}^{(1)}(r_{p}) = B_{LS}^{(1)}(r_{p}) + B_{LS}^{(2)}(r_{p})$$
where $B_{LS}^{(1)}(r_{p}) = \sum_{\substack{m_{1}'m_{p}' \\ m_{3}'m_{p}'}} \int [1 + (-1)^{s_{g}} P_{12}] \varphi_{n_{2}'} \varphi_{n_{3}'}^{(1)}(\frac{g}{2}) Y_{e_{p}'m_{p}'}(\hat{r}_{p})$

$$\times C(P_{p}'P_{s}'L; mp'ms'ML)C(P_{p}P_{s}L; mpm_{s}ML)[H-E][1+(-1)^{S_{s}}P_{12}]cP_{ns}P_{sms}(\underline{\xi})$$

$$\mathcal{B}_{LS}(r_{p}) = \frac{2}{\sqrt{\lambda TT}} \sum_{\substack{m_{s}'m_{p}' \\ m_{s}m_{s}/m_{p}'}} \int \left[1 + (-1)^{S_{s}'} P_{12} \right] P_{n_{s}'} e_{s'm_{s}'} \left(\frac{g}{2} \right) J_{S_{s}'S_{\eta}}^{S}$$

$$\times C(P_{p}'P_{s}'L; m_{p}'m_{s}'M_{L}) C(P_{s}P_{n}L; m_{s}m_{n}M_{L}) Y_{P_{p}'m_{p}'}(\hat{\tau}_{p}) \left[H - E\right] \phi_{0}(\tau_{a})$$

*
$$w_n e_n(p_i) Y e_{n-n}(\hat{p}_i) Y e_{n-n}(\hat{\sigma}_i) \frac{G_n(\sigma_i)}{\sigma_i} d\hat{r}_p d\underline{r}_i d\underline{r}_2 = 6.42$$

Applying equations (2.33) and (6.31) to (6.41) results in:

$$\mathcal{B}_{LS}^{(1)}(r_{p}) = \sum_{\substack{mp mp' \\ m_{S}}} C \left(e_{p}' e_{S} L; mp' m_{e} M_{L} \right) C \left(e_{p} e_{S} L; mpm_{S} M_{L} \right) \int Y_{ep'mp'}(\hat{r}_{p})$$

$$\left[-\nabla_{p}^{2} - k_{v}^{2} \right] Y_{e_{p}m_{p}}(\hat{r}_{p}) \frac{F_{v}(r_{p})}{r_{p}} d\hat{r}_{p} + \sum_{v} V_{v'v}(r_{p}) \frac{F_{v}(r_{p})}{r_{p}} \frac{F_{v}(r_{p})}{r_{p}} \right]$$

where $k_{v}^{2} = E - E_{v}^{He}$

and
$$V_{v'v}(r_p) = -\sum_{\substack{m_pm_p'\\ m_sm_s'}} C(e_p'e_s'L; m_p'm_s' M_L) C(e_pe_sL; m_pm_sM_L)$$

$$\times \int V_{epup}(\hat{r}_{p}) Y_{epup}(\hat{r}_{p}) \left\{ \left[1+(-1)^{S_{2}} P_{12} \right] \varphi_{ns' e_{s}' ns'}(\underline{r}) \right\} \left\{ \left[1+(-1)^{S_{2}} P_{12} \right] \varphi_{ns e_{s}' ns'}(\underline{r}) \right\}$$

$$\times \left[\frac{2}{P_{1}} + \frac{2}{P_{2}} - \frac{4}{r_{p}} \right] d\hat{r}_{p} d\underline{r}_{1} d\underline{r}_{2} \qquad 6.43$$

Performing the angular integration over r_{p} gives:

$$\beta_{LS}(r_p) = -\frac{1}{r_p} \left[\frac{d^2}{dr_p^2} - \frac{\rho_p(\rho_{p+1})}{r_p^2} \right] F_{\tau'}^{LS}(r_p) + \frac{1}{r_p} \sum_{\nu} V_{\tau'\nu}(r_p) F_{\nu}^{LS}(r_p)$$
6.44
The second integral $\beta_{LS}^{(2)}$ simplifies to the following:

Applying Green's Theorem results in:

$$B_{LS}^{(a)}(r_{p}) = \frac{g}{\sqrt{AT}} \sum_{\substack{m_{s}'m_{p}'\\m_{s}m_{n}}} C\left(\varphi_{p}'\varphi_{s}' L_{s}'m_{p}'m_{s}''M_{L}\right) C\left(\varphi_{s}Q_{n}L_{s}'m_{s}m_{n}M_{L}\right)$$

$$\times \frac{1}{2} \sum_{r_{s}'s_{n}}^{S} \int \varphi_{o}(r_{a}) G_{\mu}^{LS}(\sigma_{i}) Y_{\varrho_{s}m_{s}}(\hat{\sigma}_{i}) Y_{\varrho_{p}'m_{p}}(\hat{r}_{p}) \left[-\nabla_{\sigma_{i}}^{2} + \frac{g}{r_{p}} - \frac{g}{r_{p}}\right]$$

$$+ \frac{1}{4} - \frac{1}{4} - \frac{g_{\mu}}{r_{\mu}}^{2} \left[1 + (\frac{1}{1})^{s_{s}'}P_{ia}\right] \varphi_{n_{s}'}^{s} g_{m_{s}'}^{s}(\frac{g}{r_{s}}) \omega_{n}q_{n}}(\rho_{i})$$

$$\times \frac{1}{r_{p}} \sum_{\mu} \int_{\sigma}^{\infty} G_{\mu}^{LS}(\sigma_{i}) K_{\nu'\mu}^{LS}(r_{p},\sigma_{i}) d\sigma_{i}$$

$$= \frac{1}{r_{p}} \sum_{\mu} \int_{\sigma}^{\infty} G_{\mu}^{LS}(\sigma_{i}) K_{\nu'\mu}^{LS}(r_{p},\sigma_{i}) d\sigma_{i}$$

$$(r_{p},\sigma_{i}) d\sigma_{i}$$

$$(r_{p},\sigma_{i}) d\sigma_{i}$$

$$(r_{p},\sigma_{i}) d\sigma_{i}$$

$$(r_{p},\sigma_{i}) d\sigma_{i}$$

Combining equations (6.45),(6.46) and omitting the superscripts L and S we obtain:

J4TT

$$\begin{bmatrix} \frac{d^{2}}{dr_{p}} - \frac{\ell_{p}(\ell_{p}+1)}{r_{p}} + k_{v}^{a} \end{bmatrix} F_{v}(r_{p}) = \sum_{v'} V_{vv'_{e}}(r_{p}) F_{v'}(r_{p}) + \sum_{\mu'} \int_{0}^{\infty} \mathcal{G}_{\mu'}(\sigma_{i}) K_{v\mu'}(r_{p},\sigma_{i}) d\sigma_{i} = 6.48$$

For the second equation we define $A_{LS}^{(2)}$ as follows:

$$\begin{split} \mathsf{P}_{LS}^{(2)}(\sigma_{1}) &= \sum_{\substack{m_{1},m_{2},m_{1}\\m_{n}}} C\left(\varrho_{1}^{*}\varrho_{1}^{+}L_{j}^{*}m_{3}^{*}m_{n}^{+}M_{L}^{*}\right) C\left(\frac{1}{2},S_{n}^{*}S_{j}^{*}m_{2}^{*}m_{2}^{*}m_{2}^{*}M_{n}^{*}M_{s}^{*}\right) \\ &\times \int e \rho_{\lambda}^{*}\left(\mu_{1},S_{n}^{*}\right) Y_{e_{3}^{*}m_{3}^{*}}(\hat{\sigma}_{1}) X_{\frac{1}{3}m_{2}^{*}}(a) \left[\mathsf{H}-\mathsf{E}\right] \quad \underline{\Psi}^{LS}_{(1,2,p)} d\hat{\sigma}_{1} d\rho_{1} d\rho_{2} \\ &= \sum_{\substack{m_{3}^{*}m_{1}^{*}}} C\left(\varrho_{3}^{*}\varrho_{n}^{*}L_{j}^{*}m_{p}^{*}m_{n}^{*}M_{L}^{*}\right) \int \frac{\varphi_{0}(r_{2})}{\sqrt{\mu\pi}} \omega_{n}^{*}\varrho_{n}^{*}(\rho_{1}) \\ &\times Y_{e_{n}m_{n}^{*}}(\hat{\rho}_{1}) Y_{e_{3}^{*}m_{3}^{*}}(\hat{\sigma}_{1}) \left[\mathsf{H}-\mathsf{E}\right] \sum_{\substack{m_{2}^{*}m_{3}^{*}}} C\left(\varrho_{p}\varrho_{e}L_{j}^{*}m_{p}m_{s}M_{L}^{*}\right) \\ &\times \overline{J}_{S_{e}S_{n}^{*}}^{S}\left[1+(-1)^{S_{e}}\right] e \varphi_{s}\varrho_{s}g_{s}(\hat{f}_{2}) \overline{F}_{u}^{LS}(\rho_{p}) Y_{e_{p}m_{p}}(\hat{\sigma}_{p}) + \\ &\left(\mathsf{I}+\rho_{e2}\right) \sum_{\substack{m_{3}^{*}m_{3}^{*}}} \overline{\sigma}_{S_{n}S_{n}^{*}} C\left(\varrho_{3}\varrho_{n}L_{j}^{*}m_{3}m_{n}M_{L}\right) \frac{e \rho_{0}(r_{2})}{\sqrt{4\pi}} \omega_{n}\varrho_{n}(\rho_{1}) \\ &\times Y_{e_{n}m_{n}}(\hat{\rho}_{1}) Y_{e_{3}m_{3}}(\hat{\sigma}_{1}) \frac{G_{\mu}^{LS}}{G_{\mu}^{*}(\sigma_{1})} d\hat{\sigma}_{1} d\rho_{1} df_{2} \\ &= \beta_{LS}^{(3)}(\sigma_{1}) + \beta_{LS}^{(4)}(\sigma_{1}) + \beta_{LS}^{(5)}(\sigma_{1}) \end{split}$$

$$B_{LS}^{(4)}(\sigma_{i}) = \sum_{\substack{m_{3}^{i} = n_{1}^{i} \\ m_{3} = n_{1}^{i}}} C(\ell_{3}^{i}\ell_{n}^{i} + j + m_{3}^{i} + m_{1}^{i} + m_{2}^{i}) C(\ell_{3}\ell_{n} + j + m_{3} + m_{1} + m_{1}^{i}) C(\ell_{3}\ell_{n} + j + m_{3} + m_{1} + m_{1}^{i}) C(\ell_{3}\ell_{n} + j + m_{3} + m_{1} + m_{1}^{i}) C(\ell_{3}\ell_{n} + j + m_{3} + m_{1} + m_{1}^{i}) C(\ell_{3}\ell_{n} + m_{1}^{i}) C(\ell_{3}\ell_{n$$

÷

$$= \sum_{\substack{m_{1}'m_{$$

$$=\frac{1}{2\sigma_{1}}\left[\frac{d^{2}}{d\sigma_{1}^{2}}-\frac{\ell_{3}(\ell_{3}+1)}{\sigma_{1}^{2}}+k_{m}^{2}\right]G_{m}(\sigma_{1})+\frac{1}{2\sigma_{1}}\sum_{m}V_{m}(\sigma_{1})G_{m}(\sigma_{1})$$

1.0

× $G_{\mu}^{LS}(\sigma_{i}) d\hat{\sigma}_{i} df_{i} df_{2}$

where:
$$V_{\mu j \mu}(\sigma_{1}) = \frac{1}{\pi} \sum_{\substack{m_{3}m_{n} \\ m_{3}m_{n}}} C(\ell_{3}^{\dagger}\ell_{n}^{\dagger}L_{j}^{\dagger}m_{3}^{\dagger}m_{n}^{\dagger}M_{L})$$

 $\times C(\ell_{3}\ell_{n}L_{j}^{\dagger}m_{3}m_{n}M_{L}) \int \{\ell_{0}^{\dagger}(r_{3})\}^{2} w_{n}\ell_{n}(\rho_{1})$
 $\times w_{n}^{\dagger}\ell_{n}^{\dagger}(\rho_{1})Y_{e_{n}m_{n}}(\hat{\rho}_{1})Y_{e_{n}^{\dagger}m_{n}^{\dagger}}(\hat{\rho}_{1})Y_{e_{3}m_{3}^{\dagger}}(\hat{e}_{1})Y_{e_{3}m_{3}}(\hat{e}_{1})$
 $\times \left[\frac{2}{r_{p}}-\frac{2}{r_{1}}-\frac{1}{\rho_{2}}+\frac{1}{r_{12}}\right] d\hat{e}_{1}d\hat{p}_{1}d\hat{t}_{2}$

6.51

And finally:
$$\mathcal{B}_{LS}^{(S)}(\sigma_{i}) = \sum_{\substack{m_{3}'m_{1}'\\m>m_{M}}} C\left(\ell_{s}^{i}\ell_{n}^{i}L_{s}^{i}m_{s}^{i}m_{n}^{i}M_{L}\right)$$

 $\times C\left(\ell_{s}\ell_{n}L_{s}^{i}m_{s}m_{M}M_{L}\right)\int \frac{\ell_{0}(\sigma_{s})}{\mu_{T}}\omega_{n}^{i}\ell_{n}^{i}(\rho_{i})Y_{\ell_{n}'m_{1}}(\rho_{i})Y_{\ell_{3}m_{3}'}(\sigma_{i})\times$

257

6.50

$$\left[H - E \right] e_{0}^{\ell} (r_{1}) w_{n} e_{n} (p_{n}) Y_{e_{n}m_{n}} (p_{n}^{2}) Y_{e_{n}m_{n}} (p_{n}^{2}) Y_{e_{n}m_{n}} (p_{n}^{2}) \frac{G_{m}^{LS}}{G_{n}} d\hat{\sigma}_{1} d\hat{\sigma}_{1} d\hat{\sigma}_{1} d\hat{\sigma}_{1} d\hat{\sigma}_{2} d\hat{\sigma}_{1} d\hat{\sigma}_{2} d\hat{\sigma}_{1} d\hat{\sigma}_{1} d\hat{\sigma}_{2} d\hat{\sigma}_{1} d\hat{\sigma}_{1} d\hat{\sigma}_{2} d\hat{\sigma}_{1} d\hat{\sigma}_{1} d\hat{\sigma}_{2} d\hat{\sigma}_{1} d\hat{\sigma}_{2} d\hat{\sigma}_{2} d\hat{\sigma}_{1} d\hat{\sigma}_{2} d\hat{\sigma}_{1} d\hat{\sigma}_{2} d\hat{\sigma}_{1} d\hat{\sigma}_{1} d\hat{\sigma}_{2} d\hat{\sigma}_{1} d\hat{\sigma}_{1} d\hat{\sigma}_{2} d\hat{\sigma}_{2} d\hat{\sigma}_{1} d\hat{\sigma}_{2} d\hat{\sigma}_{2} d\hat{\sigma}_{2} d\hat{\sigma}_{1} d\hat{\sigma}_{2} d$$

$$= \frac{1}{2\sigma_1} \sum_{\sigma_1} \int_{0}^{\infty} G_{\mu} (\sigma_2) K_{\mu'\mu} (\sigma_1, \sigma_2) d\sigma_2 \qquad 6.52$$

where:
$$K_{M'_{JL}}(\sigma_{1},\sigma_{2}) = -\frac{16\sigma_{1}\sigma_{2}}{\pi} \sum_{\substack{m_{3}'m_{1}'\\mam_{m}}} C(\ell_{3}'\ell_{n}'L;m_{3}'m_{n}'M_{L})$$

 $\times C(\ell_{3}\ell_{n}L;m_{3}m_{n}M_{L}) \int Y_{\ell_{3}m_{3}}(\hat{\sigma}_{2})Y_{\ell_{3}'m_{3}'}(\hat{\sigma}_{1}) \left[\nabla_{\sigma_{2}} - \frac{8}{7} + \frac{8}{7} + \frac{14}{7} - \frac{14}{7} + k_{m}^{a} \right]$

×
$$\varphi_0(r_i) \varphi_0(r_2) \omega_n \varrho_n(\rho_i) \omega_{n'} \varrho_n'(\rho_i) Y_{\varrho_n m_n'}(\rho_i) Y_{\varrho_n' m_n'}(\rho_i) d\hat{\sigma}_i d\hat{\sigma}_2 d\underline{r}_p$$
 6.53

Combining equations (6.49), (6.50) and (6.52) gives:

$$\begin{bmatrix} \frac{d^{2}}{d\sigma_{1}^{2}} - \frac{\rho_{3}(\rho_{3}+1)}{\sigma_{1}^{2}} + k_{m}^{2} \end{bmatrix} \mathcal{G}_{m}(\sigma_{1}) = \sum_{m'} V_{mm'}(\sigma_{1}) \mathcal{G}_{m'}(\sigma_{1})$$

$$+ \sum_{m'} \int_{0}^{\infty} F_{n'}(\tau_{p}) K_{mn'}(r_{p},\sigma_{1}) d\tau_{p} + \sum_{m'} \int_{0}^{\infty} \mathcal{G}_{m'}(\sigma_{2}) K_{mn'}(\sigma_{1},\sigma_{2}) d\sigma_{2} \qquad 6.54$$

(a) The Direct Interactions V.

The interaction V between the positron and the Helium atom which is given by equation (6.43) can be written as follows:

$$\begin{split} V_{u'u}(r_{p}) &= -\lambda \sum_{\substack{m_{p}m_{p} \\ m_{u}m_{p}}} C \left(e_{p}^{+} e_{s}^{+} h_{j}^{+} m_{p}^{+} m_{s}^{+} M_{L} \right) C \left(e_{p} e_{s} L_{j}^{+} m_{p} m_{s} M_{L} \right) \\ &\times \int V_{p}m_{p}(\hat{r}_{p}) V e_{p}m_{p}^{+}(\hat{r}_{p}) \left\{ 1 + (-1)^{s_{p}} P_{12} \right\} \varphi_{n_{s}} e_{s}^{+} m_{s}^{+} \left(\frac{p}{2} \right) \left\{ 1 + (-1)^{s_{p}} P_{12} \right\} \\ &\times \mathcal{O}_{n_{s}} e_{s}m_{s} \left(\underline{r} \right) \left[\frac{1}{p_{1}} - \frac{1}{r_{p}} \right] d\hat{r}_{p} d\underline{r}_{1} d\underline{r}_{2} \\ &= \frac{\mu}{r_{p}} \delta_{uu^{1}} - 2 \sum_{i} \left[\Delta \left(u_{n_{s}} e_{s}, u_{n_{s}}' e_{s}' \right) u_{0} \left(e_{0}, \varphi_{0}; r_{p} \right) \delta_{e} e_{i}^{+} \delta_{e} e_{p} e_{p}^{+} \delta_{d0} \\ &+ \Delta \left(\varphi_{0}, \varphi_{0} \right) u_{d} \left(u_{n_{s}} e_{s}, u_{n_{s}}' e_{s}' \right) e_{i}^{+} \lambda \left(e_{s} e_{p} e_{p}^{+} e_{s}' \right) \\ &+ (-1)^{s_{s}} \delta_{d} e_{i}^{+} \delta_{e_{p}L} \delta_{e} o \left[\frac{(2e_{i}^{+}+1)}{(2L+1)(2e_{s}'+1)} \right]^{\frac{1}{2}} C \left(e_{i}^{+} e_{s}^{+} L_{j}^{+} \cos \right) x \end{split}$$

$$\times \Delta(\varphi_{o}, u_{n_{s}} e_{s}) y e_{s}' (\varphi_{o}, u_{n_{s}} e_{s}', r_{p}) + (-1)^{s} \delta_{d} e_{s} \delta_{e_{p}' L} \delta_{e_{s}' o}$$

$$\times \left[\frac{(2e_{p}+1)}{(2L+i)(2e_{s}+1)} \right]^{\frac{1}{2}} C(e_{p} e_{s} L; 000) \Delta(\varphi_{o}, u_{n_{s}} e_{s}') y e_{s}(\varphi_{o}, u_{n_{s}} e_{s}; r_{p}) 6.55$$

here
$$\Delta(A,B) = \int_{0}^{\infty} A(r') B(r') r'^{2} dr'$$
 6.56

$$y_{\lambda}(A,B,r) = \frac{1}{r^{\lambda+1}} \int_{0}^{r} r^{i\lambda} A(r^{i}) B(r^{i}) r^{i\lambda} dr^{i} + r^{\lambda} \int_{0}^{\infty} \frac{A(r^{i}) B(r^{i})}{r^{i\lambda+1}} r^{i\lambda+1} \frac{A(r^{i}) B(r^{i})}{r^{i\lambda+1}} r^{i\lambda+1} \frac{A(r^{i}) B(r^{i\lambda})}{r^{i\lambda+1}} r^{i\lambda+1} \frac{A(r^{i\lambda}) B(r^{i\lambda})}{r^{i\lambda+1}} r^{i\lambda} \frac{A(r^{i\lambda}) B(r^{i\lambda})}{r^{i\lambda+1}} r^{i\lambda+1} \frac{A(r^{i\lambda})}{r^{i\lambda+1}} r^{i\lambda+1} \frac{A(r^{i\lambda+1})}{r^{i\lambda+1}} r^{i\lambda+1} \frac{A(r^{i\lambda+1})}{r^{i\lambda+1}} r^{i\lambda+1} \frac{A(r^{i\lambda+1})}{r^{i\lambda+1}} r^{i\lambda+1}} r^{i\lambda+1} \frac{A(r^{i\lambda+1})}{r^{i\lambda+1}} r^{i\lambda+1} r^{i\lambda+1}} r^{i\lambda+1} r^{i\lambda+1}} r^{i\lambda+1} r^{i\lambda+1}} r^{i\lambda+1} r^{i\lambda+1}} r^{i\lambda+1} r^{i\lambda+1} r^{i\lambda+1}} r^{i\lambda+1} r^{i\lambda+1}} r^{i\lambda+1} r^{i\lambda+1}} r^{i\lambda+1}} r^{i\lambda+1} r^{i\lambda+1}} r^{i\lambda+1}} r^{i\lambda+1}} r^{$$

$$g_{\lambda}(e_{1}e_{2}e_{2}'e_{1}';L) = (-1)^{e_{1}+e_{2}-L}f_{\lambda}(e_{1}e_{2}e_{1}'e_{2}';L) \qquad 6.58$$

where
$$\int_{\lambda} \left(e_{1}e_{2}e_{1}'e_{2}';L \right) = (-1)^{e_{2}+e_{2}'-L} \left[\frac{(2e_{1}+1)(2e_{1}'+1)(2e_{2}'+1)(2e_{2}'+1)}{2\lambda+1} \right]^{\frac{1}{2}}$$

×C $\left(e_{1}e_{1}'\lambda;000 \right)$ C $\left(e_{2}e_{2}'\lambda;000 \right) \begin{cases} e_{1}&e_{2}&L \\ e_{1}'&e_{1}'\lambda \end{cases}$ 6.59

and the 6-j coefficient has already been defined in equation (6.39).

The interaction $V_{\mu\mu}$ of the Positronium with the residual Helium ion is given by equation (6.51). Before being able to perform the angular integrations, the spherical harmonic functions with arguments (98) (ϵ_1) must first be expanded using a theorem by Moshinsky which states:

Given t = x + y then:

W

and

$$* {}^{L}Y_{LM}(\hat{x}) = \sum_{p,q} \left[\frac{4\pi (2L+1)!}{(2L-2p+1)! (2p+1)!} \right]^{\frac{1}{2}} x {}^{p} y^{L-p}$$

$$xC(p,k-p,k;q,M-q,M)Y_{pq}(\hat{x})Y_{k-p,M-q}(\hat{y})$$
 6.60

As was shown for the L=O case in Appendix B the direct interaction $V_{\mu'\mu}$ vanishes if only S-states of Positronium are taken into account. In general:

$$V_{\mu\nu}(\sigma_{1}) = -16 \sum_{d} \delta_{d,odd} \int_{d} (\ell_{3}\ell_{\eta} \ell_{3}^{\dagger} \ell_{\eta}^{\dagger}; L) \left[2\Delta(\ell_{0}, \ell_{0}) \right] \\ * y_{d} \left(\omega_{n}\ell_{n}, \omega_{n}!\ell_{n}^{\dagger}; 2\sigma_{1} \right) + \sum_{p} \frac{\sigma_{1}}{\frac{\sigma_{1}}{(-1)^{p}}}{\frac{2p+1}{2p+1}} \\ * \left\{ \frac{(2d)!}{(2d-2p)!(2p)!} \right\}^{\frac{1}{2}} C(p, d-p, d; 000) K_{d}^{p}(\sigma_{1}) \right]$$
6.6

where
$$K_{a}^{P}(\sigma_{1}) = \int \{\psi_{0}(a)\}^{2} \mathcal{F}_{a}^{P}(r_{2},\sigma_{1})r_{2}^{p+1}dr_{2}$$
 6.62a

and
$$f_{\mu}^{P}(r_{2},\sigma_{1}) = \frac{2r_{2}\sigma_{1}}{2d+1} \int_{1}^{+1} g_{\mu}(\omega_{n_{1}}e_{n_{1}}, \omega_{n_{1}}e_{n_{1}}^{+1}; 2|r_{2}-r_{1}|)P_{\mu}(\eta) d\eta$$
 6.62b

where $M = \hat{\tau}_{2} \cdot \hat{\sigma}_{1}$

(b) Simplification of the Kernels.

In order to simplify products of Clebsch-Gordon coefficients appearing in both kernels, the following two formulæhave been used:

$$\sum_{m_{3}} \begin{pmatrix} d_{1} & d_{2} & d_{3} \\ m_{1} & m_{2} & m_{3} \end{pmatrix} \begin{pmatrix} e_{1} & e_{2} & d_{3} \\ n_{1} & n_{2} & -m_{3} \end{pmatrix}$$

$$= \sum_{\ell_{3}n_{3}} \begin{pmatrix} -1 \end{pmatrix}^{j_{3}+\ell_{3}+m_{1}+\eta_{1}} (2\ell_{3}+1) \begin{cases} d_{1} & d_{2} & d_{3} \\ \ell_{1} & \ell_{2} & \ell_{3} \end{cases}$$

$$\times \begin{pmatrix} e_{1} & d_{2} & e_{3} \\ n_{1} & m_{2} & n_{3} \end{pmatrix} \begin{pmatrix} d_{1} & \ell_{2} & \ell_{3} \\ \ell_{1} & \ell_{2} & \ell_{3} \end{pmatrix} (d_{1} & \ell_{2} & \ell_{3} \end{pmatrix}$$

$$6.63$$

After repeated applications of equations (6.39), (6.40), (6.60), (6.63) and (6.64) $K_{\mu\nu}$, defined by equation (6.47) finally reduces down to:

$$\begin{split} & K_{J_{J_{n}}}(e_{p,q}) = -8 \, \overline{J}_{s_{1}'s_{q}}^{s} \, \overline{S}_{e_{p'L}} \, \overline{S}_{e_{1}'c} \, \sum_{k'} \sum_{k'} \sum_{p_{2}'q_{1}} C(d_{p}e_{1}; 000) \\ & \times C(d_{p}e_{1}, p_{1}, k_{1}; 000) \left\{ \frac{(2e_{1})!}{2(2e_{1}-2p)!(2p)!(2p)!(2L+1)} \right\}^{\frac{1}{2}} \\ & \times \frac{(2e_{1}+1)(2e_{1})}{(2e_{1}-2p+1)} e_{r}^{e_{1}} e_{r}^{r}(-1)^{L+p+d} \left\{ \frac{e_{1}}{2e_{1}} - \frac{e_{n}}{2e_{1}} \frac{L}{2} \right\} \\ & \times \frac{(2e_{n}+1)(2e_{1})}{(2e_{n}-2p+1)} e_{r}^{e_{1}} e_{r}^{r}(-1)^{L+p+d} \left\{ \frac{e_{1}}{2e_{1}} - \frac{e_{n}}{2e_{1}} + \frac{L}{2} \right\} \\ & \times \frac{L}{2} \left\{ \frac{\Delta}{2e_{n}}(e_{1}) + \frac{e_{1}}{2e_{1}} + \frac{e_{1}}{2e_{1}} + \frac{1}{2e_{1}} \right\} \\ & \times \frac{(2e_{1}+1)(2e_{1})}{(2e_{1}-2p+1)} e_{r}^{e_{1}} e_{r}^{r}(1) = \frac{(2e_{1}+1)}{2e_{1}} + \frac{1}{2e_{1}} e_{r}^{r}(1) \\ & + 8 \, \Delta \left(e_{1}, u_{n'}e_{1} \right) \left\{ \frac{d^{2}}{d_{n}} + \frac{e_{1}}{2e_{1}} + \frac{1}{2e_{1}} e_{r}^{r}(1) \right\} \\ & \times (2e_{1})^{p} \left(2e_{1}, u_{n'}e_{1} \right) \left\{ \frac{d^{2}}{d_{n}} + \frac{1}{2e_{1}} + \frac{1}{2e_{1}} \left\{ \frac{(2e_{1}+1)}{(2e_{1}-2p+1)} + \frac{1}{2e_{1}} e_{r}^{r}(1) \\ & \frac{1}{2e_{1}} e_{r}^{r}(1) \right\} \\ & \times (2e_{1})^{p} \left(2e_{1} + \frac{1}{2e_{1}} + \frac{1}{2e_{1}} e_{r}^{r}(1) \\ & \frac{1}{2e_{1}} e_{r}^{r}(1) + \frac{1}{2e_{1}} e_{r}^{r}(1) \\ & \frac{1}{2e_{1}} e_{r}^{r}(1) \right\} \\ & \times (1)^{1+d+p} C \left(d_{1} + e_{1}; 000 \right) \left\{ \frac{e_{1}}{e_{1}} e_{1} + \frac{1}{2e_{1}} e_{r}^{r}(1) \\ & \frac{1}{(2e_{1}'+1)!} \frac{1}{(2e_{1}'+1)!} \frac{1}{(2e_{1}'+1)!} \\ & \frac{1}{(2e_{1}'+1)!} e_{r}^{r}e_{r}^$$

$$\begin{array}{l} \times C\left(d, \ell_{n} - \rho, \ell'; 0 \circ 0\right) & \left\{ \begin{array}{l} \rho - \ell' & k \\ \ell_{p'} & \ell_{i}' & \ell_{i}' - \rho' \\ \ell_{p'} & \ell_{i}' & \ell_{i}' \\ \ell_{p'} & \ell_{i}' \\ \ell_{p'} & \ell_{i}' & \ell_{i}' \\ \ell_{p'} & \ell_{i}' \\ \ell_{p'} & \ell_{i}' & \ell_{i}' \\ \ell_{p'} & \ell_$$

where $\mathcal{H}(r) \equiv \mathcal{H}(r_{p}, \sigma_{r})$ etcetera.

264

$$\frac{\varrho_{o}(r_{i})\omega_{n\varrho}(\rho_{i})}{\rho_{i}} = \frac{1}{r_{p}\sigma_{i}}\sum_{d}H_{n\varrho}^{d}(r_{p},\sigma_{i})P_{d}(\hat{r}_{p},\hat{\sigma}_{i})$$
6.66a

$$\frac{\underline{\varphi}_{o}(r_{i})\omega_{n}\varrho(p_{i})}{r_{i}p_{i}^{\varrho}} = \frac{1}{r_{p}\sigma_{i}} \sum_{d} \frac{g_{n}^{d}}{g_{n}^{\varrho}} \frac{(r_{p_{i}}\sigma_{i})P_{d}(\hat{r}_{p}\cdot\hat{\sigma}_{i})}{r_{q}} \qquad 6.66b$$

$$\frac{\varphi_{o}(r_{i}) \otimes w_{e}(p_{i}) }{r_{i}^{h} p_{i}^{e}} \frac{\varphi_{o}(w_{i}^{h} e^{i}; r_{i})}{r_{i}^{h} p_{i}^{e}}$$

$$= \frac{1}{r_{p}\sigma_{1}} \sum_{d} K_{n\ell_{n}\ell_{1}\lambda}^{d}(r_{p},\sigma_{1}) P_{d}(r_{p}\hat{\sigma}) \qquad 6.66c$$

$$\frac{u_{n}e(r_{i})\omega_{n'e'}(p_{i})}{r_{i}e} = \frac{1}{r_{p}\sigma_{i}}\sum_{d} \left(\int_{a}e_{n'e'}(r_{p_{i}}\sigma_{i}) P_{d}(\hat{r}_{p}\cdot\hat{\sigma})\right) = 6.66d$$

$$\frac{u_{n\ell}(r_{i}) \omega_{n}'\ell'(p_{i}) y_{o}(\varphi_{o}, \varphi_{o}; r_{i})}{p_{i}^{\ell'}} = \frac{1}{r_{p} \epsilon_{i}} \sum_{A_{n\ell_{n}'\ell'}} A_{n\ell_{n}'\ell'}^{d} (r_{p}, r_{i}) P_{d}(\hat{r}_{p}; \hat{r}_{i}) \qquad 6.66e$$

$$\frac{u_{n}\varrho(r_{i})\omega_{n}\varrho'(\rho_{i})}{r_{i}^{\varrho+1}\rho_{i}^{\varrho'}} = \frac{1}{r_{p}\sigma_{i}}\sum_{p_{n}\varrho_{n}'\varrho'}B_{n\varrho_{n}'\varrho'}(r_{p},\sigma_{i})P_{\mu}(\hat{r}_{p},\hat{\sigma}_{i}) \qquad 6.66f$$

 ${\rm K}_{\rm ulu}$ is defined by equation(6.53) and reduces to:

$$\begin{aligned} & \mathsf{K}_{\mu_{\mu}^{1}\mu}\left(\pi_{1},\pi_{\lambda}^{-}\right) = -b\,\mathcal{H}_{\mu}\sum_{\mathbf{z}^{+}}^{2}\sum_{\mathbf{p}^{0}}^{\mathbf{e}_{\lambda}^{-}}\sum_{\mathbf{p}^{0}0}^{\mathbf{e}_{\lambda}^{+}}C\left(d_{1},\mathbf{e}_{n-\mathbf{p}^{-}},\mathbf{z}^{+},\mathbf{i}^{-},000\right) \\ & \times C\left(d_{1}^{+},\mathbf{e}_{n-\mathbf{p}^{+}}^{+},\mathbf{z}^{+};000\right)\left(1\right)^{\mathbf{e}_{\lambda}+\mathbf{e}_{\lambda}^{+}+\mathbf{e}_{\lambda}+\mathbf{$$

$$\times C (\mathcal{L}_{P}^{'} \mathcal{L}_{i}^{'}; 000) C (\mathcal{R}_{3}^{'} \lambda \mathcal{L}_{i}^{'}; 000) \begin{cases} \mathcal{R}_{n} & \mathcal{L} & \mathcal{L}_{n}^{''} \\ \mathcal{R} & \mathcal{R}_{n}^{-p} & p \end{cases}$$

$$\times \begin{cases} \mathcal{R}_{n}^{'} \mathcal{L}_{i}^{''} \mathcal{L}_{i}^{''} \mathcal{L}_{i}^{''} \\ \mathcal{L}_{i}^{''} \mathcal{R}_{n}^{''} p^{''} \end{pmatrix} \begin{cases} \mathcal{R} & \mathcal{L}_{i}^{''} \mathcal{L}_{i}^{''} \\ \mathcal{R} & \mathcal{R}_{n}^{''} \mathcal{L}_{i}^{''} \\ \mathcal{R}_{n}^{''} \mathcal{R}_{n}^{''} p^{''} \end{cases} \end{cases} \begin{pmatrix} \mathcal{R}_{n}^{''} \lambda \mathcal{L}_{i}^{''}; 000 \end{pmatrix} \begin{cases} \mathcal{R}_{n} & \mathcal{L}_{i}^{''} \mathcal{L}_{i}^{''} \\ \mathcal{R} & \mathcal{R}_{n}^{-p} p^{''} \\ \mathcal{R} & \mathcal{R}_{n}^{''} \mathcal{L}_{i}^{''} \\ \mathcal{R} & \mathcal{R} & \mathcal{R} \\ \mathcal{R} & \mathcal{R} & \mathcal{R} \end{cases} \end{cases} \begin{pmatrix} \mathcal{R} & \mathcal{R} & \mathcal{R} & \mathcal{R}_{n}^{''} \\ \mathcal{R} & \mathcal{R} & \mathcal{R} \\ \mathcal{R$$

where $\mathcal{H}^{d}(z) = \mathcal{H}^{d}(r_{p}, \sigma_{2})$ etcetera.

and

a rep () to car)

$$\frac{\varrho_{o}(r_{i})\omega_{n}\varrho(\rho_{i})}{\rho_{i}^{\varrho+1}} = \frac{1}{r_{o}\sigma_{i}}\sum_{d}\mathcal{N}_{n}^{d}(r_{p},\sigma_{i})P_{d}(\hat{r}_{p},\hat{\sigma}_{i}) \qquad 6.68$$

The appropriate values of v, v', μ and μ can now be substituted into equations (6.55),(6.61),(6.65) and (6.67) to obtain the particular sets of equations for the 2P states of Helium and Positronium.

- 2- 1- 2

APPENDIX A

Simplification of
$$A_{L}(r_{p})$$
 and $A_{L}(\sigma)$

Substituting equations (2.3), (2.28), (2.24) and (2.26) into (2.28a) we obtain the following

$$A_{L}^{(1)}(r_{p}) = \int \left\{ \psi_{o}(\bar{i}a) \right\}^{2} Y_{LM}(\hat{r}_{p}) \left[-\nabla_{p}^{a} + \frac{4}{r_{p}} - \frac{a}{\rho_{2}} - \frac{a}{\rho_{2}} + k_{i}^{a} \right] F^{(L)}(p) d\hat{r}_{p} dr_{i} dr_{2}$$

+ 2
$$\int \psi_{0}(\bar{i}\bar{a}) \phi_{0}(a) w(p_{i}) Y_{LM}(\hat{r}_{p}) \left[-\frac{1}{2} \nabla_{\sigma_{1}}^{2} + \frac{1}{4} - \frac{1}{4} - \frac{1}{2} + \frac{1}{4} - \frac{1}{4} k_{2}^{2} \right] G^{(L)}(\bar{z}_{1}) d\hat{r}_{p} d\underline{r}_{1} d\underline{r}_{2}$$

where the factor of 2 in the second integral occurs because of the symmetry of the Hamiltonian and of the wave functions of the integrand in the coordinates 1 and 2. We change the independent variables from $(r_{,,}r_{2},r_{p})$ to $(\underline{\sigma},\underline{r}_{2},\underline{r}_{p})$, the Jacobian of the transformation being 2^{3} . Applying Green's Theorem to the second integral we obtain:

$$H_{L}^{(1)}(r_{p}) \int \{\psi_{o}(\bar{n})\}^{a} Y_{LM}(\hat{r}_{p}) \left[-\nabla_{p}^{a} + \frac{1}{4} - \frac{2}{2} - \frac{2}{4} - k_{i}^{a} \right] F^{(L)}(p) d\hat{r}_{p} d\underline{r}_{i} d\underline{r}_{a}$$

$$r_{p} P_{i} P_{a}$$

+ 2³
$$\int u(a) \phi_{0}(a) Y_{LN}(\hat{r}_{p}) G'(\underline{r}_{1}) \left[-\nabla_{e_{1}}^{2} + \underline{8} - \underline{8} - \underline{4} + \underline{4} - \underline{k}_{2}^{2} \right] u(1) w(p_{1}) d\hat{r}_{p} d\underline{\sigma}_{1} d\underline{\tau}_{2}$$

The surface integral term $\int_{S_{\sigma_1}} \left[\mathcal{G}^{(L)}(\mathfrak{g}, \mathbb{V}_{\sigma_1} \{ u(t) w(\rho_1) \} - u(t) w(\rho_1) \mathcal{V}_{\sigma_1} \{ \mathcal{G}^{(L)}(\mathfrak{g}, \mathbb{V}_{\sigma_1} \} \right] \cdot d\mathfrak{G}_{\sigma_1}$ of Green's Theorem is zero since u(t) and $w(\rho_1)$ are bound state

functions. We define

$$S = \int d\underline{r} \, \varphi(n) \, u(n)$$

$$P(r) = \int \frac{dt'}{dt'} \frac{\phi_0(r')u(r')}{|t-t'|}$$

$$\mathcal{U}(\underline{r}_{p}) \qquad \iint d\underline{r}_{1} d\underline{r}_{2} \left\{ 4_{0}(\overline{r}_{2}) \right\}^{2} \left[\frac{2}{p_{1}} + \frac{2}{p_{2}} - \frac{4}{r_{p}} \right]$$

Therefore $A_{L}^{(1)}(r_{p})$ may be written as follows:

$$H_{L}^{(1)}(r_{p}) = -\int Y_{LM}(\hat{r}_{p}) \left[\nabla_{p}^{2} + U(\underline{r}_{p}) + k_{1}^{2} \right] F_{p}^{(L)}(p) d\hat{r}_{p}$$

$$-\int Y_{LM}(\hat{r}_{p}) G_{p}^{(L)}(\underline{r}_{1}) K_{1}(\underline{r}_{p}, \underline{r}_{1}) d\hat{r}_{p} d\underline{r}_{1} \qquad A.2$$

where $K_{1}(r_{p}, \sigma_{1}) = 8 \left[S \left(\nabla_{\sigma_{1}}^{2} - \frac{8}{5} + \frac{8}{5} + k_{a}^{2} \right) + 4P(r_{p}) - 4P(r_{1}) \right] u(r) w(p_{1})$ A.3

A similar procedure is followed for $A_{L}^{(2)}(\sigma_{1})$. The independent variables are changed from $(\sigma_{1}, f_{1}, \sigma_{2})$ to $(\sigma_{1}, \sigma_{2}, \sigma_{2})$, the Jacobian being λ^{3} also. Applying Green's Theorem to the first integral of $A_{L}^{(2)}$ and using equations (2.3), (2.23), (2.24) and (2.26) in equation (2.28b) we obtain:

A.1b

A.lc

A.la

$$\begin{split} \int \varphi_{o}(a) \omega(p_{i}) Y_{LM}(\hat{\sigma}_{i}) \left[H-E \right] \Psi_{o}(i\bar{a}) F^{(L)}(p) d\hat{\sigma}_{i} dp_{i} d\underline{r}_{a} \\ &= 2^{3} \int \Psi_{o}(i\bar{a}) F^{(L)}(p) Y_{LM}(\hat{\sigma}_{i}) \left[H-E \right] \Psi_{o}(a) \omega(p_{i}) d\hat{\sigma}_{i} d\underline{r}_{p} d\underline{r}_{a} \\ &= -\frac{1}{2} \int Y_{LM}(\hat{\sigma}_{i}) F^{(L)}(p) K_{i}(\underline{r}_{p},\underline{r}_{i}) d\hat{\sigma}_{i} d\underline{r}_{p} \end{split}$$
 A.4

The second integral of $A_{L}^{(2)}(r_{1})$ can be written as follows:

$$\int \left\{ \Phi_{0}(2) \omega(p_{i}) \right\}^{2} Y_{LM}(\hat{\sigma}_{i}) \left\{ -\frac{1}{2} \nabla_{\sigma_{i}}^{2} + \frac{L}{4} - \frac{L}{4} - \frac{2}{2} + \frac{2}{7} - \frac{1}{2} R_{2}^{2} \right\} \mathcal{G}_{0}(\underline{\sigma}_{i}) d\hat{\sigma}_{i} dp_{i} d\underline{\sigma}_{2} + J \quad A.5$$

where
$$J = \int \varphi_0(z) w(p,) Y_{LM}(\hat{\sigma}_i) [H-E] \varphi_0(i) w(p_2) \theta'(\underline{z}_2) d\hat{\sigma}_i dp, d\underline{r}_2$$

Applying Green's Theorem to $\ensuremath{\mathcal{J}}$ we obtain:

1

$$J = \int \mathcal{G}^{(L)}(\underline{\sigma}_{1}) Y_{LM}(\widehat{\sigma}_{1}) \left[H - E \right] \mathcal{Q}_{0}(n) \mathcal{Q}_{0}(a) w(\underline{p}_{1}) w(\underline{p}_{2}) d\widehat{\sigma}_{1} d\underline{p}_{1} d\underline{\tau}_{2}$$

Changing the independent variables from $(\underline{s}_1, \underline{f}_1, \underline{s}_2)$ to $(\underline{s}_1, \underline{s}_2, \underline{s}_P)$, the Jacobian of the transformation being 4^3 we obtain:

$$J = -\int \mathcal{G}^{(L)}(\underline{\sigma}_{2}) Y_{LM}(\hat{\sigma}_{1}) K_{2}(\underline{\sigma}_{1}, \underline{\sigma}_{2}) d\hat{\sigma}_{1} d\underline{\sigma}_{2} \qquad A.6$$

where $K_{2}(\underline{\sigma}_{1}, \underline{\sigma}_{2}) = 4^{3} \int d\underline{\tau}_{p} \left[\frac{1}{2} \nabla_{\underline{\sigma}_{2}}^{2} - \frac{\mu}{4} + \frac{\mu}{4} + \frac{2}{p_{2}} - \frac{2}{r_{12}} + \frac{1}{2} k_{2}^{2} \right] \Phi_{0}(1) \Phi_{0}(2) \omega(p_{1}) \omega(p_{2})$

It can be seen that $K_{\lambda}(\underline{\sigma},\underline{\sigma}_{\lambda})$ is symmetric with respect to

interchange of 1 and 2. Therefore to preserve this symmetry explicitly in the form of K_2 we take the average of $K_2(\underline{\sigma}_1,\underline{\sigma}_2)$ and $K_2(\underline{\sigma}_2,\underline{\sigma}_1)$ as follows:

$$K_{2}(\underline{r}_{1},\underline{r}_{2}) = \frac{4}{2}(1+P_{12})\int d\underline{r}_{p} \left[\frac{1}{2}\nabla_{2}^{2}-\underline{t}_{1}+\underline{t}_{1}+\underline{2}-\underline{2}_{1}+\underline{1}k_{2}\right] \varphi_{0}(1)\varphi_{0}(\underline{u})w(p_{1})w(p_{2}) \quad A.7$$

where P_{12} is the operator interchanging all coordinates 1 and 2. Referring back to equation (A.5), it is shown in Appendix B that if only s-states of Positronium are included then:

$$\int \left\{ \varphi_{o}(z) w(P_{i}) \right\}^{2} Y_{LM}(\hat{\sigma}_{i}) \left[\frac{4}{r_{p}} - \frac{4}{r_{i}} - \frac{2}{\rho_{a}} + \frac{2}{r_{i2}} \right] \mathcal{G}(\varepsilon_{i}) d\hat{\sigma}_{i} dp_{i} d\underline{\tau}_{a} = 0$$

Combining equations (A.4), (A.5), (A.6) and (A.7) we obtain:

$$H_{L}^{(2)}(\sigma_{1}) = -\frac{1}{2} \int Y_{LM}(\hat{\sigma}_{1}) \left[\nabla_{\sigma_{1}}^{2} + k_{2}^{2} \right] \mathcal{G}_{(\underline{\sigma}_{1})}^{(L)} d\hat{\sigma}_{1}$$

$$-\frac{1}{2} \int Y_{LM}(\hat{\sigma}_{1}) F_{(\underline{p})}^{(L)} K_{1}(\underline{\sigma}_{2},\underline{\sigma}_{1}) d\hat{\sigma}_{1} d\underline{\sigma}_{\underline{p}} - \int Y_{LM}(\hat{\sigma}_{1}) F_{(\underline{\sigma}_{2})}^{(L)} K_{2}(\underline{\sigma}_{1},\underline{\sigma}_{2}) d\hat{\sigma}_{1} d\underline{\sigma}_{2} \qquad A.8$$

APPENDIX B

Consider the expression $X_{LM}(\varsigma)$:

$$X_{LM}(\sigma_{i}) = \int \left\{ \varphi_{o}(a) w(p_{i}) \right\}^{2} Y_{LM}(\hat{\sigma}_{i}) \left[\frac{\mu - \mu - 2}{r_{p}} + \frac{2}{r_{i}} \right] \mathcal{G}_{(\underline{\sigma}_{i})}^{(L)} d\hat{\sigma}_{i} dp_{i} d\underline{\tau}_{2}$$

Considering the angular integrations of equation (E.i) we have

$$= \int \left\{ \varphi_{0}(z) w(p_{1}) \right\} \frac{2}{9} \frac{(L)}{(\sigma_{1})} p_{1} \frac{z}{\tau_{2}} dp_{1} dr_{2} \int \left[Y_{Lm}(\hat{\sigma}_{1}) \right]^{2} \left[\frac{\mu}{\tau_{p}} - \frac{\mu}{\tau_{1}} - \frac{2}{2} + \frac{2}{\tau_{12}} \right] d\hat{\sigma}_{1} d\hat{p}_{2} d\hat{r}_{2} B.1$$

Using the expansion:

$$\frac{1}{|\underline{a}-\underline{b}|} = \sum_{\lambda} \forall_{\lambda} \{1-(-1)^{\lambda}\} P_{\lambda}(\hat{a}\cdot\hat{b}) \qquad B.2a$$

where
$$\delta_{\lambda} = \frac{t_{c}}{t_{\lambda}^{\lambda+1}}$$
 and $t_{c} = a$, $t_{\lambda} = b$ if $a < b$. B.2b
 $t_{c} = b$, $t_{\lambda} = a$ if $b < a$

With reference to the expressions B.1 and B.2 it can be seen that:

$$\frac{4}{r_{p}} - \frac{1}{r_{1}} - \frac{2}{\rho_{2}} + \frac{2}{r_{12}} = 2 \left\{ \frac{1}{\left| \frac{\sigma_{1} - \frac{4}{2} \right|}{\left| \frac{\sigma_{1} - \frac{4}{2} \right|}{2} \right|}} - \frac{1}{\left| \frac{\sigma_{1} - \frac{4}{2} \right|}{\left| \frac{\sigma_{1} - \frac{4}{2} \right|}{2} \right|}} + \left\{ \frac{1}{\left| \frac{\sigma_{2} - \sigma_{1} - \frac{\rho_{1}}{2} \right|}{\left| \frac{\sigma_{2} - \sigma_{1} + \frac{\rho_{1}}{2} \right|}} \right\}}$$
$$= \sum_{\lambda} \left\{ 1 - (-1)^{\lambda} \right\} \left[2 \aleph_{\lambda} \ P_{\lambda} \left(\hat{\sigma_{1}} \cdot \hat{\rho_{1}} \right) + \aleph_{\lambda}' \ P_{\lambda} \left(\tau_{\lambda} - \sigma_{1} \cdot \hat{\rho_{1}} \right) \right]$$

= 0 when $\lambda = 0$ or an even integer.

Where δ_{λ} denotes that $a = \sigma_{\lambda}$, $b = f_{\lambda}$ and δ_{λ} denotes that $a = \left[f_{\lambda} - \sigma_{\lambda} \right]$ and $b = f_{\lambda}$ in equations (B.2).

Considering the angular integrations of equation (B.1) we have the following factor:

$$\int \left|Y_{LM}(\hat{\sigma}_{i})\right|^{2} \sum_{\lambda} \left\{1 - (-1)^{\lambda}\right\} \left[2 \aleph_{\lambda} P_{\lambda}(\hat{\sigma}_{i}, \hat{P}_{i}) + \aleph_{\lambda}' P_{\lambda}(\hat{\tau_{2}}, \hat{\sigma}_{i}, \hat{P}_{i})\right] d\hat{\sigma}_{i} d\hat{p}_{i} d\hat{r}_{2}$$

Using the addition formula given by equation (2.43) this reduces to:

12. S. EPROT and J. ACTIMUMU, 1940, Physic Rev. L.T. 14 -153

14. L. MURANT and L. ROMINDERD, 1979, Thys. Roy. 115, 1094-1040

15. D.C.B. MITCON, S.A.J. MATRICE and E.L. HOPPERSTANDE, 1961 Prop. Phys. Soc. 78, 1175-1173

13. T. 5.400, 1950, Prokr. Theor. Thumley (Krote) 5, 293 1951, 5, 194

cal herer's No. 4, Massachusettes

$$\sum_{\lambda} \frac{(4\pi)^2}{2\lambda+1} S_{\lambda \circ} \left\{ 1 - (-1)^{\lambda} \right\} \left[2\varepsilon_{\circ} + \varepsilon_{\circ}' \right]$$

Thus $X_{LM}(s_i) = 0$.

REFERENCES

- S. MARDER, V.W. HUGHES, C.S. WU and W. BENNET, 1956, Phys. Rev. 103, 1258-1265
- A. ORE, Universitetet i Bergen Arbok 1949, Naturvitenskapelig rekke No. 9
- 3. W. B. TEUTSCH and V.W. HUGHES, 1956, Phys. Rev. 103, 1266-1281
- 4. H.S.W. MASSEY and C.B.O. MOHR, 1954, Proc. Phys. Soc. <u>68</u>, 695-704
- 5. H.S.W. MASSEY and A.H.A. MOUSSA, 1958, Proc. Phys. Soc. <u>71</u>, 38-44
- H.S.W. MASSEY and B.L. MOISEIWITSCH, 1950, Proc. Roy. Soc. A205, 483
- 7. A.H.A. MOUSSA, 1959, Proc. Phys. Soc. 74, 101-104
- 8. B.L. MOISEIWITSCH, 1958, Proc. Phys. Soc. 72, 139-141
- 9. M.C. NEWSTEIN, 1955, Technical Report No. 4, Massachusetts Institute of Technology
- B.L. MOISEIWITSCH and A. WILLIAMS, 1959, Proc. Roy. Soc. <u>A250</u>, 337-345
- 11. C. SCHWARTZ, 1961, Phys. Rev. 124, 1468-1471
- 12. L. SPRUCH and L. ROSENBERG, 1960, Phys. Rev. 117, 143-151
- 13. T. KATO, 1950, Progr. Theor. Physics (Kyoto) 6, 295 1951, 6, 394 1950, Phys. Rev. 80, 475
- 14. L. SPRUCH and L. ROSENBERG, 1959, Phys. Rev. 116, 1034-1040
- D.C.S. ALLISON, H.A.J. MCINTYRE and B.L. MOISEIWITSCH, 1961, Proc. Phys. Soc. 78, 1169-1173
- 16. S.L. HOUSTON and B.L. MOISEIWITSCH, 1968, J. Phys. B. 2, 29-33
- L.C. GREEN, M.M. MULDER, N.N. LEWIS and J.W. WOLL, 1954, Phys. Rev. 93, 757
- L. CASTILLEJO, I.C. PERCIVAL and M.J. SEATON, 1960, Proc. Roy. Soc. A254, 259-272

- 19. K. SMITH and P.G. BURKE, 1961, Phys. Rev. 123, 174-178
- L.C. GREEN, P.P. RUSH and C.D. CHANDLER, 1957, Astrophys. J. Suppl. <u>3</u>, no. 26, 37
- P.G. BURKE, H.M. SCHEY and K. SMITH, 1963, Phys. Rev. <u>129</u>, 1258-1274
- 22. P.G. BURKE and K. SMITH, 1961, Rev. Mod. Phys. 34, 458-502
- 23. R. P. McEACHRAN and P.A. FRASER, 1965, Proc. Phys. Soc. <u>86</u>, 369-373
- 24. W.J. CODY and K. SMITH, 1960, Argonne National Laboratory Report, ANL-6121 (unpublished); W. J. CODY, 1961, Argonne National Laboratory Report, ANL/AMD-21 (unpublished); K. SMITH, 1961, Proc. Phys. Soc. 78, 549-553
- W.J. CODY, J. LAWSON, H.S.W. MASSEY and K. SMITH, 1964, Proc. Roy. Soc. <u>278</u>, 479-489
- 26. J.F. PERKINS, 1968, Phys. Rev. 173, 164-171
- 27. M. KRAIDY, 1967, Ph. D. Thesis, University of Western Ontario, Canada
 - 28. A. TEMKIN, 1959, Phys. Rev. 116, 358-363
 - 29. A. TEMKIN and J.C. LAMKIN, 1961, Phys. Rev. 121, 788-794
 - 30. R.M. STERNHEIMER, 1954, Phys. Rev. 96, 951-968
 - 31. B.H. BRANSDEN, 1962, Proc. Phys. Soc. 79, 190-195
 - 32. P.M. STONE, 1966, Phys. Rev. 141, 137-145
 - 33. R. DAMBURG and E. KARULE, 1970, Proc. Phys. Soc. <u>90</u>, 637-640
 - 34. H.S.W. MASSEY, J. LAWSON and D.G. THOMPSON, 1966, Quantum Theory of Atoms, Molecules and the Solid State, Ed. P. Lowdin, (New York: Academic Press) pp. 203-215
 - 35. T. HASHINO, 1962, Progr. Theor. Physics, 36, 671-678
 - 36. M. ROTENBERG, 1962, Annals of Physics, 19, 262-278
 - 37. A. TEMKIN, 1962, Proc. Phys. Soc. 80, 1277-1289

| 38. | See: | H. | FESHBACH, | 1958 | Ann. | of | Physics, | 5, | 357 |
|-----|------|----|-----------|------|------|----|----------|-----|-------|
| | | | | 1962 | Ann. | of | Physics, | 19, | , 287 |

- 39. Y. HAHN, T.F.O'MALLEY and L. SPRUCH, 1963, Phys. Rev. 134, 397-404
- 40. W.A. McKINLEY and J.H. MACEK, 1964, Phys. Letters, <u>10</u>, 210-212
- 41. M. GAILITIS, 1965, Soviet Phys. JETP, 20, 107-111
- 42. Y. HAHN, T.F. O'MALLEY and L. SPRUCH, 1963, Phys. Rev. <u>130</u>, 381-394
- 43. Y. HAHN and L. SPRUCH, 1965, Phys. Rev. 140, 19-25
- 44. C.J. KLEINMAN, Y. HAHN and L. SPRUCH, 1965, Phys. Rev. <u>140</u>, 413-425
- 45. R.L. ARMSTEAD, 1968, Phys. Rev. 171, 91-93
- 46. A. DALGARNO and J.T. LEWIS, 1955, Proc. Roy. Soc. <u>A223</u>, 70-74
- 47. A. DALGARNO and N. LYNN. 1957, Proc. Phys. Soc. A70, 223-225
- 48. R.J. DRACHMAN, 1965, Phys. Rev. 138, 6A, 1582-1585
- 49. J. CALLAWAY, R.W. LaBAHN, R.T. PU and W.M. DUXLER, 1968, Phys. Rev. <u>168</u>, 12-21
- 50. R.J. DRACHMAN, 1968, Phys. Rev. 173, 190-201
- 51. B.H. BRANSDEN and Z. JUNDI, 1966, Proc. Phys. Soc. 89, 7-11
- 52. J.C.Y. CHEN and M.H. MITTLEMAN, 1966, Ann. of Phys. <u>37</u>, 264-270
- 53. M.F. FELS and M.H. MITTLEMAN, 1967, Phys. Rev. 163, 129-163
- 54. B.H. BRANSDEN and Z JUNDI, 1967, Proc. Phys. Soc. 92, 880-888
- 55. Y. HAHN and J.F. DIRKS to be published
- 56. Y. HAHN, 1970, Phys. Rev. C 1 12-16

- 57. R.J. DRACHMAN, 1968, Phys. Rev. 144, 25-28
- 58. W.O. BYATT, 1956, Phys. Rev. 104, 1298-1300
- 59. N.R. KESTNER, J. JORTNER, M.H. COHEN and S.A. RICE, 1965 Phys. Rev. <u>140</u>, 56-66
- 60. M.F. FELS and M.H. MITTLEMAN, 1969, Phys. Rev. 182, 77-83
- 61. C. SCHWARTZ, 1962, Phys. Rev. 128, 1146-1148
- 62. T.F. O'MALLEY and S. GELTMAN, 1964, Phys. Rev. <u>137</u>, 1344-1351
- 63. M.H. MITTLEMAN, 1966, Phys. Rev. 152, 76-78
- 64. M.H. MITTLEMAN, 1964, Ann. Phys. (N.Y.) 37, 269
- 65. A.K. BHATIA and A. TEMKIN, 1968, 21st. Gaseous Electron Conference, Boulder
- 66. R. J. DRACHMAN, 1968, Phys. Rev. 171, 110-114
- 67. P.A. FRASER, 1961, Proc. Phys. Soc. 78, 329-347
- 68. P.A. FRASER, 1961, Proc. Phys. Soc, 79, 721-731
- 69. P.A. FRASER, 1968, J. Phys. B. 2, 1006-1009
- 70. P.A. FRASER and M. KRAIDY, 1966, Proc. Phys. Soc. <u>89</u>, 533-539
- 71. M.J. BARKER and B.H. BRANSDEN, 1968, J. Phys. B. 2, 1109-1114
- 72. I.M. CHESHIRE, 1963, Proc. Phys. Soc. 83, 227-237
- 73. Addendum to R.J. DRACHMAN, 1968, Phys. Rev. 173, 190-201
- 74. H.S.W. MASSEY and A.H.A. MOUSSA, 1961, Proc. Phys. Soc. <u>77</u>, 811-816 75.
- C.Y. LEUNG and D.A. PAUL, 1969, J. Phys. B. 2, 1278-1291
- 76. S.J. TAO and T.M. KELLY, 1969, Phys. Rev. 185, 135-140

- 77. R.A. FERREL, 1956, Revs. Mod. Phys. 28, 308
- 78. S. DeBENEDETTI and H.C. CORSEN, 1954, Ann. Rev. Nucl. Sc. 4, 191-218
- 79. B.G. DUFF and F.F. HEYMANN, 1962, Proc. Roy. Soc. <u>A270</u>, 517-524
- 80. For example: V.W. HUGHES, 1968, Abstracts Int. Conf. on Atomic Phys. N.Y., Plenum Press N.Y. 1969 [Zeff=.180±.016]; F.F. HEYMAN, P.E. OSMON, J.J. VEIT and W.F. WILLIAMS, 1961, Proc. Phys. Soc. 78, 1038-1047 [Zeff=.135±.068]; L.O. ROELLIG and T.M. KELLY, 1967, Phys. Rev. Lett. 18 387-390 [Zeff.=.25±25%]
- 81. For example: D.A. PAUL and R.L. GRAHAM, 1957, Phys. Rev. 106, 16-18 [Zeff=3.9]; T.B. DANIEL and R. STUMP, 1959, Phys. Rev. 115, 1599[Zeff. = 3.2]; B.G. DUFF and F.F. HEYMAN, 1962, Proc. Roy. Soc. A270, 517 [Zeff = 3.25 ± .22]; P.E. OSMON, 1965, Phys. Rev. 138, B216-218 and 1965, Phys. Lett. 16, 271-272 [Zeff = 2.46]; T.M. KELLY and L.O. ROELLIG, private communication to P. FRASER [Zeff = 3.96 ± .04]; W.R. FALK, 1965, Ph. D. Thesis, University of British Columbia [Zeff = 3.78 ± .17]; W.R. FALK, P.H.R. ORTH and G. JONES, 1965, Phys. Rev. Lett. 14, 447-449
- 82. S.K. HOUSTON, 1968, J. Phys. B. 2, 34-35
- 83. R. J. DRACHMAN, 1966, Phys. Rev. 150, 10-14
- 84. J. M. BLATT and L.C. BIEDENHARN, 1952, Revs. Mod. Phys. 24, 258; see also the correction pointed out by R. HUBY, 6954 Proc. Phys. Soc. A67, 1103
- I.C. PERCIVAL and M.J. SEATON, 1957, Proc. Cambridge Phil. Soc. 53, 654
- 86. C. BREIT and E. WIGNER, 1936, Phys. Rev. 49, 510
- 87. P.G. BURKE and H.M. SCHEY, 1962, Phys. Rev. 126, 147-162
- K. SMITH, R. P. McEACHRAN and P.A. FRASER, 1962, Phys. Rev. 125, 553-558
- 89. M. KRAIDY and P.A. FRASER, 1966, Proc. Phys. Soc. 89, 525-531
- 90. H.E. SARAPH and M.J. SEATON, 1962, Proc. Phys. Soc. 80, 1057-1066

- 91. T.L. JOHN, 1960, Proc. Phys. Soc. 76, 532-538
- 92. H.E. SARAPH, 1964, Proc. 3rd Int. Conf. on the Physics of Electronic and Atomic Collisions, 1963 (Amsterdam: North Holland) pp. 359-63
- 93. A. SALMONA and M.J. SEATON, 1961, Proc. Phys. Soc. 77, 617
- 94. A.H. MOUSSA, H.S.W. MASSEY, K. SMITH AND C. WARDLE, 1967, Proceedings of the International Conference on the Physics of Electronic and Atomic Collisions, Leningrad (publ. Nauka)
- 95. P.G. BURKE and A.J. TAYLOR, 1966, Proc. Phys. Soc. 88, 549
- 96. P.G. BURKE, J.W. COOPER and S. ORMONDE, 1969, Phys. Rev. <u>183</u>, 245-264
- 97. M.ROTENBERG, R. BIVINS, N. METROPOLIS and J.K. WOOTEN, 1959, The 3n-j Symbols; Technology Press, M.I.T., Cambridge, Massachusetts.

98. M.MOSHINSKY, 1959, Nucl. Phys. 13, 104.